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aggregate principal amount of $12,970,000 (the “Series 2013A Bonds”) and its Taxable Education Revenue Bonds (The Academy Charter School Project), Series 2013B in the aggregate principal 
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redemption prior to maturity.  See “THE SERIES 2013 Bonds – Prior Redemption.”

The Issuer will loan the proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds to The Academy Charter School, an education corporation (“the Borrower”) organized and existing under the laws of the State 
and an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), pursuant to the terms of a Loan Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013 (the 
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foot full basement area with locker rooms, cafeteria, warming kitchen and associated storage uses (collectively, the “Gymnasium Building”; and, together with the Land and the Middle School 
Improvements, (the resulting square footage of the Middle School Improvements together with the Gymnasium Building total approximately 56,000 square feet), all for the purpose of providing 
educational opportunities to middle school children in the Town of Hempstead and surrounding areas (collectively, the “Improvements” and “Equipment”; and, together with the Land, the “2013 
Project”), (B) paying capitalized interest on the Series 2013 Bonds; and (C) funding a debt service reserve, if required for the Series 2013 Bonds, and (D) paying certain costs of issuance of the 
Series 2013 Bonds.  See “PLAN OF FINANCE” and “SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS.” 

Simultaneously with the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds, the Borrower will execute and deliver to the Issuer (i) a promissory note evidencing the loan by the Issuer to the Borrower of 
the proceeds of the Series 2013A Bonds, which promissory note will be endorsed by the Issuer, without recourse, to the Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of the Series 2013 Bonds and (ii) 
a promissory note evidencing the loan by the Issuer to the Borrower of the proceeds of the Series 2013B Bonds, which promissory note will be endorsed by the Issuer, without recourse, to the 
Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of the Series 2013 Bonds (collectively, the “Promissory Note”). See “PLAN OF FINANCE.”  

The Series 2013 Bonds shall be equally and ratably secured under the Indenture with the Issuer’s Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds (The Academy Charter School Project), Series 
2011A, originally issued in the aggregate principal amount of $10,505,000 and Taxable Education Revenue Bonds (The Academy Charter School Project), Series 2011B, originally issued in the 
aggregate principal amount of $235,000 (collectively, the “Series 2011 Bonds”) which were issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated March 1, 2011 (the “2011 Indenture”), between the 
Issuer and Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, Buffalo, New York, as trustee (the “2011 Trustee”).  The proceeds of the Series 2011 Bonds were loaned to the Borrower pursuant to a 
Loan Agreement, dated as of March 1, 2011, between the Issuer and the Borrower (the “2011 Loan Agreement” and, together with the Loan Agreement, the “Loan Agreements”) in order to, among 
other purposes, finance the design, construction, equipping and furnishing of the Borrower’s school facilities located at 117 North Franklin Street, Hempstead, New York (the “2011 Project” and, 
together with the 2013 Project, the “Projects”).  The loan payments required by the Borrower under the 2011 Loan Agreement are further secured by certain mortgage and security agreements and 
assignment of leases and rents, dated as of March 1, 2011 (the “2011 Mortgage”) on the land and improvements comprising the 2011 Project, and will be further secured by a Collateral Mortgage 
and Security Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013 from the Borrower to the Issuer (the “2013 Collateral Mortgage”) on the land and improvements comprising the 2013 Project (collectively, 
the 2011 Mortgage and the 2013 Collateral Mortgage are referred to herein as the “2011 Mortgages”).  The 2011 Mortgage was assigned by the Issuer to the 2011 Trustee for the benefit of the 
Holders of the Series 2011 Bonds pursuant to certain assignments of mortgages and security agreements (the “2011 Assignment of Mortgage”). The 2013 Collateral Mortgage will be assigned by the 
Issuer to the Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of the Series 2013 Bonds pursuant to an Assignment of Mortgage and Security Agreement (2013 Collateral Mortgage), dated December 23, 2013 
(collectively, the 2011 Assignment of Mortgage and the 2013 Assignment of Mortgage (2013 Collateral Mortgage) are referred to herein as the “2011 Assignments of Mortgages”) See “SECURITY 
FOR THE SERIES 2013 BONDS.” 

The loan payments required by the Borrower under the Loan Agreement are further secured by a Mortgage and Security Agreement and Assignment of Leases and Rents (Acquisition Loan), 
dated as of December 1, 2013, a Mortgage and Security Agreement and Assignment of Leases and Rents (Project Loan), dated as of December 1, 2013, and a Mortgage and Security Agreement and 
Assignment of Leases and Rents (Building Loan), dated as of December 1, 2013, each from the Borrower to the Issuer on the land and improvements comprising the 2013 Project (collectively, the 
“2013 Mortgage”). The loan payments required by the Borrower under the Loan Agreement are further secured by a Collateral Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013 
from the Borrower to the Issuer (the “New 2011 Collateral Mortgage”, together with the 2013 Mortgage, the “2013 Mortgages” and collectively with the 2011 Mortgages, the “Mortgages”) on the 
land and improvements comprising the 2011 Project.  The 2013 Mortgage and the New 2011 Collateral Mortgage will be assigned by the Issuer to the Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of the 
Series 2013 Bonds, pursuant to an Assignment of Acquisition Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated December 23, 2013, an Assignment of Building Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement, 
dated as of December 1, 2013, an Assignment of Project Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013 and an Assignment of Mortgage  and Security Agreement (New 2011 
Collateral Mortgage), dated December 23, 2013 (collectively the “2013 Assignments of Mortgage” and collectively with the 2011 Assignments of Mortgages, the “Assignments of Mortgages”).  See 
“APPENDIX D – GLOSSARY AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE MORTGAGE.”

Under an Intercreditor Agreement dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “Intercreditor Agreement”) by and among the Borrower, the Issuer, the Custodian, Manufacturers and Traders Trust 
Company, as Collateral Agent, the 2011 Trustee and the Trustee, the Series 2013 Bonds will be secured equally, ratably and on a parity basis with the Series 2011 Bonds with respect to the lien 
on Pledged Revenues under the Loan Agreements and the security provided under the Mortgages.  See “SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2013 BONDS – Parity Status; Intercreditor Agreement.”

The Bonds are issuable only in fully registered form, without coupons, and when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company, New 
York, New York (“DTC”). Purchases of beneficial interests in the Series 2013A Bonds will be made in book-entry only form, in the denomination of $25,000 or $25,000 plus integral multiples of 
$5,000.  Purchases of beneficial interests in the Series 2013B Bonds will be made in book-entry only form, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. Purchasers of beneficial 
interests will not receive certificates representing their interest in the Bonds. So long as Cede & Co. is the bondowner, as nominee of DTC, references herein to the bondowners or registered 
owners shall mean Cede & Co., as aforesaid, and shall not mean the Beneficial Owners (as defined herein) of the Bonds. See “THE SERIES 2013 BONDS - Book-Entry Only System” herein.

THE SERIES 2013 BONDS ARE SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE ISSUER AND NEITHER THE STATE OF NEW YORK, NOR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF (INCLUDING 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE TOWN OF HEMPSTEAD, NEW YORK) IS OBLIGATED TO PAY, AND NEITHER THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING AUTHORITY OF THE STATE 
OF NEW YORK OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF (INCLUDING THE TOWN OF HEMPSTEAD, NEW YORK) IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, 
IF ANY, OR INTEREST ON THE SERIES 2013 BONDS. THE SERIES 2013 BONDS ARE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM AND ARE SECURED BY REVENUES OF THE ISSUER UNDER THE LOAN 
AGREEMENT AND OTHER MONIES AVAILABLE THEREFOR AS DESCRIBED HEREIN. THE ISSUER HAS NO TAXING AUTHORITY AND THE BORROWER MAY NOT CHARGE TUITION. 
SEE “SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2013 BONDS” HEREIN.

This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only.  It is not a summary of this issue.  Purchase of the Series 2013 Bonds involves a high degree of 
risk and the Series 2013 Bonds are a speculative investment.  Investors must read this entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed 
investment decision, and should give particular attention to the material under the caption “RISK FACTORS.”

The Series 2013 Bonds are offered when, as and if issued by the Issuer and received and accepted by the Underwriter and subject to the approval of legality by Nixon Peabody LLP, New 
York, New York, Bond Counsel.  Certain legal matters will be passed upon by Ryan, Brennan & Donelly LLP, Floral Park, New York, as counsel to the Issuer; by Tanya Hobson-Williams, Attorney 
at Law, Floral Park, New York, and Ruskin Moscou Faltischek, P.C., Uniondale, New York, as co-counsels to the Borrower; and by Harris Beach PLLC, New York, New York, as counsel to the 
Underwriter.  Buck Financial LLC, Englewood, Colorado, is serving as financial advisor to the Borrower.  It is expected that the Series 2013 Bonds will be available for delivery through the 
facilities of DTC on or about December 23, 2013.

BAIRD
December 19, 2013
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MATURITY SCHEDULE

TOWN OF HEMPSTEAD LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

$12,970,000
TAX-EXEMPT EDUCATION REVENUE BONDS

(THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL PROJECT), SERIES 2013A

$12,970,000 Term Bond due February 1, 2044; Rate: 7.650%; Yield: 7.650% CUSIP: 424685AC9*

$545,000
TAXABLE EDUCATION REVENUE BONDS

(THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL PROJECT), SERIES 2013B

$545,000 Term Bond due February 1, 2019; Rate: 7.250% Yield: 7.250% CUSIP: 424685AD7*

* The above-referenced CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an independent company not affiliated with the Issuer, the
Borrower, the Trustee or the Underwriter and are included solely for the convenience of the holders of the Series 2013 Bonds.
None of the Issuer, the Borrower, the Trustee or the Underwriter is responsible for the selection or uses of such CUSIP
numbers, and no representation is made as to their correctness on the Series 2013 Bonds or as indicated above. The CUSIP
number for a specific maturity is subject to being changed after the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds as a result of various
subsequent actions including, but not limited to, a refunding in whole or in part of such maturity or as a result of the
procurement of secondary market portfolio insurance or other similar enhancement by investors that is applicable to all or a
portion of certain maturities.
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NOTICE TO INVESTORS OF THE SERIES 2013 Bonds

Each purchaser, by its purchase of the Series 2013 Bonds or any interest therein, will be deemed to
have represented and agreed, to and with the Issuer, the Borrower, the Underwriter and the Trustee as set forth
below:

(i) The Purchaser has sufficient knowledge and experience in financial and business matters,
including the purchase and ownership of taxable and tax-exempt obligations, and is capable of
evaluating the merits and risks of its investment in the Series 2013 Bonds.

(ii) The Purchaser understands that the Series 2013 Bonds have not been registered under the
Securities Act or under any state securities laws. The Purchaser agrees that it will comply
with any applicable state and federal securities laws then in effect with respect to any
disposition of the Series 2013 Bonds by it, and further acknowledges that any current
exemption from registration of the Series 2013 Bonds does not affect or diminish such
requirements.

(iii) The Purchaser is familiar with the conditions, financial and otherwise, of the Borrower, and
understands that Borrower may not charge tuition and has no taxing authority, and further
understands that the Borrower's primary source of revenue is Education Aid payments
provided by the State to charter schools for educating students.

(iv) The Purchaser understands that the Series 2013 Bonds are special obligations of the Issuer
and neither the State of New York, nor any political subdivision thereof (including without
limitation, the Town of Hempstead, New York) is obligated to pay, and neither the full faith
and credit nor the taxing authority of the State of New York or any political subdivision
thereof (including the Town of Hempstead, New York) is pledged to the payment of principal
of, premium, if any, or interest on the Series 2013 Bonds. The Purchaser further understands
that the Series 2013 Bonds are payable solely from and are secured by revenues of the Issuer
under the Loan Agreement and other monies available therefor as described herein.

(v) The Purchaser acknowledges that it must review this entire Official Statement and the
Appendices hereto, including the information relating to the sources of repayment of the
Series 2013 Bonds, the Borrower (including financial and operating data) and the Facility.
The Purchaser acknowledges that this Official Statement is not guaranteed as to its accuracy
or completeness, and does not constitute a representation by the Underwriter.

(vi) The Purchaser acknowledges that neither the Issuer nor any commissioner, officer or
employee thereof takes any responsibility for, and the Purchaser must not rely upon any of
such parties, with respect to information appearing anywhere in this Official Statement, other
than the information under the captions “THE ISSUER,” and “LEGAL MATTERS – Pending
And Threatened Litigation – No Proceedings Against the Issuer” (the “Issuer's Portion” of the
Official Statement). None of such parties have participated in the preparation of this Official
Statement except with respect to the Issuer's Portion of the Official Statement.

(vii) The Purchaser acknowledges that the purchase of the Series 2013 Bonds involves a high
degree of risk and the Series 2013 Bonds are a speculative investment. The Series 2013
Bonds are unrated. The value of the Series 2013 Bonds may fluctuate significantly in the
short-term and have a less liquid resale market. The Series 2013 Bonds are also considered
predominately speculative with respect to the obligor's continuing ability to make principal
and interest payments. See also “RISK FACTORS – Speculative Investment” below. The
Series 2013 Bonds should not be purchased by any potential investor who, because of
financial condition, investment policies or otherwise, does not desire to assume, or have the
ability to bear, the risks inherent in an investment in the Series 2013 Bonds.
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No dealer, salesman, or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation, other than the information 
contained in this Official Statement, in connection with the offering of the Series 2013 Bonds, and, if given or made, such information or 
representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Issuer, the Borrower, the Trustee or the Underwriter.  The information 
in this Official Statement is subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale hereunder will, under 
any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer, the Borrower, the Trustee  or the 
Underwriter since the date hereof.  This Official Statement does not constitute an offer or solicitation in any jurisdiction in which such offer or 
solicitation is not authorized, or in which any person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so, or to any person to whom it is 
unlawful to make such offer or solicitation. 
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REGARDING USE OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT

This Official Statement is being provided in connection with the sale of the Series 2013 Bonds as referred
to herein and may not be reproduced for use, in whole or in part, for any other purpose. The information set forth
herein under the captions “THE ISSUER,” and “LEGAL MATTERS – Pending And Threatened Litigation – No
Proceedings Against the Issuer” has been obtained from the Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation
(the “Issuer”). All other information set forth herein has been obtained from The Academy Charter School (the
“Borrower”), The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”) and other sources which are believed
to be reliable, but it is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness. The information and expressions of opinion
herein are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made
hereunder shall, under any circumstances or at any time, create any implication that information herein is correct as
of any time subsequent to the date of this Official Statement.

No dealer, salesman, or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any
representation, other than the information contained in this Official Statement, in connection with the offering of the
Series 2013 Bonds, and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been
authorized by the Issuer, the Borrower, or the Underwriter. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer or
solicitation in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized, or in which any person making
such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so, or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or
solicitation.

The Series 2013 Bonds are not being registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission in reliance
upon an exemption from the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, nor has the Indenture been qualified under the
Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, in reliance upon exemptions contained in such acts. The registration or
qualification of the Series 2013 Bonds in accordance with applicable provisions of securities laws of the states in
which the Series 2013 Bonds have been registered or qualified and the exemption from registration or qualification
in other states cannot be regarded as a recommendation thereof. Neither these states nor any of their agencies have
passed upon the merits of the Series 2013 Bonds or the accuracy or completeness of this Official Statement. Any
representation to the contrary may be a criminal offense.

IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN
EXAMINATION OF THE ISSUER, THE BORROWER, AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING
THE MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED. THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED BY
ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR REGULATORY ISSUER. FURTHERMORE,
THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT CONFIRMED THE ACCURACY OR DETERMINED THE
ADEQUACY OF THESE DOCUMENTS. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY MAY BE A
CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT
TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE SERIES 2013 BONDS
AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH
STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement: The
Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its
responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this
transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information.
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TOWN OF HEMPSTEAD LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

$12,970,000
TAX-EXEMPT EDUCATION REVENUE BONDS

(THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL PROJECT), SERIES 2013A

$545,000
TAXABLE EDUCATION REVENUE BONDS

(THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL PROJECT), SERIES 2013B

INTRODUCTION

General

The purpose of this Official Statement is to provide certain information concerning the issuance and sale
by the Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation (the “Issuer”) of its $12,970,000 aggregate principal
amount of Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds (The Academy Charter School Project), Series 2013A (the
“Series 2013A Bonds”) and its $545,000 aggregate principal amount of Taxable Education Revenue Bonds (The
Academy Charter School Project), Series 2013B (the “Series 2013B Bonds” and collectively with the Series 2013A
Bonds, the “Series 2013 Bonds”) (the Series 2013 Bonds and any Additional Bonds are referred to collectively as
the “Bonds”). The Series 2013 Bonds will be issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of December 1,
2013 (the “Indenture”), by and between the Issuer and Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, Buffalo, New
York, as trustee (the “Trustee”). The Issuer will loan the proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds to The Academy
Charter School, an education corporation (the “Borrower”) organized and existing under the laws of the State of
New York (the “State”) and an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, (the “Code”), pursuant to the terms of a Loan Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “Loan
Agreement”), by and between the Issuer and the Borrower. Simultaneously with the issuance of the Series 2013
Bonds, the Borrower will execute and deliver to the Issuer (i) a promissory note evidencing the loan by the Issuer to
the Borrower of the proceeds of the Series 2013A Bonds, which promissory note will be endorsed by the Issuer,
without recourse, to the Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of the Series 2013 Bonds and (ii) a promissory note
evidencing the loan by the Issuer to the Borrower of the proceeds of the Series 2013B Bonds, which promissory note
will be endorsed by the Issuer, without recourse, to the Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of the Series 2013
Bonds (collectively, the “Promissory Note”).

The offering of the Series 2013 Bonds is made only by way of this Official Statement, that supersedes any
other information or materials used in connection with the offer or sale of the Series 2013 Bonds. This Official
Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject to change. Capitalized terms
used but not defined in this Official Statement have the meanings provided in the Indenture and the Loan
Agreement, as summarized in “APPENDIX D – GLOSSARY AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS.”

Forward-Looking Statements

This Official Statement contains statements relating to future results that are forward-looking statements of
the type defined in the Private Litigation Reform Act of 1995. When used in this Official Statement, the words
“estimate,” “expect,” “project,” “intend,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “may,” “will,” “continue” and similar expressions
identify forward-looking statements. Any forward-looking statement is subject to uncertainty and risks that could
cause actual results to differ, possibly materially, from those contemplated in such forward-looking statements.
Inevitably, some assumptions used to develop forward-looking statements will not be realized or unanticipated
events and circumstances may occur. Therefore, investors should be aware that there are likely to be differences
between forward-looking statements and actual results, and that those differences could be material.

THE ISSUER

The Issuer was created pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of the New York Membership
Corporation Law as in effect in 1966, as a local development corporation as superseded by Section 1411 of Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law of the State of New York (“Act”) for the purpose of promoting the economic welfare of the
inhabitants of the Town of Hempstead and promoting, attracting, encouraging and developing economically sound
commerce and industry through governmental action for the purpose of preventing unemployment and economic
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deterioration. The Town of Hempstead, New York (the “Town”) is the sole member of the Issuer and the Town as
the sole member of the Issuer, acting through the Town Board, appoints the Board of Directors of the Issuer.

As provided in the Act, the Issuer is authorized and empowered to make a loan to the Borrower pursuant to
the Loan Agreement; to issue, execute and deliver the Series 2013 Bonds; to secure the Series 2013 Bonds by a
pledge of the moneys payable by the Borrower under the Loan Agreement and the Custody Agreement; and to enter
into the Bond Documents.

By the Inducement Resolution adopted on October 25, 2013, the Issuer took official action relating to the
issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds. The Issuer has held the required public hearings, in compliance with the
provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), with respect to the issuance of the
Series 2013 Bonds, following the timely publication of notice of the hearing. By a resolution adopted on December
18, 2013, the Issuer determined that, based upon the review by the Issuer of the materials submitted and the
representations made by the Borrower relating to the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds and the Project, the issuance
of the Series 2013 Bonds and the Project would not have a “significant impact” or “significant effect” on the
environment, within the meaning of the SEQR Act. By a Certificate of Approval to be executed by the Applicable
Elected Representative (as defined in the Code), the Supervisor of the Town of Hempstead, New York has approved
the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds and, based upon a review of the materials submitted and the representations
made by the Borrower relating to the Project, concur in the Issuer's determination under the SEQR Act.

The Board of Directors of the Issuer is presently composed of members appointed by the Town of
Hempstead. The names and positions of the current members of the Issuer are as follows:

Position Name

Chairman Theodore P. Sasso, Jr.
Vice Chairman Paul F. Conte
Treasurer Jonathan B. Kohan
Secretary Cheryl Petri
Member Ari Brown
Member Danny Grodotzke

The Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer and the Deputy Executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer of the Issuer are appointed by the Board of Directors of the Issuer. The Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Issuer is Frederick E. Parola, Esq. and the Deputy Executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer of the Issuer is Edith M. Longo.

No covenant or agreement contained in the Indenture, the Loan Agreement or the Series 2013 Bonds shall
be deemed to be a covenant or agreement of any member, officer, director, agent, attorney or employee of the Issuer,
nor shall any member, officer, director, agent, attorney or employee be liable personally on the Series 2013 Bonds or
any other of the aforementioned documents. Moreover, the Issuer has relied on representations of the Borrower
regarding the Project and will not independently monitor the Project. Except for information concerning the Issuer
in the sections of this Official Statement under the captions “THE ISSUER,” and “LEGAL MATTERS – Pending
and Threatened Litigation – No Proceedings Against the Issuer,” none of the information in this Official Statement
has been supplied or verified by the Issuer and the Issuer makes no representation or warranty, express or implied, as
to the accuracy or completeness of such information.

The Series 2013 Bonds are special obligations of the Issuer and neither the State of New York, nor any
political subdivision thereof (including without limitation, the Town of Hempstead, New York) is obligated to pay,
and neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing authority of the State of New York or any political subdivision
thereof (including the Town of Hempstead, New York) is pledged to the payment of principal of, premium, if any,
or interest on the Series 2013 Bonds. The Series 2013 Bonds are payable solely from and are secured by revenues of
the Issuer under the Loan Agreement and other monies available therefor as described herein. The Issuer has no
taxing authority and the Borrower may not charge tuition. See “SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2013 Bonds.”
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THE BORROWER

The Academy Charter School (the “Borrower”) is a New York education corporation, incorporated on
February 23, 2009 by the Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the “Board of Regents”)
under Article 56 of the New York Education Law, for the purpose of operating a charter school.

The Borrower received its charter contract (the “Charter”) on February 23, 2009 from the Board of Regents
for and on behalf of the Education Department of the State of New York. The Charter is currently effective through
February 22, 2014 and can be renewed or extended beyond its current term by the Board of Regents pursuant to
applicable law. Although the stated term of the Charter expires approximately three months prior to the completion
of the 2013-14 school year, the Borrower anticipates that the Charter will be renewed in a timely fashion to ensure
uninterrupted operation of the Borrower through the end of the 2013-14 school year and beyond. Pursuant to its
recent Charter revision approved on April 15, 2013, the Borrower commenced operation of grade six with the 2013-
14 school year. The Borrower applied for renewal of the Charter on August 15, 2013 and its application is pending.
It is expected that the approval of the renewal of the Charter will be received no later than February 1, 2014. See
“APPENDIX B – THE BORROWER – Charter.”

The Borrower's authorizer, the State University of New York's Charter Schools Institute issued a letter of
good standing for the Borrower, dated December 16, 2013. The good standing Letter provides as follows:

(a) The State University of New York Trustees have not placed the Borrower on probation pursuant to
Education Law subdivision 2855(3), or on corrective action pursuant to its Charter Agreement with the State
University of New York Trustees. In addition, the State University of New York Trustees are not in the process of
revoking the Borrower’s charter pursuant to section 2855 of the Education Law.

(b) The Charter Schools Institute’s opinion of the Borrower is that as of the date of the Letter of Good
Standing, the Borrower is a legally formed New York not-for-profit education corporation in good standing, with all
of the rights, powers and obligations of any other duly incorporated New York charter school and is permitted to
instruct students in the grades and numbers set forth in its charter agreement.

(c) On October 28, 2013, the Charter Schools Institute acting on behalf of the State University of New
York Trustees, approved and extension of the Borrower’s charter through July 31, 2014, which the Charter Schools
Institute is in the process of sending to the Board of Regents. The Charter Schools Institute expects that this
extension will be approved by operation of law.

(d) The Borrower has submitted an application to State University of New York to renew its charter
for a full term of five years commencing on August 1, 2014, which application the Charter Schools Institute is
currently reviewing. At this time, there is no indication that the Charter Schools Institute would recommend non-
renewal for the Borrower, and several indicators that the Charter Schools Institute would make a positive renewal
recommendation.

(e) Finally, the State University of New York's Board of Trustees will vote on the approval of the
Borrower's renewal application. Typically, the vote is conducted at a board meeting held in the winter months prior
to the expiration of the Borrower’s charter.

The Borrower is an organization described under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986,
as amended (the “Code”) which is exempt from federal income taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code (except
with respect to “unrelated business taxable income” within the meaning of Section 512(a) of the Code) and (b)
which is not a “private foundation” as defined in Section 509(a) of the Code. The Borrower operates as a New York
non-profit corporation and as such is governed by the law applicable to such entities and its articles of incorporation
and bylaws. The Borrower's bylaws provide that the Borrower is managed and controlled by a Board of Trustees.
For more information. See “APPENDIX B – THE BORROWER – Governance and Management.”

In addition, the Borrower contracts with Victory Education Partners (formerly known as Victory Schools,
Inc.), New York, New York (“Victory”) for services including the management of educational services in all grades
offered, budgeting and financial management services, and certain other support-related services. Victory has
provided these services to the Borrower since June 2009. For more information, see “APPENDIX B – THE
BORROWER – Services Provider.”
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The Borrower began operating grades K-2 in the 2009-10 school year with 165 students, residing primarily
in twelve school districts in Nassau County, New York, the largest of which is the Hempstead School District.

For the 2013-14 school year, there were twelve public schools serving students in the Hempstead School
District that serves the Village of Hempstead within the Town of Hempstead. Of these schools, seven served at least
one or more grades of grades K-6, with the Borrower being one of the only two charter schools in the Hempstead
School District.

As of the current 2013-14 school year the Borrower operates K-6 grades, for a total billable enrollment of
484 students and a wait list of 322 students. As part of its current expansion plan to the middle school facility, the
Borrower expects to add grade seven in the 2014-15 school year and grade eight in the 2015-16 school year for a
total expected billable enrollment of 589 and 689, respectively. For more information, see “APPENDIX B – THE
BORROWER – Enrollment.”

PLAN OF FINANCE

The Borrower will use the proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds for the following purposes: (A) (i) the
acquisition of an existing approximately 1.07 acre parcel of land at 159 North Franklin Street, Village of
Hempstead, Town of Hempstead, New York (further identified as Section 34, Block 291, Lot 86) (the “Land”), (ii)
the expansion of an existing approximately 39,004 square foot four-story building including the construction,
renovation and selective demolition to non-structural building components including, but not limited to, walls,
ceilings, miscellaneous piping, duct work, removal and replacement of the HVAC systems, metal framing and
drywall work to create elevator lobby areas, corridors and classroom at each floor level, façade modifications to
existing east elevation of the existing building, upgrading and alteration of the plumbing, sprinkler and fire alarm
systems, modifications of the 2nd – 4th floor ceiling assemblies into a one hour fire rated assembly, reinforcing of
existing floor slabs on floors 2 - 4 to increase structural capacity in the new corridor and lobby areas, and removal of
all interior walls and construction of new classrooms and associated offices and support areas (collectively, the
“Middle School Improvements”), (iii) the construction and equipping of a new approximately 17,000 square foot
building on the Land to include an approximately 9,000 square foot gymnasium at ground level and an
approximately 8,000 square foot full basement area with locker rooms, cafeteria, warming kitchen and associated
storage uses (collectively, the “Gymnasium Building”; and, together with the Land and the Middle School
Improvements, (the “Project”) (the resulting square footage of the Middle School Improvements together with the
Gymnasium Building total approximately 56,000 square feet), all for the purpose of providing educational
opportunities to middle school children in the Town of Hempstead and surrounding areas; (B) paying capitalized
interest on the Series 2013 Bonds; (C) funding a debt service reserve, if required, for the Series 2013 Bonds, and (D)
paying certain costs of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds.

The Current School Facility

A portion of the proceeds of the Issuer’s Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds (The Academy Charter
School Project), Series 2011A, originally issued in the aggregate principal amount of $10,505,000 and Taxable
Education Revenue Bonds (The Academy Charter School Project), Series 2011B, originally issued in the aggregate
principal amount of $235,000 (collectively, the “Series 2011 Bonds”) was used to construct, renovate and equip an
approximately 34,540 square foot two-story building located at 117 North Franklin Street, Hempstead, New York
(the “Current School Facility”). The Borrower currently operates in the Current School Facility that has reached its
capacity with the Borrower’s current billable enrollment of 484 students and cannot accommodate the Borrower’s
space needs for its middle school under its current expansion plan. See “APPENDIX B – THE BORROWER –
Enrollment,” “APPENDIX B – THE BORROWER –Project.”

The construction, renovation and equipping of the Current School Facility financed with a portion of the
proceeds of the Series 2011 Bonds was completed on time with no cost overruns, commenced operations with the
beginning of 2012-13 school year as planned, and currently accommodates the Borrower’s grades K-6.

The New Site and the New School Facility

The Borrower is in the process of undertaking an expansion plan, whereby it intends to increase its
enrollment by approximately 300 students over the next several school years. The Borrower expects that the New
School Facility will house its fifth, sixth, seventh and eighth grades. The New School Facility will accommodate
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approximately 26 classrooms, a science lab, an auditorium, an art room, a gymnasium, a mathematics lab,
intervention rooms, a multimedia room, science lab and testing room.

Construction Contract – Improvements and Equipment

The Borrower has engaged Combined Resources Consulting and Design, Inc., East Meadow, New York
(“CRCD”) to provide architectural and engineering services with respect to the construction, renovation and
equipping of the Project. The Borrower has obtained all necessary planning board, zoning board and related
approvals and permits for the construction, renovation and equipping of the Project. In addition, CRCD prepared
plans and specifications for the Project, which were submitted to and approved by the Village of Hempstead
Department of Buildings as evidenced by a building permit, issued on December 17, 2013.

With respect to the construction, renovation and equipping of the Project, the Borrower has entered into an
agreement (the “Construction Contract”) with DECA Development II, Inc. (the “Contractor”). The fixed stipulated
and guaranteed price for the construction of the Project set forth in the Construction Contract is $6,974,807.50,
including certain contractor supplied furniture fixtures and equippment, subject to change order provisions under the
Construction Contract.

The Construction Contract provides that the date of substantial completion of the Project is no later than
July 15, 2014, and the Borrower expects to operate the Project beginning with the 2014/2015 school year. The
Borrower expects to cover construction contingencies from value engineering changes above and beyond a $100,000
design contingency provided for in the Architectural Agreement and a $50,000 construction contingency provided
for in the Construction Contract. The Borrower expects that such value engineering changes, if necessary, will not
delay the completion of the Project, will not compromise the Borrower's ability to timely commence operations at
the Project and will not adversely affect the character of the Project as a fully functional middle school sufficient to
accommodate up to 300 students.

Project Monitoring

The construction and renovation of the Project is anticipated to be administered as follows: Pursuant to an
Architecture Agreement between the Borrower and CRCD (the “Architecture Agreement”), CRCD, as the architect
for the Project, shall review all requisitions for progress payments submitted by all contractors and subcontractors.
CRCD shall certify its approval that the quantity of work completed is accurate and that the quality of the
contractor's/subcontractor's work has been performed in substantial compliance with the contract documents.

Pursuant to a Paymaster and Representative Agreement (the “Paymaster Agreement”), the Borrower has
retained Mr. Fredric Pocci, PE, an independent construction consultant (the “Paymaster”), to act on behalf of the
Borrower and to independently approve all payments to the general contractor and all subcontractors after
simultaneous exchange of all lien waivers. Pursuant to the Paymaster Agreement, prior to release of any payment,
the Paymaster shall verify that all contractors, subcontractors, material suppliers or laborers have provided lien
waivers for all payments already made and conditional lien waivers for any current payment to be made. If the
Paymaster approves a requisition, the Paymaster shall forward the requisition to CRCD and the Borrower for their
approval. Upon approval of CRCD and the Borrower, the Paymaster shall forward the approved requisition to the
Trustee to effectuate such payment to the contractor, subcontractor, material supplier or laborer in accordance with
the approved requisition from the appropriate fund pursuant to the Indenture. No payment shall be made without the
written approval of the Paymaster, CRCD and the Borrower. Under the Paymaster Agreement, the Paymaster shall
also serve as the owner's representative, on behalf of the Borrower, and shall assist in the coordination and
implementation of the Project on behalf of the Borrower by monitoring the construction progress, compliance with
the construction contract documents prepared by CRCD, monitoring the construction budget and schedule and shall
assist in value engineering decisions to assist in cost control.

The Paymaster has more than 37 years of experience in management, engineering, construction and
renovation and has served as Paymaster and Executive Director for the North Hudson Sewer Authority for more
than 21 years and Assistant Commissioner of Operations for the New York City Department of Buildings
(NYCDOB) responsible for the NYCDOB field inspectors and plan examiners. The Paymaster has acted in an
identical capacity in connection with the renovation of the Current School Facility financed with a portion of the
Series 2011 Bond proceeds.
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A complete copy of the Construction Contract, Architecture Contract, Paymaster and Representative
Agreement and the qualifications of the Paymaster is available upon request as provided under
“MISCELLANEOUS – Additional Information” below. See “RISK FACTORS - Construction Costs and
Completion of Construction” and “APPENDIX B – THE BORROWER – Project Design Construction and
Renovation.”

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

The following table sets forth anticipated sources and uses of funds in connection with the plan of
finance described above:

TABLE 1: SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Sources

Par Amount of Series 2013A Bonds $12,970,000.00

Par Amount of Series 2013B Bonds 545,000.00

TOTAL $13,515,000.00

Uses

Acquisition, Design, Construction and Renovation of the Project $10,842,314.00

Capitalized Interest 722,202.25

Debt Service Reserve Fund Deposit 1,173,742.50

Costs of Issuance, Including Underwriter's Discount 776,741.25

TOTAL $13,515,000.00

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

Set forth in the following table are the aggregate debt service requirements for the Series 2013 Bonds.

Series 2011
Bonds Series 2013 Bonds

Aggregate
Debt ServicePeriod

Ending

Principal &
Interest Principal Interest Total

6/30/2014 $ 996,262.50 $ 108,903.51 $ 108,903.51 $1,105,166.01

6/30/2015 981,662.50 1,031,717.50 1,031,717.50 2,013,380.00

6/30/2016 982,175.00 $ 140,000.00 1,031,717.50 1,171,717.50 2,153,892.50

6/30/2017 981,862.50 150,000.00 1,021,567.50 1,171,567.50 2,153,430.00

6/30/2018 980,725.00 160,000.00 1,010,692.50 1,170,692.50 2,151,417.50

6/30/2019 983,762.50 175,000.00 999,092.50 1,174,092.50 2,157,855.00

6/30/2020 980,562.50 185,000.00 986,085.00 1,171,085.00 2,151,647.50

6/30/2021 981,537.50 200,000.00 971,932.50 1,171,932.50 2,153,470.00

6/30/2022 981,275.00 215,000.00 956,632.50 1,171,632.50 2,152,907.50

6/30/2023 984,775.00 230,000.00 940,185.00 1,170,185.00 2,154,960.00

6/30/2024 981,625.00 250,000.00 922,590.00 1,172,590.00 2,154,215.00

6/30/2025 982,237.50 270,000.00 903,465.00 1,173,465.00 2,155,702.50

6/30/2026 981,200.00 290,000.00 882,810.00 1,172,810.00 2,154,010.00

6/30/2027 983,512.50 310,000.00 860,625.00 1,170,625.00 2,154,137.50

6/30/2028 983,762.50 335,000.00 836,910.00 1,171,910.00 2,155,672.50

6/30/2029 981,950.00 360,000.00 811,282.50 1,171,282.50 2,153,232.50

6/30/2030 983,075.00 390,000.00 783,742.50 1,173,742.50 2,156,817.50

6/30/2031 981,725.00 415,000.00 753,907.50 1,168,907.50 2,150,632.50

6/30/2032 982,900.00 450,000.00 722,160.00 1,172,160.00 2,155,060.00

6/30/2033 981,187.50 485,000.00 687,735.00 1,172,735.00 2,153,922.50

6/30/2034 981,587.50 520,000.00 650,632.50 1,170,632.50 2,152,220.00

6/30/2035 983,687.50 560,000.00 610,852.50 1,170,852.50 2,154,540.00

6/30/2036 982,075.00 605,000.00 568,012.50 1,173,012.50 2,155,087.50

6/30/2037 981,750.00 650,000.00 521,730.00 1,171,730.00 2,153,480.00

6/30/2038 982,300.00 700,000.00 472,005.00 1,172,005.00 2,154,305.00

6/30/2039 983,312.50 750,000.00 418,455.00 1,168,455.00 2,151,767.50

6/30/2040 984,375.00 810,000.00 361,080.00 1,171,080.00 2,155,455.00

6/30/2041 985,075.00 870,000.00 299,115.00 1,169,115.00 2,154,190.00

6/30/2042 - 940,000.00 232,560.00 1,172,560.00 1,172,560.00

6/30/2043 - 1,010,000.00 160,650.00 1,170,650.00 1,170,650.00

6/30/2044 - 1,090,000.00 83,385.00 1,173,385.00 1,173,385.00

Total: $27,521,937.50 $13,515,000.00 $21,602,231 35,117,231.01 $62,639,168.51
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THE SERIES 2013 BONDS

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Series 2013 Bonds and should not be considered a
full statement thereof. Reference is made to the Indenture (including the form of Series 2013A Bond and Series
2013B Bond) for the detailed provisions thereof and the discussion herein is qualified by such reference.

General

The Series 2013 Bonds are dated the date of delivery. The Series 2013 Bonds mature on February 1 of the
years and bear interest at the rates set forth on the inside front cover page hereof. The Series 2013A Bonds are
issuable in the form of fully registered Bonds without coupons in minimum denominations of $25,000 plus integral
multiples of $5,000. The Series 2013B Bonds are issuable in the form of fully registered Bonds without coupons in
minimum denominations of $5,000 or integral multiples thereof. The Series 2013 Bonds will bear interest, computed
on the basis of a 360 day year of twelve 30-day months, from the date of delivery, payable on February 1 and
August 1 of each year, commencing on February 1, 2014 (each a “Debt Service Payment Date”).

Interest on Series 2013 Bonds due on any Debt Service Payment Date shall be payable to the Owner in
whose name each Bond is registered at the close of business on the Record Date with respect to such Debt Service
Payment Date by (1) check mailed on the Debt Service Payment Date to the Owner or (2) by wire transfer on the
Debt Service Payment Date to each Owner of not less than $500,000 in aggregate principal amount of Series 2013
Bonds, upon written notice provided by each Owner to the Trustee not later than five (5) days prior to the Record
Date for such Debt Service Payment Date, except that payment of interest on redemption of any Series 2013 Bonds
shall be made only upon presentation and surrender of such Bond as provided in the Indenture, irrespective of any
transfer or exchange of such Series 2013 Bond subsequent to such Record Date and prior to such Debt Service
Payment Date, unless the Issuer shall default in the payment of interest due on such Debt Service Payment Date. In
the event of any such default, such defaulted interest shall be payable to the Person in whose name such Bond is
registered at the close of business on a special record date for the payment of such defaulted interest established by
notice mailed by or on behalf of the Issuer to the Owners of Series 2013 Bonds not less than fifteen (15) days
preceding such special record date. Such notices shall be mailed to the Persons in whose name the Series 2013
Bonds are registered at the close of business on the fifth (5th) day preceding the date of mailing. Payment of interest
on Series 2013 Bonds by mail will be made to the registered address of the Person entitled thereto.

Payment of the principal and, in the case of any Series 2013 Bonds redeemed prior to maturity, payment of
the Redemption Price, if any, and interest accrued to the redemption date, shall be made, upon presentation and
surrender at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee, or at the office designated for such payment by any
successor trustee or paying agent or at such other place as may be agreed upon in advance by the Trustee and the
Owner of a Bond. The principal, Redemption Price of, and interest on the Bonds are payable in lawful money of the
United States of America which, at the time of payment, is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.

Prior Redemption

Mandatory Redemption.

The Series 2013 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity by the Issuer, in whole or in part, at a
Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest, from moneys deposited into
the Bond Fund from the unused balance of the Project Fund pursuant to the Indenture.

Optional Redemption

The Series 2013A Bonds are subject to redemption by the Issuer, at the option of the Borrower, in whole at
any time or in part on any Interest Payment Date on or after February 1, 2021, at the Redemption Price of 100%
(expressed as a percentage of principal amount) plus accrued interest to the Redemption Date. The Borrower may
direct such optional redemption of the Series 2013A Bonds only if the Borrower shall have prepaid an amount under
the Loan Agreement and the Promissory Note equal to the Redemption Price of the Series 2013A Bonds to be
redeemed.

The Series 2013B Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.
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Sinking Fund Installment Redemption

The Series 2013A Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption in part commencing on February 1, 2019 by
lot by operation of Sinking Fund Payments at a Redemption Price equal to the principal amount of the Series 2013A
Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest to the Redemption Date. The amounts and due dates of the Sinking Fund
Payments for the Series 2013A Bonds are set forth in the following table:

Sinking Fund Payment Date
February 1 Amount

2019 $ 80,000.00
2020 185,000.00
2021 200,000.00
2022 215,000.00
2023 230,000.00
2024 250,000.00
2025 270,000.00
2026 290,000.00
2027 310,000.00
2028 335,000.00
2029 360,000.00
2030 390,000.00
2031 415,000.00
2032 450,000.00
2033 485,000.00
2034 520,000.00
2035 560,000.00
2036 605,000.00
2037 650,000.00
2038 700,000.00
2039 750,000.00
2040 810,000.00
2041 870,000.00
2042 940,000.00
2043 1,010,000.00
2044* 1,090,000.00

*Final Maturity

The Series 2013B Bonds are subject to mandatory redemption in part commencing on February 1, 2016 by
lot by operation of Sinking Fund Payments at a Redemption Price equal to the principal amount of the Series 2013B
Bonds to be redeemed plus accrued interest to the Redemption Date. The amounts and due dates of the Sinking Fund
Payments for the Series 2013B Bonds are set forth in the following table:

Sinking Fund Payment Date
February 1 Amount

2016 $140,000.00

2017 150,000.00

2018 160,000.00

2019* 95,000.00

*Final Maturity
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Extraordinary Redemption

The Series 2013 Bonds are subject to extraordinary mandatory redemption prior to maturity in whole or in
part on any Debt Service Payment Date, without premium or penalty, at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the
principal amount thereof, plus interest accrued to the Redemption Date upon the occurrence of any one of the
following events:

(i) the Project or any material portion of the Project shall have been damaged or destroyed to such
extent that, in the opinion of an Authorized Representative of the Borrower, (a) the Project or any such portion of
the Project cannot be reasonably restored within a period of six (6) consecutive months after such damage or
destruction, (b) the Borrower is thereby prevented or is reasonably expected to be thereby prevented from carrying
on its normal operations within the Project or such portion of the Project for a period of six (6) consecutive months
after such damage or destruction, or (c) the cost of restoration of the Project or such portion of the Project would
exceed the Net Proceeds of insurance carried thereon; or

(ii) title to, or the use of, all or any material part of the Project shall have been taken by Condemnation
so that in the opinion of an Authorized Representative of the Borrower, the Borrower is thereby prevented from
carrying on its normal operations therein for a period of six (6) consecutive months after such taking.

Mandatory Taxability Redemption

The Series 2013A Bonds shall be redeemed in whole as soon as practicable after the occurrence of an
Event of Taxability and the receipt by the Trustee of written notice of the occurrence of an Event of Taxability (but
in no event later than one hundred twenty (120) days following the date a Responsible Officer of the Trustee is
notified of an Event of Taxability) at a Redemption Price equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus
accrued interest from the Tax Incidence Date to the Redemption Date.

Notice of Redemption

When Bonds are to be redeemed pursuant to the Indenture, the Trustee shall give notice of the
redemption of the Bonds in the name of the Issuer stating: (i) the Bonds to be redeemed; (ii) the
Redemption Date; (iii) that such Bonds will be redeemed at the Office of the Trustee; (iv) that on the
Redemption Date there shall become due and payable upon each Bond to be redeemed the Redemption Price
thereof, together with interest accrued to the Redemption Date; and (v) that from and after the Redemption
Date interest thereon shall cease to accrue.

Notice of redemption required by the Indenture shall be given by mailing at least thirty (30) days and
not more than sixty (60) days prior to such Redemption Date to the Owner of each Bond to be
redeemed at the address shown on the registration books; provided, however, that the failure to give such notice by
mailing, or any defect therein, shall not affect the validity of any proceeding for the redemption of Bonds.

Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds

In the event any Bond is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Issuer shall execute and, upon its
request, the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of like maturity, interest rate and principal
amount and bearing the same number (or such other number as the Trustee shall permit) as the mutilated,
destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, in exchange for the mutilated Bond, or in substitution for the Bond so
destroyed, lost or stolen. In every case of exchange or substitution, the applicant shall furnish to the Issuer and
to the Trustee (i) such security or indemnity as may be required by them to hold each of them harmless from
all risks, however remote, and (ii) evidence to their satisfaction of the mutilation, destruction, loss or theft of
the applicant's Bond and of the ownership thereof. Upon the issuance of any Bond upon such exchange or
substitution, the Issuer may require the payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental
charge that may be imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses, including counsel fees, of the Issuer or
the Trustee. In case any Bond which has matured or is about to mature shall become mutilated or be destroyed,
lost or stolen, the Issuer may, instead of issuing a Bond in exchange or substitution therefor, pay or authorize
the payment of the same (without surrender thereof except in the case of a mutilated Bond) if the applicant for
such payment shall furnish to the Issuer and to the Trustee such security or indemnity as they may require to
hold them harmless and evidence to the satisfaction of the Issuer and the Trustee of the mutilation, destruction,
loss or theft of such Bond and of the ownership thereof.
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All Bonds shall be held and owned upon the express condition that the above provisions are
exclusive, with respect to the replacement or payment of mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bonds, and shall
preclude all other rights or remedies, notwithstanding any law or statute existing or hereinafter enacted to the
contrary.

Negotiability; Transfers and Exchanges of Bonds

All Bonds shall be negotiable, subject to the provisions for registration and transfer contained in the Indenture
and in the Bonds.

So long as any Bonds shall remain Outstanding, the Issuer shall maintain, at the Office of the Trustee, books
for the registration and transfer of Bonds. The Trustee is the Paying Agent for the Issuer for the purpose of registering
and making transfers on such registration books. The Trustee, as Paying Agent, shall register in such books and
permit to be transferred thereon, under such reasonable regulations as the Trustee may prescribe, any Bond entitled to
registration or transfer.

Bonds shall be transferable only on the books of the Issuer, upon surrender thereof at the Office of the Trustee,
together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Trustee duly executed by the registered owner or his
attorney duly authorized in writing. Upon the transfer of any registered Bond, the Issuer shall issue in the name of the
transferee a new Bond or Bonds of the same aggregate principal amount and maturity and rate of interest as the
surrendered Bond.

The Issuer, the Trustee and any Paying Agent may deem and treat the Person in whose name any Bond shall be
registered upon the books of the Issuer as the absolute Owner thereof, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not for the
purpose of receiving payment of the principal or Redemption Price and, except as otherwise provided in the Indenture,
interest on such Bond and for all other purposes. All such payments so made to any such registered Owner or upon his
order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability of the Issuer upon such Bond to the extent of the
sum or sums so paid. Neither the Issuer, the Trustee nor any Paying Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary.

In all cases in which the privilege of exchanging or transferring Bonds is exercised, the Issuer shall
execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture. All
Bonds surrendered in any exchanges or transfers shall forthwith be cancelled in accordance with the provisions of
the Indenture. For every exchange or transfer of Bonds, whether temporary or definitive, the Issuer or the Trustee
may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for (i) any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid
with respect to the delivery of definitive Bonds in exchange for temporary Bonds, (ii) the cost of preparing each new
Bond, and (iii) any other expenses of the Issuer or the Trustee incurred in connection therewith.

Neither the Issuer nor the Trustee shall be obligated to exchange or transfer any Bond during the ten (10) days
next preceding the date of the first mailing of notice of such redemption.

Book-Entry Only System

The following description of the procedures and record keeping with respect to beneficial ownership
interests in the Bonds, payment of interest and other payments on the Bonds to DTC Participants or Beneficial
Owners, confirmation and transfer of beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds and other related transactions by
and between DTC, DTC Participants and Beneficial Owners is based on certain information furnished by DTC.
Accordingly, neither the Issuer, the Borrower, the Underwriter nor the Trustee makes any representations
concerning these matters.

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York will act as securities depository for the
Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC's
partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-
registered Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of
such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world's largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the
New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member
of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform
Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S.
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equity, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC's 
participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct 
Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized 
book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' accounts. This eliminates the need for physical 
movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and 
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, 
National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered 
clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also 
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and 
clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either 
directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has Standard & Poor's highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules 
applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about 
DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org. 

 
Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will 

receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond 
(“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneficial Owners 
will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to 
receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, 
from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial. Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of 
ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect 
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their 
ownership interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued. 

 
To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the 

name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such 
other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual 
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts 
such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will 
remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

 
Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to 

Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by 
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 

 
Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are being redeemed, 

DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be 
redeemed. 

 
Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds 

unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC's MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, 
DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Issuer as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns 
Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on 
the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

 
Principal, Redemption Price, and interest payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such 

other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct 
Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the Issuer or the 
Trustee, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records. Payments by 
Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case 
with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name”, and will be the 
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Trustee, the Borrower or the Issuer, subject to any statutory or 
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payment of principal and interest to Cede & Co. (or 
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Issuer 
or the Trustee, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants shall be the responsibility of DTC, and 
disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners shall be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect 
Participants. 
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The Trustee and the Issuer may treat DTC (or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive registered owner of the
Bonds registered in its name for the purposes of payment of the principal of or interest on the Bonds, giving any
notice permitted or required to be given to registered owners, registering the transfer of the Bonds, obtaining consent
or other action to be taken by registered owners and for all other purposes whatsoever. Conveyance of notices and
other communications by DTC to Participants, by DTC to Indirect Participants and by Participants and Indirect
Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory and
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.

SO LONG AS CEDE & CO. IS THE REGISTERED OWNER OF ANY DTC SERIES OF BONDS AS
NOMINEE OF DTC, REFERENCES HEREIN TO THE HOLDERS OF SUCH DTC SERIES OF BONDS SHALL
MEAN CEDE & CO. AND SHALL NOTMEAN THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF SUCH SERIES OF BONDS.

NEITHER THE ISSUER, THE BORROWER NOR THE TRUSTEE WILL HAVE ANY
RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO THE PARTICIPANTS OR THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS WITH
RESPECT TO (1) THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS MAINTAINED BY DTC OR ANY PARTICIPANT, (2)
THE PAYMENT BY DTC OR ANY PARTICIPANT OF ANY AMOUNT DUE TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER
IN RESPECT OF THE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT, SINKING FUND INSTALLMENT FOR, REDEMPTION PRICE
OF OR INTEREST ON THE BONDS; (3) THE DELIVERY BY DTC OR ANY PARTICIPANT OF ANY NOTICE
TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER WHICH IS REQUIRED OR PERMITTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE
INDENTURE TO BE GIVEN TO HOLDERS OF BONDS; (4) THE SELECTION OF THE BENEFICIAL
OWNERS TO RECEIVE PAYMENT IN THE EVENT OF ANY PARTIAL REDEMPTION OF BONDS; OR (5) ANY
CONSENTGIVENOROTHERACTIONTAKENBYDTCASHOLDEROFBONDS.

DTC may discontinue providing its service with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving notice to the
Trustee and the Issuer and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under applicable law, or the Issuer
may terminate its participation in the system of book-entry transfer through DTC at any time by giving notice to
DTC. In either event, the Issuer may retain another securities depository for the Bonds or may authenticate and
deliver bonds in the form of fully registered bond certificates in accordance with instructions from DTC or its
successor. If the Issuer delivers such bond certificates, principal of the Bonds, and any premium, if applicable,
would be payable in lawful money of the United States of America at such office as may be designated by the Issuer
and interest on the Bonds will be payable by wire transfer or by check mailed to the respective addresses of the
registered owners thereof as shown on the registration books of the Issuer as of the close of business on the last day
of the calendar month preceding the applicable interest payment date.

CHARTER SCHOOL FUNDING IN THE STATE OF NEW YORK

This section provides a brief overview of New York State's current system for funding charter schools.
Prospective purchasers of the Series 2013 Bonds should note that the overview contained below and the summary of
relevant New York Code provisions noted by cross-reference are provided for the convenience of prospective
purchasers but are not and do not purport to be comprehensive. Additional information regarding various aspects of
charter school funding in New York is available on various State-maintained websites and through other publicly
available sources. Potential purchasers should note that the law applicable to charter schools in New York has
developed over time and is subject to further changes in the future. See “RISK FACTORS – Future Changes to
Charter School Laws.”

General

Charter schools are eligible to receive funds from State, federal and private sources, although the majority
of charter school funding comes from the State. The principal source of charter school funding in New York is
“Charter School Basic Tuition” which is paid by the school district of the residence of the students attending the
charter schools. The enrollment of students attending charter schools is included in the enrollment, attendance,
membership and, if applicable, count of students with disabilities of the school district in which the pupil resides.
The Charter School Basic Tuition paid by the school district is determined by increasing 100% of the “Expense Per
Pupil” for the school district for the year prior to the “base year” by the percentage in the State total “Approved
Operating Expense” from two years prior to the base year to the base year. In addition, school districts pay to
charter schools any federal or state aid attributable to a student with a disability attending the charter school in
proportion to the level of services for such student that the charter school provides directly or indirectly. This
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amount may be reduced pursuant to an agreement between the school district and the charter school as set forth in
the charter. In the event the school district fails to make the payments required under New York law, the State
comptroller is directed to deduct from any State funds which become due to such school district an amount equal to
the unpaid obligation, which the comptroller will then pay to the charter school. See “APPENDIX A – SUMMARY
OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF NEW YORK CHARTER SCHOOL LAW – CHARTER SCHOOL FUNDING.

Charter School Basic Tuition

Charter School Basic Tuition is calculated according to a series of statutory formulas, which are detailed
and complicated. By way of overview, a general description of certain of the main Charter School Basic Tuition
funding formulas is provided in the paragraphs that follow. Generally, a charter school's Charter School Basic
Tuition is defined as the school district's “Expense Per Pupil” for the year prior to the “base year” (i.e., the school
year immediately preceding the current year) increased by the percentage in the state total “Approved Operating
Expense” from two years prior to the base year to the base year. The calculation for Expense Per Pupil is a function
of Approved Operating Expense for the year prior to the base year divided by the sum, computed using year prior to
the base year pupil counts, of: (i) “Total Aidable Pupil Units” and (ii) “Weighted Pupils With Disabilities.” See
“APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF NEW YORK CHARTER SCHOOL LAW –
CHARTER SCHOOL FUNDING – Charter School Basic Tuition.”

For this purpose, “Total Aidable Pupil Units” is the sum of: (i) the school district's “Adjusted Average
Daily Attendance” for the year prior to the base year multiplied by the “Enrollment Index” for the base year, plus (ii)
the “Additional Aidable Pupil Units” for the year prior to the base year.

Adjusted Average Daily Attendance

For purposes of computing Adjusted Average Daily Attendance, the average daily attendance of public
school pupils in a full-day kindergarten and grades 1-12 is counted as the basic unit, with the attendance of such
pupils in one-half day kindergartens counted as one-half of such basic unit and the attendance of such pupils in
grades 7-12 counted as one and one-quarter of such base unit. The sum of all such units of attendance is the
Adjusted Average Daily Attendance. Adjusted Average Daily Attendance is calculated by: (i) determining the
number of religious holidays which fall on a school day within a school year according to regulations established by
the commissioner; (ii) deducting the aggregate attendance on such religious holidays from the total aggregate
attendance, by grade level; (iii) deducting such religious holidays from the total number of days of session, by grade
level; and (iv) computing the adjusted average daily attendance for the school year.

Enrollment Index

Enrollment Index is computed by dividing the public school enrollment for the current year by public
school enrollment for the base year, with the result carried to three decimal places without rounding. Enrollment
means the unduplicated count of all children to receive educational services in grades K-12, including children in
ungraded programs, as registered on the date prior to December 1 that is specified by the Commissioner as the
enrollment reporting date. Public school district enrollment means the sum of: (1) the number of children on a
regular enrollment register of a public school district on such date; (2) the number of children eligible to receive
home instruction in the school district on such date; (3) the number of children for whom equivalent attendance must
be computed on such date; (4) the number of children with disabilities who are residents of such district who are
registered on such date to attend certain programs under the Education Law; (5) the number of children eligible to
receive educational services on such date but not claimed for aid; and (6) the number of children registered on such
date to attend certain programs pursuant to the Education Law.

Additional Aidable Pupil Units

Additional Aidable Pupil Units is the sum of: (i) the attendance of summer session pupils multiplied by
12%, and (ii) the Weighted Pupils With Special Education Needs.” Weighted Pupils With Disabilities is calculated
as the attendance of pupils with disabilities who have been determined by a school district committee on special
education to require any of the following types and levels of programs or services, and who receive such programs
and services from the school district of attendance during the base year, multiplied by a special services weighting
determined as follows:
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(i) for placement for 60% or more of the school day in a special class, or home or hospital instruction
for a period of more than sixty days, or special services or programs for more than 60% of the
school day, the special services weighting is 170%;

(ii) for placement for 20% or more of the school week in a resource room or special services or
programs including related services required for 20% or more of the school week, or in the case of
pupils in grades 7-12 or a multi-level middle school program or in the case of pupils in grades 4-6
in an elementary school operating on a period basis, the equivalent of five periods per week, but
not less than the equivalent of 180 minutes in a resource room or in other special services or
programs including related services, or for at least two hours per week of direct or indirect
consultant teacher services, the special services weighting is 90%.

Federal and State Aid Attributable to a Student with a Disability

In addition to the Charter School Basic Tuition, school districts are required to pay directly to charter
schools any federal or state aid attributable to a student with a disability attending the charter school in proportion to
the level of services for such student with a disability that the charter school provides directly or indirectly. See
“APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF NEW YORK CHARTER SCHOOL LAW –
CHARTER SCHOOL FUNDING – Financing of Charter Schools.”

State aid attributable to a student with a disability attending a charter school is calculated as the sum of: (i)
“excess cost aid” payable to a public school district pursuant to the Education Law based on the resident weighted
enrollment in the charter school of pupils with disabilities receiving special services or programs provided directly
or indirectly by the charter school in the current school year; and (ii) any apportionment payable to such public
school district pursuant to the Education Law that is based on the cost of special services or programs provided
directly or indirectly by the charter school to such pupil in the current school year. “Excess cost aid” is calculated as
the product of: (i) excess cost aid per pupil calculated pursuant to the Education Law; (ii) the proportion of the
weighting attributable to the student's level of service provided directly or indirectly by the charter school pursuant
to the Education Law; and (iii) the student's enrollment in such charter school in the current school year. See
“APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF NEW YORK CHARTER SCHOOL LAW –
CHARTER SCHOOL FUNDING – Public School District Payments to Charter Schools.”

Federal aid attributable to a student with a disability attending a charter school is calculated as follows:

(i) for the first year of operation of the charter school, the allocation that would be attributable to the
charter school pursuant to 20 U.S.C. 1411 and 1419 for a pupil who is identified as a student with
a disability, who is included in a report to the commissioner of pupils so identified as of December
1st of the current school year, or for such other pupil count as specified by the federal government
for the current school year, provided that the enrollment of such students in the charter school
during the current school year is used for this purpose until such report, or a report of such other
pupil count, has been received by the commissioner; and

(ii) for the second year of operation of the charter school and thereafter, the allocation that would be
attributable to the charter school pursuant to 20 U.S.C. 1411 and 1419 for a pupil who is identified
as a student with a disability, who is included in a report to the commissioner of pupils so
identified as of December 1st of the base year, or for such other pupil count as specified by the
federal government.

Payments for federal or state aid attributable to a student with a disability to charter schools must be made
by the school district in six substantially equal installments each year beginning on the first business day of July and
every two months thereafter. “APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF NEW YORK
CHARTER SCHOOL LAW – CHARTER SCHOOL FUNDING – Financing of Charter Schools.”
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Public School Payments to Charter Schools

The Charter School Basic Tuition is set annually in June. School districts are required to pay no later than
the first business of day of July, September, November, January, March and May the appropriate payment amounts
as specified in the Education Law relating to the Charter School Basic Tuition. The payments are made in equal
installments, adjusted for any supplemental payments due or overpayments to be recovered for the prior school year.
See “APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF NEW YORK CHARTER SCHOOL LAW –
CHARTER SCHOOL FUNDING – Financial Obligations of Charter Schools, Public School Districts and Education
Department.”

SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2013 BONDS

General

The principal or Redemption Price of, and interest on the Series 2013 Bonds are payable solely from (i) the
moneys payable by the Borrower under the Loan Agreement and (ii) all moneys and obligations which are
deposited or required to be deposited in the Bond Fund, the Project Fund, or any other fund established under
the Indenture (except the Rebate Fund).

Pursuant to the Indenture, the Issuer will pledge and assign to the Trustee a security interest in certain
moneys due or to become due, and certain other rights and remedies of the Issuer, under or arising out of the Loan
Agreement (except for certain rights specially reserved to the Issuer, the “Unassigned Rights”). The Borrower's
obligation to make payments under the Loan Agreement is an unconditional obligation of the Borrower.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the following amounts are not pledged and are not subject to the Lien of
the Indenture, and such amounts do not secure any amount payable on the Bonds: (i) amounts held by the
Custodian pursuant to the terms of the Custody Agreement, and (ii) amounts held in the Rebate Fund.

The Series 2013 Bonds shall be equally and ratably secured under the Indenture with the Issuer’s Series
2011 Bonds and all other Series of Additional Bonds, if any, without preference, priority or distinction of any
Bond over any other Bonds except as expressly provided in or permitted by the Indenture.

Special Obligations; Limited Resources

The Series 2013 Bonds are special obligations of the Issuer and are payable solely from the revenues,
receipts and other payments derived from the Loan Agreement and the Indenture. Payments pursuant to the Loan
Agreement are required to be made by the Borrower directly to the Trustee and to be deposited in a separate
Bond Fund held by the Trustee for the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the
Series 2013 Bonds.

THE SERIES 2013 BONDS ARE NOT OBLIGATIONS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK OR ANY
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE TOWN OF
HEMPSTEAD, NEW YORK), AND NEITHER THE STATE OF NEW YORK NOR ANY POLITICAL
SUBDIVISION THEREOF (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE TOWN OF HEMPSTEAD, NEW
YORK) HAS ANY LIABILITY, LEGAL, MORAL OR OTHERWISE THEREUNDER. NEITHER THE FULL
FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING AUTHORITY OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK OR ANY
POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION THE TOWN OF
HEMPSTEAD, NEW YORK) IS PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY,
OR INTEREST ON THE SERIES 2013 BONDS. THE SERIES 2013 BONDS ARE SPECIAL OBLIGATIONS
OF THE ISSUER PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE SOURCES PROVIDED IN THE INDENTURE AND
THE OTHER BOND DOCUMENTS. THE SERIES 2013 BONDS DO NOT NOW AND SHALL NEVER
CONSTITUTE A CHARGE AGAINST THE GENERAL CREDIT OF THE ISSUER. NEITHER THE
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, MEMBERS OR EMPLOYEES OF THE ISSUER, THE TRUSTEE OR ANY
PERSON EXECUTING THE SERIES 2013 BONDS SHALL BE LIABLE PERSONALLY OR BE SUBJECT
TO ANY PERSONAL LIABILITY OR ACCOUNTABILITY BY REASON OF THE ISSUANCE THEREOF.
THE ISSUER HAS NO TAXING POWERS.
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Parity Status; Intercreditor Agreement 
 
As noted, the Series 2013 Bonds shall be equally and ratably secured under the Indenture with the Series 

2011 Bonds.  The proceeds of the Series 2011 Bonds were loaned to the Borrower pursuant to a Loan Agreement, 
dated as of March 1, 2011, between the Issuer and the Borrower (the “2011 Loan Agreement” and, together with the 
Loan Agreement, the “Loan Agreements”) in order to, among other purposes, finance the design, construction, 
equipping and furnishing of the Borrower's school facilities located at 117 North Franklin Street, Hempstead, New 
York (the “2011 Project” and, together with the 2013 Project, the “Projects”).  The loan payments required by the 
Borrower under the 2011 Loan Agreement are further secured by certain mortgage and security agreements and 
assignment of leases and rents, dated as of March 1, 2011 (the “2011 Mortgage”) on the land and improvements 
comprising the 2011 Project, and will be further secured by a Collateral Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated as 
of December 1, 2013 from the Borrower to the Issuer (the “2013 Collateral Mortgage”) on the land and 
improvements comprising the 2013 Project (collectively, the 2011 Mortgage and the 2013 Collateral Mortgage are 
referred to herein as the “2011 Mortgages”).  The 2011 Mortgage was assigned by the Issuer to the 2011 Trustee for 
the benefit of the Holders of the Series 2011 Bonds pursuant to certain assignments of mortgages and security 
agreements (the “2011 Assignment of Mortgage”). The 2013 Collateral Mortgage will be assigned by the Issuer to 
the Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of the Series 2013 Bonds pursuant to an Assignment of Mortgage and 
Security Agreement (2013 Collateral Mortgage), dated December 23, 2013 (collectively, the 2011 Assignment of 
Mortgage and the Assignment of Mortgage (2013 Collateral Mortgage)  are referred to herein as the “2011 
Assignments of Mortgages”). See “SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2013 BONDS.”  

The loan payments required by the Borrower under the Loan Agreement are further secured by a Mortgage 
and Security Agreement and Assignment of Leases and Rents (Acquisition Loan), dated as of December 1, 2013, a 
Mortgage and Security Agreement and Assignment of Leases and Rents (Project Loan), dated as of December 1, 
2013, and a Mortgage and Security Agreement and Assignment of Leases and Rents (Building Loan), dated as of 
December 1, 2013, each from the Borrower to the Issuer on the land and improvements comprising the 2013 Project 
(collectively, the “2013 Mortgage”). The loan payments required by the Borrower under the Loan Agreement are 
further secured by a Collateral Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013 from the Borrower 
to the Issuer (the “New 2011 Collateral Mortgage”, together with the 2013 Mortgage, the “2013 Mortgages” and 
collectively with the 2011 Mortgages, the “Mortgages”) on the land and improvements comprising the 2011 Project.  
The 2013 Mortgage and the New 2011 Collateral Mortgage will be assigned by the Issuer to the Trustee for the 
benefit of the Holders of the Series 2013 Bonds, pursuant to an Assignment of Acquisition Loan Mortgage and 
Security Agreement, dated December 23, 2013, an Assignment of Building Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement, 
dated December 23, 2013 and an Assignment of Project Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated December 
23, 2013 and an Assignment of Mortgage and Security Agreement (New 2011 Collateral Mortgage), dated 
December 23, 2013  (collectively the “2013 Assignments of Mortgage” and collectively with the 2011 Assignments 
of Mortgages, the “Assignments of Mortgages”).  See “APPENDIX D – GLOSSARY AND SUMMARY OF 
CERTAIN DOCUMENTS – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE MORTGAGE.” 

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds, the Borrower, the Issuer, the Custodian, 
Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, as Collateral Agent, the 2011 Trustee and the Trustee will enter into an 
Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “Intercreditor Agreement”).  Under the Intercreditor 
Agreement, the parties acknowledge and agree that the grant by the Borrower of (i) the lien on and security interest 
in the Pledged Revenues, and (ii) the mortgage(s) on each of the 2011 Project and the 2013 Project to each Parity 
Secured Party (i.e., the trustee for the Series 2011 Bonds, the Trustee for the Series 2013 Bonds, and each holder of 
additional Parity Indebtedness identified in any supplement to the Intercreditor Agreement) shall secure the 
Indebtedness of the Borrower under each Parity Debt Agreement (i.e., the 2011 Loan Agreement, the Loan 
Agreement, and any other instrument or agreement identified as an additional Parity Debt Agreement in any 
supplement to the Intercreditor Agreement entered into for the purpose of identifying the Indebtedness as additional 
Parity Indebtedness of the Borrower) equally and ratably in accordance with the Intercreditor Agreement, without 
regard to the time any such lien, security agreement or mortgage was created or the order of attachment or perfection 
of any such lien, security agreement or mortgage or the filing of any financing statement in respect thereof or any 
other circumstance whatsoever.  See “APPENDIX G – FORM OF INTERCREDITOR AGREEMENT.” 

The Borrower may incur further parity additional Indebtedness secured by the Pledged Revenues and the 
Mortgages under certain conditions, and the Indentures permits the Issuer to issue Additional Bonds on a parity with 
the Series 2011 Bonds and the Series 2013 Bonds under certain conditions.  See “APPENDIX D – GLOSSARY 
AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS – SUMMARY OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT – Additional 
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Indebtedness” and “– SUMMARY OF THE INDENTURE – Additional Bonds Authorized.” See also “RISK
FACTORS – Parity Status; Additional Indebtedness Including Additional Bonds.”

The Indenture

General

As security for the Bonds, the Indenture grants a security interest in, pledges and assigns to the Trustee and
its successors and assigns, for the benefit of the holders and all future holders of the Bonds (subject to Permitted
Encumbrances and excepting therefrom the Issuer's Reserved Rights), (a)(i) all moneys and obligations which are
deposited or required to be deposited in the Bond Fund, the Debt Service Reserve Fund, the Renewal Fund or any
other fund established under the Indenture (except the Rebate Fund), (ii) all other moneys or obligations which at
such time are deposited or are required to be deposited with, or are held or required to be held by or on behalf of, or
paid to the Trustee for the redemption or payment of the Series 2013 Bonds or any Series of Additional Bonds
which are deemed to have been paid in accordance with the Indenture, and (iii) all rights and interests of the Issuer
in and to the Loan Agreement (except Unassigned Rights) and the Promissory Note; provided, however, that the
amount held by the Custodian pursuant to the Custody Agreement are not considered subject to the Lien of the
Indenture; and (b) any and all other Property of every name and nature from time to time hereafter by delivery or by
writing of any kind conveyed, mortgaged, pledged, assigned or transferred, as and for additional security hereunder
(except moneys and securities in the Rebate Fund), by the Issuer or by anyone in its behalf or with its written
consent or by the Borrower in favor of the Trustee, which is hereby authorized to receive any and all such property
at any and all times and to hold and apply the same subject to the terms hereof. “APPENDIX D – GLOSSARY
AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISION OF THE
INDENTURE OF TRUST – Granting Clauses.”

Establishment of Funds

The Indenture establishes and creates the following funds as special trust funds:

(i) Bond Fund (containing accounts and subaccounts);

(ii) Project Fund (containing accounts);

(iii) Rebate Fund;

(iv) Renewal Fund;

(v) Debt Service Reserve Fund; and

(vi) Repair and Replacement Fund

All of the funds and accounts created under the Indenture are to be held by the Trustee. All moneys
required to be deposited with or paid to the Trustee for the credit of any fund or account under any provision of the
Indenture and all investments made therewith must be held by the Trustee in trust and applied only in accordance
with the provisions of the Indenture, and while held by the Trustee constitute part of the Trust Estate (subject to the
granting clauses of the Indenture), other than the Rebate Fund, and be subject to the lien set forth in the Indenture.
For additional information, see “APPENDIX D – GLOSSARY AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS –
SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE OF TRUST – Establishment of Funds.”

Debt Service Reserve Fund

The Indenture provides for the creation of the Debt Service Reserve Fund in the custody of the
Trustee. On the Closing Date, upon the Issuance of the Series 2013 A Bonds, the Trustee shall deposit proceeds of
the Series 2013 Bonds in an amount equal to $1,173,742.50, which is the Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement
applicable for the Series 2013A Bonds and zero dollars ($0.00), which is the Debt Service Reserve Fund
Requirement applicable for the Series 2013B Bonds. In addition, there shall be credited to the applicable account of
the Debt Service Reserve Fund: loan repayments under the Loan Agreement and the Custody Agreement to be
deposited thereto.
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Moneys and securities held for credit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be transferred by the Trustee
to the Interest Account and the Principal Account of the Bond Fund at the times and in the amounts required
pursuant to the Indenture.

Whenever the Trustee shall determine that the moneys and securities in the Debt Service Reserve Fund
with respect to the Series 2013A Bonds, will be equal to or in excess of the Redemption Price of all of the
Outstanding Bonds of such Series 2013A Bonds plus accrued interest to the Redemption Date, the Trustee shall use
and apply the amounts on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund to the redemption of all Outstanding Bonds of
such Series 2013A Bonds on the first date thereafter that such Series 2013A Bonds are subject to optional
redemption pursuant to the Indenture.

Any income or interest earned by, or increment to, the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be transferred by
the Trustee and deposited (i) prior to the Completion Date, to the Project Fund and applied to pay costs of the
Project, and (ii) after the Completion Date, to the applicable sub-account of Interest Account of the Bond Fund
with respect to such Series of Bonds and applied to the payment of the interest component of the next upcoming
Debt Service Payments with respect to such Series of Bonds, and the Borrower's obligations under the Loan
Agreement shall be adjusted accordingly.

In order to ensure the maintenance of the Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement with respect to the
Series 2013A Bonds, the Trustee, upon the determination of any deficiency in the Debt Service Reserve Fund,
shall make and deliver to the Issuer and the Borrower at the intervals required pursuant to the Indenture, a
certificate stating the amount required to restore the amount of the Debt Service Reserve Fund to the amount of the
Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement, and the Trustee shall collect such deficiency from the Borrower as a
special rental payment, as provided in the Loan Agreement.

The money on deposit in the Series 2013 Debt Service Reserve Fund is held solely for the benefit of the
Series 2013A Bond holders and no portion of the Series 2013A Debt Service Reserve Fund may be used to pay
Debt Service Payments on the Series 2013B Bonds or the Series 2011 Bonds. See, “APPENDIX D –
GLOSSARY AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF
THE INDENTURE OF TRUST – Debt Service Reserve Fund.”

Key Person Life Insurance Fund

Pursuant to the Indenture and the Loan Agreement, the Borrower is required to obtain, by no later than the
date of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds, $1,000,000 “key person” life insurance policy per person on the lives of
Reverend Barrington F.H. Goldson, Chairman of the Board of Trustees and Wayne Haughton, Executive Director
for an approximately 20 year term until December 1, 2033 that names the Trustee as the primary beneficiary. The
Key Person Life Insurance Proceeds Fund shall be in the custody of the Trustee and will only be created upon the
death of either of the above referenced individuals when the “key person” life insurance proceeds are paid out to the
Trustee. The Trustee shall hold the “key person” life insurance policy and make a claim for the proceeds of such
life insurance policy in the event of the death of either “key person” named herein. The receipt of insurance
proceeds upon the death of one “key person” named herein does not void the requirement to maintain “key person”
insurance upon the other surviving “key person” named herein. Insurance proceeds received from the “key person”
insurance policies maintained pursuant to the Indenture and Loan Agreement shall be deposited to the Key Person
Life Insurance Proceeds Fund. The Trustee shall hold such moneys in the Key Person Life Insurance Proceeds Fund
for purposes of an operating reserve to be used by the Borrower only upon the consent of the Registered Owners of
at least a majority of the Outstanding Bonds. So long as the Borrower is in annual compliance with all covenants
under the Loan Agreement and the Indenture, the moneys held in the Key Person Life Insurance Proceeds Fund may
be used to redeem Bonds with the longest maturity upon the first available call date. To the extent that money will
remain in the Key Person Life Insurance Proceeds Fund through the final maturity of the Series 2013 Bonds, such
moneys may be combined to with the Debt Service Reserve Fund and the Bond Fund, to call the final principal
amount of Bonds prior to their final maturity.For additional information, see “APPENDIX D – GLOSSARY
AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE
INDENTURE”

Additional Bonds

So long as the Indenture is in effect, one or more Series of Additional Bonds may be issued, authenticated
and delivered upon original issuance for the purpose of (i) financing additional costs with respect to the Project, (ii)
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providing funds in excess of Net Proceeds to repair, relocate, replace, rebuild or restore the Project in the event of
damage, destruction or taking by eminent domain, (iii) providing extensions, additions, improvements or facilities to
the Project, (iv) funding the costs of acquiring, constructing, equipping and start-up costs of any capital project of
the Borrower that qualifies as a “Project” under the Act, (v) refunding Outstanding Bonds or Indebtedness of the
Borrower or (vi) refunding any other Indebtedness or bonds for which the Borrower is the primary obligor, or for
which the Borrower is responsible for paying the debt service payments in connection therewith, or which the
Borrower has guaranteed. Such Additional Bonds shall be payable from the receipts and revenues payable to the
Issuer from a Loan Agreement between the Issuer and the Borrower. Prior to the issuance of a Series of Additional
Bonds and the execution of a Supplemental Indenture in connection therewith, (x) the Issuer and the Borrower shall
enter into a new Loan Agreement providing, among other things, that the payments payable under the new Loan
Agreement shall be computed so as to amortize in full the principal of and interest on such Additional Bonds and
any other costs in connection therewith and (y) the Mortgage shall be amended, modified or supplemented and
consolidated to secure such series of Additional Bonds and the Custody Agreement shall be extended to secure such
Series of Additional Bonds.

No additional Bonds shall be issued without a written opinion of Bond Counsel, to the effect that the
issuance of the Additional Bonds and the execution thereof have been duly authorized and that all conditions
precedent to the delivery thereof have been fulfilled;

Each Series of Additional Bonds issued under the Indenture shall be equally and ratably secured under the
Indenture with the Series 2013 Bonds, the Series 2011 Bonds and all other Series of Additional Bonds, if any,
without preference, priority or distinction of any Bond over any other Bonds except as expressly provided in or
permitted by the Indenture.

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no series of Additional Bonds shall be issued unless: (i)
at the time of issuance of such Series of Additional Bonds and after the application of proceeds thereof, there is no
Event of Default under any Bond Document; (ii) the Loan Agreement is in effect and at the time of issuance there is
no Event of Default under any such document nor any event which upon notice or lapse of time or both would
become such an Event of Default; and (iii) the Rating Agency, if any, has confirmed in writing that the issuance of
such Additional Bonds will not result in a reduction or withdrawal of the then current rating on the Series 2013
Bonds and Series 2011 Bonds Outstanding. See “APPENDIX D – GLOSSARY AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN
DOCUMENTS – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE INDENTURE OF TRUST – Additional
Bonds.”

The Custody Agreement

General

Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement (the “Custody Agreement”), the Borrower has
covenanted to pay or cause to be paid directly to the Custodian all payments of Education Aid received by the
Borrower. The Charter Schools Act of the New York Education Law prohibits a charter school from pledging or
assigning State Education Operating Aid and Disability Aid in connection with the construction, acquisition,
reconstruction, rehabilitation or improvement of a school facility. The Custody Agreement provides that the
Custodian shall act as an agent of the Borrower and requires that, upon receipt of any such payments, the
Custodian shall immediately transfer to the Trustee the amount of monies described in the then-applicable Custody
Agreement Notice, along with any deficiency in amounts described in prior Custody Agreement Notices, which
Custody Agreement Notices shall certify the amounts necessary to pay debt service on the Series 2013 Bonds and
Series 2011 Bonds and amounts required to be deposited in any debt service reserve fund with respect to the Series
2013 Bonds or the Series 2011 Bonds. Under the Custody Agreement, the Borrower is required to timely notify
the State Commissioner of Education of any failure of the School District to make required Education Aid
Payments, and is required to cause the State Comptroller to pay any Education Aid Payments payable by the State
Comptroller to the Custodian. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that such Education Aid Payments are
paid by the State Comptroller to the Borrower, as opposed to the Custodian, the Borrower shall immediately
transfer such amounts to the Custodian to be applied in accordance with the provisions of the Custody Agreement.
See “APPENDIX D – GLOSSARY AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS – SUMMARY OF
CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE CUSTODY AGREEMENT.”



21

Covenants of the Custodian

Pursuant to the Custody Agreement, the Custodian covenants and agrees with the Borrower, the Trustee and
the trustee for the Series 2011 Bonds that from and after the date of the Custody Agreement until the Series 2013
Bonds and Series 2011 Bonds are paid in full that it will satisfy the following requirements:

(i) The Custodian is required to establish an account called The Academy Charter School Custody
Account (the “Custody Account”) for the deposit of moneys received pursuant to the Custody
Agreement.

(ii) The Custodian is required to immediately deposit all moneys received pursuant to the Custody
Agreement into the Custody Account.

(iii) Upon receipt and deposit of any moneys pursuant to the Custody Agreement, the Custodian is
required to immediately transfer to the Trustee and the trustee for the Series 2011 Bonds the total
amount of money described in the then applicable Custody Agreement Notices, along with any
deficiency in amounts described in prior Custody Agreement Notices, which are required to
include any amounts necessary to fund deficiencies in the Bond Fund and the Debt Service
Reserve Fund to the extent necessary, along with all other amounts previously transferred with
respect thereto to fully fund the requirements described therein (the “Current Funding Amount”).

(iv) In the event that the Borrower has incurred Additional Parity Indebtedness satisfying the
requirements of the Loan Agreement, the Custodian is required to, in addition to the payments
required to be made to the Trustee in respect of the Bonds, transfer to the issuer of, or the trustee
for, any such Additional Parity Indebtedness, as the case may be, any amounts due and payable
with respect to such Additional Parity Indebtedness. The Custody Agreement provides that, in the
event that the Custodian is required to transfer moneys held by it to two or more recipients
(excluding the Borrower) and the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Custody Account is not
sufficient to pay such recipients in full, the Custodian is required to transfer the available amount
to such recipients on a pro rata basis.

(v) The Custodian is required to transfer moneys, if any, remaining credited to the Custody Account
after the completion of all transfers described in the then applicable Custody Agreement Notice to
the Borrower automatically, unless the Custodian receives the written instructions from the
Borrower to the contrary.

(vi) The Custodian is required to immediately notify the Trustee and the Borrower of any failure to
receive payment of Education Aid within one Business Day of a State Education Operating Aid
Payment Date or, with respect to any payment of federally funded Other Education Aid, within
one Business Day of the date such payment is due.

Covenants of Trustee and Flow of Funds

Under the Custody Agreement, the Trustee must prepare a Custody Agreement Notice, with respect to each
period from and including January 1, 2014 and thereafter from and including each succeeding State Education
Operating Aid Payment Date, through and including the calendar day preceding each subsequent State Education
Operating Aid Payment Date (each an “Education Aid Funding Period”), certifying the respective aggregate
amounts to be transferred by the Custodian to the Trustee during the applicable Education Aid Funding Period with
respect to each of the following:

(i) for deposit to the Bond Fund, as of January 1, 2014 an amount equal to the interest payment that
will be due and owing on the Series 2013 Bonds on the February 1, 2014 Debt Service Payment
Date and thereafter on the first Business Day of each April, July, October and January
commencing on April 1, 2014 in an amount equal to 1/2 of the next upcoming interest payment on
the Series 2013 Bonds due and owing on the next Debt Service Payment Date, and 1/4 of the next
upcoming principal payment or sinking fund installment payment of the Series 2013 Bonds due
and owing on the next Debt Service Payment Date; provided however, the Borrower shall
commence making payments with respect to principal beginning January 1, 2015;
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(ii) on each redemption date, with respect to the Redemption Price (other than by Sinking Fund
Installments) due and payable on the Series 2013 Bonds, whether as an optional or a mandatory
redemption, an amount equal to the Redemption Price together with accrued interest on the Series
2013 Bonds being redeemed on such redemption date; and

(iii) in the event that a withdrawal has been made from the Debt Service Reserve Fund which results in
a deficiency in the amount required to be on deposit to the credit of the Debt Service Reserve
Fund, the Trustee shall include in the Custody Agreement Notice such amount as shall be
necessary to replenish such withdrawal from the Debt Service Reserve Fund over a twelve-month
period in quarterly payments payable as of the first Business Day of each January, April, July and
October, each such payment to be in an amount equal to one-fourth (1/4th) of the amount of the
deficiency, commencing immediately succeeding the date of receipt by the Borrower from the
Trustee of notice of such deficiency in the Debt Service Reserve Fund.

The Loan Agreement

Loan Payments; Pledge of Loan Agreement and of the Promissory Note; Pledge and Assignment to
Trustee

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Issuer agrees to loan the proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds to the
Borrower, and the Borrower agrees to pay the Promissory Note and repay the loan made pursuant to the Loan
Agreement by making loan payments which the Issuer agrees shall be paid in immediately available funds by the
Custodian, on behalf of the Borrower, directly to the Trustee for deposit in the Bond Fund (except to the extent that
amounts are on deposit in the applicable account of the Bond Fund and available therefor) as follows:

(a) The Borrower shall pay basic loan payments commencing on January 1, 2014 in an amount equal
to the interest payment that will be due and owing on the Series 2013 Bonds on the February 1, 2014 Debt Service
Payment Date and thereafter on the first Business Day of each April, July, October and January commencing on
April 1, 2014 in an amount equal to 1/2 of the next upcoming interest payment on the Series 2013 Bonds due and
owing on the next Debt Service Payment Date, and 1/4 of the next upcoming principal payment or sinking fund
installment payment of the Series 2013 Bonds due and owing on the next Debt Service Payment Date; provided
however, the Borrower shall commence making payments with respect to principal beginning January 1, 2015.

(b) In addition to the loan payments described in subparagraph (a) above, throughout the Loan Term,
the Borrower shall pay to the Issuer as additional loan payments, within fifteen (15) days of the receipt of demand
therefor, an amount equal to the sum of the reasonable expenses of the Issuer and the members thereof incurred (i)
by reason of the Issuer's financing of the Project, or (ii) in connection with the carrying out of the Issuer's duties and
obligations under the Issuer Documents, the payment of which is not otherwise provided for under this Loan
Agreement. Other than the Annual Compliance Fee, the foregoing shall not be deemed to include any annual or
continuing administrative or management fee beyond any initial administrative fee or fee for services rendered by
the Issuer.

(c) In addition, the Borrower shall pay as additional loan payments within fifteen (15) days after
receipt of a written demand therefor the Ordinary Expenses and Extraordinary Expenses payable by the Issuer to the
Trustee pursuant to and under the Indenture.

(d) If, after making a valuation of the Debt Service Reserve Fund as set forth in the Indenture, the
Trustee notifies the Borrower that the amount on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund is less than the Debt
Service Reserve Fund Requirement, the Borrower shall pay to the Trustee, in addition to the other amounts payable,
as a special loan payment, on the first day of each January, April, July and October following such notification, an
amount equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the total amount necessary to restore the balance in the Debt Service Reserve
Fund to the Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement.

(e) The Borrower, pursuant to the Loan Agreement, agreed to make the above-mentioned payments in
immediately available funds and without any further notice in lawful money of the United States of America. In the
event the Borrower shall fail timely to make any payment described in subparagraph (a) above, the Borrower shall
pay the same together with all late payment penalties specified in the Series 2013 Bonds. In the event the Borrower
shall fail timely to make any payment described in subparagraph (b) above, the Borrower shall pay the same
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together with interest on such payment at the per annum rate of ten percent (10%), but in no event at a rate higher
than the maximum lawful prevailing rate, from the date on which such payment was due until the date on which
such payment is made.

Simultaneously with the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds, the Borrower will execute and deliver to the
Issuer (i) a promissory note evidencing the loan by the Issuer to the Borrower of the proceeds of the Series 2013A
Bonds, which promissory note will be endorsed by the Issuer, without recourse, to the Trustee for the benefit of the
Holders of the Series 2013 Bonds and (ii) a promissory note evidencing the loan by the Issuer to the Borrower of the
proceeds of the Series 2013B Bonds, which promissory note will be endorsed by the Issuer, without recourse, to the
Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of the Series 2013 Bonds (collectively, the “Promissory Note”). See
“APPENDIX D – GLOSSARY AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS – SUMMARY OF
CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT – Recitals.”

Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness

Under the Loan Agreement, the Borrower is precluded from incurring Additional Indebtedness that is
senior to the lien of the Mortgage on the Project and the obligations of the Borrower under the Loan Agreement.
The Borrower may incur Additional Parity Indebtedness only upon providing to the Trustee a certificate of an
Authorized Representative of the Borrower, accompanied by a confirming accountant's certificate, to the effect that
(i) the requirements regarding the incurrence of additional bonds under the Indenture have been met, but this clause
(i) applies only if the other Indebtedness takes the form of Additional Bonds, and (ii) either:

(a) the combined Maximum Annual Debt Service for outstanding Long-Term Indebtedness related to
the Project and the Long-Term Indebtedness related to the Project proposed to be incurred is equal
to or less than 10% of the Gross Revenues as determined in the most recent audited financial
statements of the Borrower; or

(b) the Net Income Available for Debt Service as determined in the most recent audited financial
statements of the Borrower must be sufficient to pay an amount representing not less than 125%
of the combined Maximum Annual Debt Service for currently outstanding Long-Term
Indebtedness related to the Project and the Long-Term Indebtedness related to the project
proposed to be incurred.

In addition to the foregoing, prior to the incurrence of Parity Indebtedness, the Issuer, the Custodian, the
Trustee, the Borrower and any issuer of such Parity Indebtedness must enter into an intercreditor agreement,
satisfactory to all parties, providing for, among other things, the application and disposition of amounts on deposit in
the Custody Account under the Custody Agreement.

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds, the majority of the holders of the Series 2011
Bonds outstanding has waived any applicable limitations on the incurrance of additional indebtedness imposed by
the Series 2011 Indenture and the Series 2011 Loan Agreement.

Additional Indebtedness subordinate to the obligations of the Borrower under the Loan Agreement and lien
on the Project are permitted by the Loan Agreement. See “APPENDIX D – GLOSSARY AND SUMMARY OF
CERTAIN DOCUMENTS – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF The Loan Agreement – Special
Covenants – Additional Indebtedness.”

Negative Pledge; Liens Securing Additional Indebtedness

In the Loan Agreement, the Borrower covenants that it will not create or allow Liens upon any of its
Property, except that the Borrower may create or allow (i) Liens on the Mortgaged Property provided that the
Indebtedness secured by such Lien is permitted to be incurred in accordance with the limitations on Additional
Indebtedness set forth in the Loan Agreement and such Lien is not senior to the Mortgage and the holder of such
Lien has entered into an intercreditor agreement with the Trustee pursuant to which such lienholder has agreed that
the Trustee shall as Collateral Agent for the benefit of the Holders of all Bonds and any other Indebtedness
permitted under the Loan Agreement control all remedies related to the Mortgaged Property, (ii) Liens on real
property of the Borrower (and improvements and personal property located thereon) other than the Mortgaged
Property, and (iii) Permitted Liens.
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Financial Covenants

Minimum Fund Balance/Net Asset Covenants

Under the Loan Agreement, the Borrower will covenant that, beginning with the Fiscal Year ending June
30, 2014, and for so long as any Series 2013 Bonds remain Outstanding, it will maintain an unrestricted fund
balance/net asset balance in its operating fund which equals not less than an amount calculated as a percentage of
Operating Expenses for the prior Fiscal Year as follows:

(i) Such percentage shall be 5.0% for any Fiscal Year if, in the Fiscal Year immediately preceding
such Fiscal Year, the total of the Maximum Annual Debt Service (excluding any Balloon
Indebtedness) plus any similar lease-purchase or loan payment obligations of the Borrower were
equal to or less than 10% of Gross Revenues;

(ii) Such percentage shall be 7.5% for any Fiscal Year if, in the Fiscal Year immediately preceding
such Fiscal Year, the total of the Maximum Annual Debt Service (excluding any Balloon
Indebtedness) plus any similar lease-purchase or loan payment obligations of the Borrower were
greater than 10% but less than or equal to 15% of Gross Revenues; and

(iii) Such percentage shall be 10% for any Fiscal Year if, in the Fiscal Year immediately preceding
such Fiscal Year, the total of the Maximum Annual Debt Service plus any similar lease-purchase
or loan payment obligations of the Borrower were greater than 15% of Gross Revenues.

Under the Loan Agreement, the above covenant shall be tested as of June 30 of each year based on the
results of the annual audit of the Borrower for such Fiscal Year upon the release of such audit. If on any testing date
the Borrower's minimum fund balance is below that required as described above, the Borrower shall retain on an
annual basis 50% of the Excess Net Revenues until such time as the Borrower is in compliance with the minimum
fund balance; provided, however, that the Borrower is not required to retain an amount which would cause it to
exceed the minimum fund balance as described above.

In the event the Borrower is unable to comply with the above covenant within 12 months of the initial non-
compliance, the Owners of 2/3rds of the Outstanding Bonds have the right to direct the Trustee to require the
Borrower to engage, at the Borrower's expense, a Management Consultant, as described below under “Management
Consultant.” See “APPENDIX D – GLOSSARY AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS –
SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT – Special Covenants - Financial
Covenants.”

Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio

Under the Loan Agreement, the Borrower will covenant that, so long as any Series 2013 Bonds remain
Outstanding, it will maintain a Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio greater than 1.15 to 1.0. Beginning with
the Fiscal Year commencing July 1, 2014, the Borrower shall calculate annually the Long-Term Debt Service
Coverage Ratio for the most recently completed Fiscal Year, and shall provide a copy of such calculation verified
and certified by certified public accountants who completed the audit of the Borrower's financial statements for the
corresponding Fiscal Year to the Trustee at the time of delivery of the annual audited financial statements. If the
Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio indicates that the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio of the
Borrower for such previous Fiscal Year shall be less than to 1.15 to 1.0 but equal to or greater than 1.0 to 1.0, the
Borrower shall, within 30 days of the date of such calculation, provide the Trustee with a detailed written
explanation from an Authorized Representative of the Borrower stating the reasons for the Borrower's failure to
achieve the required Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio and its plan for achieving such Long-Term Debt
Service Coverage Ratio by the end of the next Fiscal Year.

In the event that the Borrower is unable to comply with the above Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio
requirement within 12 months of the initial non-compliance, then the Owners of 2/3rds of the Outstanding Bonds
shall have the right to direct the Trustee to require the Borrower to engage, at the Borrower's expense, a
Management Consultant acceptable to the Trustee, as described below under “Management Consultant.” See
“APPENDIX D – GLOSSARY AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS – SUMMARY OF
CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT – Special Covenants - Financial Covenants.”
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Management Consultant

If the Borrower is unable to meet any of the above-described fund balance or debt service coverage ratio
covenants within the respective specified periods following initial non-compliance, and Owners of two-thirds
(2/3rds) of the Outstanding direct the Trustee to require the Borrower to engage a Management Consultant, the
Management Consultant shall be required to deliver a written report to the Trustee and the Borrower within 75 days
following its engagement containing recommendations concerning the Borrower's:

(i) operations;

(ii) financing practices and activities, including Short-Term Indebtedness, lease financing and
investment activities;

(iii) management practices, including use of consultants, budgeting practices, and on-going financial
systems and monitoring of the Borrower's financial condition;

(iv) governance and administrative practices; and

(v) other factors relevant to maintaining compliance with the respective covenant(s).

Upon submission of the Management Consultant's report, the Borrower is required to arrange for payment
of the amount owed to the Management Consultant and issue a written certificate to the Trustee indicating its
acceptance or rejection of all or any material portion of the recommendations of the consultant within 30 days of
receiving the report of the Management Consultant. The Owners of 2/3rds of the Outstanding Bonds shall have the
right to require the Borrower to comply with any reasonable recommendation of the Management Consultant with
respect to items (i) through (v) above. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Loan Agreement,
the failure to satisfy any of the covenants described under “Financial Covenants - Minimum Fund Balance/Net Asset
Covenants” above shall not constitute or be deemed to constitute an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Loan Agreement, the Borrower's failure to maintain a
Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio of at least 1.0 to 1.0 shall constitute an Event of Default under the Loan
Agreement. See “APPENDIX D – GLOSSARY AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS –
SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT – Special Covenants - Financial
Covenants.”

Additional Covenants

Future Rating

Under the Loan Agreement beginning with the Borrower's Fiscal Year ending on June 30, 2015, the
Borrower agrees to retain an independent financial advisor and to pursue and pay for all expenses of a rating on the
Series 2013A Bonds from a Rating Agency if at such time the Borrower's financial advisor reasonably believes that
an investment grade rating may be obtained based on the Borrower's operating data and financial statements.

As Built Appraisal

Under the Loan Agreement the Borrower covenants to obtain, pay for all expenses of and provide to the
Trustee an “as built” appraisal of the Project not later than 90 days following the Completion Date. Following the
completion of the Current School Facility the Borrower obtained and provided to the Trustee an “as built” appraisal
of the Current School Facility. The “as built” appraisal provided that the “as built” appraised value of the Current
School Facility was $10,400,000 as of September 11, 2012.

The Mortgages

The proceeds of the Series 2011 Bonds were loaned to the Borrower pursuant to 2011 Loan Agreement in
order to, among other purposes, finance the design, construction, equipping and furnishing of the 2011 Project. The
loan payments required by the Borrower under the 2011 Loan Agreement are further secured by the 2011 Mortgage
on the land and improvements comprising the 2011 Project, and will be further secured by the New 2011 Collateral
Mortgage on the land and improvements comprising the 2013 Project. The 2011 Mortgage was assigned by the
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Issuer to the 2011 Trustee for the benefit of the Holders of the Series 2011 Bonds pursuant to the 2011 Assignment
of Mortgage. The New 2011 Collateral Mortgage will be assigned by the Issuer to the Trustee for the benefit of the
Holders of the Series 2013 Bonds pursuant to the Assignment of Mortgage and Security Agreement (New 2011
Collateral Mortgage).

The loan payments required by the Borrower under the Loan Agreement are further secured by the 2013
Mortgages. The 2013 Mortgages will be assigned by the Issuer to the Trustee and the 2011 Trustee for the benefit
of the Holders of the Series 2013 Bonds and the Series 2011 Bonds, respectively, pursuant to the 2013 Assignments
of Mortgage. See “APPENDIX D – GLOSSARY AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS – SUMMARY
OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE MORTGAGE.”

Pursuant to the Intercreditor Agreement, the Series 2013 Bonds will be secured equally, ratably and on a
parity basis with the Series 2011 Bonds with respect to the lien on Pledged Revenues under the Loan Agreements
and the security provided under the Mortgages. See “SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2013 BONDS – Parity Status;
Intercreditor Agreement.”

RISK FACTORS

This Official Statement contains summaries of pertinent portions of the Series 2013 Bonds, the Indenture,
the Loan Agreement, the Custody Agreement (defined below), the Mortgage, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement
and other relevant documents. Such summaries and references are qualified in their entirety by reference to the full
text of such documents. The following discussion of some of the risk factors associated with the Series 2013 Bonds
is not, and is not intended to be, exhaustive, and such risks are not necessarily presented in the order of their
magnitude.

Speculative Investment

Purchase of the Series 2013 Bonds involves a high degree of risk and the Series 2013 Bonds are a
speculative investment. The Bonds are unrated. Although any explanation of the significance of the rating may be
obtained only from rating agencies, bonds that are unrated are typically high-yield, high-risk securities, sometimes
referred to as “junk bonds.” Such securities may exhibit price fluctuations due to changes in interest rate or bond
yield levels. As a result, the value of the Series 2013 Bonds may fluctuate significantly in the short-term. Further,
such securities have a less liquid resale market. As a result, potential investors may have difficulty selling or
disposing of the Series 2013 Bonds quickly in certain markets or market environments. Such securities are also
considered predominately speculative with respect to the obligor's continuing ability to make principal and interest
payments. See also “RISK FACTORS – Sufficiency of Revenues” below. The Series 2013 Bonds should not be
purchased by any potential investor who, because of financial condition, investment policies or otherwise, does not
desire to assume, or have the ability to bear, the risks inherent in an investment in the Series 2013 Bonds.

Factors Associated with Education

There are a number of factors affecting schools in general, including the Borrower, which could have an
adverse effect on the Borrower's financial position and the ability of the Borrower to generate sufficient revenues for
payment of debt service on the Series 2013 Bonds. These factors include, but are not limited to, the Borrower's
ability to execute on its growth plans and attract and retain a sufficient number of students; increasing costs of
compliance with federal or State regulatory laws or regulations, including, without limitation, laws or regulations
concerning environmental quality, work safety and accommodating persons with disabilities; increasing operating
costs of the Borrower; changes in existing statutes pertaining to the powers of the Borrower and legislation or
regulations which may affect funding. The Borrower cannot assess or predict the ultimate effect of these factors on
its operations or financial results of operations.

Dependence on State Payments that are Subject to Annual Appropriation and Political Factors

New York charter schools such as the Borrower may not charge tuition and have no taxing authority. The
principal source of charter school funding in New York is the “Charter School Basic Tuition” that charter schools
are paid by the school district of the residence of the students attending the charter schools, and the amount of aid
received by an individual school is based on a variety of factors. See “STATE CHARTER SCHOOL FUNDING”
and “APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF NEW YORK CHARTER SCHOOL LAW –
CHARTER SCHOOL FUNDING.” The overall amount of Education Aid provided by the State in any year is subject to
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appropriation by the New York Legislature. The Legislature may base its decisions about appropriations on many
factors, including the State's economic performance. Further, because some public officials, their constituents,
commentators and others have viewed charter schools as controversial, political factors may also come to bear on
charter school funding. As a result, the Legislature may not appropriate funds, or may not appropriate funds in a
sufficient amount, for the Borrower to generate sufficient revenue to meet its operating expenses and to make
payments under the Loan Agreement representing debt service on the Series 2013 Bonds. No liability would accrue
to the State in such event, and the State would not be obligated or liable for any future payments or any damages. If
the State were to withhold Education Aid payments for any reason, even for a reason that is ultimately determined to
be invalid or unlawful, the Borrower could be forced to close.

Operating History; Reliance on Projections

The Borrower's ability to make payments under the Loan Agreement representing debt service payments on
the Series 2013 Bonds depends on its receipt of sufficient Education Aid payments. The Borrower has conducted
operations only since the 2009-10 school year. The projections of revenues and expenses contained in “APPENDIX
B – THE BORROWER” herein were prepared by the Borrower, with assistance from its services provider company
(Victory Education Partners) and in a format suggested by the transaction consultant (Buck Financial Advisors LLC)
and have not been independently verified by any party other than the Borrower. No feasibility studies have been
conducted with respect to operations of the Borrower pertinent to the Series 2013 Bonds. The projections prepared
by the Borrower are “forward-looking statements” and are subject to the general qualifications and limitations
described under “INTRODUCTION – Forward-Looking Statements” with respect to such statements. Neither the
Issuer nor the Underwriter has independently verified such projections, and each makes no representation nor gives
any assurances that such projections or the assumptions underlying them, are complete or correct. Further, the
projections relate only to a limited number of fiscal years and consequently do not cover the entire period that the
Series 2013 Bonds will be outstanding.

The Borrower has derived its projections from the actual operations of the Borrower and from assumptions
made by the Borrower about its future student enrollment and expenses. There can be no assurance that the actual
enrollment, revenues and expenses for the Borrower will be consistent with the assumptions underlying the
projections contained herein. Moreover, no guarantee can be made that the projections of revenues and expenses
contained herein will correspond with the results actually achieved in the future because there is no assurance that
actual events will correspond with the assumptions made by the Borrower. Actual operating results may be affected
by many factors, including, but not limited to, increased costs, lower than anticipated revenues (as a result of
difficulty with or failure of the Borrower's growth plans, insufficient enrollment, reduced Education Aid payments,
or otherwise), employee relations, changes in taxes, changes in applicable government regulation, changes in
demographic trends, factors associated with education, competition for students, and changes in local or general
economic conditions.

Refer to “APPENDIX B – THE BORROWER” to review the projections and to consider the various
factors that could cause actual results to differ significantly from projected results. Refer to “INTRODUCTION –
Forward-Looking Statements” above, for qualifications and limitations applicable to forward-looking statements.

NO GUARANTEE CAN BE MADE THAT THE PROJECTED INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN
WILL CORRESPOND WITH THE RESULTS ACTUALLY ACHIEVED IN THE FUTURE BECAUSE THERE
CAN BE NO ASSURANCE THAT ACTUAL EVENTS WILL CORRESPOND WITH THE ASSUMPTIONS
MADE BY THE BORROWER. ACTUAL OPERATING RESULTS MAY BE AFFECTED BY MANY
FACTORS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, INCREASED COSTS, LOWER THAN ANTICIPATED
REVENUES (AS A RESULT OF DIFFICULTY WITH OR FAILURE OF THE BORROWER'S GROWTH
PLANS, INSUFFICIENT ENROLLMENT, REDUCED EDUCATION AID PAYMENTS, OR OTHERWISE),
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS, CHANGES IN TAXES, CHANGES IN APPLICABLE GOVERNMENT
REGULATION, CHANGES IN DEMOGRAPHIC TRENDS, FACTORS ASSOCIATED WITH EDUCATION,
COMPETITION FOR STUDENTS, AND CHANGES IN LOCAL OR GENERAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS.

Budget Delays and Adverse Affects on Appropriations for Funding

Charter schools depend on revenues from the State for a large portion of their operating budgets. The
availability of State funds for public education is a function of legal provisions affecting school revenues and
expenditures, the condition of the State economy (which affects total revenue available to the State general fund)
and the budget process. In the absence of an effective budget, and in the absence of any special or emergency
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legislation enacted to continue appropriations, many appropriations of the State cease to continue at the end of the
State's budget year (March 31). The Borrower would be materially harmed by any budget failure which delays or
otherwise adversely affects appropriations for charter school funding.

State Financial Difficulties

Charter schools depend on revenues from the State for a large portion of their operating budgets. The
availability of State funds for public education is a function of legal provisions affecting school district revenues and
expenditures, the condition of the State economy and the annual budget process. Decreases in State revenues may
adversely affect education appropriations made by the Legislature. As noted, the Legislature bases its decisions
about appropriations on many factors, including the State's economic performance, and, because some public
officials, their constituents, commentators and others have viewed charter schools as controversial, political factors
may also come to bear on charter school funding. See “RISK FACTORS – Dependence on State Payments that are
Subject to Annual Appropriation and Political Factors,” above.

Continued increases in spending or any future decreases in State revenues may adversely affect education
appropriations made by the Legislature. The adverse affect may be exacerbated in the future to the extent that the
State relies in part on federal stimulus funding in the recent past, or is adversely affected by certain automatic
federal spending reductions under the Balanced Budget and Emergency Deficit Control Act of 1985, as amended,
commonly known as “sequester,” or similar measures in the future. Neither the Borrower nor any other party to the
Bond transaction can predict how State income or State education funding will vary over the entire term of the
Series 2013 Bonds. No parties to the Bond transaction take any responsibility for informing owners of the Series
2013 Bonds about any such changes. Information about the financial condition of the State, as well as its budget
and spending for education, is available and regularly updated on various State-maintained websites. Such
information is prepared by the respective State entity maintaining each such website and not by any of the parties to
this transaction. The parties to this transaction take no responsibility for the accuracy, completeness or timeliness of
such information, and no such information is incorporated herein by these references.

Future Changes to Charter School Laws

The law applicable to charter schools in New York has developed over time and is subject to further
changes in the future. Future changes to applicable law by the New York Legislature could be adverse to the
financial interests of the Borrower and could adversely affect the security for the Series 2013 Bonds. There can be
no assurance that the Legislature will not in the future change such laws in a manner which is adverse to the interests
of the registered owners of the Series 2013 Bonds. Charter School law provisions are subject to amendment,
including the reduction of funding, which could adversely affect the Borrower. Adverse State budget considerations
could increase the likelihood that the State Legislature would change the laws governing charter schools, and in
particular charter school funding provisions. Further, State budget considerations may adversely affect
appropriations for charter school funding. For more information on the laws governing charter schools in New
York, see “APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF NEW YORK CHARTER SCHOOL
LAW.”

Revocation or Termination of Charter

Under New York law (New York Education Law, Article 56), the Borrower's Charter is subject to
revocation, termination or nonrenewal under various circumstances, including: (i) when a charter school's outcome
on student assessment measures adopted by the Board of Regents falls below the level that would allow the
Commissioner to revoke the registration of another public school, and student achievement on such measures has
not shown improvement over the preceding three school years; (ii) serious violations of law; (iii) material and
substantial violation of the Charter, including fiscal mismanagement; (iv) when the public employment relations
board makes a determination that the charter school demonstrates a practice and pattern of egregious and intentional
violations related to improper employer practices of the civil service law involving interference with or
discrimination against employee rights under the Public Employees’ Fair Employment Act of the civil service law;
or (v) repeated failure to comply with the requirement to meet or exceed enrollment and retention targets of students
with disabilities, English language learners, and students who are eligible applicants for the free and reduced price
lunch program pursuant to targets established by the Board of Regents or the board of trustees of the State
University of New York, as applicable. See “APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF NEW
YORK CHARTER SCHOOL LAW – Causes for Revocation or Termination, and – Review and Assessment”
Pursuant to its terms, the Borrower's current Charter is also subject to termination or revocation upon mutual
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agreement of the parties. If the Borrower's Charter is not renewed, or is revoked, terminated or suspended, the
Borrower could be forced to close.

Compliance with the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001

Title I of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act, as reauthorized by the No Child Left Behind Act
(“NCLB”) of 2001, requires each state, as a condition of receiving funds under the Title I program, to implement a
single, statewide accountability system applicable to all its public schools, including charter schools. The NCLB
uses Adequate Yearly Progress (“AYP”) to measure and hold schools and districts responsible for student
achievement. In New York, the New York State Department of Education makes AYP determinations for all
schools and districts in the State. See “APPENDIX B – THE BORROWER – AYP Status.”

Materials published by the New York State Education Department, School Accountability Status, indicate
the Borrower has been “in good standing” in each of the years in which it was subject to evaluation. In New York, a
school that receives Title I funds is considered to be in good standing if it has not been identified as a School in
Need of Improvement, in Corrective Action, Planning for Restructuring or Restructuring. Schools in improvement
status under Title I must provide school choice for their students. Those in need of improvement in year two and
beyond must also provide Supplemental Education Services to eligible students. In May, 2012, the State received a
flexibility waiver request under NCLB that allows the State to make changes to its accountability system that differ
from NCLB. Beginning with the 2012-13 school year, the new accountability system discontinues the identification
of schools in the “improvement”, “corrective action” or “restructuring” categories and creates new designations that
include the identification of “Focus District,” “Focus School,” “Priority School,” “Reward School” and “Good
Standing.” The Borrower's accountability status for the 2013-14 school year is “Good Standing.” For more
information, see “APPENDIX B – THE BORROWER – AYP Status.” There can be no assurance that the Borrower
will make AYP in the future or that the Borrower will continue to attain “Good Standing” accountability status in
the subsequent school years. Any failure by the Borrower to make AYP or attain acceptable accountability status
may have a material adverse effect on the Borrower and its ability to generate revenues sufficient to make payments
under the Loan Agreement representing debt service on the Series 2013 Bonds.

Services Provider; Management and Key Personnel; Challenges with Respect to Growth Plans

The Borrower contracts with Victory Education Partners (formerly known as Victory Schools, Inc.), New
York, New York (“Victory”) for services including the management of educational services in all grades offered,
budgeting and financial management services, and certain other support functions. For more information, see
“APPENDIX B – THE BORROWER – Services Provider.” No assurance can be made that Victory will continue
to provide such services to the Borrower. If Victory ceases to provide the Borrower with such services, the
Borrower's ability to continue to operate in the manner in which it currently operates would require it to assume
responsibility for the functions currently provided by Victory or to contract with another services provided
competent to provide such services. There can be no assurance that the Borrower would be able to perform such
functions or contract with another party for such services. Any failure in this regard would adversely affect its
operations and ultimately its ability to generate revenues sufficient to make payments under the Loan Agreement
representing debt service on the Series 2013 Bonds.

The Borrower’s creation, curricula, educational philosophy, and day-to-day operations reflect the vision
and commitment of the individuals who serve on the Institution's Board of Trustees and as the Institution's
administrators (the “Key Personnel”). The loss of any Key Personnel would adversely affect the Institution's
operations, its ability to attract and retain students and ultimately its financial results. For more information
regarding the Institution's Key Personnel refer to “APPENDIX B – THE BORROWER – Governance and
Management.”

The Borrower will also need to manage its planned growth. As noted, the Borrower is in the process of
undertaking an expansion plan whereby it intends to increase its enrollment by approximately 300 students over the
next several school years. The Borrower will need to continue to manage its growth including the addition of the
7th and 8th grades in 2014-15 school years. There is no guaranty that the Borrower will be able to expand its
operations as planned. See “APPENDIX B – THE BORROWER – Facility.”
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Sufficiency of Revenues

The Series 2013 Bonds are payable solely from certain payments and other amounts derived by the Issuer
pursuant to the Loan Agreement, and are secured only by such amounts and a pledge of certain funds and accounts
created under the Indenture and an assignment of the Mortgage. Based on present circumstances, and based on its
projections regarding enrollment, the Borrower believes it will generate sufficient revenues for payment of debt
service on the Series 2013 Bonds. The Borrower's Charter however, may be revoked, or the basis of the
assumptions used by the Borrower to formulate its beliefs may otherwise change. No representation or assurance
can be made that the Borrower will continue to generate sufficient revenues to make payments under the Loan
Agreement representing debt service on the Series 2013 Bonds.

Operating History, Reliance on Projections

The Borrower's ability to make payments under the Loan Agreement representing debt service payments on
the Series 2013 Bonds depends on its receipt of Education Aid payments. The Borrower has conducted operations
only since the 2009-10 school year. The projections of revenues and expenses contained in “APPENDIX B – THE
BORROWER” herein were prepared by the Borrower who is in the process of undertaking an expansion plan
whereby it intends to increase its enrollment by approximately 300 students over the next several school years. See
“APPENDIX B – THE BORROWER – Enrollment.” The projections of revenues and expenses have not been
independently verified by any party other than the Borrower. No feasibility studies have been conducted with
respect to operations of the Borrower pertinent to the Series 2013 Bonds. The projections prepared by the Borrower
are “forward-looking statements” and are subject to the general qualifications and limitations described under
“INTRODUCTION – Forward-Looking Statements” with respect to such statements. Neither the Issuer nor the
Underwriter has independently verified such projections, and each makes no representation nor gives any assurances
that such projections or the assumptions underlying them, are complete or correct. Further, the projections relate
only to a limited number of fiscal years and consequently do not cover the entire period that the Series 2013 Bonds
will be outstanding.

The projections are derived from the actual operations of the Borrower and from assumptions made by the
Borrower about its future student enrollment and expenses. There can be no assurance that the actual enrollment,
revenues and expenses for the Borrower will be consistent with the assumptions underlying the projections
contained herein. Moreover, no guarantee can be made that the projections of revenues and expenses contained
herein will correspond with the results actually achieved in the future because there is no assurance that actual
events will correspond with the assumptions made by the Borrower. Actual operating results may be affected by
many factors, including, but not limited to, increased costs, lower than anticipated revenues (as a result of difficulty
with or failure of the Borrower's growth plans, insufficient enrollment, reduced Education Aid payments, or
otherwise), employee relations, changes in taxes, changes in applicable government regulation, changes in
demographic trends, factors associated with education, competition for students, and changes in local or general
economic conditions.

Refer to “APPENDIX B – THE BORROWER” to review certain of the projections and to consider the
various factors that could cause actual results to differ significantly from projected results. Refer to
“INTRODUCTION – Forward-Looking Statements” above, for qualifications and limitations applicable to forward-
looking statements.

NO GUARANTEE CAN BE MADE THAT THE PROJECTED INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN
WILL CORRESPOND WITH THE RESULTS ACTUALLY ACHIEVED IN THE FUTURE BECAUSE THERE
CAN BE NO ASSURANCE THAT ACTUAL EVENTS WILL CORRESPOND WITH THE ASSUMPTIONS
MADE BY THE BORROWER. ACTUAL OPERATING RESULTS MAY BE AFFECTED BY MANY
FACTORS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, INCREASED COSTS, LOWER THAN ANTICIPATED
REVENUES (AS A RESULT OF DIFFICULTY WITH OR FAILURE OF THE BORROWER'S GROWTH
PLANS, INSUFFICIENT ENROLLMENT, REDUCED EDUCATION AID PAYMENTS, OR OTHERWISE),
EMPLOYEE RELATIONS, CHANGES IN TAXES, CHANGES IN APPLICABLE GOVERNMENT
REGULATION, CHANGES IN DEMOGRAPHIC TRENDS, FACTORS ASSOCIATED WITH EDUCATION,
COMPETITION FOR STUDENTS, AND CHANGES IN LOCAL OR GENERAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS.
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Competition for Students

The Borrower primarily competes for students with other public, private and charter schools in the various
school districts in Nassau County. For the 2011-12 school year, there were twelve public schools serving students in
the Hempstead School District that serves the Village of Hempstead within the Town of Hempstead. Of these
schools, seven served at least one or more grades of grades K-6. The Borrower is one of the only two charter schools
in the Hempstead School District. The Borrower faces constant competition for students and there can be no
assurance that the Borrower will continue to attract and retain the number of students that are needed to generate
sufficient revenues for payment of debt service on the Series 2013 Bonds. See “APPENDIX B – THE
BORROWER – Service Area and Competing Schools.” This risk is heightened by the fact that the Borrower is in
the process of undertaking an expansion plan whereby it intends to increase its enrollment by approximately 300
students over the next several school years.

Limitation of Pledge

The Borrower may not legally assign or pledge any interest in public education aid payable to the Borrower
pursuant to the Charter Schools Act of the New York Education Law to secure its obligations under the Loan
Agreement and with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds. At closing, the Borrower shall give an irrevocable direction
to the Custodian (defined herein) to apply Education Aid received by the Borrower or the Custodian as directed by
the Trustee to make deposits in the Bond Fund sufficient to make loan payments to become due and to make
deposits in the Debt Service Reserve Fund, and to pay the balance remaining to, or upon the order of, the Borrower.

Special, Limited Obligations

The Series 2013 Bonds constitute nonrecourse obligations of the Issuer, and no assets of the Issuer are
pledged or otherwise put at risk in connection with the Series 2013 Bonds. The Series 2013 Bonds are special
obligations of the Issuer and neither the state of New York, nor any political subdivision thereof (including without
limitation, the Town of Hempstead, New York) is obligated to pay, and neither the full faith and credit nor the
taxing authority of the state of New York or any political subdivision thereof (including the Town of Hempstead,
New York) is pledged to the payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Series 2013 Bonds. The
Series 2013 Bonds are payable solely from and are secured by revenues of the Issuer under the Loan Agreement and
other monies available therefor as described herein. The Issuer has no taxing authority and the borrower may not
charge tuition. See “SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2013 Bonds.”

Failure to Provide Ongoing Disclosure

The Borrower will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Agreement pursuant to Securities and Exchange
Commission Rule 15c2-12 (17 CFR Part 240, § 240.15c2-12) (the “Rule”) in connection with the issuance of the
Series 2013 Bonds. Failure to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Agreement and the Rule in the future may
adversely affect the liquidity of the Series 2013 Bonds and their market price in the secondary market. See
“CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT” and “APPENDIX F – FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
AGREEMENT.”

Project Approvals and Construction Process

The Borrower will use a portion of the proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds to finance the Project. The
Borrower represents that it has or will obtain all necessary approvals, consents, certificates and permits as needed in
order to construct the Project in a timely fashion. Any failure by the Borrower to obtain such approvals, consents,
certificates and permits could result in delay with respect to completion of the Project, and any such delay could
adversely affect the Borrower's operations and its ability to generate revenues sufficient to pay debt service with
respect to the Series 2013 Bonds.

Construction Costs and Completion of Construction

If plans regarding construction of the Project result in construction costs that exceed the amount available
to pay such costs, the Borrower's construction plans would have to be modified to lower construction costs, and
there is a risk that construction of the Project would not be completed as planned. The Borrower has engaged
Combined Resources Consulting and Design, Inc., East Meadow, New York (“CRCD”) to provide architectural and
engineering services with respect to the construction, renovation and equipping of the Project. The Borrower has
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obtained all necessary planning board, zoning board and related approvals and permits for the construction,
renovation and equipping of the Project. In addition, CRCD prepared plans and specifications for the Project, which
were submitted to and approved by the Village of Hempstead Department of Buildings as evidenced by a building
permit, issued on December 17, 2013. The Borrower solicited bids for the construction of the Project and received
bids by three qualified bidders. The Borrower determined that the lowest bid was submitted by DECA Development
II, Inc. With respect to the construction, renovation and equipping of the Project, the Borrower has entered into an
agreement (the “Construction Contract”) with DECA Development II, Inc. (the “Contractor”). The fixed stipulated
and guaranteed price for the construction of the Project set forth in the Construction Contract is $6,974,807.50,
including certain contractor supplied furniture, fixtures and equippment subject to change order provisions under the
Construction Contract. The Construction Contract provides that the date of substantial completion of the Project is
no later than July 15, 2014, and the Borrower expects to operate the Project beginning with the 2013-14 school year.
The Borrower expects to cover construction contingencies from value engineering changes. The Borrower expects
that such value engineering changes, if necessary, will not delay the completion of the Project, will not compromise
the Borrower's ability to timely commence operations at the Project and will not adversely affect the character of the
Project as a fully functional middle school sufficient to accommodate up to 300 students. The construction and
renovation of the Project is anticipated to be administered as follows: Pursuant to an Architecture Agreement
between the Borrower and CRCD (the “Architecture Agreement”), CRCD, as the architect for the Project, shall
review all requisitions for progress payments submitted by all contractors and subcontractors. CRCD shall certify
its approval that the quantity of work completed is accurate and that the quality of the contractor's/subcontractor's
work has been performed in substantial compliance with the contract documents. Pursuant to a Paymaster and
Representative Agreement (the “Paymaster Agreement”), the Borrower has retained Mr. Fredric Pocci, PE, an
independent construction consultant (the “Paymaster”), to act on behalf of the Borrower and to independently
approve all payments to the general contractor and all subcontractors after simultaneous exchange of all lien
waivers. Pursuant to the Paymaster Agreement, prior to release of any payment, the Paymaster shall verify that all
contractors, subcontractors, material suppliers or laborers have provided lien waivers for all payments already made
and conditional lien waivers for any current payment to be made. If the Paymaster approves a requisition, the
Paymaster shall forward the requisition to CRCD and the Borrower for their approval. Upon approval of CRCD and
the Borrower, the Paymaster shall forward the approved requisition to the Trustee to effectuate such payment to the
contractor, subcontractor, material supplier or laborer in accordance with the approved requisition from the
appropriate fund pursuant to the Indenture. No payment shall be made without the written approval of the
Paymaster, CRCD and the Borrower. Under the Paymaster Agreement, the Paymaster shall also serve as the
owner's representative, on behalf of the Borrower, and shall assist in the coordination and implementation of the
Project on behalf of the Borrower by monitoring the construction progress, compliance with the construction
contract documents prepared by CRCD, monitoring the construction budget and schedule and shall assist in value
engineering decisions to assist in cost control. Nevertheless, there can be no guaranty that actual construction costs
will not exceed such amount, and hence exceed the amount available to the Borrower for construction purposes, due
to unforeseen factors such as an overrun of allowance items, unexpected site problems, or delays due to the fault of
the Borrower, the architect, the general contractor or other parties relevant to such construction. More generally, the
timing of completion of the Project may be delayed due to unforeseen factors such as unexpected site problems,
labor disputes, rain, flooding, delays of public companies, government bureaucracy, fire, unusual delays in
deliveries, unavoidable casualties, or other causes beyond the control or fault of contracts, the Borrower or others.
No assurance can be given that construction of the Project will be completed on time or for the amount of Series
2013 Bond proceeds allocated for such purpose.

Despite the above-described precautions, there are always risks associated with new construction. For
example, even though the Construction Contract will contain a stipulated sum, there can be no guaranty that actual
construction costs will not exceed such amount, and hence exceed the amount available to the Borrower for
construction purposes. Further, contingency amounts may be insufficient to cover additional costs arising due to
factors such as unforeseen site conditions or contract omissions. In addition, although payment and performance
completion bonds are contemplated to protect against costs associated with transferring a project to a new
contractor, disputes can arise as to their enforcement and in any event they cannot protect against timing delays
when projects run into difficulty (due to performance of contractors or any other reason). Such timing delays could
cause operational difficulties for the Borrower. More generally, the timing of completion of the New School
Facility may be delayed due to unforeseen factors such as unexpected site problems, labor disputes, rain, flooding,
delays of public companies, government bureaucracy, fire, unusual delays in deliveries, unavoidable casualties, or
other causes beyond the control or fault of contractors, the Borrower or others.

No assurance can be given that construction of the New School Facility will be completed on time or for
the amount of Series 2013 Bond proceeds allocated for such purpose. These risks are heightened by the fact that the
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Borrower is relying on the additional capacity contemplated to be provided by the New School Facility to
accommodate its projected increased enrollment in the near term. See “APPENDIX B – THE BORROWER –
Enrollment.”

Failure to Provide Ongoing Disclosure

The Borrower will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Agreement pursuant to Securities and Exchange
Commission Rule 15c2 12 (17 CFR Part 240, § 240.15c2 12) (the “Rule”) in connection with the issuance of the
Series 2013 Bonds. Failure to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Agreement and the Rule in the future may
adversely affect the liquidity of the Series 2013 Bonds and their market price in the secondary market. See
“CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT” and “APPENDIX F – FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
AGREEMENT.”

As is Value; Value of Facility May Fluctuate

The purchase price for the Facility is $2,400,000. An as-is appraisal completed on November 22, 2013 by
Goodman –Marks Associates, Inc. valued the Facility at $2,900,000 as of October 31, 2013. The Construction
Contract provides a fixed stipulated and guaranteed price of $6,974,807.50 for the completion of an operational
charter middle school, exclusive of furniture, fixtures and equippment supplied by the Borrower. Additionally, the
Borrower intends to procure an “as built” appraisal which will estimate the value of the Project upon completion.
Following the completion of the Current School Facility the Borrower obtained and provided to the Trustee an “as
built” appraisal of the Current School Facility. The as-is appraisal report of the Facility and the as built appraisal of
the Current School Facility is available to potential investors upon request as described under “MISCELLANEOUS
– Additional Information.”

Further, because an appraisal represents only the opinion of the appraiser and only as of its date, there may
be a difference between the actual value of the Facility, even after the Facility is completed, and the amount of the
Series 2013 Bonds, and that difference may be material and adverse to Bondholders.

At any time there may be a difference between the actual value of the Borrower's interests in the Facility
and the amount of the Series 2013 Bonds outstanding or the Borrower’s interest in the Current School Facility and
the amount of Series 2011 Bonds outstanding, and that difference may be material and adverse to Bondholders. In
particular, it cannot be determined with certainty what the value of the Borrower's interests in the Facility or the
Current School Facility would be in the event of foreclosure under the Mortgages. Such value at any given time will
be directly affected by market and financial conditions which are not in the control of the parties involved in the
transaction. Real property values can fluctuate substantially depending on a variety of factors. Moreover, there is
nothing associated with the Facility or the Current School Facility which would suggest that their value would
remain stable or would increase if the general values of property in the community were to decline. This risk is
heightened by the fact that the Facility will be and the Current School Facility was constructed specifically for use as
a school, which could make it difficult to successfully re-let the Facility or the Current School Facility, and/or limit
or associate additional costs with alternative uses of the Facility or the Current School Facility.

Foreclosure Deficiency and Delays

If revenues are insufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Series 2013 Bonds, the Trustee may
seek to foreclose on the Mortgages. There can be no assurance that the value of the Borrower's interest in the 2011
Facility and the 2013 Facility would be sufficient to meet all remaining debt service requirements with respect to the
Series 2011 Bonds or Series 2013 Bonds at the time of any foreclosure. See “RISK FACTORS – As is Value;
Value of Facility May Fluctuate” above. In addition, the time necessary to institute and complete foreclosure
proceedings would likely substantially delay receipt of funds from a foreclosure.

Damage or Destruction of the Facility

The Loan Agreement requires that the Facility be insured against certain risks. See “APPENDIX D –
GLOSSARY AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF
THE LOAN AGREEMENT – Insurance Required.” There can be no assurance that the amount of insurance
required to be obtained or actually obtained with respect to the Facility will be adequate, or that the cause of any
damage or destruction to the Facility will be as a result of a risk which is insured. Further, there can be no assurance
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with respect to the ongoing creditworthiness of the insurance companies from which the Borrower obtains insurance
policies.

Environmental Regulation

A Phase I Environmental Site Assessment has been conducted with respect to the Facility. See
“APPENDIX B – THE BORROWER – Environmental Assessment.” The report prepared in connection with the
assessment speaks only as of its dates, and no additional assessments have been requested or performed subsequent
to that date. Potential purchasers should refer to the complete reports for additional information regarding the
assessments performed. Copies of the reports are available as described under “MISCELLANEOUS – Additional
Information” below.

More generally, the Facility is and will be subject to various federal, State and local laws and regulations
governing health and the environment. In general, these laws and regulations could result in liability for remediating
adverse environmental conditions on or relating to the Facility, whether arising from pre-existing conditions or
conditions arising as a result of activities conducted in connection with the ownership of and operations at the
Facility. Costs incurred with respect to environmental remediation or liability could adversely affect the Borrower's
financial condition and its ability to generate revenues sufficient to pay debt service on the Series 2013 Bonds.

Potential Effects of Bankruptcy

If the Borrower were to file a petition for relief (or if a petition were filed against the Borrower as debtor)
under the United States Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. §§ 101 et seq., as amended, or other state insolvency,
liquidation or receivership laws, the filing could operate as an automatic stay of the commencement or continuation
of any judicial or other proceeding against the Borrower, or the property of the Borrower. If the bankruptcy court or
other state or federal court so ordered, the property and revenues of the Borrower could be used for the benefit of the
Borrower despite the claims of its creditors (including the owners of the Series 2013 Bonds).

In a bankruptcy proceeding under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, the Borrower could file a plan of
reorganization that would modify the rights of creditors generally or the rights of any class of creditors, secured or
unsecured (including the owners of the Series 2013 Bonds). The plan, when approved (“confirmed”) by the
bankruptcy court, binds all creditors who had notice or knowledge of the plan and discharges all claims against the
Borrower except as otherwise provided for in the plan. No plan may be confirmed by a bankruptcy court unless,
among other conditions, the plan is in the best interest of creditors, is feasible and has been accepted by each class of
claims impaired thereunder. Even if the plan is not so accepted, it may be confirmed if the court finds that the plan
is fair and equitable with respect to each class of non-accepting creditors impaired thereunder and does not
discriminate unfairly.

Additional Bonds; Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness

The Indenture permits the issuance of Additional Bonds equally and ratably secured under the Indenture on
a parity with the Series 2013 Bonds if certain conditions are met. Under the Loan Agreement, the Borrower is
precluded from incurring Additional Indebtedness that is senior to the lien of the Mortgage on the Project and the
obligations of the Borrower under the Loan Agreement. The Borrower may incur Additional Indebtedness only
upon the satisfaction of certain conditions. The Series 2013 Bonds are parity additional Indebtedness within the
meaning of the 2011 Loan Agreement, and the holders of the Series 2011 Bonds and the Series 2013 Bonds are
secured on a parity basis with respect to the Pledged Revenues and the Mortgages. The Borrower may incur further
parity additional Indebtedness secured by the Pledged Revenues and the Mortgages under certain conditions, and the
Indentures permit the Issuer to issue Additional Bonds on a parity with the Series 2011 Bonds and the Series 2013
Bonds under certain conditions. See “APPENDIX D – GLOSSARY AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN
DOCUMENTS – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE Loan Agreement –Additional Indebtedness,”
SECURITY FOR THE SERIES 2013 Bonds – The Indenture –Additional Indebtedness,” and “SECURITY FOR
THE SERIES 2013 Bonds – The Loan Agreement – Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness.”
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Risk of Amendment

Most of the provisions of the Indenture may be amended with the consent of the holders of a majority in
principal amount of Outstanding Bonds. If Bonds are issued in an amount greater than the previously Outstanding
Bonds, such new Bonds could cause the Indenture to be amended in material ways. Additionally, such
amendment could result if the underwriter for the related new Bonds were to vote such Bonds to direct the related
Bond trustee to vote such new Bonds to amend the Indenture prior to their further distribution to the general
public.

Enforcement of Remedies

The remedies available to the Trustee or the registered owners of the Series 2013 Bonds upon an Event of
Default under the Indenture and the Loan Agreement are in many respects dependent upon judicial actions that are
often subject to discretion and delay. Under existing constitutional and statutory law and judicial decisions, the
remedies provided in the Indenture and the Loan Agreement may not be readily available or may be limited. The
various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds will be qualified as to
the enforceability of the various legal instruments by limitations imposed by the valid exercise of the sovereign
powers of the State and the constitutional powers of the United States of America, bankruptcy, reorganization,
insolvency or other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally.

Determination of Taxability

The excludability from gross income for federal income taxation purposes of the interest on the Series
2013A Bonds is based on the continuing compliance by the Trustee, the Borrower and the Issuer with certain
covenants contained in the Indenture, the Loan Agreement and the Tax Compliance Agreement, dated as of the date
of delivery of the Series 2013A Bonds, and executed by the Issuer and the Borrower. These covenants relate
generally to restrictions on the use of the Facility by the Borrower, restrictions on use of the Facility by
organizations other than the Borrower, arbitrage limitations, and rebate of certain excess investment earnings, if any,
to the federal government. Failure to comply with such covenants could cause interest on the Series 2013A Bonds
to become subject to federal income taxation retroactive to the date of issuance of the Series 2013A Bonds.

Loss of Tax-Exempt Status

The tax-exempt status of the Series 2013A Bonds presently depends upon maintenance by the Borrower of
its status as an organization described in section 501(c)(3) of the Code. The maintenance of this status depends on
compliance with general rules regarding the organization and operation of tax-exempt entities, including operation
for charitable and educational purposes and avoidance of transactions that may cause earnings or assets to inure to
the benefit of private individuals, such as the private benefit and inurement rules.

Tax-exempt organizations are subject to scrutiny from and face the potential for sanctions and monetary
penalties imposed by the IRS. One primary penalty available to the IRS under the Code with respect to a tax-
exempt entity engaged in inurement or unlawful private benefit is the revocation of tax-exempt status. Although the
IRS has not frequently revoked the 501(c)(3) tax-exempt status of non-profit organizations, it could do so in the
future. Loss of tax-exempt status by the Borrower could result in loss of tax exemption of the Series 2013A Bonds
and defaults in covenants regarding the Series 2013A Bonds and other obligations would likely be triggered. Loss
of tax-exempt status by the Borrower could also result in substantial tax liabilities on its income. For these reasons,
loss of tax-exempt status of the Borrower could have material adverse consequences on the financial condition of the
Borrower.

The Borrower or the Series 2013A Bonds may be audited by the IRS. Because of the complexity of the tax
laws and the presence of issues about which reasonable persons can differ, an IRS audit could result in additional
taxes, interest, and penalties. An IRS audit ultimately could affect the tax-exempt status of the Borrower, as well as
the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of the interest on the Series 2013A Bonds and any
other tax-exempt debt issued for benefit of the Borrower.

Secondary Market

There is no guarantee that a secondary trading market will develop for the Series 2013 Bonds.
Consequently, prospective bond purchasers should be prepared to hold their Series 2013 Bonds to maturity or
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prior redemption. This risk is heightened by the fact that the Series 2013 Bonds are a speculative investment.
See “RISK FACTORS – Speculative Investment” above. Subject to applicable securities laws and prevailing
market conditions, the Underwriter intends but is not obligated to make a market in the Series 2013 Bonds.

Risk of Loss from Nonpresentment upon Redemption

The rights of the registered owners of the Series 2013 Bonds to receive interest will terminate on the date,
if any, on which the Series 2013 Bonds are to be redeemed pursuant to a call for redemption, notice of which has
been given under the terms of the Indenture.

Enforcement of Remedies

The remedies available to the Trustee or the registered owners of the Series 2013 Bonds upon an Event of
Default under the Indenture and the Loan Agreement are in many respects dependent upon judicial actions which are
often subject to discretion and delay. Under existing constitutional and statutory law and judicial decisions, the
remedies provided in the Indenture and the Loan Agreement may not be readily available or may be limited. The
various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds will be qualified as to
the enforceability of the various legal instruments by limitations imposed by the valid exercise of the sovereign
powers of the State and the constitutional powers of the United States of America, bankruptcy, reorganization,
insolvency or other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally.

LEGAL MATTERS

General

All legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance, sale and delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds by the
Issuer are subject to the approving opinion of Nixon Peabody LLP, Bond Counsel, whose approving opinion will be
delivered with the Series 2013 Bonds, and the proposed form of which is set forth in “APPENDIX E – FORM OF
BOND COUNSEL OPINION.” The legal opinion delivered may vary from that form if necessary to reflect facts
and law on the date of delivery.

Certain legal matters will be passed upon by Ryan, Brennan & Donelly LLP, Floral Park, New York, as
counsel to the Issuer; by Tanya Hobson-Williams, Attorney at Law, New York, New York, counsel to the Borrower
and Ruskin Moscou Faltischek, P.C., Uniondale, New York, as counsel to the Borrower; and by Harris Beach
PLLC, New York, New York, as counsel to the Underwriter.

The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds express
the professional judgment of the attorneys rendering the opinions as to the legal issues explicitly addressed therein.
By rendering a legal opinion, the opinion giver does not become an insurer or guarantor of that expression of
professional judgment of the transaction opined upon or of the future performance of parties to such transaction.
Nor does the rendering of an opinion guarantee the outcome of any legal dispute that may arise out of the
transaction.

The enforceability of the rights and remedies of the Trustee and the owners of the Series 2013 Bonds under
the Indenture and the availability of remedies to any party seeking to enforce the Indenture are in many respects
dependent upon judicial actions which are often subject to discretion and delay. Under existing constitutional and
statutory law and judicial decision, including specifically Title 11 of the United States Code (the federal bankruptcy
code), the enforceability of the rights and remedies under the Indenture and the availability of remedies to any party
seeking to enforce the security granted thereby may be limited.

The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds will be
qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal instruments by limitations imposed by the valid exercise of the
constitutional powers of the State of New York and the United States of America and bankruptcy, reorganization,
insolvency or other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally, and by general principles of equity
(regardless of whether such enforceability is considered in a proceeding in equity or at law). These exceptions
would encompass any exercise of federal, State or local police powers (including the police powers of the State), in
a manner consistent with the public health and welfare. The enforceability of the Indenture and the availability of
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remedies to a party seeking to enforce a pledge of security under the Indenture in a situation where such
enforcement or availability may adversely affect public health and welfare may be subject to these police powers.

Pending and Threatened Litigation

No Proceedings Against the Borrower

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds, the Borrower will deliver a certificate or
certificates which will state that, as of the date of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds, there is no action, suit,
proceeding, inquiry or investigation at law or in equity before or by any court, public board or body pending or, to
the best of its knowledge, threatened against or affecting the Borrower, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or
finding would adversely affect the transactions contemplated by the Indenture, the Loan Agreement, the Custody
Agreement and the bond purchase agreement (referred to in “MISCELLANEOUS – Underwriting”), or this Official
Statement, the validity and enforceability of the Indenture, the Loan Agreement, the Custody Agreement, the bond
purchase agreement or the Series 2013 Bonds or the operations (financial or otherwise) of the Borrower.

No Proceedings Against the Issuer

In connection with the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds, the Issuer will deliver a certificate or certificates
which will state that, as of the date of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds, there is no pending or threatened litigation
seeking to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds, questioning or
affecting the validity of the Series 2013 Bonds or any proceedings of the Issuer taken with respect to the issuance or
sale thereof, questioning or affecting the validity of the pledge or application of any moneys, revenues or security
provided for the payment of the Series 2013 Bonds or questioning or affecting the existence or powers of the Issuer.

TAX MATTERS

SERIES 2013A BONDS

Federal Income Tax Opinion

The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), imposes certain requirements that must be
met subsequent to the issuance and delivery of the Series 2013A Bonds for interest thereon to be and remain
excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes. Noncompliance with such requirements could cause
the interest on the Series 2013A Bonds to be included in gross income for Federal income tax purposes retroactive to
the date of issue of the Series 2013A Bonds. Pursuant to the Indenture, the Loan Agreement and the Tax
Compliance Agreement, the Issuer and the Borrower have covenanted to comply with the applicable requirements of
the Code in order to maintain the exclusion of the interest on the Series 2013A Bonds from gross income for Federal
income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Code. In addition, the Issuer and the Borrower have made
certain representations and certifications in the Indenture, the Loan Agreement and the Tax Compliance Agreement.
Bond Counsel will also rely on the opinions of co-counsels to the Borrower as to all matters concerning the status of
the Borrower as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and exempt from federal income tax
under Section 501(a) of the Code Bond Counsel will not independently verify the accuracy of those representations
and certifications or that opinion.

In the opinion of Nixon Peabody LLP, Bond Counsel, under existing law and assuming compliance with
the aforementioned covenants, and the accuracy of certain representations and certifications made by the Issuer and
the Borrower described above, interest on the Series 2013A Bonds is excluded from gross income for Federal
income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code. Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that such interest is not
treated as a preference item in calculating the alternative minimum tax imposed under the Code with respect to
individuals and corporations. Interest on the Series 2013A Bonds is, however, included in the adjusted current
earnings of certain corporations for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed on such
corporations.

State Tax Opinion

Bond Counsel is further of the opinion that interest on the Series 2013A Bonds is exempt from personal
income taxes imposed by the State of New York or any political subdivision of the State of New York. Bond
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counsel expresses no opinion as to other state or local tax consequences arising with respect to the Series 2013A
Bonds nor as to the taxability of the Series 2013A Bonds or the income therefrom under the laws of any state other
than New York.

Ancillary Tax Matters

Ownership of the Series 2013A Bonds may result in other federal tax consequences to certain taxpayers,
including, without limitation, certain S corporations, foreign corporations with branches in the United States,
property and casualty insurance companies, individuals receiving Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits,
individuals seeking to claim the earned income credit. Ownership of the Series 2013A Bonds may also result in
other federal tax consequences to taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred or continued indebtedness to
purchase or carry the Series 2013A Bonds; for certain bonds issued during 2009 and 2010, the American Recovery
and Reinvestment Act of 2009 modifies the application of those rules as they apply to financial institutions.
Prospective investors are advised to consult their own tax advisors regarding these rules.

Commencing with interest paid in 2006, interest paid on tax-exempt obligations such as the Series 2013A
Bonds is subject to information reporting to the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) in a manner similar to interest
paid on taxable obligations. In addition, interest on the Series 2013A Bonds may be subject to backup withholding
if such interest is paid to a registered owner that (a) fails to provide certain identifying information (such as the
registered owner's taxpayer identification number) in the manner required by the IRS, or (b) has been identified by
the IRS as being subject to backup withholding.

Bond Counsel is not rendering any opinion as to any Federal tax matters other than those described in the
opinions attached as Appendix E. Prospective investors, particularly those who may be subject to special rules
described above, are advised to consult their own tax advisors regarding the federal tax consequences of owning and
disposing of the Series 2013A Bonds, as well as any tax consequences arising under the laws of any state or other
taxing jurisdiction.

Changes in Law and Post Issuance Events

Legislative or administrative actions and court decisions, at either the federal or state level, could have an
adverse impact on the potential benefits of the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Series 2013A
Bonds for Federal or state income tax purposes, and thus on the value or marketability of the Series 2013A Bonds.
This could result from changes to Federal or state income tax rates, changes in the structure of Federal or state
income taxes (including replacement with another type of tax), repeal of the exclusion of the interest on the Series
2013A Bonds from gross income for Federal or state income tax purposes, or otherwise. It is not possible to predict
whether any legislative or administrative actions or court decisions having an adverse impact on the Federal or state
income tax treatment of holders of the Series 2013A Bonds may occur. Prospective purchasers of the Series 2013A
Bonds should consult their own tax advisers regarding such matters.

Bond Counsel has not undertaken to advise in the future whether any events after the date of issuance and
delivery of the Series 2013A Bonds may affect the tax status of interest on the Series 2013A Bonds. Bond Counsel
expresses no opinion as to any Federal, state or local tax law consequences with respect to the Series 2013A Bonds,
or the interest thereon, if any action is taken with respect to the Series 2013A Bonds or the proceeds thereof upon
the advice or approval of other counsel.

SERIES 2013B BONDS

Federal Income Taxes

The following is a summary of certain anticipated United States federal income tax consequences of the
purchase, ownership and disposition of the Series 2013B Bonds. The summary is based upon the provisions of the
Code, the regulations promulgated thereunder and the judicial and administrative rulings and decisions now in
effect, all of which are subject to change. The summary generally addresses Series 2013B Bonds held as capital
assets and does not purport to address all aspects of federal income taxation that may affect particular investors in
light of their individual circumstances or certain types of investors subject to special treatment under the federal
income tax laws, including but not limited to financial institutions, insurance companies, dealers in securities or
currencies, persons holding such Bonds as a hedge against currency risks or as a position in a “straddle” for tax
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purposes, or persons whose functional currency is not the United States dollar. Potential purchasers of the Series
2013B Bonds should consult their own tax advisors in determining the federal, state or local tax consequences to
them of the purchase, holding and disposition of the Series 2013B Bonds.

IRS Circular 230 Disclosure

The advice set forth in this section was not intended or written by Bond Counsel to be used and cannot be
used by an owner of the Series 2013B Bonds for the purpose of avoiding penalties that may be imposed on the
owner of the Series 2013B Bonds. The advice set forth herein is written to support the promotion or marketing of
the Series 2013B Bonds. Each owner of the Series 2013B Bonds should seek advice based on its particular
circumstances from an independent tax advisor.

Federal Income Tax Opinion

In the opinion of Nixon Peabody LLP, Bond Counsel, interest on the Series 2013B Bonds is not excluded from
gross income for federal income tax purposes and so will be fully subject to federal income taxation. Purchasers
other than those who purchase Series 2013B Bonds in the initial offering at their principal amounts will be subject to
federal income tax accounting rules affecting the timing and/or characterization of payments received with respect to
such bonds. In general, interest paid on the Series 2013B Bonds and recovery of accrued original issue and market
discount, if any, will be treated as ordinary income to a bondholder and, after adjustment for the foregoing, principal
payments will be treated as a return of capital.

State Tax Opinion

Bond Counsel is further of the opinion that interest on the Series 2013B Bonds is not exempt from personal
income taxes imposed by the State of New York or any political subdivision of the State of New York.

Market Discount

Any owner who purchases a Series 2013B Bond at a price which includes market discount in excess of a
prescribed de minimis amount (i.e., at a purchase price that is less than its adjusted issue price in the hands of an
original owner) will be required to recharacterize all or a portion of the gain as ordinary income upon receipt of each
scheduled or unscheduled principal payment or upon other disposition. In particular, such owner will generally be
required either (a) to allocate each such principal payment to accrued market discount not previously included in
income and to recognize ordinary income to that extent and to treat any gain upon sale or other disposition of such a
Series 2013B Bond as ordinary income to the extent of any remaining accrued market discount (under this caption)
or (b) to elect to include such market discount in income currently as it accrues on all market discount instruments
acquired by such owner on or after the first day of the taxable year to which such election applies.

The Code authorizes the Treasury Department to issue regulations providing for the method for accruing
market discount on debt instruments the principal of which is payable in more than one installment. Until such time
as regulations are issued by the Treasury Department, certain rules described in the legislative history of the Tax
Reform Act of 1986 will apply. Under those rules, market discount will be included in income either (a) on a
constant interest basis or (b) in proportion to the accrual of stated interest.

An owner of a Series 2013B Bond who acquires such Bond at a market discount also may be required to
defer, until the maturity date of such Series 2013B Bonds or the earlier disposition in a taxable transaction, the
deduction of a portion of the amount of interest that the owner paid or accrued during the taxable year on
indebtedness incurred or maintained to purchase or carry a Series 2013B Bond in excess of the aggregate amount of
interest (including original issue discount) includable in such owner's gross income for the taxable year with respect
to such Series 2013B Bond. The amount of such net interest expense deferred in a taxable year may not exceed the
amount of market discount accrued on the Series 2013B Bond for the days during the taxable year on which the
owner held the Series 2013B Bond and, in general, would be deductible when such market discount is includable in
income. The amount of any remaining deferred deduction is to be taken into account in the taxable year in which
the Series 2013B Bond matures or is disposed of in a taxable transaction. In the case of a disposition in which gain
or loss is not recognized in whole or in part, any remaining deferred deduction will be allowed to the extent gain is
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recognized on the disposition. This deferral rule does not apply if the bondowner elects to include such market
discount in income currently as described above.

Sale or Redemption of Series 2013B Bonds

A bondowner's tax basis for a Series 2013B Bond is the price such owner pays for the Series 2013B Bond
plus the amount of any original issue discount and market discount previously included in income, reduced on
account of any payments received (other than “qualified periodic interest” payments) and any amortized bond
premium. Gain or loss recognized on a sale, exchange or redemption of a Series 2013B Bond, measured by the
difference between the amount realized and the Series 2013B Bond basis as so adjusted, will generally give rise to
capital gain or loss if the Series 2013B Bond is held as a capital asset (except as discussed above under “Market
Discount”). The defeasance of the Series 2013B Bonds may result in a deemed sale or exchange of such Bonds
under certain circumstances; owners of such Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to the Federal income tax
consequences of such an event.

Backup Withholding

A bondowner may, under certain circumstances, be subject to “backup withholding” (currently the rate of
this withholding tax is 36% with respect to interest or original issue discount on the Series 2013B Bonds. This
withholding generally applies if the owner of a Series 2013B Bond (a) fails to furnish the Trustee or other payor
with its taxpayer identification number; (b) furnishes the Trustee or other payor an incorrect taxpayer identification
number; (c) fails to report properly interest, dividends or other “reportable payments” as defined in the Code; or (d)
under certain circumstances, fails to provide the Trustee or other payor with a certified statement, signed under
penalty of perjury, that the taxpayer identification number provided is its correct number and that the holder is not
subject to backup withholding. Backup withholding will not apply, however, with respect to certain payments made
to bondowners, including payments to certain exempt recipients (such as certain exempt organizations) and to
certain Nonresidents (as defined below). Owners of the Series 2013B Bonds should consult their tax advisors as to
their qualification for exemption from backup withholding and the procedure for obtaining the exemption.

The amount of “reportable payments” for each calendar year and the amount of tax withheld, if any, with
respect to payments on the Series 2013B Bonds will be reported to the bondowners and to the Internal Revenue
Service.

Nonresident Bondowners

Under the Code, interest and original issue discount income with respect to Series 2013B Bonds held by
nonresident alien individuals, foreign corporations or other non-United States persons (“Nonresidents”) generally
will not be subject to the United States withholding tax (or backup withholding) if the Authority (or other person
who would otherwise be required to withhold tax from such payments) is provided with an appropriate statement
that the beneficial owner of the Series 2013B Bond is a Nonresident. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any such
payments are effectively connected with a United States trade or business conducted by a Nonresident bondowner,
they will be subject to regular United States income tax, but will ordinarily be exempt from United States
withholding tax.

ERISA

The Employees Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended (“ERISA”), and the Code generally
prohibit certain transactions between a qualified employee benefit plan under ERISA or tax-qualified retirement
plans and individual retirement accounts under the Code (collectively, the “Plans”) and persons who, with respect to
a Plan, are fiduciaries or other “parties in interest” within the meaning of ERISA or “disqualified persons” within the
meaning of the Code. All fiduciaries of Plans, in consultation with their advisors, should carefully consider the
impact of ERISA and the Code on an investment in any Series 2013B Bonds.

In all events, all investors should consult their own tax advisors in determining the federal, state, local and
other tax consequences to them of the purchase, ownership and disposition of the Series 2013B Bonds.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

The Borrower will enter into and deliver a Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Continuing Disclosure
Agreement”) with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds. The Continuing Disclosure Agreement is made for the benefit
of the registered and Beneficial Owners of the Series 2013 Bonds and in order to assist the Underwriter in
complying with its obligations pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”). See “APPENDIX F – FORM OF CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT.”

The continuing disclosure agreement entered into by the Borrower in connection with the Series 2011
Bonds (the “2011 Continuing Disclosure Agreement”) required the Borrower to annually provide an annual report
(the “Annual Report”) not later than 120 days after the close of each fiscal year of the Borrower, which is June 30.
Under the 2011 Continuing Disclosure, the Borrower is required to provide information to the MSRB through
EMMA. The Borrower filed its Annual Report for each of the years ended June 30, 2011 through 2013 in a timely
fashion. However, the Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2013 did not include the Enrollment and Wait List
Data that is required under the 2011 Continuing Disclosure Agreement. The 2011 Continuing Disclosure
Agreement also requires filing of, at least once per quarter, the Borrower’s unaudited financial statements for the
previous quarter reflecting revenues and expenses as compared with the Borrower's operating budget together with
copies of each report on enrollment, headcount, membership, attendance and similar statistics with respect to the
Borrower submitted by the Borrower to the New York State Education Department during the previous calendar
quarter (“Enrollment and Head Count Report”. Over the previous two years, such quarterly unaudited financial
statements were filed late as follows:

� Quarter Ended 6/30/11 - filed late on 8/11/2011
� Quarter Ended 9/30/11 - filed late on 11/18/2011
� Quarter Ended 12/31/11 - filed late on 2/3/2012
� Quarter Ended 3/31/12 - filed late on 5/11/12
� Quarter Ended 9/30/12 - filed late on 12/31/12
� Quarter Ended 12/31/12 - filed late on 2/1/13
� Quarter Ended 6/30/13 - filed late on 8/2/13
� Quarter Ended 9/30/13 - filed late on 11/20/13

The Borrower notes that in all of the above cases the filings were delinquent because the Borrower's
submission to the State of the same documents required to be submitted within 30 days following the end of a
quarter under the 2011 Continuing Disclosure Agreement are due 45 days after the end of each quarter. The 2011
Continuing Disclosure Agreement will be amended to align the two reporting dates by providing that the quarterly
filings are due 45 days after the end of each quarter.

Over the previous two years, such quarterly unaudited financial statements did not provide the Enrollment
and Head Count Report as follows:

� Quarter Ended 9/30/11 - filed late on 12/12/13
� Quarter Ended 12/31/11 - filed late on 12/12/13
� Quarter Ended 9/30/13 - filed late on 12/12/13.

The Borrower (with assistance from the Dissemination Agent) as noted above has since made all of the
above-described filings that were not made previously, and has reviewed its continuing disclosure processes and
procedures – including through discussions with the Dissemination Agent regarding the requirements of the 2011
Continuing Disclosure Agreement and the Continuing Disclosure Agreement. Other than described above in this
paragraph, the Borrower has not failed to comply in all material respects in the previous five years with any previous
undertakings required by the Rule.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Borrower for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 included in this
Official Statement in “APPENDIX C – FINANCIAL STATEMENTS,” have been audited by Koch Group &
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Company, LLP (“Koch Group”), to the extent and for the periods indicated in their report thereon.  Such financial 
statements have been included in reliance upon the report of Koch Group.  The Borrower is not aware of any facts 
that would make such financial statements misleading.   

 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
Underwriting 

 
Subject to the terms and conditions of a bond purchase agreement (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”) 

entered into by and among the Issuer, the Borrower and Robert W. Baird & Co., Incorporated (the 
“Underwriter”), the Series 2013 Bonds are being sold by the Issuer to the Underwriter at an underwriting discount 
of $236,512.50 ($226,975.00 with respect to the Series 2013A Bonds and $9,537.50 with respect to the Series 
2013B Bonds).  Expenses associated with the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds are being paid from proceeds of the 
Series 2013 Bonds.  The right of the Underwriter to receive compensation in connection with the Series 2013 Bonds 
is contingent upon the actual sale and delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds.  The Underwriter has initially offered the 
Series 2013 Bonds to the public at the prices set forth on the inside front cover page of this Official Statement.  Such 
prices may subsequently change without any requirement of prior notice.  The Underwriter reserves the right to join 
with dealers and other investment banking firms in offering the Series 2013 Bonds to the public. 
 
Financial Advisors 
 

Buck Financial Advisors, Englewood, Colorado, is serving as financial advisor to the Borrower. Buck 
Financial Advisors is not obligated nor has undertaken to make an independent verification or to assume the 
responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in this Official Statement. 
 
Additional Information 
 

The summaries of or references to constitutional provisions, statutes, resolutions, agreements, contracts, 
financial statements, reports, publications and other documents or compilations of data or information set forth in 
this Official Statement do not purport to be complete statements of the provisions of the items summarized or 
referred to and are qualified in their entirety by the actual provisions of such items, copies of which are either 
publicly available or available upon request and the payment of a reasonable copying, mailing and handling charge 
from the Underwriter. 

 
Certification 

 
The preparation of this Official Statement and its distribution have been authorized by the Borrower 

and the Issuer.  This Official Statement is not to be construed as an agreement or contract between the 
Borrower or the Issuer and any purchaser, owner or holder of any Bond. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL  
 

 
By: /s/ Barrington Goldson 
 Board Chair 
  
  
  
  
  



A-1

APPENDIX A

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF NEW YORK CHARTER SCHOOL LAW

This appendix summarizes certain provisions of New York charter school law. This Appendix provides a
summary only, and only for informational purposes. Potential investors should refer to and independently evaluate
applicable provisions of the charter school law in their entirety, with assistance from counsel as necessary, for a
complete understanding of their terms. Further, potential investors should note that the provisions summarized
below are subject to change, and this summary only pertains to certain aspects of currently existing law. See “RISK
FACTORS – Future Changes to Charter School Laws.”

Purpose (New York Education Law § 2850)

The purpose of this article is to authorize a system of charter schools to provide opportunities for teachers,
parents, and community members to establish and maintain schools that operate independently of existing schools
and school districts in order to accomplish the following objectives:

(a) Improve student learning and achievement;

(b) Increase learning opportunities for all students, with special emphasis on expanded learning
experiences for students who are at-risk of academic failure;

(c) Encourage the use of different and innovative teaching methods;

(d) Create new professional opportunities for teachers, school administrators and other school
personnel;

(e) Provide parents and students with expanded choices in the types of educational opportunities that
are available within the public school system; and

(f) Provide schools with a method to change from rule-based to performance-based accountability
systems by holding the schools established under this article accountable for meeting measurable student
achievement results.

Eligible Applicants; Applications; Submission (New York Education Law § 2851-1-3)

An application to establish a charter school may be submitted by teachers, parents, school administrators,
community residents or any combination thereof. Such application may be filed in conjunction with a college,
university, museum, educational institution, not-for-profit corporation exempt from taxation under paragraph 3 of
subsection (c) of section 501 of the internal revenue code or for-profit business or corporate entity authorized to do
business in New York state. Provided however, for-profit business or corporate entities shall not be eligible to
submit an application to establish a charter school pursuant to subdivision nine-a of section twenty-eight hundred
fifty-two of this article, or operate or manage a charter school for a charter issued pursuant to subdivision nine-a of
section twenty-eight hundred fifty-two of this article. For charter schools established in conjunction with a for-profit
business or corporate entity, the charter shall specify the extent of the entity's participation in the management and
operation of the school.

The information provided on the application shall be consistent with the provisions of this article and other
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

An applicant shall submit the application to a charter entity for approval. For purposes of this article, a
charter entity shall be:

(a) The board of education of a school district eligible for an apportionment of aid under subdivision
four of section thirty-six hundred two (apportionment of public moneys to school districts employing eight or more
teachers) of this chapter;
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(b) The board of trustees of the state university of New York; or

(c) The board of regents. The board of regents shall be the only entity authorized to issue a charter
pursuant to this article.

The board of regents shall be the only entity authorized to issue a charter pursuant to this article.
Notwithstanding any provision of this subdivision to the contrary, an application for the conversion of an existing
public school to a charter school shall be submitted to, and may only be approved by, the charter entity set forth in
paragraph (a) of this subdivision. Notwithstanding any law, rule or regulation to the contrary, any such application
for conversion shall be consistent with this section but shall not be subject to the process pursuant to
subdivision nine-a of section twenty-eight hundred fifty-two of this article, and the charter entity shall require
that the parents or guardians of a majority of the students then enrolled in the existing public school vote in favor
of converting the school to a charter school.

Charter Renewal (New York Education Law § 2851-4)

Charters may be renewed, upon application, for a term of up to five years in accordance with the provisions
of this article for the issuance of such charters pursuant to section twenty-eight hundred fifty-two of this article;

Such renewal application shall be submitted to the charter entity no later than six months prior to the
expiration of the charter; provided, however, that the charter entity may waive such deadline for good cause shown.

Charter School Organization (New York Education Law § 2853-1)

(a) Upon the approval of a charter by the board of regents, the board of regents shall incorporate the
charter school as an education corporation for a term not to exceed five years, provided however in the case of
charters issued pursuant to subdivision nine-a of section twenty-eight hundred fifty-two of this article the board of
regents shall incorporate the charter school as an education corporation for a term not to exceed five years in which
instruction is provided to pupils plus the period commencing with the effective date of the charter and ending with
the opening of the school for instruction. Such certificate of incorporation shall not modify or limit any terms of the
charter approved by the board of regents. Upon approval of an application to renew a charter, the board of regents
shall extend the certificate of incorporation for a term not to exceed five years. Upon termination or nonrenewal of
the charter of a charter school pursuant to section twenty-eight hundred fifty-five of this article, the certificate of
incorporation of the charter school shall be revoked by the board of regents pursuant to section two hundred
nineteen of this chapter (change of charter), provided that compliance with the notice and hearing requirements of
such section twenty-eight hundred fifty-five of this article shall be deemed to satisfy the notice and hearing
requirements of such section two hundred nineteen. It shall be the duty of the trustees of the charter school to obtain
federal tax-exempt status no later than one year following approval of a charter school by the board of regents. For
purposes of this article, “certificate of incorporation” shall mean the provisional charter issued by the board of
regents to form the charter school as an educational corporation pursuant to sections two hundred sixteen (charters)
and two hundred seventeen (provisional charters) of this chapter.

(b) An education corporation organized to operate a charter school shall have all corporate powers
necessary and desirable for carrying out a charter school program in accordance with the provisions of this article,
other applicable laws and regulations and the terms of the charter, including all of the powers of an education
corporation formed to operate an elementary or secondary school and those powers granted under the provisions of
the not-for-profit corporation law that are made applicable to charter schools by section two hundred sixteen-a
(applicability of not-for-profit corporation law) of this chapter. The powers of the trustees of the charter school shall
include those powers specified in section two hundred twenty-six (powers of trustees of institutions) of this chapter.

(b-1) An education corporation operating a charter school shall be authorized to operate more than one
school or house any grade at more than one site, provided that a charter must be issued for each such additional
school or site in accordance with the requirements for the issuance of a charter pursuant to this article and that each
such additional school or site shall count as a charter issued pursuant to subdivision nine of section twenty eight
hundred fifty-two of this article; and provided further that:
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(i) a charter school may operate in more than one building at a single site; and

(ii) a charter school which provides instruction to its students at different locations for a portion
of their school day shall be deemed to be operating at a single site.

(c) A charter school shall be deemed an independent and autonomous public school, except as
otherwise provided in this article. The charter entity and the board of regents shall be deemed to be the public agents
authorized to supervise and oversee the charter school.

(d) The powers granted to a charter school under this article constitute the performance of essential
public purposes and governmental purposes of this state. A charter school shall be exempt to the same extent as
other public schools from all taxation, fees, assessments or special ad valorem levies on its earnings and its property,
including property leased by the charter school. Instruments of conveyance to or from a charter school and any
bonds or notes issued by a charter school, together with the income therefrom, shall at all times be exempt from
taxation.

(e) A charter school shall not have the power to levy taxes or to acquire property by eminent domain.

(f) The board of trustees of the charter school shall have final authority for policy and operational
decisions of the school. Nothing herein shall prohibit the board of trustees of a charter school from delegating
decision-making authority to officers and employees of the school in accordance with the provisions of the charter.

(g) Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, no civil liability shall attach to any charter
entity, the board of regents, or to any of their members or employees, individually or collectively, for any acts or
omissions of the charter school. Neither the local school district, the charter entity nor the state shall be liable for the
debts or financial obligations of a charter school or any person or corporate entity who operates a charter school.

Public and Private Assistance to Charter Schools (New York Education Law § 2853-4)

(Effective until June 30, 2015)
**(a) For purposes of sections seven hundred one (power to designate text-books; purchase and loan of

text-books; purchase of supplies), seven hundred eleven (aid for purchase of school library materials), 751 (aid for
computer software purchases) and 912 (health and welfare services to all children) of the New York Education Law,
a charter school shall be deemed a nonpublic school in the school district within which the charter school is located.
Special education programs and services shall be provided to students with a disability attending a charter school in
accordance with the individualized education program recommended by the committee or subcommittee on special
education of the student's school district of residence. The charter school may arrange to have such services
provided by such school district of residence or by the charter school directly or by contract with another provider.
Where the charter school arranges to have the school district of residence provide such special education programs
or services, such school district shall provide services in the same manner as it serves students with disabilities in
other public schools in the school district, including the provision of supplementary and related services on site to
the same extent to which it has a policy or practice of providing such services on the site of such other public
schools.

(Effective on June 30, 2015)
**(a) For purposes of sections seven hundred one (power to designate text-books; purchase and loan of

text-books; purchase of supplies), seven hundred eleven (aid for purchase of school library materials), seven
hundred fifty-one (aid for computer software purchases) and 912 (health and welfare services to all children) of the
New York Education Law, a charter school shall be deemed a nonpublic school in the school district within which
the charter school is located. Special education programs and services shall be provided to students with a disability
attending a charter school in accordance with the individualized education program recommended by the committee
or subcommittee on special education of the student's school district of residence. The charter school may arrange to
have such services provided by such school district of residence or by the charter school directly or by contract with
another provider. **
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(b) For purposes of section thirty-six hundred thirty-five (transportation) of the New York Education
Law, a charter school shall be deemed a nonpublic school. The charter and application therefor shall set forth the
manner in which students ineligible for transportation pursuant to § 3635 of the New York Education Law shall be
transported to and from school. Any supplemental transportation provided by a charter school shall comply with all
transportation safety laws and regulations applicable to other public schools. A school district may enter into a
contract for the provision of supplemental transportation services to a charter school, and any such services shall be
provided by the school district at cost.

(c) A charter school may contract with a school district or the governing body of a public college or
university for the use of a school building and grounds, the operation and maintenance thereof. Any such contract
shall provide such services or facilities at cost.

(d) Private persons and organizations are encouraged to provide funding and other assistance to the
establishment or operation of charter schools.

(e) The school district of residence of children attending a charter school may, but is not required to,
allow such children to participate in athletic and extra-curricular activities of the district's schools.

Applicability of Other Laws (New York Education Law § 2854-1)

(a) Notwithstanding any provision of law to the contrary, to the extent that any provision of this
article is inconsistent with any other state or local law, rule or regulation, the provisions of this article shall govern
and be controlling.

(b) A charter school shall meet the same health and safety, civil rights, and student assessment
requirements applicable to other public schools, except as otherwise specifically provided in this article. A charter
school shall be exempt from all other state and local laws, rules, regulations or policies governing public or private
schools, boards of education and school districts, including those relating to school personnel and students, except as
specifically provided in the school's charter or in this article. Nothing in this subdivision shall affect the
requirements of compulsory education of minors established by part one of article sixty-five (compulsory education
and school census) of this chapter.

(c) A charter school shall be subject to the financial audits, the audit procedures, and the audit
requirements set forth in the charter and shall be subject to audits of the comptroller of the state of New York at his
or her discretion. Such procedures and standards shall be consistent with generally accepted accounting and audit
standards. Independent fiscal audits shall be required at least once annually.

(d) A charter school shall design its educational programs to meet or exceed the student performance
standards adopted by the board of regents and the student performance standards contained in the charter. Students
attending charter school shall be required to take regents examinations to the same extent such examinations are
required of other public school students.

(e) A charter school shall be subject to the provisions of articles six (freedom of information law) and
seven of the public officers (open meetings law) law.

(f) A charter school shall be subject to the provisions of sections eight hundred (definitions), eight
hundred one (conflicts of interest prohibited), eight hundred two (exceptions), eight hundred three (disclosure of
interest), eight hundred four (contracts void), eight hundred four-a (certain interests prohibited), eight hundred five
(violations), eight hundred five-a (certain action prohibited), eight hundred five-b (solemnization of marriages) and
eight hundred six (code of ethics) of the general municipal law to the same extent such sections apply to school
districts.
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Admission; Enrollment; Students (New York Education Law § 2854-2)

A charter school shall be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices, and all
other operations and shall not charge tuition or fees; provided that a charter school may require the payment of fees
on the same basis and to the same extent as other public schools. A charter school shall not discriminate against any
student, employee or any other person on the basis of ethnicity, national origin, gender, or disability or any other
ground that would be unlawful if done by a school. Admission of students shall not be limited on the basis of
intellectual ability, measures of achievement or aptitude, athletic ability, disability, race, creed, gender, national
origin, religion, or ancestry; provided, however, that nothing in this article shall be construed to prevent the
establishment of a single-sex charter school or a charter school designed to provide expanded learning opportunities
for students at-risk of academic failure or students with disabilities and English language learners; and provided,
further, that the charter school shall demonstrate good faith efforts to attract and retain a comparable or greater
enrollment of students with disabilities, English language learners, and students who are eligible applicants for the
free and reduced price lunch program when compared to the enrollment figures for such students in the school
district in which the charter school is located. A charter shall not be issued to any school that would be wholly or in
part under the control or direction of any religious denomination, or in which any denominational tenet or doctrine
would be taught.

(b) Any child who is qualified under the laws of this state for admission to a public school is qualified
for admission to a charter school. Applications for admission to a charter school shall be submitted on a uniform
application form created by the department and shall be made available by a charter school in languages
predominately spoken in the community in which such charter school is located. The school shall enroll each
eligible student who submits a timely application by the first day of April each year, unless the number of
applications exceeds the capacity of the grade level or building. In such cases, students shall be accepted from
among applicants by a random selection process, provided, however, that an enrollment preference shall be provided
to pupils returning to the charter school in the second or any subsequent year of operation and pupils residing in the
school district in which the charter school is located, and siblings of pupils already enrolled in the charter school.
The commissioner shall establish regulations to require that the random selection process conducted pursuant to this
paragraph be performed in a transparent and equitable manner and to require that the time and place of the random
selection process be publicized in a manner consistent with the requirements of section one hundred four of the
public officers law and be open to the public.

(c) A charter school shall serve one or more of the grades one through twelve, and shall limit
admission to pupils within the grade levels served. Nothing herein shall prohibit a charter school from establishing a
kindergarten program.

(d) A student may withdraw from a charter school at any time and enroll in a public school. A charter
school may refuse admission to any student who has been expelled or suspended from a public school until the
period of suspension or expulsion from the public school has expired, consistent with the requirements of due
process.

Causes for Revocation or Termination (New York Education Law § 2855)

The charter entity, or the board of regents, may terminate a charter upon any of the following grounds:

(a) When a charter school's outcome on student assessment measures adopted by the board of regents
falls below the level that would allow the commissioner to revoke the registration of another public school, and
student achievement on such measures has not shown improvement over the preceding three school years;

(b) Serious violations of law;

(c) Material and substantial violation of the charter, including fiscal mismanagement;
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(d) When the public employment relations board makes a determination that the charter school
demonstrates a practice and pattern of egregious and intentional violations of subdivision one of section two
hundred nine-a (improper employer practices) of the civil service law involving interference with or discrimination
against employee rights under article fourteen (Public Employees' Fair Employment Act) of the civil service law; or

(e) Repeated failure to comply with the requirement to meet or exceed enrollment and retention
targets of students with disabilities, English language learners, and students who are eligible applicants for the free
and reduced price lunch program pursuant to targets established by the board of regents or the board of trustees of
the state university of New York, as applicable. Provided, however, if no grounds for terminating a charter are
established pursuant to this section other than pursuant to this paragraph, and the charter school demonstrates that it
has made extensive efforts to recruit and retain such students, including outreach to parents and families in the
surrounding communities, widely publicizing the lottery for such school, and efforts to academically support such
students in such charter school, then the charter entity or board of regents may retain such charter.

Notice of intent to revoke a charter shall be provided to the board of trustees of a charter school at least
thirty days prior to the effective date of the proposed revocation. Such notice shall include a statement of reasons for
the proposed revocation. The charter school shall be allowed at least thirty days to correct the problems associated
with the proposed revocation. Prior to revocation of the charter, a charter school shall be provided an opportunity to
be heard, consistent with the requirements of due process. Upon the termination of a charter, the charter school shall
proceed with dissolution pursuant to the procedures of the charter and direction of the charter entity and the board of
regents.

In addition to the provisions of subdivision two of this section, the charter entity or the board of regents
may place a charter school falling within the provisions of subdivision one of this section on probationary status to
allow the implementation of a remedial action plan. The failure of a charter school to comply with the terms and
conditions of a remedial action plan may result in summary revocation of the school's charter.

Any individual or group may bring a complaint to the board of trustees of a charter school alleging a
violation of the provisions of this article, the charter, or any other provision of law relating to the management or
operation of the charter school. If, after presentation of the complaint to the board of trustees of a charter school, the
individual or group determines that such board has not adequately addressed the complaint, they may present that
complaint to the charter entity, which shall investigate and respond. If, after presentation of the complaint to the
charter entity, the individual or group determines that the charter entity has not adequately addressed the complaint,
they may present that complaint to the board of regents, which shall investigate and respond. The charter entity and
the board of regents shall have the power and the duty to issue appropriate remedial orders to charter schools under
their jurisdiction to effectuate the provisions of this section.

The regulatory power of the board of regents and the commissioner shall not extend to charter schools
except as otherwise specifically provided in this article.

Review and Assessment (New York Education Law § 2857-2-5)

Each charter school shall submit to the charter entity and to the board of regents an annual report. Such
report shall be issued no later than the first day of August of each year for the preceding school year. Such report
shall be issued no later than the first day of August of each year for the preceding school year and shall be made
publicly available by such date and shall be posted on the charter school's website. The annual report shall be in
such form as shall be prescribed by the commissioner and shall include at least the following components:

(a) a charter school report card, which shall include measures of the comparative academic and fiscal
performance of the school, as prescribed by the commissioner in regulations adopted for such purpose. Such
measures shall include, but not be limited to, graduation rates, dropout rates, performance of students on
standardized tests, college entry rates, total spending per pupil and administrative spending per pupil. Such measures
shall be presented in a format that is easily comparable to similar public schools. In addition, the charter school shall
ensure that such information is easily accessible to the community including making it publicly available by
transmitting it to local newspapers of general circulation and making it available for distribution at board of trustee
meetings.
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(b) discussion of the progress made towards achievement of the goals set forth in the charter.

(c) a certified financial statement setting forth, by appropriate categories, the revenues and
expenditures for the preceding school year, including a copy of the most recent independent fiscal audit of the
school and any audit conducted by the comptroller of the state of New York.

(d) efforts taken by the charter school in the existing school year, and a plan for efforts to be taken in
the succeeding school year, to meet or exceed enrollment and retention targets set by the board of regents or the
board of trustees of the state university of New York, as applicable, of students with disabilities, English language
learners, and students who are eligible applicants for the free and reduced price lunch program established pursuant
to paragraph (e) of subdivision four of section twenty-eight hundred fifty-one of this article.

The board of regents shall report annually to the governor, the temporary president of the senate, and the
speaker of the assembly the following information:

(a) The number, distribution, and a brief description of new charter schools established during the
preceding year;

(a-1) A list including the number of charter schools closed during the preceding year, and a brief
description of the reasons therefor including, but not limited to, non-renewal of the charter or revocation of the
charter;

(b) The department's assessment of the current and projected programmatic and fiscal impact of
charter schools on the delivery of services by school districts;

(c) The academic progress of students attending charter schools, as measured against comparable
public and nonpublic schools with similar student population characteristics wherever practicable;

(d) A list of all actions taken by a charter entity on charter application and the rationale for the
renewal or revocation of any charters; and

(e) Any other information regarding charter schools that the board of regents deems necessary. The
format for this annual report shall be developed in consultation with representatives of school districts and charter
school officials.

The board of regents shall on an annual basis review and make available to school districts best educational
practices employed by charter schools.

CHARTER SCHOOL FUNDING

Financing of Charter Schools (New York Education Law § 2856)

(Effective until June 30, 2015)

**(a) The enrollment of students attending charter schools shall be included in the enrollment, attendance,
membership and, if applicable, count of students with disabilities of the school district in which the pupil resides.
The charter school shall report all such data to the school districts of residence in a timely manner. Each school
district shall report such enrollment, attendance and count of students with disabilities to the department. The school
district of residence shall pay directly to the charter school for each student enrolled in the charter school who
resides in the school district the charter school basic tuition, which shall be:

(i) for school years prior to the 2009-2010 school year and for school years following the
2012¬ 2013 school year, an amount equal to 100% of the amount calculated pursuant to §3602(1)(f) of the
New York Education Law for the school district for the year prior to the Base Year increased by the
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percentage change in the State Total Approved Operating Expense calculated pursuant to §3602(1)(t) of the
New York Education Law from two years prior to the Base Year to the Base Year;

(ii) for the 2009-2010 school year, the Charter School Basic Tuition shall be the amount
payable by such district as Charter School Basic Tuition for the 2008-2009 school year;

(iii) for the 2010-2011 through 2012-2013 school years, the Charter School Basic Tuition
shall be the basic tuition computed for the 2010-2011 school year pursuant to the provisions of
subparagraph (i) above.

(b) The school district shall also pay directly to the charter school any federal or state aid attributable
to a student with a disability attending charter school in proportion to the level of services for such student with a
disability that the charter school provides directly or indirectly. Notwithstanding anything in this section to the
contrary, amounts payable pursuant to this section from State or local funds may be reduced pursuant to an
agreement between the school and the charter entity set forth in the charter. Payments made pursuant to this section
shall be made by the school district in six substantially equal installments each year beginning on the first business
day of July and every two months thereafter. Amounts payable under this section shall be determined by the
Commissioner. Amounts payable to a charter school in its first year of operation shall be based on the projections of
initial-year enrollment set forth in the charter until actual enrollment data is reported to the school district by the
charter school. Such projections shall be reconciled with the actual enrollment as actual enrollment data is so
reported and at the end of the school's first year of operation and each subsequent year based on a final report of
actual enrollment by the charter school, and any necessary adjustments resulting from such final report shall be
made to payments during the school's following year of operation.

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this subdivision to the contrary, payment of the federal aid
attributable to a student with a disability attending a charter school shall be made in accordance with the
requirements of section 8065-a of title twenty of the United States code and sections 76.785-76.799 and 300.209 of
title thirty-four of the code of federal regulations. **

(Effective June 30, 2015)

**(a) The enrollment of students attending charter schools shall be included in the enrollment, attendance
and, if applicable, count of students with disabilities of the school district in which the pupil resides. The charter
school shall report all such data to the school districts of residence in a timely manner. Each school district shall
report such enrollment, attendance and count of students with disabilities to the department. The school district of
residence shall pay directly to the charter school for each student enrolled in the charter school who resides in the
school district the Charter School Basic Tuition which shall be:

(i) for school years prior to the 2009-2010 school year and for school years following the
2012¬ 2013 school year, an amount equal to 100% of the amount calculated pursuant §3602(1)(f) of the
New York Education Law for the school district for the year prior to the Base Year increased by the
percentage change in the State Total Approved Operating Expense calculated pursuant to §3602(1)(t) of the
New York Education Law from two years prior to the Base Year to the Base Year;

(ii) for the 2009-2010 school year, the Charter School Basic Tuition shall be the amount
payable by such district as Charter School Basic Tuition for the 2008-2009 school year;

(iii) for the 2010-2011 through 2012-2013 school years, the Charter School Basic Tuition
shall be the basic tuition computed for the 2010-2011 school year pursuant to the provisions of
subparagraph (i) above.

(b) The school district shall also pay directly to the charter school any federal or state aid attributable to a
student with a disability attending charter school in proportion to the level of services for such student with a
disability that the charter school provides directly or indirectly. Notwithstanding anything in this section to the
contrary, amounts payable pursuant to this section may be reduced pursuant to an agreement between the school and
the charter entity set forth in the charter. Payments made pursuant to this section shall be made by the school district
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in six substantially equal installments each year beginning on the first business day of July and every two months
thereafter. Amounts payable under this section shall be determined by the Commissioner. Amounts payable to a
charter school in its first year of operation shall be based on the projections of initial-year enrollment set forth in the
charter. Such projections shall be reconciled with the actual enrollment at the end of the school's first year of
operation, and any necessary adjustments shall be made to payments during the school's second year of operation.**

In the event of the failure of the school district to make payments required by this section, the state
comptroller shall deduct from any state funds which become due to such school district an amount equal to the
unpaid obligation. The comptroller shall pay over such sum to the charter school upon certification of the
commissioner. The commissioner shall promulgate regulations to implement the provisions of this subdivision.

Nothing in this article shall be construed to prohibit any person or organization from providing funding or
other assistance to the establishment or operation of a charter school. The board of trustees of a charter school is
authorized to accept gifts, donations or grants of any kind made to the charter school and to expend or use such gifts,
donations or grants in accordance with the conditions prescribed by the donor; provided, however, that no gift,
donation or grant may be accepted if subject to a condition that is contrary to any provision of law or term of the
charter.

Charter School Basic Tuition (New York Education Law § 3602)

As referenced in the New York Education Law § 2856, “expense per pupil” shall mean approved operating
expense for the year prior to the base year divided by the sum, computed using year prior to the base year pupil
counts, of the total aidable pupil units plus weighted pupils with disabilities. Expense per pupil for each borough in
the city school district of the city of New York shall be the expense per pupil of the entire city school district.

“Base year” shall mean the school year immediately preceding the current year.

“Weighted pupils with disabilities” shall be computed as follows:

(a) “Pupils with disabilities” shall mean pupils of school age who are identified as students
with disabilities pursuant to article eighty-nine of this chapter and the regulations of the commissioner and
who receive special education services or attend special education programs which meet criteria established
by the commissioner, operated by a school district eligible for total foundation aid pursuant to this section
or by a board of cooperative educational services, whether or not the school district is a component of such
board.

(b) “Weighted pupils with disabilities” shall mean the attendance, as defined in the
regulations of the commissioner, of pupils with disabilities who have been determined by a school district
committee on special education to require any of the following types and levels of programs or services
specified in this subparagraph, and who receive such programs and services from the school district of
attendance during the base year, multiplied by a special services weighting determined as follows:

(i) for placement for sixty per centum or more of the school day in a special class, or
home or hospital instruction for a period of more than sixty days, or special services or programs
for more than sixty per centum of the school day, the special services weighting shall be one
hundred seventy percent;

(ii) for placement for twenty per centum or more of the school week in a resource
room or special services or programs including related services required for twenty per centum or
more of the school week, or in the case of pupils in grades seven through twelve or a multi-level
middle school program as defined by the commissioner or in the case of pupils in grades four
through six in an elementary school operating on a period basis, the equivalent of five periods per
week, but not less than the equivalent of one hundred eighty minutes in a resource room or in
other special services or programs including related services, or for at least two hours per week of
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direct or indirect consultant teacher services, in accordance with regulations of the commissioner
adopted for such purpose, the special services weighting shall be ninety percent.

Computation of total aidable pupil units. A district's total aidable pupil units shall be the sum of the
district's adjusted average daily attendance computed pursuant to this section for the year prior to the base year
multiplied by the enrollment index computed pursuant to this section for the base year plus the additional aidable
pupil units computed for the year prior to the base year under paragraph c of this subdivision.

(a) For purposes of this section weighted average daily attendance of a school district for any
school year shall be computed as follows:

(1) Weighted average daily attendance shall be determined by using the average daily
attendance of public school pupils in a full-day kindergarten and grades one through six as the
basic unit, with the attendance of such pupils in one-half day kindergartens measured at one-half
of such basic unit and the attendance of such pupils in grades seven through twelve measured at
one and one-quarter of such basic unit. The sum of all such units of attendance shall be the
weighted average daily attendance.

(2) In computing such attendance, the school district shall (i) determine the number of
religious holidays which fall on a school day within a school year according to regulations
established by the commissioner, such religious holidays to be duly recognized as such for
purposes of this section by duly adopted resolution of the board of education; (ii) deduct the
aggregate attendance on such religious holidays from the total aggregate attendance, by grade
level; (iii) deduct such religious holidays from the total number of days of session, by grade level;
(iv) compute the weighted average daily attendance for the school year.

(3) In any instance where a pupil is a resident of another state or an Indian pupil is a
resident of any portion of a reservation located wholly or partly within the borders of the state
pursuant to subdivision four of section forty-one hundred one (duties of commissioner regarding
Indian children) of this chapter or a pupil is living on federally owned land or property, such
pupil's attendance shall be counted as part of the weighted average daily attendance of the school
district in which such pupil is enrolled.

(4) Resident weighted average daily attendance for purposes of determining the aid
ratio of a school district for any school year shall be the weighted average daily attendance for the
school year immediately preceding the base year, less the weighted average daily attendance of
nonresident pupils attending public schools in the district for such school year, plus the weighted
average daily attendance of pupils resident in the district but attending public schools in another
district or state plus the weighted average daily attendance of pupils resident in the district but
attending full-time a school operated by a board of cooperative educational services or a county
vocational education and extension board for such school year. The attendance of nonresident
pupils attending public school in the district and resident pupils attending such schools outside of
the district shall be determined by applying to the number of such pupils registered during the
school year in each case the ratio of aggregate days attendance to the possible aggregate days
attendance of all pupils in attendance in the district. Indian pupils of a reservation attending public
school, or pupils living on the United States military reservation at West Point attending public
school, shall be deemed to be resident pupils of the district providing such school, for purposes of
this paragraph. Where a school district has entered into a contract with the state university
pursuant to subdivision two of section three hundred fifty-five (powers and duties of trustees –
administrative and fiscal functions) of this chapter under which the school district makes payments
in the nature of tuition for the education of certain children residing in the district, such children
for whom such tuition payments are made shall be deemed to be resident pupils of such district for
the purposes of this paragraph.

(6) Notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraphs four and five of this paragraph,
when a school district shall experience an increase in resident weighted average daily attendance
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during the current year because of the closing in whole, or in part, of a non-public school or a
campus school, or a school previously operated by the United States government on the United
States military reservation at West Point, the commissioner, in computing any aid ratio of such
district, shall permit the use of such additional resident weighted average daily attendance for aid
ratio purposes during the current year and the next succeeding year, provided that such additional
resident weighted average daily attendance attributable to such closing, or part thereof, shall be in
excess of one hundred students; provided, however, that such district which qualifies for an
increase in total wealth pupil units pursuant to paragraph f of this subdivision, shall use the
increase in resident weighted average daily attendance, even if such increase in resident weighted
average daily attendance is less than one hundred.

(b) For purposes of this section adjusted average daily attendance of a school district for any
school year shall be computed as follows:

(1) Adjusted average daily attendance shall be determined by using the average daily
attendance of public school pupils in a full-day kindergarten and grades one through twelve as the
basic unit, with the attendance of such pupils in one-half day kindergartens measured at one-half
of such basic unit. The sum of all such units of attendance shall be the adjusted average daily
attendance.

(2) In computing such attendance, the school district shall (i) determine the number
of religious holidays which fall on a school day within a school year according to regulations
established by the commissioner, such religious holidays to be duly recognized as such for
purposes of this section by duly adopted resolution of the board of education; (ii) deduct the
aggregate attendance on such religious holidays from the total aggregate attendance, by grade
level; (iii) deduct such religious holidays from the total number of days of session, by grade level;
(iv) compute the adjusted average daily attendance for the school year.

(3) In any instance where a pupil is a resident of another state or an Indian pupil is a
resident of any portion of a reservation located wholly or partly within the borders of the state
pursuant to subdivision four of section forty-one hundred one (duties of commissioner regarding
Indian children) of this chapter or a pupil is living on federally owned land or property, such
pupil's attendance shall be counted as part of the adjusted average daily attendance of the school
district in which such pupil is enrolled.

(c) Computation of additional aidable pupil units. The additional aidable pupil units used to
compute total aidable pupil units pursuant to paragraph e of this subdivision shall be the sum of the
attendance of summer session pupils multiplied by twelve per centum and the weighted pupils with special
educational needs. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall be construed to result in the inclusion of the
attendance of summer session pupils in the computation of weighted or adjusted average daily attendance
pursuant to this subdivision.

“Enrollment index” shall be computed by dividing the public school enrollment for the current year by
public school enrollment for the base year, both as defined in paragraph n of this subdivision, with the result carried
to three places without rounding.

(a) “Enrollment” shall mean the unduplicated count of all children registered to receive educational
services in grades kindergarten through twelve, including children in ungraded programs, as registered on the date
prior to November first that is specified by the commissioner as the enrollment reporting date for the school district
or nonpublic school, as reported to the commissioner.

(b) “Public school district enrollment” shall mean the sum of: (1) the number of children on a regular
enrollment register of a public school district on such date; (2) the number of children eligible to receive home
instruction in the school district on such date; (3) the number of children for whom equivalent attendance must be
computed pursuant to this subdivision on such date; (4) the number of children with disabilities who are residents of
such district who are registered on such date to attend programs under the provisions of paragraph c of subdivision
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two of section forty-four hundred one (children with handicapping conditions definitions) of this chapter; (5) the
number of children eligible to receive educational services on such date but not claimed for aid pursuant to
subdivision seven of section thirty-two hundred two (public schools free to resident pupils; tuition from nonresident
pupils) of this chapter; and (6) the number of children registered on such date to attend programs (i) pursuant to
subdivision two of section three hundred fifty-five (powers and duties of trustees – administrative and fiscal
functions) of this chapter or (ii) pursuant to an agreement between the city school district of the city of New York
and Hunter College pursuant to section sixty-two hundred sixteen of this chapter.

(c) Equivalent attendance shall mean the quotient of the total number of student hours of instruction
in programs in a public school of a school district or a board of cooperative educational services leading to a high
school diploma or a high school equivalency diploma as defined in regulations of the commissioner for pupils under
the age of twenty-one not on a regular day school register of the district, divided by one thousand.

The “approved operating expense” for the apportionments to any school district hereunder shall mean the
amount computed as follows: The apportionment to any school district for operating expense shall be based upon the
total expenditures from its general fund and from its capital fund and from its risk retention fund for purposes of
employee benefit claims related to salaries paid from the general fund, and for any city school districts with a
population of more than one hundred twenty-five thousand inhabitants its expenditures from the special aid fund of
grant moneys for improving pupil performance and categorical aid for special reading programs as provided in the
aid to localities budget during the applicable year as approved by the commissioner, and in accordance with the
classification of expenditures in use by the commissioner for the reporting by school districts of receipts,
expenditures and other financial data. For the purpose of this paragraph operating expense shall be defined as total
cash expenditures during the applicable year, but shall exclude:

(1) any balances and transfers;

(2) any payments for transportation of pupils to and from school during the regular
school year inclusive of capital outlays and debt service therefor;

(2-a) a portion of any payments for transportation of pupils to and from district
operated summer school programs pursuant to subdivision six of section thirty-six hundred
twenty-two-a (aidable regular transportation) of this article, inclusive of capital outlays and debt
service therefor, equal to the product of such expenditures multiplied by the quotient of the total
apportionment after the proration, if any, required by such subdivision six of such section divided
by the total apportionment prior to such proration;

(3) any payments for capital outlay and debt service for school building purposes,
provided, however, that in the case of a school district which has entered into a contract with state
university pursuant to paragraph o of subdivision two of section three hundred fifty-five (conduct
of research and experiments) of this chapter, under which the school district makes payment to
state university on account of capital outlay relating to certain children residing in such school
district, such payments shall not be so excluded;

(4) any payments for cafeteria or school lunch programs;

(5) any proceeds of short term borrowings in the general fund and any payments
from the proceeds of the sale of obligations in the capital fund;

(6) any cash receipts which reduce the cost of an item when applied against the
expenditure therefor, except gifts, donations and earned interest and any refunds made;

(7) any payments made to boards of cooperative educational services for purposes
or programs for which an apportionment is paid pursuant to other sections of this chapter, except
that payments attributable to eligible pupils with disabilities and ineligible pupils residing in
noncomponent districts shall be included in operating expense;
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(8) any tuition payments made to other school districts inclusive of payments made
to a central high school district by one of its component school districts;

(9) any apportionment or payment received from the state for experimental or
special programs paid under provisions other than those found in this section and other than any
apportionments or payments received from the state by the city school district of the city of
Yonkers for the purpose of funding an educational improvement program pursuant to a court order
and other than any other state grants in aid identified by the commissioner for general use as
specified by the board of education pursuant to subdivision two of section seventeen hundred
eighteen (limitation upon expenditures) of this chapter;

(10) any funds received from the federal government except the federal share of
Medicaid subject to the provisions of section thirty-six hundred nine-a (moneys apportioned, when
and how payable commencing July first, two thousand seven) of this part and except Impact Aid
funds received pursuant to sections two and six of Public Law eighty-one-eight hundred seventy-
four (PL 81-874) or any law superseding such law in any such district which received aid pursuant
to both such sections; provided further, however, that there shall be excluded from such federal
funds or other apportionments any payments from such funds already deducted pursuant to this
paragraph;

(11) any payments made for which an apportionment is disallowed pursuant to
regulations of the commissioner;

(12) any expenditures made for accounting, tabulation, or computer equipment, in
excess of ten thousand dollars unless such expenditures shall have been specifically approved by
the commissioner;

(13) any rentals received payments received pursuant to the provisions of section
four hundred three-a (Leasing of school property) of this chapter;

(14) any rentals or other annual payments received pursuant to the provisions of
section four hundred three-b (Leasing of school buildings and facilities) of this chapter;

(15) any expenditures made for persons twenty-one years of age or over attending
employment preparation education programs pursuant to subdivision eleven of this section;

(16) any tuition payments made pursuant to a contract under the provisions of
paragraphs e, f, g, h, i and l of subdivision two of section forty-four hundred one (“special services
or programs” definition) of this chapter or any tuition payments on behalf of pupils attending a
state school under paragraph d of such subdivision;

(17) in any year in which expenditures are made to the New York state teachers'
retirement system or the New York state and local employees' retirement system for both the prior
school year and the current school year, any expenditures made to such retirement systems and
recorded in the school year prior to the school year in which such obligations are paid; and

(18) any payments to the commissioner of taxation and finance pursuant to article
twenty-three (metropolitan commuter transportation mobility tax) of the tax law.

Transitional Aid for Charter School Payments (New York Education Law § 3602)

In addition to any other apportionment under this section, for the two thousand seven — two thousand eight
school year and thereafter, a school district other than a city school district in a city having a population of one
million or more shall be eligible for an apportionment in an amount equal to the sum of:
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(a) the product of (i) the product of eighty percent multiplied by the charter school basic tuition
computed for such school district for the base year pursuant to section twenty-eight hundred fifty-six of this chapter,
multiplied by (ii) the positive difference, if any, of the number of resident pupils enrolled in the charter school in the
base year less the number of resident pupils enrolled in a charter school in the year prior to the base year, provided,
however, that a school district shall be eligible for an apportionment pursuant to this paragraph only if the number of
its resident pupils enrolled in charter schools in the base year exceeds two percent of the total resident public school
district enrollment of such school district in the base year or the total general fund payments made by such district to
charter schools in the base year for resident pupils enrolled in charter schools exceeds two percent of total general
fund expenditures of such district in the base year, plus

(b) the product of (i) the product of sixty percent multiplied by the charter school basic tuition
computed for such school district for the base year pursuant to section twenty-eight hundred fifty-six of this chapter,
multiplied by (ii) the positive difference, if any, of the number of resident pupils enrolled in the charter school in the
year prior to the base year less the number of resident pupils enrolled in a charter school in the year two years prior
to the base year, provided, however, that a school district shall be eligible for an apportionment pursuant to this
paragraph only if the number of its resident pupils enrolled in charter schools in the year prior to the base year
exceeds two percent of the total resident public school district enrollment of such school district in the year prior to
the base year or the total general fund payments made by such district to charter schools in the year prior to the base
year for resident pupils enrolled in charter schools exceeds two percent of the total general fund expenditures of
such district in the year prior to the base year, plus

(c) the product of (i) the product of forty percent multiplied by the charter school basic tuition
computed for such school district for the base year pursuant to section twenty-eight hundred fifty-six of this chapter,
multiplied by (ii) the positive difference, if any, of the number of resident pupils enrolled in the charter school in the
year two years prior to the base year less the number of resident pupils enrolled in a charter school in the year three
years prior to the base year, provided, however, that a school district shall be eligible for an apportionment pursuant
to this paragraph only if the number of its resident pupils enrolled in charter schools in the year two years prior to
the base year exceeds two percent of the total resident public school district enrollment of such school district in the
year two years prior to the base year or the total general fund payments made by such district to charter schools in
the year two years prior to the base year for resident pupils enrolled in charter schools exceeds two percent of the
total general fund expenditures of such district in the year two years prior to the base year.

(d) For purposes of this subdivision the number of pupils enrolled in a charter school shall not include
pupils enrolled in a charter school for which the charter was approved by a charter entity contained in paragraph a of
subdivision three of section twenty-eight hundred fifty-one of this chapter.

Public School District Payments to Charter Schools (N.Y. Comp. Codes & Regs. Title 8, § 119.1(a), (b))

In the event of the failure of a school district to make payments to a charter school as required by section
2856 of the Education Law, the commissioner shall certify the amount of the unpaid obligation to the comptroller to
be deducted from any State aid payments which become due to such school district. The amount of each school
district's obligation shall be calculated in accordance with this section.

For the purposes of this section:

(a) Legally absent means to be absent for: personal illness, illness or death in the family, impassable
roads or weather, religious observance, quarantine, required court appearances, attendance at health clinics,
approved college visits, military obligations, disciplinary detention of an incarcerated youth, or for such other
reasons as may be approved by the commissioner.

(b) Period of enrollment means that period commencing on the first day of the school year that a pupil
is enrolled in and is physically present at, or legally absent from, an educational program or service of a charter
school and ending on the last day of the school year that such pupil is so enrolled and physically present at, or
legally absent from, such program or service.
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(c) Enrollment for each charter school student shall mean the quotient, calculated to three decimals
without rounding, obtained when the total number of weeks of the period of enrollment of such student is divided by
the total number of weeks in the full school year of the educational program or service of the charter school. For the
purposes of this section, three consecutive days of enrollment within the same week and within the same month shall
be the equivalent of one week of enrollment, provided that no more than four weeks of enrollment may be counted
in any calendar month.

(d) Levels of service shall mean the categories of programs for students with disabilities specified in
section 3602(19)(b)(1)-(4) of the Education Law.

(e) Approved operating expense shall mean the amount calculated pursuant to section 3602(11) of the
Education Law.

(f) Expense per pupil shall mean the amount calculated pursuant to section 3602(1)(f) of the
Education Law for the school district using year prior to the base year expenditures and pupils, as established by the
commissioner based on the electronic data file prepared by the commissioner on May 15th of the base year pursuant
to section 305(21)(b) of the Education Law. Where the expense per pupil is not available for a school district, the
expense per pupil shall be deemed to be the average expense per pupil for the county in which the school district is
located.

(g) Adjusted expense per pupil shall be the district's expense per pupil increased by the percent
change in the State total approved operating expense calculated pursuant to section 3602(11) of the Education Law
from two years prior to the base year to the base year, as established by the commissioner based on the electronic
data file prepared by the commissioner on May 15th of the base year pursuant to section 305(21)(b) of the Education
Law.

(h) State aid attributable to a student with a disability attending a charter school shall mean the sum of
excess cost aid payable to a public school district pursuant to section 3602(19)(4) of the Education Law based on the
resident weighted enrollment in the charter school of pupils with disabilities receiving special services or programs
provided directly or indirectly by the charter school in the current school year and any apportionment payable to
such public school district pursuant to paragraph 5 of such subdivision 19 of the Education Law that is based on the
cost of special services or programs provided directly or indirectly by the charter school to such pupil in the current
school year. Excess cost aid for the purposes of this section shall equal the product of excess cost aid per pupil
calculated pursuant to section 3602(19)(3) of the Education Law, the proportion of the weighting attributable to the
student's level of service provided directly or indirectly by the charter school pursuant to section 3602(19)(b)(1)-(4)
of the Education Law, and the student's enrollment in such charter school in the current school year.

(i) Federal aid attributable to a student with a disability attending a charter school, and receiving
special education services or programs provided directly or indirectly by the charter school, shall mean:

(i) for the first year of operation of the charter school, the allocation that would be
attributable to the charter school pursuant to 20 U.S.C. 1411 and 1419 (United States Code, 1994 edition,
Supplement III, Volume 2; Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington,
DC 20402-9328; 1998 - available at the Office of Vocational and Educational Services for Individuals with
Disabilities, Room 1624, One Commerce Plaza, Albany, NY 12234) for a pupil who is identified as a
student with a disability, as such term is defined in section 200.1 of this Title, who is included in a report to
the commissioner of pupils so identified as of December 1st of the current school year, or for such other
pupil count as specified by the Federal government for the current school year, provided that the enrollment
of such students in the charter school during the current school year shall be used for this purpose until such
report, or a report of such other pupil count, has been received by the commissioner; and

(ii) for the second year of operation of the charter school and thereafter, the allocation that
would be attributable to the charter school pursuant to 20 U.S.C. 1411 and 1419 (United States Code, 1994
edition, Supplement III, Volume 2; Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office,
Washington, DC 20402-9328; 1998 - available at the Office of Vocational and Educational Services for
Individuals with Disabilities, Room 1624, One Commerce Plaza, Albany, NY 12234) for a pupil who is
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identified as a student with a disability, as such term is defined in section 200.1 of this Title, who is
included in a report to the commissioner of pupils so identified as of December 1st of the base year, or for
such other pupil count as specified by the Federal government.

Financial Obligations of Charter Schools, Public School Districts and Education Department (N.Y. Comp.
Codes & Regs. Title 8, § 119.1(c)-(e)

Charter school obligations:

(a) No later than 30 days prior to the first business day of July, September, November, January,
March and May, each charter school shall report to each public school district with resident pupils attending the
charter school and to the department an updated estimate of the enrollment of students attending the charter school
in the current school year who are residents of such public school district and any reduced amounts per pupil that
shall be payable to the charter school for such students pursuant to subdivision one of section 2856 of the Education
Law that has been established pursuant to an agreement between the charter school and the charter school entity as
set forth in the charter. For each student with a disability attending such charter school, such report shall also
indicate the level of special programs or services to be provided directly or indirectly to such student by the charter
school and an estimated annual cost to be incurred by the charter school in providing such special programs or
services.

(b) On or before the last day of July, each charter school shall provide a final report of actual
enrollment to the department and to each school district with resident pupils attending the charter school in the prior
school year. For each student with a disability attending such charter school, such report shall also indicate the level
of special programs or services actually provided directly or indirectly to such student by the charter school and the
annual cost incurred by the charter school in providing such special programs or services.

(c) In the event of the failure of a school district to fulfill the financial obligation required by section
2856 of the Education Law equal to the amounts calculated pursuant to this section, the charter school shall notify
the commissioner no later than May 31st of the school year in which the payments were due.

Public school district of residence obligations:

(a) No later than the first business day of July, September, November, January, March and May of the
current school year, each public school district with resident pupils attending a charter school shall pay directly to
such charter school the appropriate payment amounts as specified in subdivision one of section 2856 of the
Education Law that are attributable to the enrollment of such pupils as reported to the public school district by the
charter school no later than 30 days prior to each such payment date.

(b) The total amount of payments due and payable to a charter school for the current school year by a
public school district shall be paid as follows:

(i) on or before the first business day of July, one sixth of the total amount due, as adjusted
for any supplemental payments due or overpayments to be recovered for the prior school year;

(ii) on or before the first business day of September, two sixths of the total amount due, as
adjusted for any supplemental payments due or overpayments to be recovered for the prior school year,
minus any payments made before such date pursuant to subparagraph (i) of this paragraph;

(iii) on or before the first business day of November, three sixths of the total amount due, as
adjusted for any supplemental payments due on overpayments to be recovered for the prior school year,
minus any payments made before such date pursuant to subparagraphs (i) and (ii) of this paragraph;

(iv) on or before the first business day of January, four sixths of the total amount due, as
adjusted for any supplemental payments due or overpayments to be recovered for the prior school year,
minus any payments made before such date pursuant to subparagraphs (i), (ii) and (iii) of this paragraph;
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(v) on or before the first business day of March, five sixths of the total amount due, as
adjusted for any supplemental payments due or overpayments to be recovered for the prior school year,
minus any payments made before such date pursuant to subparagraphs (i), (ii), (iii) and (iv) of this
paragraph; and

(vi) on or before the first business day of May, the total amount due, as adjusted for any
supplemental payments due or overpayments to be recovered for the prior school year, minus any payments
made before such date pursuant to subparagraphs (i), (ii), (iii), (iv) and (v) of this paragraph.

(c) The school district financial obligation per resident student enrolled in a charter school shall equal
the sum of:

(i) the product of the school district's adjusted expense per pupil and the current year
enrollment of the pupil in the charter school as defined in paragraph b(3) of this section; and

(ii) the amounts of State and Federal aid, if any, that may be attributable to such pupil as
defined in paragraphs (b)(8) and (9) of this section, or the amount established pursuant to an agreement
between the charter school and the charter entity as set forth in the charter.

(d) The total annual obligation due to a charter school by a public school district shall be the sum of
the annual financial obligations for all resident students enrolled at any time during the current school year in the
charter school.

(e) School districts shall include the enrollment of resident students attending charter schools in the
enrollment, attendance and, if applicable, count of students with disabilities reported to the department for the
purposes of claiming State aid.

Department obligations:

(a) On or before the first day of June of each year, or as soon as practicable upon the receipt of
Federal notice of the estimated State appropriation for the next school year, the commissioner shall notify all school
districts and all charter schools of the adjusted expense per pupil of each public school district and the estimated per
pupil allocation under part B of the Federal Individuals with Disabilities Education Act to be used in the calculation
of payments due to charter schools in next school year. Notice of final Federal per pupil allocation will be issued as
soon as practicable upon the State's receipt of the notice of final allocation from the Federal government.

(b) In the event of the failure of a school district to fulfill the financial obligation required by section
2956 of the Education Law equal to the amounts calculated pursuant to this section, upon notification by the charter
school, the commissioner shall certify the amounts of the unpaid obligations to the comptroller to be deducted from
State aid due the school district and paid to the applicable charter schools.
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APPENDIX B

THE BORROWER

General

Academy Charter School (the “Borrower” or “School”) is a New York education corporation incorporated by the
Board of Regents of the University of the State of New York (the “Board of Regents”) under Article 56 of the New
York Education Law. The Borrower was incorporated on February 23, 2009 for the purpose of operating a charter
school. The Borrower is an organization described under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code”) which is exempt from federal income taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code (except with
respect to “unrelated business taxable income” within the meaning of Section 512(a) of the Code) and (b) which is
not a “private foundation” as defined in Section 509(a) of the Code. The Borrower's bylaws provide that the
Borrower is governed and controlled by a board of trustees (the “Board”). See “Governance and Management”
below.

The Borrower began operating grades K-2 in the 2009-10 school year with 165 students, residing primarily in
twelve school districts in Nassau County, New York- the largest of which is the Hempstead School District. For the
2013-14 school year, there were twelve public schools serving students in the Hempstead School District that serves
the Village of Hempstead within the Town of Hempstead. Of these schools, seven served at least one or more
grades of grades K-6, with the Borrower being one of the only two charter schools in the Hempstead School District.
In the 2010-11 school year the Borrower added an additional first grade class as well as grade three for a total
enrollment of 250 students and had a wait list of 60 students. In the 2011-12 school year the Borrower added a
second grade class, a third grade class and grade four, for a total enrollment of 342 students and had a wait list of
201 students. In the 2012-13 school year, the Borrower added grade five for a total enrollment of 414 students and
had a wait list of 316 students. In the 2013-14 school year the Borrower added an additional fourth grade class and
grade six for a current total enrollment of 484 students and currently has a wait list of 322 students. As part of its
current expansion plan to the middle school facility, the Borrower expects to add grade seven in the 2014-15 school
year and grade eight in the 2015-16 school year for a total expected billable enrollment of 589 and 689, respectively.

The Borrower initially received its charter contract (the “Charter”) from the Board of Regents for and on behalf of
the Education Department of the State on February 23, 2009; the Charter is currently effective through February 22,
2014. The Borrower applied for a revision to the Charter to include grade six and to expand maximum allowable
enrollment. The application for the Charter revision was approved on April 15, 2013. Pursuant to the Charter
revision, the Borrower commenced operation of grade six with the 2013-14 school year. The Borrower applied for
renewal of the Charter on August 15, 2013 and its application is pending. It is expected that the approval of the
renewal of the Charter will be received no later than February 1, 2014. Based upon the expected renewal of the
Charter the Borrower will have the authority to operate grades seven and eight.

Mission Statement

The Borrower offers an exceptional interdisciplinary curricula in a technology-rich environment that challenges
students to explore connections across subjects and use experiential learning to bridge the gaps between theory and
practice. In addition to learning core subjects, its students benefit from high expectations in physical education and
the arts. The Borrower's focus on character development and community service cultivates a student body poised to
be active, engaged and responsible members of the community. The Borrower employs a committed staff whose
teaching and high academic and behavioral expectations promote the excellence the community's children can
achieve. The Borrower expects that students will graduate from the School with the content mastery and life skills
needed to move into the top five percent of their middle and high school classes. Teachers facilitate engaging
activities that drive success for students at every skill level. Technology and the arts will be tools that are used
across the curricula.
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Philosophy / Vision

The fundamental belief at the School is that all children can learn. All children have the right to attend schools in
which they can progress and learn, and have a real opportunity to learn equally rigorous content. The Borrower
holds itself accountable to the same standards as those of the highest performing schools in New York. Ultimately,
the Borrower expects to see children engaged in challenging work, such as conducting experiments for deep
understanding, exploring cultures and histories using primary documents, engaging in debates of classical literature,
analyzing great works of art, and appreciating musical compositions, among others. The Borrower's goal is for
every child to become a critical thinker and life-long learner.

Curricula

The Borrower's instructional program is specifically designed to meet all of the New York State Common Core
Standards, as well as New York State Standards for Science and Social Studies. It is the Borrower's goal to meet
and exceed student performance and assessment standards in students. Instruction is age/grade appropriate with a
strong emphasis on the development of students' social and academic skills through character building activities.
The curricula also offers a strong emphasis on Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM).

The Borrower offers an interdisciplinary curricula that addresses the academic needs of all students. The Borrower's
curricula is research-based in reading, writing, mathematics, social studies and science. Teachers use state of the art
SMART technology (an interactive white board and related components that enhances instruction and learning) in
all subject areas to enhance the core curricula and to provide hands on and real life experiences for the students.
Each classroom is equipped with computers. Computer-based instructional programs are used to provide
intervention and enrichment opportunities for students. There is strong emphasis placed on writing in all subject
areas.

The instructional program caters to the individual academic needs of each child. The use of data through ongoing
assessments provides real time information for teachers to inform instruction. The information that is gathered is
used to provide academic intervention services for struggling students as well as enrichment and challenging
activities for all students.

The Borrower utilizes a combination of classroom teachers for instruction and content specialists to deliver a
departmentalized instructional approach. The core subjects are supplemented by a rich specials program, that
involves daily instruction in performing arts and music. In addition, students benefit from quality instruction in
physical education and health. Students receive instruction in character education daily with the intent of making
them good citizens. Students in all grades are expected to complete an annual service learning project.

The Borrower’s students are required to participate in a weekly 45 minute class that will develop the school’s core
virtues, as well as, participate in discussions on topics such as, but not limited to, maintaining integrity on social
media, peer pressure, anti-bullying, cyber bulling, study skills, self-esteem, building communication skills and
proper etiquette in social settings.

The Borrower utilizes a low teacher student ratio, which provides ample opportunity for students to receive
instruction in small groups or individually. Every classroom is staffed by a licensed teacher and a licensed associate
teacher resulting in a 13:1 student to teacher ratio. Many of the associate teachers have teaching degrees, which
improves the overall quality of the educational experience of the students and creates a career ladder at the school.

Additionally, intervention teachers provide ongoing instructional support for students. The intervention program is a
combination of a push-in and pull-out program. There is an 8:1 student teacher ratio when intervention teachers go
into classrooms at designated times during the school day.
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Programs

Core Knowledge

The Borrower's core knowledge program is a proprietary, standards-based curricula model based on the Core
Knowledge sequence which the Borrower uses to teach history, science, geography, literature and fine arts.
Students follow the sequence of instruction by themes from September to June. The core knowledge program is also
based on knowledge of cultural diversity, so that students celebrate and understand each other's heritage. Students
have many opportunities to sing, dance, listen to music, play, act, read and write poetry, draw, paint, and create arts
and craft projects.

Creative Thematic Enrichment

The Borrower uses creative thematic enrichment to organize its curricula into thematic units that combine reading,
math, art, dance, music, computer skills, and field trips into enjoyable and informative lessons.

Balanced Literacy/Balanced Math

The Borrower’s balanced literacy program uses authentic literature, guided reading, independent reading, shared
inquiry, author studies, genre studies, novel studies and the writing process. The Borrower uses research proven best
practices to support New York State Common Core Standards (“CCSS”) using authentic text. Balanced math
incorporates explicit vocabulary instruction with a focus on communication and literacy in the content area through
articulation and evaluation of mathematical processes. Balanced math also incorporates direct instruction and
practice of skills with investigations and exploration. The students engage in writing and evaluating peer writing in
math.

The New York State Board of Regents implemented the CCSS in New York in 2010. The CCSS are represented in
Mathematics, English Language Arts & Literacy, History/Social Studies, Science, and Technical Subjects. This
includes Special Education an English Language Learners. The CCSS are designed to reflect the rigor and
instructional practices that students will need to take them through college and prepare them to compete on a global
scale. The adjustment in educational implementation is significant. For example, compared to the former New York
state learning standards, the following is noted:

In English Language Arts:
� Literacy must be reflected across the content area
� A clear emphasis on reading informational text.
� Integration of research skills across the content areas and grade levels
� Progressive development in the complexity of student reading materials

In Math:
� Aligned with methodology of high achieving countries
� Promote conceptual understanding and procedural fluency
� Additional time to teach and reinforce core concepts

Hands-On Science & Technology

The Borrower’s current Science program is a multidisciplinary sensory experience where students learn through a
kinesthetic learning style. Lab and other activities are constructed to engage students’ senses in discovery through a
rigorous, Common Core aligned curricula. This multidisciplinary approach incorporates a strong vocabulary/English
Language Arts component through sequencing and evaluating.

Beginning in the 2014-15 school year the Borrower will utilize a living environment science curricula for its seventh
and eighth grade class. This hands-on curricula will focus on problem solving, non-fiction text and interactive
learning experiences. The living environment curricula teaches the fundamentals of science while encouraging
exploration and analysis.
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Character Education

Character Education is an integral part of the School's curricula. Charter Education is taught each morning as part of
the morning meeting in each classroom. At that time, students recite the school's creed, participate in patriotic
activities and discuss the character trait of the month. In addition, Character Education is taught for two periods
every Friday afternoon. The Wise Words Program is utilized to help students develop self-esteem, an optimistic
attitude and positive character traits. Historical figures from diverse cultures and characters from great literature
serve as archetypes for students to emulate. The main goal of the program is to help students develop moral and
civic behavior. A mentoring program is part of the Academy's Character program. Currently, teachers serve as
mentors for students providing them with a support system during this critical stage of their academic development.
Students are serving as mentors for their peers providing academic and social support. Service Learning is another
integral part of the Academy's overall curricula with students engaged in meaningful service throughout the
community of Hempstead. At the School, students are taught that it is their duty to learn today and lead and serve in
the future.

Special Sessions/Extracurricular Activities

The Borrower utilizes instructional best practices which includes an extended school day (8am to 4pm). Students are
given additional instructional time through the After School program, Saturday Academy and Winter/Spring break
intersession programs. The various additional instructional times focus on small group instruction driven by data
received from periodic assessments.

In addition to the academic strengths of the Borrower’s program, students are exposed to several extra-curricular
opportunities. These include but are not limited to clubs, civic capacity, character education, leadership and
mentoring programs. The clubs are designed to enhance the learning experience, promote an interdisciplinary
approach and compliment the academic rigor that students are exposed to. The students are provided several options
for clubs, which include the popular Forensics club. This program is hosted in collaboration with the Hempstead
Police Department and the Police Athletic League. Students are exposed to scientific research, problem solving and
community awareness. The program is assessment based, with exams and study materials. The science of forensics
is related to crime scene investigations; however, the program has an interdisciplinary approach that involves
English Language Arts, Math, and Science. Students are selected from 5th and 6th grade and are required to
maintain academic excellence to continue with the program. Class trips and mock investigations using the latest
technology are a part of the program as well. Students receive certifications of acknowledgement at the end of the
program. To promote civic capacity, students visit the assisted living facility in Hempstead to partner with residents
on projects such as arts and crafts and seasonal events such as performing during the holiday seasons. The Borrower
has also established several collegiate partnerships that include Adelphi University, SUNY Old Westbury and
Hofstra University.

Beginning in the 2014-15 school year the Borrower will implement a robotics program, which is designed to
incorporate science, technology, mathematics and English Language Arts. The program will promote CCSS rigor
and align the core subject areas in researched based and result oriented project designs that display student creativity
and talent. This program is assessment based and measurable and designed to promote student competition.

Partnerships

The School has established partnerships with several institutions since its inception. For example, Winthrop
Pediatric Associates provides annual physical examinations to students without medical insurance. Winthrop
Pediatric Associates does not charge the students, their parents or the School for their services. The Hy Weinberg
Center for Communication Disorders at Adelphi University provides students at the School with screenings for
speech, language and hearing; testing for auditory processing disorders; speech-language therapy; and professional
development for School staff and workshops for students' families, all without charge. Molloy College School of
Nursing in collaboration with Colgate-Bright Smiles provides free dental screenings for students. The Borrower
engages the services of Access 7 that is a provider of licensed therapists who provide services to special need
students. Access 7 provides the School with licensed occupational therapists, physical therapists, speech-language
pathologists, applied behavioral analysis, social workers, psychologists, reading and special education instruction
and tutors and counselors. Access 7 is a fee for service contract provider. The Borrower also engages the services
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of the Center for Social and Emotional Education at Columbia University (CSEE). CSEE provides professional
development to the educational staff at the School. CSEE consultants provide continuous coaching to teachers in
the classroom setting or act as co-teachers in the classrooms. CSEE is a fee for service contract provider. The
Borrower is affiliated with both the Girl Scouts of Nassau County and the Boy Scouts of America to provide
students with values to guide their actions and provide the foundation for sound decision-making which is the
hallmark of these historic organizations. Community elected officials such as Nassau County Legislators Roger H.
Corbin and Kevan Abrahams have publically supported the vision and goals of the School.

Project

The Borrower will use the proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds for the following purposes: (A) (i) the acquisition of
an existing approximately 1.13 acre parcel of land at 159 North Franklin Street, Village of Hempstead, Town of
Hempstead, New York (further identified as Section 34, Block 291, Lot 86) (the “Land”), (ii) the expansion of an
existing approximately 39,004 square foot four-story building including the construction, renovation and selective
demolition to non-structural building components including, but not limited to, walls, ceilings, miscellaneous piping,
duct work, removal and replacement of the HVAC systems, metal framing and drywall work to create elevator lobby
areas, corridors and classroom at each floor level, façade modifications to existing east elevation of existing
building, upgrading and alteration of the plumbing, sprinkler and fire alarm systems, modifications of the 2nd – 4th
floor ceiling assemblies into a one hour fire rated assembly, reinforcing of existing floor slabs on floors 2 - 4 to
increase structural capacity in the new corridor and lobby areas, and removal of all interior walls and construction of
new classrooms and associated offices and support areas (collectively, the “Middle School Improvements”), (iii) the
construction and equipping of a new approximately 17,000 square foot building on the Land to include an
approximately 9,000 square foot gymnasium at ground level and an approximately 8,000 square foot full basement
area with locker rooms, cafeteria, warming kitchen and associated storage uses (collectively, the “Gymnasium
Building”; and, together with the Land and the Middle School Improvements, (the “Project” or “New Facility”) (the
resulting square footage of the Middle School Improvements together with the Gymnasium Building total
approximately 56,000 square feet), all for the purpose of providing educational opportunities to middle school
children in the Town of Hempstead and surrounding areas; (B) paying capitalized interest on the Series 2013 Bonds
during the construction period; (C) funding a debt service reserve, if required, for the Series 2013 Bonds, and (D)
paying certain costs of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds.

The Current Facility

A portion of the proceeds of the Issuer’s Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds (The Academy Charter School
Project), Series 2011A, originally issued in the aggregate principal amount of $10,505,000 and Taxable Education
Revenue Bonds (The Academy Charter School Project), Series 2011B in the aggregate principal amount of
$235,000 (collectively, the “Series 2011 Bonds”) was used to construct, renovate and equip an approximately
34,540 square foot two-story building located at 117 North Franklin Street, Hempstead, New York (the “Current
School Facility”). The Borrower currently operates in the Current School Facility that has reached its capacity with
the Borrower’s current billable enrollment of 484 students and cannot accommodate the Borrower’s space needs for
its middle school under its current expansion plan.

The New Site and the New Facility

The Borrower is in the process of undertaking an expansion plan, whereby it intends to increase its enrollment by
approximately 300 students over the next several school years. The Current School Facility has reached its capacity
with the Borrower's current billable enrollment of 484 students and cannot accommodate the Borrower's space needs
under this expansion plan.

Pursuant to its recent Charter revision approved on April 15, 2013, the Borrower commenced operation of grade six
with the 2013-14 school year. The Borrower applied for renewal of the Charter on August 15, 2013 and its
application is pending. Based upon the expected renewal of the Charter the Borrower will have the authority to
operate grades seven and eight.
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The Borrower expects that the New Facility will house its fifth, sixth, seventh and eighth grades. The New Facility
will house approximately 26 classrooms, a science lab, an auditorium, an art room, a gymnasium, a mathematics lab,
intervention rooms, a multimedia room, science lab and testing room.

Project Design Construction and Renovation

Construction Contract – Improvements and Equipment

The Borrower has engaged Combined Resources Consulting and Design, Inc., East Meadow, New York (“CRCD”)
to provide architectural and engineering services with respect to the construction, renovation and equipping of the
Project. The Borrower has obtained all necessary planning board, zoning board and related approvals and permits
for the construction, renovation and equipping of the Project. In addition, CRCD prepared plans and specifications
for the Project, which were submitted to and approved by the Village of Hempstead Department of Buildings as
evidenced by a building permit, issued on December 17, 2013.

With respect to the construction, renovation and equipping of the Project, the Borrower has entered into an
agreement (the “Construction Contract”) with DECA Development II, Inc. (the “Contractor”). The fixed stipulated
and guaranteed price for the construction of the Project set forth in the Construction Contract is $6,974,807.50,
including certain Contractor Supplied FF&E, subject to change order provisions under the Construction Contract.

The Construction Contract provides that the date of substantial completion of the Project is no later than July 15,
2014, and the Borrower expects to operate the Project beginning with the 2014/2015 school year. The Borrower
expects to cover construction contingencies from value engineering changes. The Borrower expects that such value
engineering changes, if necessary, will not delay the completion of the Project, will not compromise the Borrower's
ability to timely commence operations at the Project and will not adversely affect the character of the Project as a
fully functional middle school sufficient to accommodate up to 300 students.

Project Monitoring

The construction and renovation of the Project is anticipated to be administered as follows: Pursuant to an
Architecture Agreement between the Borrower and CRCD (the “Architecture Agreement”), CRCD, as the architect
for the Project, shall review all requisitions for progress payments submitted by all contractors and subcontractors.
CRCD shall certify its approval that the quantity of work completed is accurate and that the quality of the
contractor's/subcontractor's work has been performed in substantial compliance with the contract documents.

Pursuant to a Paymaster and Representative Agreement (the “Paymaster Agreement”), the Borrower has retained
Mr. Fredric Pocci, PE, an independent construction consultant (the “Paymaster”), to act on behalf of the Borrower
and to independently approve all payments to the general contractor and all subcontractors after simultaneous
exchange of all lien waivers. Pursuant to the Paymaster Agreement, prior to release of any payment, the Paymaster
shall verify that all contractors, subcontractors, material suppliers or laborers have provided lien waivers for all
payments already made and conditional lien waivers for any current payment to be made. If the Paymaster approves
a requisition, the Paymaster shall forward the requisition to CRCD and the Borrower for their approval. Upon
approval of CRCD and the Borrower, the Paymaster shall forward the approved requisition to the Trustee to
effectuate such payment to the contractor, subcontractor, material supplier or laborer in accordance with the
approved requisition from the appropriate fund pursuant to the Indenture. No payment shall be made without the
written approval of the Paymaster, CRCD and the Borrower. Under the Paymaster Agreement, the Paymaster shall
also serve as the owner's representative, on behalf of the Borrower, and shall assist in the coordination and
implementation of the Project on behalf of the Borrower by monitoring the construction progress, compliance with
the construction contract documents prepared by CRCD, monitoring the construction budget and schedule and shall
assist in value engineering decisions to assist in cost control.

The Paymaster has more than 37 years of experience in management, engineering, construction and renovation and
has served as Paymaster and Executive Director for the North Hudson Sewer Authority for more than 21 years and
Assistant Commissioner of Operations for the New York City Department of Buildings (NYCDOB) responsible for
the NYCDOB field inspectors and plan examiners. The Paymaster has acted in an identical capacity in connection
with the renovation of the Current School Facility.
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See “RISK FACTORS - Construction Costs and Completion of Construction” and “APPENDIX B – THE
BORROWER – Project Design Construction and Renovation.” A complete copy of the Construction Contract,
Architecture Contract, Paymaster and Representative Agreement and the qualifications of the Paymaster is available
upon request as provided under “MISCELLANEOUS – Additional Information” above.

TABLE B-1: ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS
Project Amount

Acquisition of Facility $2,400,000
Design Construction and Renovation of Facility 7,508,000
Borrower Supplied FF&E 900,000

Total Estimated Project Costs $10,808,000

A complete preliminary project list for the Project is available upon request as provided under “MISCELLANEOUS
– Additional Information” above.

Environmental Assessment

Phase I Report

The Borrower engaged Fenley & Nicol Environmental (“Fenley & Nicol”) to assess the environmental status of the
property. Under the contract of sale with respect to the Facility, the seller agreed to deliver the Facility
“environmentally clean”. Fenley & Nicol performed a Phase I Environmental Assessment. The Phase I Report is
available as described under “MISCELLANEOUS – Additional Information” above. The Phase I Report
recommends that the drywells observed in the parking lot be tested to ensure that they have not been impacted by
past uses of the property. Based upon discussion between Fenley and Nicol and the design engineer, the current
drywell drainage system is inadequate and will be upgraded during building renovations. The modification and
upgrading of the existing drywell system will include all required testing and will be completed in accordance with
all Federal, State and local rules and regulations. There are no other items of concern identified in the Phase I
Report that would negatively impact the current or proposed usage of the property. All recommendations set forth in
the Phase I Report will be undertaken as part of the scope of work outlined in the Construction Contract.

Charter

General

The New York State Education Law provides for the creation of charter schools to provide opportunities for
teachers, parents, and community members, and to establish and maintain schools that operate independently of
existing schools and school districts in order to: (i) improve student learning and achievement; (ii) increase learning
opportunities for all students, with special emphasis on expanded learning experiences for students who are at-risk
of academic failure; (iii) encourage the use of different and innovative teaching methods; (iii) create new
professional opportunities for teachers, school administrators and other school personnel; (iv) provide parents and
students with expanded choices in the types of educational opportunities that are available within the public school
system; and (v) provide schools with a method to change from rule-based to performance-based accountability
systems by holding charter schools accountable for meeting measurable student achievement results. See generally
“APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF NEW YORK CHARTER SCHOOL LAW.”

The Borrower operates pursuant to a charter. A charter governs such matters as the recipient's authority to operate,
student performance, financial management, and governance and operations. Pursuant to New York State Education
Law, the term of a proposed charter cannot exceed five years. The Borrower received its charter contract (the
“Charter”) on February 23, 2009 from the Board of Regents for and on behalf of the Education Department of the
State. The Charter is currently effective through February 22, 2014 and can be renewed or extended after its term by
the Board of Regents pursuant to applicable law. Although the stated term of the Charter expires approximately
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three months prior to the completion of the 2013-14 school year, the Borrower has applied for renewal and its
application is currently pending. The Borrower anticipates that its Charter will be renewed no later than by February
1, 2014 to ensure uninterrupted operation of the Borrower through the end of the 2013-14 school year and beyond. A
complete copy of the Charter is available upon request as described under “MISCELLANEOUS – Additional
Information” above.

Charter Renewal

Under the terms of the New York State Education Law, charters may be renewed, upon application for renewal, for
a term of up to five years. In connection with charter renewal, New York State Education Law requires applicants
to submit:

(i) A report of progress in achieving the educational objectives set forth in the charter.

(ii) A detailed financial statement that discloses the cost of administration, instruction and other spending
categories for the charter school that will allow a comparison of such costs to other schools, both public and private.

(iii) Copies of each of the annual reports of the charter school required by the Charter Schools Article of the
New York State Education Law, including charter school report cards and certified financial statements.

(iv) Indications of parent and student satisfaction.

In the case of the Borrower, its Charter also requires that a renewal application contain such other material and
information as is required by the Board of Regents.

The New York Education Law requires that charter renewal applications be submitted to the charter entity no later
than six months prior to the expiration of the Charter; provided, however, that the charter entity may waive the
deadline for good cause shown. The Borrower's Charter provides that no later than the first of July in the year prior
to expiration of the Charter, the Borrower may provide the Board of Regents with an application to renew the
Charter. When a charter entity determines not to renew a charter it may seek to have operations at the charter school
cease as of the time of the non-renewal determination, meaning, as a practical matter, in some cases a charter
schools may cease operations a semester earlier than the stated term of the non-renewed charter would otherwise
allow.

Throughout the Borrower's initial five-year charter, the Borrower's authorizer, the State University of New York's
Charter Schools Institute, requires accountability information to ensure that the Borrower is in compliance with the
terms of its charter. This information, in addition to the renewal process described below, is analyzed by
representatives from the Charter Schools Institute and shared with the State University of New York's Board of
Trustees (the board that ultimately determines if the Borrower is granted a renewal). Compliance information is
provided to the Charter Schools Institute in the following ways: the submission of an annual report and annual
compliance visits. The annual report that is submitted at the end of every school year provides information about
the school's academic and fiscal standing, as well as operational information (i.e., student and teacher retention,
percentage of special education students, testing data etc.) Representatives from the Charter Schools Institute
conduct compliance visits at least once every school year. These visits are to ensure the Charter Schools Institute
that the Borrower is operating within the terms of its charter.

The Charter Schools Institute was created by the State University of New York to administer their responsibilities
under the Charter Schools Act of 1998, including the review of applications, assisting in the development of charter
school accountability plans, and considering charters for renewal. The Charter Schools Institute's staff has become
recognized as a national leader in the public charter school movement, providing extensive experience in charter
schools and all aspects of public education, including curricula, school operations, accountability, fiscal oversight
and program development.

The Board of Trustees of the State University of New York, jointly with the Board of Regents, are required to
provide oversight sufficient to ensure that each charter school that State University of New York Trustees have
authorized is in compliance with applicable law and the terms of its charter. The Charter Schools Institute, together
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with the State Education Department (on behalf of the Board of Regents), oversees compliance through the
monitoring plans contained in each school's charter as well as through other key methods designed to ensure
accountability while still respecting a school's autonomy. Among other roles, the Institute recommends for charter
approval only those schools that have a high likelihood of significantly improving student achievement, especially
for students at risk of academic failure; provides ongoing oversight of schools that centers on schools' progress in
improving student achievement, while also reviewing their organizational and fiscal performance.

The Borrower in collaboration with its management partner Victory submitted a renewal application to the State
University of New York’s Charter Schools Institute in August 2013. The application required that the Borrower
submit information regarding its academic success, ability to operate within the confines of its budget, and data that
shows that the Borrower has been able to sustain students and employees during the term of the Borrower's initial
five-year charter. The process involves submitting a completed renewal application; presenting at the Borrower's
community school district's monthly board meeting; responding to requests for amendments of the renewal
application from the Charter Schools Institute; and hosting representatives from the Charter Schools Institute for an
inspection of the Borrower's facility.

The Charter Schools Institute is currently reviewing information from the Borrower’s renewal application and
inspection, as well as the material that was submitted throughout the Borrower's initial charter, and will present their
findings to the State University of New York's Board of Trustees.

The Charter Schools Institute issued a letter of good standing for the Borrower, dated December 16, 2013. The good
standing letter provides as follows:

(a) The State University of New York Trustees have not placed the Borrower on probation
pursuant to Education Law subdivision 2855(3), or on corrective action pursuant to its Charter Agreement
with the State University of New York Trustees. In addition, the State University of New York Trustees are
not in the process of revoking the Borrower’s charter pursuant to section 2855 of the Education Law.

(b) The Charter Schools Institute’s opinion of the Borrower is that as of the date of the Letter
of Good Standing, the Borrower is a legally formed New York not-for-profit education corporation in good
standing, with all of the rights, powers and obligations of any other duly incorporated New York charter
school and is permitted to instruct students in the grades and numbers set forth in its charter agreement.

(c) On October 28, 2013, the Charter Schools Institute acting on behalf of the State
University of New York Trustees, approved and extension of the Borrower’s charter through July 31, 2014,
which the Charter Schools Institute is in the process of sending to the Board of Regents. The Charter
Schools Institute expects that this extension will be approved by operation of law.

(d) The Borrower has submitted an application to State University of New York to renew its
charter for a full term of five years commencing on August 1, 2014, which application the Charter Schools
Institute is currently reviewing. At this time, there is no indication that the Charter Schools Institute would
recommend non-renewal for the Borrower, and several indicators that the Charter Schools Institute would
make a positive renewal recommendation.

(e) Finally, the State University of New York's Board of Trustees will vote on the approval
of the Borrower's renewal application. Typically, the vote is conducted at a board meeting held in the
winter months prior to the expiration of the Borrower’s charter.

Charter Revocation

A charter may be terminated by the charter entity upon any of the following statutory grounds:

(i) If the charter school's outcome on student assessment measures adopted by the Board of Regents falls
below the level that would allow the Commissioner of Education to revoke the registration of another public school,
and student achievement on such measures has not shown improvement over the preceding three school years:
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(ii) Serious violations of law;

(iii) Material and substantial violation of the charter, including fiscal mismanagement; or

(iv) If the New York Public Employment Relations Board makes a determination that the charter school
demonstrates a practice and pattern of egregious and intentional violations of subdivision one of § 209-A of the New
York Civil Service Law involving interference with or discrimination against employee rights under article fourteen
of the New York Civil Service Law.

In addition to the statutory revocation provisions, the Borrower's Charter provides that the it may be terminated and
revoked by mutual agreement of the parties.

The New York State Education Law provides that notice of intent to revoke a charter must be provided to the board
of trustees of a charter school at least 30 days prior to the effective date of the proposed revocation. Such notice
must include a statement of reasons for the proposed revocation. The charter school must be given at least 30 days
to correct the problems associated with the proposed revocation. Prior to revocation of the charter, a charter school
must be provided an opportunity to be heard, consistent with the requirements of due process. Upon the termination
of a charter, the charter school is required to proceed with dissolution pursuant to the procedures of the charter and
direction of the charter entity and the Board of Regents.

In addition, the charter entity or the Board of Regents may place a charter school falling within the provisions of (i)
through (iv) above on probationary status to allow the implementation of a remedial action plan. The failure of a
charter school to comply with the terms and conditions of a remedial action plan may result in summary revocation
of the school's charter. For more information, see “APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF
NEW YORK CHARTER SCHOOL LAW – Causes for Revocation or Termination.”

Services Provider

Management Agreement

General

The Borrower contracts with Victory for the provision of services including the management of educational services
in all grades offered, budgeting and financial management services, and certain other support functions. The
Borrower and Victory entered into a Management Agreement, dated June 30, 2009, which was amended by a First
Amendment to Management Agreement, dated July 1, 2010 (collectively, the “Management Agreement”). Victory
has provided such services to the Borrower since the Borrower's first year of operation, beginning on June 30, 2009.
The term of the Management Agreement extends through February 23, 2014 unless terminated by either party as
provided in the Management Agreement. A complete copy of the Management Agreement is available upon request
as provided under “MISCELLANEOUS – Additional Information” above.

Victory assists the Borrower with managing the business administration of the Borrower, including the development
and maintenance of operating procedures that provide for all aspects of the day-to-day operation of the Borrower.

Victory also performs the following tasks and functions associated with the educational services provided to the
students at Borrower, all in collaboration and consultation with the principal of Borrower:

(a) Designing the educational programs and programs of instruction including rules and requirements relating
to student admissions, bilingual education, student records, access to equal educational opportunities, school year
and school day requirements, special education, student testing, and extra-curricular and co-curricular activities and
programs;

(b) Selecting and acquiring on behalf of the Borrower instructional and curricula materials, equipment and
supplies, which may be acquired from affiliated or unaffiliated entities;
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(c) Collaborating and consulting with the Borrower's principal to support, augment and deliver professional
development and coaching for teachers in the areas of instructional practice, pedagogy, assessment, curricula
development, classroom management and other topics jointly selected by the principal and Victory. Victory also
provides its professional development services and support.

(d) Collaborates and consults with the Board and principal to develop and deliver professional development,
coaching and critical advice to the Borrower's principal in the areas of instructional leadership, personnel
management;

(e) Victory assists with the creation and implementation of the Borrower's process for student data analysis,
including an interim assessment; analysis of student achievement compared to the Borrower's previous years' results;
and the administration of New York State examinations.

(f) Bi-monthly analysis of formative assessments for the principal;

(g) Monthly principal training, coaching and support in student assessment analysis during the school year;

(h) Monthly training for new assessment coordinator(s) or such other person(s) at the school responsible for
assessment matters;

(i) Quarterly updates to the Board on student assessment;

Victory also provides the following fiscal management services to the Borrower:

(a) Trains and supports the Borrower's business manager in all aspects of managing the on-site business and
operational activities of the school, including, without limitation, school enrollment; school district invoicing;
transportation; inventory; BEDS reporting; FAMIS reporting; payroll; accounts payable; and human resources;

(b) At the Board or principal's reasonable request, negotiates with public or private entities or individuals for
the provision of business and operational services required by the Borrower, such as, transportation, custodial or
food services;

(c) Establishes and manages the Borrower's procurement and inventory systems and provide up to three
inventory trainings (initial, follow-up and review) each school year for the principal and/or business manager of the
Borrower;

(d) Performs bimonthly school district invoicing;

(e) Hosts, on average, a bi-monthly business manager's conference during each school year to update, inform
and teach the Borrower's business manager the methods and means by which to properly manage the Borrower's on-
site non-instructional activities and functions;

(f) Prepares the Borrower's annual report for the principal's review and input;

(g) Completes a year-end student enrollment reconciliation in consultation with the business manager;

(h) Hosts, one food service training workshop during each school year for the business manager;

(i) Provides or contracts for the provision of any other services, and acquire or contract for the acquisition of
any other property (except real property), which Victory reasonably deems necessary for the attainment of the
Borrower's educational goals;

(j) Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, Victory prepares and submits to the Board for its review a
proposed annual budget for such fiscal year.
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(k) Victory invoices and pursues payment(s) from all sources of Borrower revenue (short of initiating
litigation), including the adjusted expense per pupil for Borrowers in New York state and categorical federal grant
programs such as Title I.

(l) Victory provides standard bookkeeping and accounting services, including preparation of ledgers of
accounts receivable and payable, and financial statements including balance sheets, all in accordance with applicable
generally accepted accounting principles.

(m) Victory establishes and maintains financial management and accounting controls at a level that meets at a
minimum the standards and requirements of the Borrower's authorizer and Applicable Law, including, but not
limited to, insurance policies for theft, employee benefits, directors and officers liability and a bond for the
Borrower's 401(k) plan.

(n) Victory manages biweekly personnel and payroll functions of the Borrower for all employees.

(o) Victory conducts two on-site trainings each school year, for the business manager and/or principal on all
services provided by Victory.

(p) Monthly operations reports that summarize compliance issues, upcoming events, student enrollment and
other topics;

(q) A quarterly management “dashboard” that provides the principal and the Board with a summary of the
Borrower's progress towards, and satisfaction of, certain key performance measurements to be determined by
Victory and the Board;

(r) All other budgets, financial reports and financial statements as may be required by the Charter and
Applicable Law, including reporting to the Board at board meetings, year-end reporting, year-end New York State
Education Department annual reporting, and year-end audit support;

(s) The New York State Education Department Annual Report;

Management Fee

As compensation to Victory for the services rendered to the Borrower, the Borrower pays to Victory an amount each
year equal to $625,000. The fee is increased by 3% each year. Victory has agreed to subordinate their Management
Fee to the Series 2011 and Series 2013 Bond payments.

Victory Schools – Key Personnel

James Stovall – Chief Executive Officer

James Stovall previously worked for the law firm Mayer, Brown & Platt and Chadbourne & Parke
representing a variety of financial and other institutions in corporate financings, privatizations and securities
transactions. During his term at Mayer, Brown & Platt, he advised Parents for School Choice, a New York based
non-profit advocacy organization that successfully lobbied for passage of New York State's Charter Act. He was a
founding board member of the New York Chapter of the Black Alliance for Education Options. He is a member of
the bar in New York, New Jersey, Illinois and Washington, D.C. Mr. Stovall is a graduate of Howard University
and Howard University School of Law.

Paul J. Augello, Jr. – Chief Financial Officer

Paul Augello has over 25 years experience in public and private accounting. Mr. Augello started
at Victory in April 2003 as the Controller and was promoted to Chief Financial Officer in August 2009. Prior to
joining Victory, Mr. Augello worked for The Interpublic Group of Companies where he spent over five years as an
Internal Audit Manager and as the North American Controller of Initiative Media. Before that, he was the General
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Audit Supervisor at The New York Times Company where he was an active project team member for all phases of
the Company's three printing plant construction projects and received a Chairman's Recognition Award for his work
on acquisitions and special projects. Earlier in his early career, Mr. Augello was a Senior Accountant with the
publishing company Random House and the accounting firm Deloitte & Touche, where he earned his C.P.A. Mr.
Augello graduated with a B.S. in Accounting from Villanova University in 1988.

Mary Ranero-Cordero – Chief Academic Officer

Mary Cordero is the Chief Academic Officer for Victory Education Partners. During her 12 year
tenure with the organization, she has served as, Regional Director, Director of Professional Development and
Director of Instruction, providing leadership mentoring, supportive supervision and professional development to
Victory’s partner schools in multiple states. In the past, Ms. Cordero served as Acting Principal of the New York
City Charter High school for Architecture, Engineering, and Construction Industries in the South Bronx. Ms.
Cordero also served as Director of Curricula and Instruction and Interim School Director at New Horizons
Community Charter School in Newark, New Jersey. She has been in education for the last 23 years and spent 8
years as a classroom teacher in New Jersey. Ms. Cordero helped to establish two charter schools, as a teacher in
Jersey City, NJ and the other as an administrator in Newark, NJ. She served as a site program coordinator/ counselor
for Aspira, Inc., a non-profit agency servicing minority youth in New Jersey. Ms. Cordero holds a B.A from Rutgers
University in New Brunswick, NJ and a M.A. in Teaching with a concentration in Supervision and Administration
from Saint Peters College in Jersey City, New Jersey.

Deborah McClain – Regional Director of Academics

Deborah McClain is Regional Director of Academics at Victory Education Partners. Ms. McClain
is a passionate educator who has dedicated over 25 years of service to public education. Having served in the
capacity as a teacher, staff developer and school administrator, she understands the challenges of school leadership
and the importance of galvanizing a school community that is focused on student achievement. As a strong advocate
for children and public education, her work is grounded in her belief that “change is the only constant and
continuous improvement is the only path. Never accept, we have always done it that way.” Ms. McClain has
received accolades for her dedication and service, including the Greater New York Research Award Kappa Delta Pi
(1993), Bronx Borough President’s Office Citation of Merit (2002) and published a research report with the
Children’s Research Center (1998). She has earned permanent New York State certification as a School Building
Administrator and School District Administrator. In addition, she has a Bachelor of Arts degree in Psychology
(Herbert H. Lehman College), a Master of Science degree in Early Childhood Education (Herbert H. Lehman
College) and a Master of Science degree in School Administration from City College where she received School of
Education graduation honors. She joined Victory Education Partners in March 2010 and provides leadership
support to their partner organizations.

Governance and Management

The Borrower operates as a New York non-profit educational corporation and as such is governed by the law
applicable to such entities and its articles of incorporation and bylaws. The Borrower's bylaws provide that the
Borrower is managed and controlled by a Board of Trustees.

Board of Trustees

The Borrower's bylaws provide that its Board of Trustees shall consist of not less than nine or more than thirteen
members, including the president of the Parent-Teacher Organization of the Borrower (“PTO”), who is a non-voting
member for the length of his or her term as president of the PTO. Members of the Board serve for a five-year term.
All Trustees are eligible for re-election. The Borrower's bylaws provide that its officers are elected annually by the
Board. The bylaws provide that a vacancy in the office of any officer shall be filled for the remainder of an
unexpired term by vote of a majority of Trustees then in office. The following sections provide information on the
current members of the Board.
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Reverend Barrington F.H. Goldson – Board Chair

Rev. Barrington Goldson is currently serving as the chair of the board of the School. As chairman,
he also works closely with the trustees and executive director in strategic planning, policy implementation and
oversight. Reverend Goldson is also pastor of Calvary Tabernacle in Hempstead, New York. He has served in
several key management and financial positions including the Bank of New York and Merrill Lynch. Rev. Goldson
holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics from City University of New York and a Bachelor’s in Christian Education
and Biblical Studies from Genesis School of Theology. He also holds a MBA from Grand Canyon University. the
He is a member of several professional associations and have received several awards and recognition from the
Village of Hempstead and Nassau County.

Hazelin Williams – Trustee, Secretary

Hazelin Williams is a founding Board member and currently works as a property manager in a real
estate holding in Hempstead, New York. Ms. Williams is a community activist and the author of two books and a
book of poetry. Ms. Williams has worked for insurance and investment companies handling annuities.

Robert Stewart –Technology & Infrastructure Development/Trustee

Robert Stewart is the Chief Operating Officer of Calvary Tabernacle Ministries (700 members).
He is a founding Board Member of the School, which is the 1st Charter School in Hempstead. Since 1989, he has
been President of the Tri-State Music Association, which provides yearly Music Scholarships to Youth. Robert is an
accomplished leader and artist, having received National Endowment for the Arts recognition in Visual Arts, Design
and Technology. His design portfolio includes work for Radio City Music Hall, UNICEF, the County of Nassau,
Brooklyn Public Library to name a few. He has won various National Music Awards (including Disney's National
Gospel Choir Fest) with his Choir, The Calvary Tabernacle Choir. He is a graduate of the prestigious Cooper Union
for the Advancement of Science and Art and holds a degree from the Genesis Bible Institute.

Janet-Ann Sandrson – Trustee

Janet-Ann Sanderson-Brown serves as a member of the Board and as a principal in the New York
City Department of Education. She has over 20 years of experience as an educator. Ms. Sanderson-Brown received
a Bachelor's degree in Economics from City College of New York and an MBA in Finance from Long Island
University. her education from the Long Island University and the City College of New York.

Dawn West-Bloise – Trustee

Ms. Dawn West-Bloise serves as a member of the Board and a financial consultant with over 22
years of experience. She is an active and dedicated member of the Hempstead community.

Hope M. Chin - Trustee

Hope M. Chin serves as a member of the Board and an accountant by trade. She is an accounting
supervisor at the United Nations. Ms. Chin has a bachelor's degree in Accounting from Baruch College.

Peter Goodman – Trustee

Peter Goodman serves as a member of the Board and has practiced law for over 17 years. Some of
his specialties include real estate law, small business transactions and litigation. Mr. Goodman received his Juris
Doctor degree from Hofstra School of Law.

Roderick Roberts – Trustee

Roderick Roberts serves as a member of the Board and has fifteen years of experience in Sales
Marketing Consulting. He has been the Pastor for Rhema Christian Center, Bronx New York for over twelve years.
Mr. Robert has a Master's degree in Psycho-Theological Studies from HFA Theological Institute.
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Sheila Dancy-Wilkins – Trustee

Sheila Dancy-Wilkins serves as a member of the Board and currently serves as Director of Staff
Development in the New York City Department of Education, Division of Facilities Department. She is also an
attorney by training. Ms. Dancy-Williams and received a Juris Doctor degree from CUNY Law School at Queens
College.

Administrative Staff

Listed below are members of the Borrower's key administrators, along with a brief description of the responsibilities
of their respective positions and biographical information pertaining to each.

Wayne Haughton – Executive Director

Mr. Wayne Haughton is currently serving as the Executive Director of the School. As Executive
Director he is responsible for the daily operation of the school. He also works closely with the Board of Trustees,
the Business Manager and the Principal in overseeing the execution of the charter, implementation of policies, and
compliance and regulations. Mr. Haughton obtained his Bachelor's degree in Management from St. John's
University and holds a Master's degree in School District Administration. Mr. Haughton has over 21 years of
experience in the fields of finance and management and has served in the Nassau County Treasurer’s Office and
Nassau County Department of Management and Budgets. Mr. Haughton has served in the field of Education as a
teacher.

Clarence Williams, Jr. – Principal

Mr. Clarence Williams, Jr. is currently serving as the Principal of the School. As Principal, he also
works closely with the Executive Director and Director of Operations in overseeing the execution of the charter as
well as ensuring that the school meets its compliance obligations. He is responsible for overseeing the
implementation of the instructional program. He works closely with the Director of Curricula and Instruction in
setting the professional development agenda as well as the supervision and evaluation of the instructional staff. Mr.
Williams obtained his Bachelor and Master degrees in English Writing Arts and Multicultural Education from
SUNY Oswego and the College of Mount Saint Vincent respectively. He also holds a Master’s in Education from
the College of Saint Rose and is a doctoral candidate at Saint John’s University. He has been in the education field
for over 22 years and has served in key leadership positions.

Donna M. Douglas – Director of Operations

Ms. Donna M. Douglas is currently serving as the Director of Operations of the School. As
Director of Operations, Ms. Douglas is responsible for facilities management, procurement, service contracts and
human resource management. Ms. Douglas has over 12 years’ experience as a Human Resources Professional and
served as the Business Manager for the School from 2009 -2013. She received her Bachelors' degree in Health
Service Administration from Lehman College. She also received her Master's in HR Management and Labor
Relations from New York Institute of Technology and a Master’s in School District Business Leadership from Long
Island University.

Washburn Martin – Business Manager

Mr. Washburn Martin is currently serving as the Business Manager of the School. As Business
Manager, Mr. Martin is responsible for financial transactions such as expenditures, collection of funds, deposits,
recording keeping, internal financial controls and directly managing the school budget. He is a Certified Public
Accountant with over ten years of financial, operational, contract compliance, and tax auditing experience. He
received his Bachelors’ degree in Business Administration from Siena College.
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Key Person Life Insurance

The Borrower has obtained a $1,000,000 “key person” life insurance policy per person on the lives of Reverend
Barrington F.H. Goldson, Chairman of the Board of Trustees and Wayne Haughton, Executive Director for an
approximately 20 year term until November 1, 2033 that names the Trustee as the primary beneficiary. The Key
Person Life Insurance Proceeds Fund will be in the custody of the Trustee and will only be created upon the death of
either of the above referenced individuals when the “key person” life insurance proceeds are paid out to the Trustee.

Employees and Labor Relations

The Borrower currently employs 20 full-time teachers, 8 specialty teachers, 18 teacher's assistants, 3 administrators
and 26 support staff. The Borrower's target class size is 25-27 students. All teachers and teachers’ assistants are
certified by the State. As of November 1, 2013 the attendance rate for all teachers was 98.14%. The following table
sets forth the Borrower's current student-faculty ratios (i.e., the number of students compared to the number of in-
classroom teachers) on a grade-by-grade basis for the 2013-14 school year.

TABLE B-2:
STUDENT / TEACHER RATIOS

Grade 2013-14
K 14:1
1 14:1
2 13:1
3 20:1
4 18:1
5 16:1
6 15:1

Source: the Borrower.

All of the Borrower's teachers, support staff and additional employees are employees of and are compensated by the
Borrower. Teachers are employed pursuant to letters of hire for one year. The Borrower believes that the faculty,
administration and the Board have a strong and collaborative working relationship. The Borrower monitors its
teachers and makes determinations about their ongoing status with the Borrower. The Borrower considers relations
with the teachers to be excellent.

Enrollment

Enrollment in the Borrower is open to any child who is qualified under the laws of New York for admission to a
public school in compliance with State law that provides that admission of students cannot be limited on the basis of
intellectual ability, measures of achievement or aptitude, athletic ability, disability, race, creed, gender, national
origin, religion, or ancestry; provided, however, that nothing shall prevent the establishment of a single-sex charter
school or a charter school designed to provide expanded learning opportunities for students at-risk of academic
failure. The charter school must demonstrate good faith efforts to attract and retain a comparable or greater
enrollment of students with disabilities and limited English proficient students when compared to the enrollment
figures for such students in the school district in which the charter school is located. New York law requires that
charter schools enroll each eligible student who submits a timely application by the first day of April each year,
unless the number of applications exceeds the capacity of the grade level or facility. In such cases, students must be
accepted from among applicants by a random selection process, provided that an enrollment preference will be
provided to pupils returning to the charter school in the second or any subsequent year of operation and pupils
residing in the school district in which the charter school is located, and siblings of pupils already enrolled in the
charter school. See “APPENDIX A – SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF NEW YORK CHARTER
SCHOOL LAW –Admission; Enrollment; Students.”
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Under its general admissions policy, the Borrower will enroll every student who submits a timely application, space
permitting. A lottery is held for a grade level in the event that there are more applications than seats available for
any given grade level at the end of the enrollment period. Preference is given to students residing in the school
district in which the Borrower is located, to siblings of students already enrolled in the Borrower, and to students
returning to the Borrower in any subsequent years of operation.

The Borrower's application period begins on January 1st, and the deadline for applications to be received for the
lottery is April 1st, but applications can still be received after the lottery drawing. The application process begins
when a parent or guardian completes an application form. Once received, the application form is time-stamped,
photocopied to a separated secured file, and entered into a database. All information provided on the application is
verified with the applicant's family, especially the student's age, address, and sibling status. After an application is
deemed complete and accurate, a confirmation card is mailed indicating receipt of the application. Applications
received after the deadline are entered into the database on a first-come, first-serve basis. If a lottery is not held,
these applicants are admitted to the Borrower by grade in the order in which the applications are received. If a
lottery has been held, these applicants are placed on a waiting list beginning after the last person in each grade who
was selected by lottery.

The following table sets forth data provided by the Borrower regarding its historical and projected billable
enrollment. Information through 2013-14 is actual data as of October 31, 2013. For 2014-15 and thereafter, data
presented is projected by the Borrower, and is subject to the general qualifications and limitations described under
“INTRODUCTION – Forward-Looking Statements,” above. The Borrower's Charter currently limits the Borrower's
enrollment to 669 subject to adjustments described under “Charter – General,” above.

TABLE B-3:
HISTORICAL AND FUTURE PROJECTED BILLABLE ENROLLMENT BY GRADE LEVEL

Actual Projected*
Grade 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

K 73 72 80 80 79 106 106 106 106 106
1 46 79 79 75 79 79 106 106 106 106
2 46 52 83 81 79 79 79 106 106 106
3 -- 47 49 81 78 79 79 79 106 106
4 -- -- 51 52 73 74 74 74 74 98

5 -- -- -- 45 48 74 74 74 74 74
6 -- -- -- -- 48 49 74 74 74 74
7 -- -- -- -- -- 49 49 74 74 74
8 -- -- -- -- -- -- 49 71 71

Totals 165 250 342 414 484 589 689 740 791 815

Source: the Borrower.
Data presented is as of October 31, 2013.
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Waiting List

Enrollment in the Borrower is open to all residents of the State subject to compliance with State statutes, Board
policy, and the Borrower's Charter. There is an open application process that begins in January every year for
incoming students. If at any time the number of applications exceeds the seats available for any given grade level at
the Borrower, an open lottery is held. Applications must be received by April 1 for consideration in the lottery,
which is held in April of each year when necessary. Students who are selected are enrolled, the remaining are
placed on a waiting list. Applications received after the lottery application deadline are placed on a secondary
waiting list in the order received. Students on the waiting list may be offered seats during certain times of the school
year. The waiting list is purged each year and does not carry over to the following school year. The following table
shows historical and current waiting list data by grade and represents demand for enrollment into the Borrower's
existing grade levels.

TABLE B-4:
WAITING LIST DATA

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Grade

K 50 84 141 125
1 4 50 61 70
2 3 27 45 50
3 3 22 19 29
4 -- 18 33 18
5 -- -- 17 18
6 -- -- -- 12

Total 60 201 316 322

Source: the Borrower. Data presented is as of October 31, 2013.

Student Retention

The following table shows the number of the Borrower students at the end of each school year beginning 2010-11.
It also depicts the number of students who re-enrolled for each school year beginning 2011-12.

TABLE B-5:
STUDENT RETENTION DATA

Enrollment
at End of
2010-11

Re-Enrolled
For 2011-12

Retention
Rate

Enrollment
at End of
2011-12

Re-Enrolled
For 2012-13

Retention
Rate

Enrollment
at End of
2012-13

Re-
Enrolled

For 2013-14
Retention

Rate

Grade
K 72 72 100% 81 81 100% 82 82 100%
1 74 73 99% 79 78 99% 78 78 100%
2 50 47 94% 83 80 96% 81 79 97%
3 45 44 98% 50 49 98% 76 75 98%
4 -- -- -- 47 45 95% 48 46 96%
5 -- -- -- -- -- -- 45 42 93%

Total 241 236 98% 340 333 98% 410 402 98%

Source: the Borrower.
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Service Area and Competing Schools

For the 2013-14 school year, approximately 68% of the Borrower's students reside within the Hempstead School
District, approximately 11% reside within the neighboring school district, 5% reside within NYC School District
and the remaining students reside in other school districts.

The Borrower faces constant competition for students and there can be no assurance that it will continue to attract
and retain the number of students that are needed to generate sufficient revenues for the Borrower to make payments
on the Series 2013 Bonds in an amount necessary to pay debt service on the Series 2013 Bonds. See “RISK
FACTORS – Competition for Students.”

Information set forth in the following sections is meant to provide prospective investors with general information
concerning certain economic and demographic conditions existing in the Borrower's service area. Such information
has been obtained from the referenced sources and is believed to represent the most current information available
from such sources, but certain of the information is released only after a significant amount of time has passed and
hence such information may not be indicative of economic and demographic conditions as they currently exist or
conditions which may be experienced in the near future. Further, the reported data has not been adjusted to reflect
economic trends, notably inflation.

Population

The following table sets forth population statistics for the Village of Hempstead, Town of Hempstead, Nassau
County and the State of New York.

TABLE B-6:
COMPARATIVE POPULATION

Year
Village of

Hempstead
Percent
Change

Town of
Hempstead

Percent
Change

Nassau
County

Percent
Change

State of
New York

Percent
Change

1990 49,454 -- 725,639 -- 1,237,348 -- 17,990,455 -

2000 56,554 14.4 755,924 4.2 1,334,544 7.9 18,976,457 5.5

2010 53,971 (4.6) 759,757 0.5 1,357,429 1.7 19,378,102 2.1

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, American Fact Finder.

Median Age

The 2010 estimated median age for the residents of the Village of Hempstead was 32.5 years, for the residents of the
Town of Hempstead was 40.0 years, and for residents of Nassau County was 41.1 years. The 2010 estimated
median age for the residents of Bronx County was 32.8. The State-wide median age estimated for 2010 was 38.0
years. (Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, American Fact Finder.)

Income

The following table set forth the per capita personal income for Nassau County, the State of New York and the
United States.

TABLE B-7:
PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME

2011

Nassau County 67,776

State of New York 51,914

United States 42,298

Source: U.S. Department Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis.
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Basic Tuition

The following table provides information regarding the per pupil charter school basic tuition amount for the 2013-14
school years in the school districts where children enrolled at the Borrower currently reside.

TABLE B-8:
BASIC TUITION

2013-14
Amityville $ 17,777
Baldwin 15,658
Elmont
East Meadow
Freeport
Glen Cove
Hempstead
Hicksville
Huntington
Long Beach
Malverne
New York City
Oceanside
Roosevelt
South County
S Huntington
Uniondale
Valley Stream 30
West Hempstead
Westbury

14,397
15,722
15,703
18,368
18,202
14,942
17,512
22,348
19,705
13,527
16,067
16,939
15,951
15,758
19,864
19,277
16,755
18,287

Source: New York State Education Department.
* Preliminary and subject to adjustment.

Student Performance

The Office for Standards, Assessment and Reporting of the New York State Education Department is responsible for
the coordination, development, and implementation of the Grade 3-8 tests, Regents Examinations, Regents
Competency Tests, Second Language Proficiency Examinations, Alternate Assessments and English Language
Proficiency assessments that comprise the New York State Testing Program (“NYSTP”). These examinations are
administered to students in Kindergarten through Grade 12 enrolled in public, nonpublic, and charter schools
throughout the state

Elementary and intermediate-level students are expected to take a series of state examinations in grades 3-8. These
exams include the New York State Elementary and Intermediate Assessments in:

� Grades 3-8 English Language Arts;

� Grades 3-8 Mathematics; and

� Grade 4 Science;
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Student performance on the assessments is categorized into achievement levels:  Level 1 - Not Meeting Learning 
Standards; Level 2 - Partially Meeting Learning Standards; Level 3 - Meeting Learning Standards; and Level 4 - 
Meeting Learning Standards with Distinction. 5% of the Borrower’s students performed at Level 4 and 28%  
performed at Level 3 on the New York State English Language Arts Assessment administered in the 2012-2013 
school year. 8% of the Borrower’s students performed at Level 4 and 33% performed at Level 3 on the New York 
State Mathematics Assessment administered in the 2012-2013 school year. 98% of the Borrower’s students 
performed at Level 4 and 2% performed at Level 3 on the most current New York State Science Assessment. The 
graph below depicts the Borrowers students’ performance in English Language Arts and Mathematics as compared 
to Hempstead School District and neighboring districts; particularly, Uniondale Union Free School District, Freeport 
School District and Roosevelt Union Free School District and all charter schools in the Long Island area. 
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Assessments Used to Monitor Progress at the Borrower 
 
In addition to teacher-prepared tests and mandated New York State Elementary Assessments, students take a series 
of curricula-based exams which include: 
 
DIBELS (Dynamic Indicators of Basic Early Literacy Skills):  A set of standardized, individually administered 
measure of early literacy development.  They are designed to be short (one minute) fluency measure used to 
regularly monitor the development of pre-reading and early reading skills in students in grades K-2  The measures 
developed upon the essential early literacy domains report to assess student development of phonological awareness, 
alphabetic understanding, and automaticity and fluency with reading.  Each measure demonstrates to be reliable and 
valid indicators of early literacy development and predictive of later reading proficiency to aid in the early 
identification of students who are not progressing as expected.  The results can be utilized to evaluate the individual 
student development as well as provide grade-level feedback toward validated instructional objectives.  
 
Victory Interim Assessments:  The purpose of these assessments are to help teachers learn more about their students' 
strengths and weaknesses relative to the state standards and the Victory curricula, so that instruction can be tailored 
to each student's particular needs.  The goal of these brief assessments is not to rank students but to support better 
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teaching and learning. Teachers are able to access the interim assessment web site, Homeroom, to determine
assessment result and explore resources that teachers can utilize to create assignments for students that target
specific skills in critical areas identified as weaknesses.

AYP Status

In New York, under the accountability provisions of Title I of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act, as
reauthorized by the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 (“NCLB”), all public school campuses, school districts, and
the State are evaluated for Adequate Yearly Progress (“AYP”). Districts, campuses, and the state are required to
meet AYP criteria on three measures: English Language Arts (“ELA”), Mathematics, and either Science (for
elementary and middle/junior high schools) or Graduation Rate (for high schools and districts). The Borrower has
achieved AYP status in English Language Arts, Mathematics and Science during each year of the current charter
term.

Debt Summary

The Series 2013 Bonds shall be equally and ratably secured under the Indenture with the Series 2011A Bonds,
outstanding in the principal amount of $10,505,000 and Series 2011B Bonds, outstanding in the principal amount of
$120,000. The Series 2011 Bonds constitute all of the Borrower’s outstanding debt other than the Series 2013
Bonds. The Borrower has no other outstanding debt.

Internal Controls

The Borrower has internal control policies in place as set forth in the Borrower's Executive Director's Manual 3:
Accounting & Finance Policies, Procedures, & Controls (the “Manual”), which provides that only the Executive
Director and Business Manager are authorized signatories for the Borrower's school-based checking account, with
each check requiring a single signature from an authorized signer. The Manual provides that the bank will issue
checks in the Borrower's name, and checks should state on their face that they are not valid for more than $500.
Any purchases of services costing over $500 or lasting more than one year require a contract, which must be
reviewed in advance by Victory Schools' Legal Department. The Manual sets forth procurement requirements and
requires that petty cash and checks be kept in a lock box. Any other cash received at the Borrower must be kept in a
safe, with only the Business Manager and the Principal knowing the combination to the safe.

Conflicts Policy

The Code of Ethics and Conflicts of Interest Policy (“Policy”) adopted by the Borrower requires the Board of the
Borrower to conduct itself in accordance with and subject to the limitations of the Education Law, Not-for-Profit
Corporation Law, the Borrower's charter and bylaws. The Borrower's general policy on conflict of interest is that
none of its faculty, staff, trustees, or officials shall engage in any activities that place them in a conflict of interest
between their official activities and any other interest or obligation. The Policy extends to certain family members
of the Board and relates to the number of Board trustees who can also receive compensation from the Borrower.
Trustees are prohibited from engaging in self dealing transactions, such as transactions to which the Borrower is a
party and in which one or more of the Trustees has a material financial interest. The Trustees are required to fully
disclose their interest to the Board prior to acting on any contract or transaction where the Trustee may have a
material financial interest and must disclose all relevant and material facts known to the person about any
transaction that might reasonably be construed to be adverse to the Board's interest. Such disclosure shall include all
relevant and material facts known to such person about the contract or transaction that might reasonably be
construed to be adverse to the Board's interest, or unduly influenced by persons who have a special interest in
matters under consideration by the Board. The Trustees must avoid at all times engaging in activities that would
appear to be unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration by the
Board.

Projected Revenues and Expenditures

This Official Statement contains certain “forward-looking” statements of the type described in Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. See “INTRODUCTION – Caution
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Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” above. Although the Borrower believes that the assumptions upon which
the forward-looking statements contained in this Official Statement are based are reasonable, any of the assumptions
could prove to be inaccurate and, as a result, the forward-looking statements based on those assumptions could also
be incorrect. All phases of the operations of the school by the Borrower involve risks and uncertainties, many of
which are outside of the Borrower's control and any one of which, or a combination of which, could materially
affect the Borrower's results with respect to the school's operations. Factors that could cause actual results to differ
from those expected include, but are not limited to, general economic conditions; the willingness of the State to fund
public schools including charter schools at present or increased levels; competitive conditions within the school's
service area; lower-than-projected enrollment; unanticipated expenses; changes in government regulation including
changes in the law governing charter schools in New York; future claims for accidents against the Borrower and the
extent of insurance coverage for such claims; and other risks discussed in this Official Statement. See “RISK
FACTORS” above.

The Borrower is providing the following Historical and Projected Revenues and Expenses table for illustrative
purposes only. These projections have been prepared by the Borrower with assistance from its Independent
Management Consultant, based on the Borrower's operating history with respect to the school and its assumptions
about future State funding levels and future operations of the school, including student enrollment and expenses.
The Borrower's projections have not been independently verified by any party other than the Borrower. The
Borrower's projections have not been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”). No feasibility studies have been conducted with respect to operations of the Borrower pertinent to the
Series 2013 Bonds. The Underwriter has not independently verified the Borrower's projections, and makes no
representations nor gives any assurances that such projections, or the assumptions underlying them, are complete or
correct.

NO REPRESENTATION OR ASSURANCE CAN BE GIVEN THAT THE BORROWER WILL REALIZE
REVENUES IN AMOUNTS SUFFICIENT TO MAKE ALL REQUIRED PAYMENTS ON THE SERIES 2013
NOTES SUFFICIENT TO PAY DEBT SERVICE ON THE SERIES 2013 BONDS. THE REALIZATION OF
FUTURE REVENUES DEPENDS ON, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE MATTERS DESCRIBED IN “RISK
FACTORS,” AND FUTURE CHANGES IN ECONOMIC AND OTHER CONDITIONS THAT ARE
UNPREDICTABLE AND CANNOT BE DETERMINED AT THIS TIME. THE UNDERWRITER MAKES NO
REPRESENTATION AS TO THE ACCURACY OF THE PROJECTIONS CONTAINED HEREIN, NOR AS TO
THE ASSUMPTIONS ON WHICH THE PROJECTIONS ARE BASED.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]



TABLE B-9: HISTORICAL AND PROJECTED REVENUES AND EXPENSES

The Academy Charter School

Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget
(Years Ending June 30) 2010A 2011A 2012A 2013A 2014E 2015E 2016E 2017E 2018E

STUDENTS (budgeted enroll.) 165 250 342 414 484 589 689 740 791
STUDENTS (final enrollment) 165 250 342 414 - - - - -

REVENUES
Total State Revenue 2,804,951 4,489,415 6,164,366 7,410,067 8,923,947 11,077,126 13,216,948 14,479,176 15,786,607

Total Federal Revenues 67,280 78,026 108,756 156,172 175,151 213,149 249,337 267,793 286,249

Total Other Revenues 675,244 86,606 1,021,180 303,024 323,980 1,126,859 469,931 509,310 550,084

TOTAL REVENUES 3,547,475 4,654,047 7,294,302 7,869,263 9,423,078 12,417,134 13,936,216 15,256,279 16,622,941

EXPENSES
Personnel

Employee Salaries 1,449,685 2,129,143 2,916,204 3,607,008 4,653,951 5,786,569 6,460,166 7,162,971 7,723,861

Payroll Taxes 136,900 182,510 259,254 322,450 465,395 578,657 646,017 716,297 772,386

Employee Benefits 181,459 313,765 431,206 572,146 922,390 1,191,537 1,382,602 1,593,976 1,787,811

Total Personnel 1,768,044 2,625,418 3,606,664 4,501,604 6,041,736 7,556,764 8,488,785 9,473,244 10,284,057

Non Personnel

General & Administrative 148,222 136,545 188,977 205,402 245,000 308,930 318,048 327,439 337,113

Professional Services 84,799 106,615 116,846 157,357 167,000 226,110 232,593 239,271 246,149

Direct Educational 390,815 305,768 437,350 271,567 258,000 300,390 306,432 312,655 319,064

School Administrative Services 330,768 524,367 716,080 625,000 643,750 663,063 682,954 703,443 724,546

Total Non Personnel 954,604 1,073,295 1,459,253 1,259,326 1,313,750 1,498,493 1,540,027 1,582,808 1,626,872

Operating & Maintenance

Rent/Lease & Storage 111,673 215,364 19,000 9,005 8,000 8,240 8,487 8,742 9,004

Renovations & Repairs 21,388 21,275 76,433 40,775 50,000 90,000 92,700 95,481 98,345

Fixtures & Furnishings 5,809 6,095 9,401 6,325 10,000 20,000 20,600 21,218 21,855

Real Estate Taxes - - 270,167 828 1,000 1,030 1,061 1,093 1,126

Operational Supplies 15,325 11,717 34,840 41,840 35,000 80,000 82,400 84,872 87,418

Maintenance & Security 15,927 6,873 49,747 72,758 80,000 140,000 144,200 148,526 152,982

Transportation Service & Staff 2,652 17,438 23,772 1,553 10,000 15,000 15,450 15,914 16,391

Food Service & Related Payments 22,386 18,213 22,641 124,697 162,000 206,192 242,760 264,594 287,207

Utilities, Internet & Phone Service 58,407 67,039 125,423 107,452 132,000 223,000 229,690 236,581 243,678

Other O&M 6,784 10,249 20,631 10,000 10,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000

Total Operating & Maintenance 260,351 374,263 652,055 415,233 498,000 803,462 857,348 897,020 938,005

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,982,999 4,072,976 5,717,972 6,176,163 7,853,486 9,858,718 10,886,160 11,953,072 12,848,935

Net Revenues Available for Debt Service 564,476 581,071 1,576,330 1,693,100 1,569,593 2,558,416 3,050,057 3,303,207 3,774,005

Series 2011 Debt Service Payments

Interest Expense 740,345 885,463 876,263 866,663 857,175 846,863 835,725

Principal - 115,000 120,000 115,000 125,000 135,000 145,000

Total Series 2011 Debt Service Payments - - 740,345 1,000,463 996,263 981,663 982,175 981,863 980,725

Series 2013 Debt Service Payments

Interest Expense 108,904 1,031,718 1,031,718 1,021,568 1,010,693

Principal - - 140,000 150,000 160,000

Total Series 2013 Debt Service Payments 108,904 1,031,718 1,171,718 1,171,568 1,170,693

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.69 1.42 1.27 1.42 1.53 1.75
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Trustees 
The Academy Charter School 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Academy Charter School, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related 
statements of activities and cash flows for years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

Management's Responsibility for tbe Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of The Academy Charter School as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the changes 
in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Report on Supplementary Information 

Our audits were performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements 
of the School taken as a whole. The accompanying schedules of functional expenses are presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion the 
schedule of functional expenditures is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole. 

New York, New York 
September 30, 2013 

~c1)J~ +~,J.Lf 
Certified Public Accountants 



THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Construction cash 
Restricted cash 
Debt service escrow 
Other receivable 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Deferred expenses 
Prepaid expenses 

Total Current Assets 

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, 
at cost, less accumulated depreciation 

OTHER ASSETS 
Security deposits 

Total Assets 

ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Bonds payable 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Obligation under capital lease - current portion 

Bonds payable, less current portion 
Obligation under capital lease 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS - UNRESTRICTED 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets 

See notes to financial statements. 
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2013 

$ 988,805 
18,259 
76,766 

1,240,839 
112,008 

718,334 
7,172 

3,162,183 

9,206,498 

17,160 

$ 12,385,841 

$ 120,000 
224,647 
487,323 

72,553 

904,523 

10,505,000 
94,847 

11,504,370 

881,471 

$ 12,385,841 

2012 

$ 80,085 
18,160 
76,316 

1,235,199 
462,902 

76,190 
743,913 

5,004 

2,697,769 

9,300,866 

17,160 

$ 12,015,795 

$ 115,000 
88,766 

339,634 
68,826 

612,226 

10,625,000 
173,395 

11,410,621 

605,174 

$ 12,015,795 



THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 

REVENUE, GAINS AND OTHER SUPPORT 
Public School District 

2013 

Resident student enrollment $ 7,459,593 
Grants and Contracts 

State and local 1,610 
Federal - Title and IDEA 163,317 

Food Service and Child Nutrition Program 242,699 
Interest and other income 948 
Contribution - FoundationlIndividuallCorporation l z095 

Total Public Support and Revenue 7,869,262 

EXPENSES 
Program Expenses 

Regular education 5,992,774 
Special education 328,437 
Food service 317,676 

Supporting Services 
Management and general 954,078 

Total Expenses 7,592,965 

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 276,297 

Beginning of year 605,174 

End of year $ 881,471 

See notes to financial statements. 
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2012 

$ 6,201,112 

235,507 
114,998 

2,211 
130 

6,553,958 

5,554,691 

1,383,604 

6,938,295 

(384,337) 

989,511 

$ 605,174 



THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACfNITIES 
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets 

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE DECREASE IN NET ASSETS 
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Depreciation 
Amortization 

Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
Other receivable 
Grants and contracts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Accrued interest payable 
Security deposits 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Restricted cash 
Debt service escrow 
Acquisition of fixed assets 

Net cash used in investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Deferred expenses 
Bonds payable 
Obligation under capital lease 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Beginning of year 

End of year 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 

Cash Paid for Interest 

See notes to financial statements. 
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2013 2012 

$ 276,297 $ (384,337) 

466,949 454,204 
25,580 23,447 

350,894 43,600 
76,190 51,317 
(2,168) 46,802 

135,881 9,519 
147,689 120,670 

(221,366) 
15,615 

l z477,312 159z471 

(450) (572) 
(5,640) 490,223 

p72,581 l ~1,476,573l 

p78z671 l ~986z922l 

(1) 36,415 
(115,000) 
F4z821! 242,221 

~189z822! 278,636 

908,819 (548,815) 

98,245 647,060 

$ 1,007,064 $ 98,245 

$ 885,463 $ 740,345 



THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

1. Organization 

The Academy Charter School (''The School"), a 501 (c) (3) tax-exempt organization, is a 
public charter school located in Hempstead, New York. The School was granted a five year 
charter in February 2009 and commenced operating classes for kindergarten through 
second grade in September 2009, and added third, fourth and fifth grade classes in 2010, 
2011 and 2012. The mission of the school is to offer an interdisciplinary curriculum in a 
technology rich environment that challenges students to explore connections across 
subjects and use experiential learning to bridge the gaps between theory and practice. 
Enrollment is open to all potential student candidates, with those residing in the immediate 
area given first preference. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

a) Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

b) Cash and Cash Eguivalents 

The School maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which, at times, may exceed 
federally insured limits. The School has not experienced any losses in such accounts. The 
School believes it is not exposed to significant credit risk on cash and equivalents. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all highly liquid debt 
instruments purchased with maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

c) Grants and Contributions Receivable 

Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected within one year are 
recorded as grants and contribution receivable at net realizable value. Unconditional 
promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present 
value of their estimated future cash flows. The discounts on those amounts are computed 
using risk-free interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received. 
Conditional promises to give are not included as support until the conditions are 
substantially met. 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

d) Financial Statement Presentation 

The School is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities 
according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and 
permanently restricted. 

i) Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to grant or donor-imposed 
stipulations. 

ii) Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that 
mayor will be met, either by actions of the School and/or passage of time. When a 
restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net 
assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions. 
There are no temporarily restricted net assets at June 30, 2013 and 2012. 

iii) Pennanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to grant or donor-imposed 
stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the School to use all or part of the 
assets for general or specific purposes. There are no permanently restricted net assets at 
June 30,2013 and 2012. 

Furthennore, information is required to segregate program service expenses from support 
expenses. 

e) Donated Services 

No amounts are reflected in the financial statements for donated services, as the services do 
not meet the specialized skill requirements prescribed under accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

f) Contributions 

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently 
restricted net assets depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continuecll 

g) Property and Equipment 

Purchase of property and equipment are capitalized at cost. Donated assets are capitalized 
at the estimated fair value at date of receipt. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged 
to expense as incurred; significant improvements are capitalized. The School capitalizes 
additions and significant improvements in excess of$SOO. Depreciation is computed using 
the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of 3 to 7 years. 

Construction in progress includes the cost of construction and other indirect costs 
attributable to the construction. No provision for deprecation is made on construction in 
progress until the assets are placed in service. 

h) Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from the state and local government resulting from the School's charter status is 
based on the number of students enrolled and is recorded when services are perfonned in 
accordance with the charter agreement. 

Revenue from federal, state and local government grants and contracts are recorded by the 
School when qualifying expenditures are incurred and billable. Funds received in advance 
for which qualifying expenditures have not been incurred are reflected as refundable 
advances from state and local government grants in the accompanying statement of 
financial position. 

i) Income Taxes 

In December 2010 The School filed and received approval of its application for tax exempt 
status from the Internal Revenue Service under section SOI(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
code and has been classified as a publicly supported organization as described in Internal 
Revenue Code section S09 (A)(I) and 170 (8)(I)(A)(Iij. 

Management believes that the organization has no uncertain tax positions that would 
require financial statement recognition. 

-9-



THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

j) Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

3. Property and Equipment 

At June 30,2013 and 2012, property and equipment consisted of the following: 

2013 
Building $4,950,000 
Land 550,000 
Building improvements 3,428,482 
Construction in progress 40,050 
Furniture and fixtures 542,599 
Computer and office equipment 711.385 

10,222,516 
Less: Accumulated depreciation {l.016.018} 
Total S2.2~.~28 

2012 
$4,950,000 

550,000 
3,016,381 

242,221 
488,451 
602.882 

9,849,935 
{549.069} 

S2.J2g.~~ 

Estimated 
Useful 

Life 
39.5 years 

39.5 years 

7 years 
5 years 

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $466,949 and 
$454,204. 

4. Restricted Cash 

Under the provisions of its charter, the School established a bank account to pay for any 
legal and audit expenses that would be associated with dissolution, should it occur. 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

5. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of amounts due to vendors and to staff for 
payroll earned during the school year but paid out over the summer months. 

6. Pupil Enrollment and Other Revenues From Government Agencies 

Under the Charter School Agreement and the Charter Schools Act, the School is entitled to 
receive funding from governmental sources that are available to public schools. The 
calculation of the amounts to be paid to the School under these programs is determined by 
the State, and is based on complex laws and regulations, enrollment levels, and economic 
information related to the home school districts of the children enrolled in the School. If 
these regulations, some of which are relatively new in the State of New York, were to 
change, or other factors included in the calculations were to change, the level of funding 
that the School receives could vary significantly. 

The amounts are based upon actual amounts received as well as estimates by the 
management based upon the best information available at the time. However, actual 
amounts received, as determined by the funding source, could vary based on changes in the 
factors used to calculate the amounts owed. 

7. Defined Contribution Plan 

The School offers a 401(k) plan for substantially all of its employees. Employees are 
eligible for the plan immediately upon employment and participation in the plan is 
voluntary. Employees can make pretax contributions up to a maximum of 100% of their 
annual compensation, subject to IRS restrictions. The School matches the employee 
contribution up to 4% of the employee's annual compensation. The School's contribution 
recognized in the statement of activities was $80,254 and $38,966 for the years ended June 
30, 2013 and 2012. Plan assets are held in a separate trust and are not included in the 
accompanying financial statements. All plan assets are held for the exclusive benefit of the 
Plan's participants and beneficiaries. 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

8. Bonds Payable 

On March 23,2011, The Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation provided 
financing through the issuance of $10,505,000 in Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds 
(the "Series 201lA Bonds"), bearing interest at 8.25% per annum with principal due at 
varying amounts annually through maturity on February 1, 2041, and $235,000 in Taxable 
Education Revenue Bonds (the "Series 2011B Bonds"), bearing interest rate at 8% per 
annum with principal due at varying amounts annually through maturity on February I, 
2014. For the year ended June 30, 2013, interest expense was $885,463. 

According to the loan agreement, the School is required to maintain debt service accounts 
with principal due February I, and interest due February I, and August 1, of each year. 

Future minimum principal payments for the next five years are as follow: 

Fiscal year ending June 30 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 and thereafter 
Total 

9. Capital Lease 

$ 120,000 
115,000 
125,000 
135,000 
145,000 

10.100.000 
$10,740·000 

In July 1, 2012, the School obtained equipment, pursuant to a capital lease agreement. The 
lease requires monthly lease payments of$8,741 with interest of 19%, through maturity in 
June 2015. 

Future lease payments for the years ending June 30 for the aforementioned lease are as 
follows: 

2014 
2015 

Obligation under capital lease 

$ 72,553 
94.847 

$167.400 
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THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

10. Management 

The School entered into an agreement with Victory Schools, Inc. (VSI) d/b/a Victory 
Education Partners (VEP) in June 2009, which was amended in August 2012 to provide 
services related to certain education and operational aspects of the School. Victory serves 
as an advisor regarding functions associated with the educational services to be provided to 
the students at the School and consults with the School with respect to its legal and 
operational compliance in accordance with the terms of the charter and the Charter School 
Act. In providing the above services, VEP was paid a fixed service fee in the amount of 
$625,000. 

In providing these services, Victory was paid a service fee in the amount of $625,000 for 
the year ended June 30, 2013. The fee will be increased annually by 3% for the next two 
years. 

For the years ended June 30,2013 and 2012 the service fee was $625,000 and $716,080. 

11. Contingency 

The School participates in a number of federal and state programs. These programs require 
that the School comply with certain requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
agreements applicable to the programs in which it participates. All funds expended in 
connection with government grants and contracts are subject to audit by government 
agencies. While the ultimate liability, if any, from such audits of government and contracts 
by government agencies is presently not determinable, it should not, in the opinion of the 
management, have a material effect on the financial position or results of operations. 
Accordingly, no provision for any such liability that may result has been made in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

12. Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 30, 2013, the date that 
financial statements were available to be issued. No significant subsequent events have 
been identified that would require adjustment or disclosure in the accompanying financial 
statements. 
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THE AbADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEf\R ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 
(With Summarized Com~tive Information for the Year Ended June 30, 2012) 

Regu1ar s~ Food Tocal Managemen' 

Personnel Expenses 

Salaries and wages 
Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 
Retirement 

Total Personnel Expenses 

()penlting. Experlses 

Contracted services - financial 
Adminstrative 
Insurance 
Legal and professional 
Repairs and Maintenance 
Equipment and furnishings 
Rent 
Staff development 
Food service 
Supplies and instructional materiE 
Telephone and internet services 
Utilities 
Interest expense 
Real estate taxes 
Depreciation 
Amortizaton 
Other expenses 

Total Operating Expenses 

TOTAL EXPENSES 

Education Education Service Programs & General 

$ 2,908,991 
616,878 
67,211 

3,593,080 

468,750 
23,220 
65,115 
29,316 

130,122 
151,434 

7,542 
42,533 

146,753 
21,563 
71,089 

741,556 
693 

391,060 
21,422 
87,526 

2,399,694 

$ 5,992,774 

$ 158'57 
33, 9 
3, 

195,992 

25.L 
1,267 
3,552 
1,599 
7,098 

I 

8,t6O 
411 

2,320 

8,005 
l,p6 
3,878 

40,450 

1
38 

21,331 
1,169 
6,$91 

132'i5 

$ 328f 

$ 133,496 
21,359 

154,855 

6,830 

116,814 

364 

38,813 

162,821 

$ 317,676 
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$ 3,201,164 
671,886 
70,877 

3,943,927 

493,750 
24,487 
68,667 
30,915 

144,050 
159,694 

7,953 
44,853 

116,814 
154,758 
22,739 
74,967 

782,006 
731 

412,755 
22,591 

133,230 

2,694,960 

$ 6,638,887 

$ 405,843 
64,703 
9,377 

479,923 

131,250 
3,239 

44,510 
43,955 
11,324 
21,127 

1,052 
5,934 

20,474 
3,008 
9,918 

103,457 
97 

54,194 
2,989 

17,627 

474,155 

$ 954,078 

Total 

$ 3,607,007 
736,589 
80,254 

4,423,850 

625,000 
27,726 

113,177 
74,870 

155,374 
180,821 

9,005 
50,787 

116,814 
175,232 
25,747 
84,885 

885,463 
828 

466,949 
25,580 

150,857 

3,169,115 

$ 7,592,965 

Total 
2012 

$ 2,916,203 
609,392 

38,966 

3,564,561 

716,080 
33,182 
76,570 
57,107 

161,020 
155,102 
21,327 
53,731 

345,970 
29,688 

102,262 
740,345 
270,167 
454,204 
23,447 

133,529 

3,373,731 

$ 6,938.292 



KOCH G ROUP & C OMPANY , LLP 
CM11f'1eO PU8L1C ACCOUNTANTS 

333 Seventh Avenue 
!"lew York. I"IY 1 000 1 
(212) 631'()700 fAX (212) 631-0109 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MA TIERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT 
AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Trustees of 
The Academy Charter School 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of The 
Academy Charter School, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2013, 
and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30,2013. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered The Academy 
Charter School's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
The Academy Charter School's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of The Academy Charter School's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

CompHaace and Other Matten 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether The Academy Charter School's financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions oflaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

New York, New York 
September 30,2013 
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APPENDIX D 
 

GLOSSARY AND SUMMARY OF CERTAIN DOCUMENTS 
 

DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS 
 

As used in the Official Statement, the following terms shall have the respective meanings set 
forth below, except as the context otherwise requires: 
 
“2011 Indenture” means that certain Indenture of Trust, dated of March 1, 2011, by and between 
the Issuer and the 2011 Trustee, entered into in connection with the issuance, sale, delivery and 
payment of the Series 2011 Bonds and the security therefor as the same may be amended or 
supplemented from time to time. 
 
“2011 Mortgages” means, collectively, the Acquisition Loan Mortgage, the Project Loan 
Mortgage and the Building Loan Mortgage (each as defined in Schedule A of the 2011 
Indenture) and each from the School to the Issuer as security for the loan proceeds of the Issuer’s 
Series 2011 Bonds. 
 
“2011 Project” means the Project as defined under the 2011 Indenture. 
 
“2011 Trustee” means (i) Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, a banking corporation 
having trust powers duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, having 
an office at 1 M&T Plaza, 7th Floor, Buffalo, New York 14203 and (ii) its successors and any 
corporation resulting from or surviving any consolidation or merger to which it or its successors 
may be a party and any successor trustee at the time serving as successor trustee under the 2011 
Indenture, with respect to the issuance of the Series 2011 Bonds. 
 
“Act” means, collectively, the New York Membership Corporation Law as in effect in 1966, as 
amended and supplemented by Section 1411 of the New York Not-For-Profit Corporation Law. 

 
“Act of Bankruptcy” means the filing of a petition in bankruptcy (or other commencement of a 
bankruptcy or similar proceeding) by or against the School or the Issuer under any applicable 
bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency or similar law as is now or hereafter in effect. 
 
“Acquisition Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement” means the Acquisition Loan Mortgage 
and Security Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013, from the School to the Issuer, as the 
same may be amended, modified or assigned thereto from time to time. 
 
“Additional Bonds” or “Series of Additional Bonds” means any Series of Additional Bonds 
issued by the Issuer on behalf of the School pursuant to the Indenture. 
 
“Additional Indebtedness” means with respect to the School (A) all indebtedness, whether or not 
represented by bonds, debentures, notes or other securities, for the repayment of money 
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borrowed, (B) all deferred indebtedness for the payment of the purchase price of property or 
assets purchased, including, without limitation, capitalized leases, (C) all guaranties, 
endorsements, assumptions and other contingent obligations in respect of, or to purchase or 
otherwise acquire, indebtedness of others, and (D) all indebtedness secured by any mortgage, 
pledge or Lien existing on property owned, subject to such mortgage, pledge or Lien, whether or 
not indebtedness secured thereby shall have been assumed.  In computing the amount of 
Additional Indebtedness at any time there shall be excluded (X) any operating leases, (Y) all 
indebtedness subordinate to the Bonds and (Z) any particular item of Indebtedness if before the 
maturity thereof there shall be been deposited with the lender, creditor, trustee or other proper 
depository the necessary funds (or evidences of such Additional Indebtedness) for the payment, 
redemption or satisfaction of such item of Additional Indebtedness (and such funds or evidences 
of such Additional Indebtedness shall thereafter be excluded from any computation of the assets 
of the School). 
 
“Affiliate” shall mean a corporation, partnership, association, limited liability company, joint 
venture, business trust or similar entity organized under the laws of any state that directly or 
indirectly through one or more intermediaries controls, or is controlled by, or is under common 
contract with, the School. 
 
“Annual Compliance Fee” means the $1,000 Annual Compliance Fee to be paid by the School to 
the Issuer on or before January 1 of each year pursuant to the Loan Agreement. 
 
“Applicable Elected Representative” means any Person constituting an “applicable elected 
representative” within the meaning given to the term in Section 147(f)(2)(E) of the Code. 
 
“Architect” means Combined Resources Construction and Design, Inc. 
 
“Assignment of Acquisition Loan Mortgage” means the Assignment of Acquisition Loan 
Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated December as of 1, 2013, given by the Mortgagee to the 
Trustee, as the same may be amended, modified or assigned thereto from time to time. 
 
“Assignment of Building Loan Mortgage” means the Assignment of Building Loan Mortgage 
and Security Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013, given by the Mortgagee to the Trustee, 
as the same may be amended, modified or assigned thereto from time to time. 
 
“Assignment of Collateral Mortgages” means collectively, (i) the Series 2011 Assignment of 
Collateral Mortgage, (ii) the Series 2013 Assignment of Collateral Mortgage, and (iii) the 
assignment of any other Collateral Mortgages, from the Issuer to the Trustee and the 2011 
Trustee to secure any Series of Additional Bonds. 
 
“Assignment of Project Loan Mortgage” means the Assignment of Project Loan Mortgage and 
Security Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013, given by the Mortgagee to the Trustee, as 
the same may be amended, modified or assigned thereto from time to time. 
 
“Assignment of Mortgages” means collectively, (i) the Assignment of Acquisition Loan 
Mortgage, (ii) the Assignment of Building Loan Mortgage, (iii) the Assignment of Project Loan 
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Mortgage, and (iv) the assignment of any other Mortgages, from the Issuer to the Trustee to 
secure any Series of Additional Bonds. 
 
“Assignment of Series 2011 Collateral Mortgage” means the Assignment of Collateral Mortgage 
and Security Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013, given by the Issuer to the Trustee, as the 
same may be amended, modified or assigned thereto from time to time. 
 
“Assignment of Series 2013 Collateral Mortgage” means the Assignment of Collateral Mortgage 
and Security Agreement, dated as December 1, 2013, given by the Issuer to the  2011 Trustee, as 
the same may be amended, modified or assigned thereto from time to time. 
 
“Authorized Investments” means: 
 

A. Direct obligations of the United States of America (including obligations issued 
or held in book-entry form on the books of the Department of the Treasury, and 
CATS and TIGRS) or obligations the principal of and interest on which are 
unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America. 

B. Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed 
by any of the following federal agencies and provided such obligations are backed 
by the full faith and credit of the United States of America (stripped securities are 
only permitted if they have been stripped by the agency itself): 

 
1. U.S. Export-Import Bank (Eximbank) 

Direct obligations are fully guaranteed certificates of beneficial ownership 
2. Farmers Home Administration (FmHA) 

Certificates of beneficial ownership 
3. Federal Financing Bank 
4. Federal Housing Administration Debentures (FHA) 
5. General Services Administration 
 Participation Certificates 
6. Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA or “Ginnie Mae”) 

GNMA – guaranteed mortgage-backed bonds 
GNMA – guaranteed pass-through obligations 
(not acceptable for certain cash-flow sensitive issues) 

7. U.S. Maritime Administration 
Guaranteed Title XI financing 

8. U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
Project Notes 
Local Authority Bonds 
New Communities Debentures – U.S. government guaranteed debentures 
U.S. Public Housing Notes and Bonds – U.S. government guaranteed 
public housing notes and bonds 
 

C. Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed 
by any of the following non-full faith and credit U.S. government agencies 



 

D-4  

(stripped securities are only permitted if they have been stripped by the agency 
itself): 

 
1. Federal Home Loan Bank System 

Senior debt obligations 
2. Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC” or “Freddie Mac”) 

Participation Certificates 
Senior debt obligations 

3. Federal National Mortgage Association (“FNMA” or “Fannie Mae”) 
Mortgage-backed securities and senior debt obligations 

4. Student Loan Marketing Association (“SLMA” or “Sallie Mae”) 
Senior debt obligations 

5. Resolution Funding Corp. (REFCORP) obligations 
6. Farm Credit System 

Consolidated systemwide bonds and notes 
 

D. Money market funds registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 
1940, whose shares are registered under the Federal Securities Act of 1933.  Said 
funds include The MTB Group of Funds organized by Manufacturers and Traders 
Trust Company.      

 
E. Certificates of deposit secured at all times by collateral described in (A) and/or 

(B) above.  Such certificates must be issued by commercial banks, savings and 
loan associations or mutual savings banks.  The collateral must be held by a third 
party and the Trustee must have a perfected first security interest in the collateral. 

 
F. Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts or money market 

deposits which are fully insured by FDIC, including BIF and SAIF. 
 
G. Investment Agreements, including GIC’s, Forward Purchase Agreements and 

Reserve Fund Put Agreements provided by banks and other institutions rated 
AAA by S&P and Aaa by Moody’s or secured by collateral and structured as 
described in (A), (B) and (E) above. 

 
H. Commercial paper rated, at the time of purchase, Prime – 1 by Moody’s and A-1 

or better by S&P. 
 
I. Bonds or notes issued by any state or municipality which are rated by Moody’s 

and S&P in one of the two highest rating categories assigned by such agencies. 
 
J. Federal funds or bankers acceptances with a maximum term of one year of any 

bank which has an unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed obligation rating of 
Prime – 1 or A3 or better by Moody’s and A-1 or A or better by S&P. 

 
K. Repurchase agreements providing for the transfer of securities from a dealer bank 

or securities firm (seller/borrower) to a municipal entity (buyer/lender), and the 
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transfer of cash from a municipal entity to the dealer bank or securities firm with 
an agreement that the dealer bank or securities firm will repay the cash plus a 
yield to the municipal entity in exchange for the securities at a specified date. 

 
1. Repurchase agreements must be between the Issuer and a dealer bank or 

securities firm. 
a. Primary dealers on a Federal Reserve reporting dealer list which 

are rated A or better by S&P and Moody’s or 
b. Banks rated A or above by S&P, Fitch and Moody’s. 
 

2. The written repurchase agreements contract must include the following: 
a. Securities which are acceptable for transfer are: 

(1) Direct U.S. governments, or 
(2) Federal agencies backed by the full faith and credit of the 

U.S. government (and FNMA and FHLMC) 
b. The term of the repurchase agreements may be up to 30 days. 
c. The collateral must be delivered to the Issuer, the Trustee (if the 

Trustee is not supplying the collateral) or third party acting as 
agent for the Trustee (if the Trustee is supplying the collateral) 
before/simultaneous with payment (perfection by possession of 
certificated securities). 

 
d. Valuation of collateral: 
 

(1) The securities must be valued weekly, marked-to-market at 
current market price plus accrued interest. 
(a) The value of collateral must be equal to 104% of the 

amount of cash transferred by the municipal entity 
to the dealer bank or security firm under the 
repurchase agreements plus accrued interest.  If the 
value of securities held as collateral slips below 
104% of the value of the cash transferred by 
municipality, then additional cash and/or acceptable 
securities must be transferred.  If, however, the 
securities used as collateral are FNMA or FHLMC, 
then the value of collateral must equal 105%. 

 
3. Legal opinion which must be delivered to the Issuer: 

a. Repurchase agreements meet guidelines under state law for legal 
investment of public funds. 

 
“Authorized Representative” means, in the case of the Issuer, the Chairman, the Vice Chairman, 
the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Executive Director and Chief 
Financial Officer, the Secretary or the Assistant Secretary of the Issuer; in the case of the School, 
the President, the Board Chair or the Treasurer of the School; and, in the case of either of the 
Issuer and the School, such additional persons as, at the time, are designated to act on behalf of 
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the Issuer or the School, as the case may be, by written certificate furnished to the Trustee, the 
Issuer or the School, as the case may be, containing the specimen signature of each such person 
and signed on behalf of (i) the Issuer by the Chairman, the Vice Chairman, the Executive 
Director and Chief Executive Officer, Deputy Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer, 
the Secretary or the Assistant Secretary of the Issuer, or (ii) the School by the President, the 
Board Chair or the Treasurer of the School. 
 
“Balloon Indebtedness” is Long-Term Indebtedness of which 25% or more in principal amount 
matures, or is required to be purchased by the School (either automatically or at the option of the 
holder of such Balloon Indebtedness) in any one year. 
“Bankruptcy Code” means the United States Bankruptcy Code, as amended from time to time. 
 
“Bond” or “Bonds” or “Series of Bonds” means collectively the Series 2013A Bonds, the Series 
2013B Bonds and any Series of Additional Bonds. 
 
“Bond Counsel” means the law firm of Nixon Peabody LLP or an attorney or other firm of 
attorneys whose experience in matters relating to the issuance of obligations by states and their 
political subdivisions is nationally recognized. 
 
“Bond Documents” means the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Indenture, the Loan Agreement, 
the Tax Regulatory Agreement, the Intercreditor Agreement, the Mortgages, the Collateral 
Mortgages, the Assignment of Mortgages, the Assignment of Collateral Mortgages, the Note, the 
Building Loan Agreement, the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Environmental 
Compliance and Indemnification Agreement, the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official 
Statement. 
 
“Bond Fund” means the fund so designated which is established by the Indenture. 
 
“Bond Purchase Agreement” means the Bond Purchase Agreement, dated December 19, 2013, 
among the Issuer, the School and the Underwriter, as the same may be amended from time to 
time. 
 
“Bond Proceeds” means the aggregate amount, including any accrued interest, paid to the Issuer 
by the Bondholders pursuant to the Indenture as the purchase price of the Series 2013 Bonds. 
 
“Bond Rate” means the tax-exempt rate of interest from time to time payable on any of the 
Series 2013A Bonds as defined therein. 
 
“Bond Resolution” means the resolution duly adopted by the Issuer on December 18, 2013, 
authorizing the issuance, execution, sale and delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds and the execution 
and delivery of Issuer Documents, as such resolution may be amended or supplemented from 
time to time. 
 
“Bond Year” means with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds, each 1-year period (or shorter period 
from the date of issue) that ends at the close of business on the day in the calendar year that is 
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selected by the Issuer (and approved by the School), which must be the last day of a 
compounding interval used in computing the yield on the Series 2013 Bonds. 
 
“Bondholder” means Owner. 
 
“Building Loan Agreement” means the Building Loan Agreement, dated as of December 1, 
2013, by and among the Issuer, the School and the Trustee. 
 
“Building Loan Mortgage” means the Building Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated 
as of December 1, 2013, from the School to the Issuer, as the same may be amended, modified or 
assigned from time to time. 
 
“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, a Sunday, a legal holiday or a day on 
which banking institutions in New York, New York or any city in which the principal office of 
the Trustee or any Paying Agent is located are authorized by law or executive order to remain 
closed. 
 
“Certificate of Authentication of the Trustee” and “Trustee’s Certificate of Authentication” 
means the certificate executed by an authorized signatory of the Trustee certifying the due 
authentication of each of the Series 2013 Bonds issued under the Indenture. 
 
“Closing Date” means the date of sale and delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds. 
 
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the final, temporary and 
proposed rules, regulations, rulings and interpretations of the Department of the Treasury 
promulgated thereunder. 
 
“Collateral Agent” means (i) Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, a banking corporation 
having trust powers duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, having 
an office at 1 M&T Plaza, 7th Floor, Buffalo, New York 14203 and (ii) its successors and any 
corporation resulting from or surviving any consolidation or merger to which it or its successors 
may be a party. 
 
“Collateral Mortgage” or “Collateral Mortgages” shall mean collectively, the Series 2011 
Collateral Mortgage, the Series 2013 Collateral Mortgage. 
 
“Completion Certificate” means the Completion Certificate delivered by the School to the Issuer 
and the Trustee pursuant to the Loan Agreement. 
 
“Completion Date” means the date of completion of the Project as certified to pursuant to the 
Loan Agreement. 
 
“Computation Period” means “Computation Period” as defined in the Tax Regulatory 
Agreement. 
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“Condemnation” means the taking of title to, or the use of, Property under the exercise of the 
power of eminent domain by any governmental entity or other Person acting under governmental 
authority. 
 
“Construction Account” means the Construction Account within the Project Fund which is 
established by the Indenture. 
 
“Construction Costs” shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the Tax Regulatory Agreement. 
 
“Construction Period” means, with respect to the Project, the period (i) beginning on the date of 
commencement of renovation, construction, equipping and furnishing of the Project, which date 
shall not be prior to October 25, 2013, and (ii) ending on the Completion Date with respect to the 
Project. 
 
“Continuing Disclosure Agreement” means the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated as of 
December 1, 2013, between the School and the Trustee. 
 
“Cost of the Project” or “Costs of the Project” means all those costs and items of expense listed 
in the Loan Agreement. 
 
“Custodian” means Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, as custodian under the Amended 
and Restated Custody Agreement. 
 
“Amended and Restated Custody Agreement” means the amended and restated custody 
agreement dated as of December 1, 2013 by and among the School, the Custodian and the 
Trustee.   
 
“Custody Agreement Notice” means the notice prepared by the Trustee in accordance with the 
provisions of the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement and the Indenture.  The form of 
Custody Agreement Notice shall be in the form set forth in Exhibit A to the Amended and 
Restated Custody Agreement. 
 
“Debt Service Payment” means, with respect to any Debt Service Payment Date, (i) the interest 
payable on such Debt Service Payment Date on all Series 2013 Bonds then Outstanding, plus 
(ii) the principal or Redemption Price, if any, payable on such Debt Service Payment Date on all 
such Series 2013 Bonds. 
 
“Debt Service Payment Date” means any date on which each Debt Service Payment shall be 
payable on any of the Series 2013 Bonds so long as the Series 2013 Bonds shall be outstanding. 
 
“Debt Service Reserve Fund” means the fund so designated with respect to the Series 2013A 
Bonds and the Series 2013B Bonds which is created by the Indenture. 
 
“Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement” means (a) with respect to the Series 2013A Bonds the 
lesser of (i) the highest amount of principal and interest payable with respect to the School’s 
Series 2013A Bonds during the then current or any succeeding Bond Year over the remaining 
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term of the Series 2013A Bonds, (ii) one-hundred twenty five percent (125%) of the School’s 
average annual debt service, or (iii) ten percent (10%) of the par amount of the Series 2013A 
Bonds, or such lesser amount as may be required in a Supplemental Indenture authorizing a 
series of Additional Bonds; and (b) with respect to the Series 2013B Bonds $0.00, or (iii) ten 
percent (10%) of the par amount of the Series 2013B Bonds, or such lesser amount as may be 
required in a Supplemental Indenture authorizing a series of Additional Bonds.   
 
“Default Rate” shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the Series 2013 Bonds. 
 
“Demand Indebtedness” means any Long Term Indebtedness the principal of and accrued 
interest on are payable by the School upon demand of the holder of such Indebtedness. 
 
“Disability Aid” shall mean those certain federal and State payments payable to the School 
attributable to students with disabilities. 
 
“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York. 
 
“DTC Letter of Representation” means the Letter of Representation from the Issuer to DTC. 
 
“Education Aid” shall mean, collectively, all State Education Operating Aid, Disability Aid and 
any Other Education Aid payable to the School pursuant to the New York State Education Law 
or federal law for the payment of operations of the School. 
 
“Environmental Compliance and Indemnification Agreement” means the Environmental 
Compliance and Indemnification Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013, from the School to 
the Issuer and the Trustee. 
 
“Equipment” means all machinery, equipment and other personal property used and to be used in 
connection with the Project and financed with Bond Proceeds. 
 
“Event of Default” (i) when used with respect to the Indenture means any of those events defined 
as an Event of Default by the Indenture, and (ii) when used with respect to the Loan Agreement, 
means any of the events defined as Events of Default by the Loan Agreement. 
 
“Event of Taxability” means: 

(i)  a final determination by any court of competent jurisdiction or a final 
determination by the Internal Revenue Service to which the School shall consent or from which 
no timely appeal shall be taken to the effect that interest on the Series 2013A Bonds is includible 
in the gross income of the owner thereof under Section 61 of the Code; or 
 

(ii)  the delivery to the School and to the Issuer of an opinion of Bond Counsel 
(reasonably satisfactory to the School) to the effect that interest on the Series 2013A Bonds is 
includible in the gross income of the owner thereof under Section 61 of the Code. 
 
“Excess Fund Balance” means a fund balance/net asset balance in excess of the minimum 
required under the Loan Agreement. 
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“Excess Net Revenues” means Gross Revenues, less Operating Expenses, annual debt service on 
Long-Term Indebtedness, payments on any capital leases, and Debt Service Reserve Fund 
deficiency payments.   
 
“Exempt Organization” means an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and 
which is exempt from federal income taxation pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. 
 
“Extraordinary Services” and “Extraordinary Expenses” means all services rendered and all fees 
and expenses incurred by or due to the Trustee or any Paying Agent under the Indenture other 
than Ordinary Services and Ordinary Expenses, including reasonable fees and disbursements of 
Trustee’s counsel. 
 
“Facility” shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the recitals to the Indenture. 
 
“Fiscal Year” means the twelve (12) month period beginning on July 1 in any year or such other 
fiscal year as the School may select from time to time. 
 
“Fitch” means Fitch Ratings and its successors and assigns. 
 
“Government Obligations” means: 
 
1. U.S. Treasury Certificates, Notes and Bonds (including State and Local Government 
Series – “SLGS”). 
2. Direct obligations of the Treasury which have been stripped by the Treasury itself, 
CATS, TIGRS and similar securities. 
3. Resolution Funding Corp. (REFCORP).  Only the interest component of REFCORP 
strips which have been stripped by request to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York in book 
entry form are acceptable. 
4. Pre-refunded municipal bonds rated Aaa by Moody’s and AAA by S&P.  If however, the 
issue is only rated by S&P (i.e., there is no Moody’s rating), then the pre-refunded bonds must 
have been pre-refunded with cash, direct U.S. or U.S. guaranteed obligations or AAA rated pre-
refunded municipals to satisfy this condition. 
5. Obligations issued by the following agencies which are backed by the full faith and credit 
of the U.S.: 

a. U.S. Export-Import Bank (Eximbank) 
Direct obligations are fully guaranteed certificates of beneficial ownership 

b. Farmers Home Administration (FmHA) 
Certificates of beneficial ownership 

c. Federal Financing Bank 
d. General Services Administration 
 Participation Certificates 
 
e. U.S. Maritime Administration 

Guaranteed Title XI financing 
f. U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) 
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Project Notes 
Local Authority Bonds 
New Communities Debentures – U.S. government guaranteed debentures 
U.S. Public Housing Notes and Bonds – U.S. government guaranteed 
public housing notes and bonds 
 

“Gross Revenues” means, regardless of the source, all revenues, rentals, fees, third-party 
payments, receipts, donations, contributions or other income of the School, to the extent 
permitted thereby and by law, including accounts receivables or other rights to receive such 
revenues, including, without limitation, Education Aid, proceeds derived from insurance, 
condemnation proceeds, accounts, contract rights and other rights and assets, whether now or 
hereafter owned, held or possessed by the School; and all gifts, grants, bequests and 
contributions (including income and profits therefrom) to the extent permitted by the terms 
thereof and by law.  
 
“Hazardous Substance” means, without limitation, any flammable, explosive, radon, radioactive 
materials, asbestos, urea formaldehyde foam insulation, polychlorinated biphenyls, petroleum, 
petroleum constituents, petroleum products, methane, hazardous materials, hazardous wastes, 
hazardous or toxic substances or related materials, pollutants, or toxic pollutants, as defined in 
the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as 
amended (42 U.S.C. Sections 9601, et seq.), the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as 
amended (42 U.S.C. Sections 6901, et seq.), the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, as 
amended (49 U.S.C. Sections 1801, et seq.), the Toxic Substances Control Act, as amended (15 
U.S.C. Sections 2601, et seq.), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 
Sections 1251 et seq.), Articles 17 and 27 of the New York State Environmental Conservation 
Law, or any other applicable Environmental Law and the regulations promulgated thereunder.  
 
“Holder” means Owner. 
 
“Improvements” means all those buildings, improvements, structures and other related facilities 
(i)  financed with Bond Proceeds or of any payment by the School pursuant to the Loan 
Agreement, and (ii) not part of the Equipment, all as they may exist from time to time. 
 
“Indebtedness” means, without duplication, indebtedness for borrowed money incurred or 
guaranteed by the School, whether or not evidenced by notes, bonds, debentures or other similar 
evidences of indebtedness, including guaranties, reimbursement obligations, indebtedness under 
purchase money mortgages, capital leases, installment sales agreements and similar security 
arrangements which appear as debt on the audited balance sheet of the School in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles then applicable to the School. 
 
“Indenture” means the Indenture of Trust, dated as of December 1, 2013, by and between the 
Issuer and the Trustee, entered into in connection with the issuance, sale, delivery and payment 
of the Series 2013 Bonds and the security therefor as the same may be amended or supplemented 
from time to time. 
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“Independent Counsel” means an attorney or attorneys or firm or firms of attorneys duly 
admitted to practice law before the highest court of any state of the United States of America or 
in the District of Columbia and not a full time employee of the Issuer, the School or the Trustee. 
 
“Information Report” means Form 8038 used by the issuers of certain tax-exempt bonds to 
provide the Internal Revenue Service with the information required to monitor the State volume 
limitations. 
 
“Initial Bondholder” means Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC, as the initial owner of the Series 
2013 Bonds. 
 
“Initial Compliance Fee” means the Initial Compliance Fee in the amount of $2,500 paid by the 
School to the Issuer on the Closing date pursuant to the Loan Agreement. 
 
“Intercreditor Agreement” means the Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013, by 
and among the School, the Trustee, the 2011 Trustee and the Custodian. 
 
“Issuer” means (i) the Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation, its successors and 
assigns, and (ii) any local governmental body resulting from or surviving any consolidation or 
merger to which the Issuer or its successors may be a party. 
 
“Issuer Documents” means the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Series 2013A Bonds, the Series 
2013B Bonds, the Loan Agreement, the Indenture, the Mortgages, the Assignment of Mortgages, 
the Note (Tax Exempt Series), the Note (Taxable Series), the Building Loan Agreement, the Tax 
Regulatory Agreement, the Information Report, the Preliminary Official Statement and the 
Official Statement. 
 
“Lien” means any interest in Property securing an obligation owed to a Person whether such 
interest is based on the common law, statute or contract, and including but not limited to the 
security interest arising from a mortgage, encumbrance, pledge, conditional sale or trust receipt 
or a lease, consignment or bailment for security purposes.  The term “Lien” also means any 
reservations, exceptions, encroachments, easements, rights-of-way, covenants, conditions, 
restrictions, leases and other similar title exceptions and encumbrances, including but not limited 
to mechanics’, materialmen’s, warehousemen’s, carriers’ and other similar encumbrances 
affecting real property.  For the purposes of this definition, a Person shall be deemed to be the 
owner of any Property which it has acquired or holds subject to a conditional sale agreement or 
other arrangement pursuant to which title to the Property has been retained by or vested in some 
other Person for security purposes. 
 
“Loan Agreement” means the Series 2013 Loan Agreement or any other Loan Agreement 
entered into in connection with any Series of Additional Bonds. 
 
“Loan Term” means the duration of the loan term created in the Loan Agreement. 
 
“Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio” means for any Fiscal Year of the School, or other 
specified period, the ratio determined by dividing the Net Income Available for Debt Service by 
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the debt service due that Fiscal Year.  When calculating the Long-Term Debt Coverage Ratio, 
capitalized interest shall be counted as income.  
 
“Long-Term Indebtedness” means Indebtedness with a term greater than one (1) year. 
 
“Management Consultant” means an Independent consulting firm which is appointed by the 
School for the purpose of passing on questions relating to the financial affairs, management or 
operations of the School and (i)  has a favorable reputation for skill and experience in performing 
similar services in respect of entities of a comparable size and nature and (ii) is not unsatisfactory 
to the Trustee.   
 
“Maximum Annual Debt Service” means the highest amount of principal and interest payable 
with respect to the School’s Long-Term Indebtedness during the then current or any succeeding 
Bond Year over the remaining term of any Bonds.  For purposes of calculating Maximum 
Annual Debt Service, (i) variable rate Indebtedness is deemed to bear interest at the most recent 
Bond Buyer 25 Revenue Bond Index (if tax-exempt) or the 30-year United States Treasury Rate 
(if taxable) and (ii) the principal of Balloon Indebtedness will be deemed to mature in equal 
annual installments over a term equal to the lesser of (x) twenty years or (y) the actual term of 
such Indebtedness. 
 
“Moody’s” means Moody’s Investor Service. 
 
“Mortgage” or “Mortgages” shall mean collectively, the Acquisition Loan Mortgage, the 
Building Loan Mortgage, the Project Loan Mortgage, the Series 2011 Collateral Mortgage, the 
Series 2013 Collateral Mortgage, any mortgage and security agreement granted by the School to 
secure any Additional Bonds or Parity Indebtedness, and shall include any and all amendments 
thereof and supplements thereto and assignment of interests therein hereafter made in conformity 
therewith, and with the Indenture and the Loan Agreement. 
 
“Mortgaged Property” has the meaning set forth in the Mortgages. 
 
“Net Income Available for Debt Service” means, for any period of determination thereof, Gross 
Revenues of the School for such period, plus all interest earnings on moneys held in the Debt 
Service Reserve Fund established under the Indenture and any Excess Fund Balance, minus the 
School’s total Operating Expenses for such period but excluding (i) any profits or losses which 
would be regarded as extraordinary items under GAAP, (ii) cancellation of indebtedness income, 
(iii) proceeds of Bonds or any other Indebtedness permitted by the Agreement, (iv) proceeds of 
insurance policies, other than the policies for business interruption insurance, maintained by or 
for the benefit of the School, the proceeds of any sale, transfer or other disposition of the Project 
or any other of the School’s assets by the School, and any condemnation or any other damage 
award received by or owing to the School and (v) unrestricted cash, restricted cash on the 
School’s Balance Sheet, (including, but not limited to moneys in the Debt Service Reserve Fund 
or Renewal and Replacement Fund) and access to any lines of credit.    
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“Net Proceeds” means so much of the gross proceeds with respect to which that term is used as 
remain after payment of all expenses, costs and taxes (including attorneys’ fees) incurred in 
obtaining such gross proceeds. 
 
“Notes” or “Promissory Notes” means, collectively, (i) with respect to the Series 2013A Bonds, 
the Promissory Note, dated the Closing Date, from the School to the Issuer, substantially in the 
form of Exhibit C-1 to the Loan Agreement, and (ii) with respect to the Series 2013B Bonds, the 
Promissory Note, dated the Closing Date, from the School to the Issuer, substantially in the form 
of Exhibit C-2 to the Loan Agreement evidencing the School’s obligations to make Loan 
Payments to the Issuer. 
 
“Office of the Trustee” means the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee, as specified in 
the Indenture, or such other address as the Trustee shall designate. 
 
“Official Statement” means the Official Statement, dated December 19, 2013, distributed by the 
Underwriter and the School in connection with the sale of the Series 2013 Bonds. 
 
“Operating Expenses” means fees and expenses of the School, including maintenance, repair 
expenses, utility expenses, real estate taxes, insurance premiums, administrative and legal 
expenses, miscellaneous operating expenses, advertising and promotion costs, payroll expenses 
(including taxes), the cost of material and supplies used for current operations of the School, the 
cost of vehicles, equipment leases and service contracts, taxes upon the operations of the School 
not otherwise mentioned in the Indenture, charges for the accumulation of appropriate reserves 
for current expenses not annually recurrent, but which may be reasonably be expected to be 
incurred in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, all in such amounts as 
reasonably determined by the School; provided however, “Operating Expenses” shall not include 
(i) those expenses which are actually paid from any revenues of the School which are not Gross 
Revenues, (ii) spending for items accounted for as capital expenditures under GAAP or (iii) 
replenishments of the Debt Service Reserve Fund.  
 
“Ordinary Services” and “Ordinary Expenses” means those services normally rendered and those 
fees and expenses normally incurred by or due to a trustee or paying agent, as the case may be, 
under instruments similar to the Indenture, including reasonable fees and disbursements of 
counsel for the Trustee. 
 
“Other Education Aid” shall mean any federal or State payments, other than State Education 
Operating Aid or Disability Aid, payable to the School for the purpose of funding operations of 
the School. 
 
“Outstanding” or “Bonds Outstanding” or “Outstanding Bonds” means all bonds which have 
been authenticated by the Trustee and delivered by the Issuer under the Indenture, or any 
supplement thereto, except: (i) any Bond cancelled by the Trustee because of payment or 
redemption prior to maturity; (ii) any bond deemed paid in accordance with the provisions of the 
Indenture, except that any such Bond shall be considered Outstanding until the maturity date 
thereof only for the purposes of being exchanged or registered; and (iii) any Bond in lieu of or in 
substitution for which another Bond shall have been authenticated and delivered pursuant to the 
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Indenture, unless proof satisfactory to the Trustee is presented that any Bond, for which a Bond 
in lieu of or in substitution therefor shall have been authenticated and delivered, is held by a bona 
fide purchaser, as that term is defined in Article 8 of the Uniform Commercial Code of the State, 
as amended, in which case both the Bond so substituted and replaced and the Bond or Bonds so 
authenticated and delivered in lieu thereof or in substitution therefor shall be deemed 
Outstanding. 
 
“Owner” means the registered owner of any Bond as shown on the registration books maintained 
by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture. 
 
“Parity Indebtedness” means any Indebtedness including Additional Bonds issued pursuant to 
the Indenture and Indebtedness by the School pursuant to the Loan Agreement which is secured 
by a parity lien on the Mortgaged Property. 
 
“Paying Agent” means the Trustee, acting as such, and any additional paying agent for the Series 
2013 Bonds appointed pursuant to the Indenture, their respective successors and any other 
corporation which may at any time be substituted in their respective places pursuant to the 
Indenture. 
 
“Paymaster” means an individual or firm with experience in monitoring, approving and paying 
construction requisitions and appointed by the School and acceptable to the Issuer. 
 
“Permitted Encumbrances” means (i) the Loan Agreement, (ii) the Mortgages, (iii) the 
Assignment of Mortgages (iv) the Building Loan Agreement and (x) any Permitted Liens. 
 
“Permitted Liens” means:  (i) any judgment lien or notice of pending action against the School as 
to which the School is insured as to the full amount of potential liability, or if the School is 
uninsured or underinsured, so long as such judgment or pending action is being contested and 
execution thereon is stayed; (ii)(A) rights reserved to or vested in any municipality or public 
authority by the terms of any right, power, franchise, grant, license, permit or provision of law, 
affecting any Property, to (1) terminate such right, power franchise, grant, license or permit, 
provided that the exercise of such right would not materially impair the use of the Property or 
materially and adversely affect the value thereof, or (2) purchase, condemn, appropriate or 
recapture, or designate a purchaser of, such Property; (B) any Liens on any Property for taxes, 
assessments, levies, fees, water and sewer rents, and other governmental and similar charges and 
any Liens of mechanics, materialmen, laborers, suppliers or vendors for work or services 
performed or materials furnished in connection with such Property, which are not due and 
payable or which are not delinquent or which, or the amount of validity of which, are being 
contested and execution thereon is stayed or, with respect to Liens of mechanics, materialmen, 
and laborers, have been due for less than sixty (60) days; and (C) easements, utility, access and 
other easements, rights-of-way, servitudes, restrictions and other minor defects, encumbrances, 
and irregularities in the title to any Property which do not materially impair the use of such 
Property or materially and adversely affect the value thereof; (iii) any Lien which will come into 
existence on or is existing on the Closing Date provided that no such Lien (or the amount of 
Indebtedness secured thereby) may be increased, extended, renewed or modified to apply to any 
Property of the School not subject to such Lien on such date, unless such Lien as so increased, 
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extended, renewed or modified otherwise qualifies as a Permitted Lien under the Indenture; 
(iv) purchase money security interests and security interests existing on any Property prior to the 
time of its acquisition through purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise, or placed upon 
Property to secure a portion of the purchase price thereof, or lessor’s interests in leases required 
to be capitalized in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; provided that the 
aggregate principal amounts secured by any such interests shall not exceed at the time of 
incurrence or assumption the fair market value of such Property subject to such security interests 
and equipment leases of less than one (1) year; (v) liens arising by reason of good faith deposits 
in connection with leases of real estate, bids or contracts (other than contracts for the payment of 
money), deposits to secure public or statutory obligations, or to secure, or in lieu of, surety, stay 
or appeal bonds, and deposits as security for the payment of taxes or assessments or other similar 
charges; (vi) any Lien arising by reason of deposits with, or the giving of any form of security to, 
any governmental agency or any body created or approved by law or governmental regulation for 
any purpose at any time as required by law or governmental regulation as a condition to the 
transaction of any business or the exercise of any privilege or license, or to secure letters or lines 
of credit issued to fulfill statutory obligations including bonds for the performance of any 
employer’s obligations under worker’s compensation self insurance programs, or to enable the 
School to maintain self-insurance or to participate in any funds established to cover any 
insurance risks or in connection with workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance, pension 
or profit-sharing plans or other similar arrangements, or to share in the privileges or benefits 
required for companies participating in such arrangements, or in favor of a bank or trust 
company on deposits with such bank or trust company or to enable a bank or trust company to 
use deposits with such bank or trust company for set-off of Indebtedness of the School to such 
bank or trust company; (vii) any Lien arising by reason of an irrevocable deposit; (viii) any Lien 
in favor of a trustee on the proceeds of Indebtedness prior to the application of such proceeds or 
on moneys to repay Indebtedness while held in a debt service fund, debt service reserve fund or a 
redemption fund, or on any moneys to secure payment of the trustee’s fees; (ix) liens for taxes or 
special assessments not then delinquent or which are being contested in good faith; (x) liens on 
Property due to rights of third-party payors for set-off or recoupment of amounts paid to the 
School; (xi) any Lien arising solely by reason of a lease of Property to others which lease 
(A) would not have any material adverse effect upon (1) the security for the Series 2013 Bonds, 
(2) the operations of the Property, or (3) the amount of gross revenues, or (B) is of a customary 
type such as office space for educational institutions, food service facilities, book store, gift 
shops or other special services, and similar departments; and (xii) other Liens and encumbrances 
in favor of the Issuer or the Trustee. 
 
“Person” or “Persons” means an individual, partnership, corporation, trust or unincorporated 
organization, and a government or agency or political subdivision or branch thereof. 
 
“Plans and Specifications” means those plans and specifications, if any, for the Improvements, as 
may be from time to time prepared for the School, as revised from time to time in accordance 
with the Loan Agreement. 
 
“Project” or “2013 Project” means the Project as more particularly described in the Loan 
Agreement financed by the School with the proceeds of the Bonds loaned by the Issuer to the 
School under the Loan Agreement. 
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“Project Fund” means the fund so designated which is created by the Indenture. 
 
“Project Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement” means the Project Loan Mortgage and 
Security Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013, as the same may be amended, modified or 
assigned thereto from time to time. 
 
“Project Monitor” means collectively the Architect and the Paymaster.   
 
“Property” means any interest in any kind of property or asset, whether real, personal or mixed, 
or tangible or intangible. 
 
“Rating Agency” means Moody’s, Fitch, S&P or such other nationally recognized rating agency 
which shall have issued and is maintaining a rating on the Series 2013 Bonds. 
 
“Rating Agency Letter” means the rating letter from each Rating Agency assigning a rating on 
the Series 2013 Bonds. 
 
“Rebate Amount” means, with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds, the amount computed as 
described in the Tax Regulatory Agreement. 
 
“Rebate Fund” means the fund so designated pursuant to the Indenture. 
 
“Record Date” means, with respect to any Debt Service Payment Date, the fifteenth (15th) day of 
the month next preceding such Debt Service Payment Date (whether or not a Business Day). 
 
“Redemption Date” means, when used with respect to a Bond, the date of redemption thereof 
established pursuant to the Indenture. 
 
“Redemption Price” means, when used with respect to a Bond, the principal amount thereof plus 
the applicable premium, if any, payable upon the prior redemption thereof pursuant to the 
Indenture. 
 
“Renewal Fund” means the fund so designated and created pursuant to the Indenture. 
 
“Repair and Replacement Fund” means the fund so designated and created pursuant to the 
Indenture. 
 
“Repair and Replacement Fund Requirement” means a maximum amount equal to $100,000. 
 
“Responsible Officer”, when used with respect to the Trustee, means any officer of the Trustee 
with responsibility for the administration of the Indenture and, when used with respect to a 
particular corporate trust matter, also means any other officer to whom such matter is referred 
because of such officer’s knowledge of and familiarity with the particular subject. 
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“Schedule of Definitions” means the words and terms set forth in the Schedule of Definitions 
attached to the Indenture as the same may be amended from time to time. 
 
“School” means The Academy Charter School, an education corporation duly organized and 
validly existing under the laws of the State of New York, and its successors and assigns. 
 
“School Districts” means, collectively, at any time, the Town of Hempstead School District and 
any other public school district which has students residing in such school district then attending 
the School. 
 
“School Documents” means the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Loan Agreement, the Tax 
Regulatory Agreement, the Mortgage, the Note, the Building Loan Agreement, the Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement, the Environmental Compliance and Indemnification Agreement, the 
Preliminary Official Statement, and the Official Statement. 
 
“Security Documents” shall mean, collectively, the Loan Agreement, the Promissory Note, the 
Indenture, the Tax Regulatory Agreement, the Building Loan Agreement, the Mortgages and the 
Assignment of Mortgages. 
 
“SEQR Act” means the State Environmental Quality Review Act and the regulations thereunder. 
 
“Series 2011 Bonds” means, collectively, the Series 2011A Bonds and the Series 2011B Bonds. 
 
“Series 2011 Collateral Mortgage” means the Collateral Mortgage and Security Agreement, 
dated as of December 1, 2013, from the School to the Issuer, as the same may be amended, 
modified or assigned thereto from time to time, encumbering  the 2013 Project. 
 
“Series 2011A Bonds” means the Issuer’s Education Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A (The 
Academy Charter School Project) issued pursuant to the terms of the 2011 Indenture on March 
30, 2011 in the aggregate principal amount of $10,505,000. 
 
“Series 2011B Bonds” means the Issuer’s Taxable Education Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B 
(The Academy Charter School Project) issued pursuant to the terms of the 2011 Indenture on 
March 30, 2011 in the aggregate principal amount of $235,000. 
 
“Series 2013 Bonds” means, collectively, the Series 2013A Bonds and the Series 2013B Bonds. 
 
“Series 2013A Bonds” means the Issuer’s Education Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A (The 
Academy Charter School Project) issued pursuant to the terms of the Indenture on December 1, 
2013 in the aggregate principal amount of $12,970,000 and substantially in the form of Exhibit 
A-1 of the Indenture. 
 
“Series 2013B Bonds” means the Issuer’s Taxable Education Revenue Bonds, Series 2013B 
(The Academy Charter School Project) issued pursuant to the terms of the Indenture on 
December 1, 2013 in the aggregate principal amount of $545,000 and substantially in the form of 
Exhibit A-2 of the Indenture. 
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“Series 2013 Bonds Capitalized Interest Account” means the account within the Project Fund 
which is established by the Indenture. 
 
“Series 2013 Collateral Mortgage” means the Collateral Mortgage and Security Agreement, 
dated as of December 1, 2013, from the School to the Issuer, as the same may be amended, 
modified or assigned thereto from time to time, encumbering the 2011 Project. 
 
“Series 2013 Loan Agreement” means the Loan Agreement dated as of December 1, 2013, by 
and between the Issuer and the School with respect to the Project, as the same may be amended 
from time to time. 
 
“Series 2013 Tax Regulatory Agreement” means the Tax Regulatory Agreement, dated the 
Closing Date, between the Issuer and the School, as the same may be amended, modified or 
supplemented from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof and with the terms of the 
Indenture. 
 
“Short-Term Indebtedness” means Indebtedness with a term of one (1) year or less, but not 
including accounts payable by the School in the ordinary course of its operations. 
 
“Sinking Fund Payments” means payments made on a Debt Service Payment Date to pay the 
Redemption Price of bonds called for redemption pursuant to the Indenture. 
 
“S&P” or “Standard & Poor’s” means Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a division of The 
McGraw Hill Companies, Inc. 
 
“State” means the State of New York. 
 
“State Education Operating Aid” shall mean all New York State Education Department operating 
aid payments appropriated for the purpose of funding operating expenses of the School on a per-
pupil basis. 
 
“State Education Operating Aid Payment Dates” means each July 1, September 1, November 1, 
January 1, March 1 and May 1, or such other dates as may in the future be established as the 
payment dates for Education Aid. 
 
“Supplemental Indenture” means any indenture supplemental to or amendatory of the Indenture 
or in connection with the issuance of any Additional Bonds adopted by the Issuer in accordance 
with the Indenture. 
 
“Tax Regulatory Agreement” means the Series 2013 Tax Regulatory Agreement or any other 
Tax Regulatory Agreement entered into in connection with any Series of Additional Bonds. 
 
“Tax Incidence Date” means the date from which the interest on the Series 2013 Bonds is 
deemed to be includible in the gross income of the owner of a Bond by virtue of an Event of 
Taxability. 
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“Title Report” means Certificate of Title No. MA-26541-OR-N issued on October 17, 2013 and 
redated and recertified on the Closing Date. 
 
“Triggering Event” shall have the meaning assigned thereto in the Loan Agreement. 
 
“Trust Estate” means the rights assigned pursuant to the Indenture and all Property which may 
from time to time be subject to the Lien of the Indenture. 
 
“Trustee” means (i) Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, a banking corporation having 
trust powers duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of New York, having an 
office at 1 M&T Plaza, 7th Floor, Buffalo, New York 14203 and (ii) its successors and any 
corporation resulting from or surviving any consolidation or merger to which it or its successors 
may be a party and any successor trustee at the time serving as successor trustee under the 
Indenture. 
 
“Unassigned Rights” means the rights of the Issuer and moneys payable pursuant to and under 
Sections 5.3(b), 6.4(b) and (c), 6.7, 8.2, 8.8, 10.2(a)(i)(A) and (B), (iii) and (vi), 10.4(a) and 
11.2(b) of the Loan Agreement. 
 
“Underwriter” means (i) Robert W. Baird & Co., Incorporated., having an office at 210 
University Blvd, Suite 460, Denver, Colorado 80211, or (ii) its successors and assigns. 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 
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SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS 
OF THE INDENTURE OF TRUST 

 
  The following is a brief summary of certain provisions of the Indenture and 
should not be considered a full statement thereof.  Reference is made to the Indenture for 
complete details of the terms thereof.   
 
Authentication   

No Series 2013A Bond or Series 2013B Bond shall be valid for any purpose or shall be 
entitled to any right or benefit under the Indenture unless there shall be endorsed on such Bond a 
Certificate of Authentication, duly executed by the Trustee, substantially in the form set forth in 
the Form of Bond included in the Indenture as Exhibit A-1 and Exhibit A-2 respectively attached 
to the Indenture.  Such executed Certificate of Authentication by the Trustee upon any such 
Bond shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has been authenticated and delivered under 
the Indenture.  The Trustee’s Certificate of Authentication on any Bond shall be deemed to have 
been executed by it if signed by an authorized signatory of the Trustee, but it shall not be 
necessary that the same person sign the Certificate of Authentication on all of the Series 2013 
Bonds issued under the Indenture. 

 
Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Bonds 

(a) In the event any Bond is mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Issuer shall 
execute and, upon its request, the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of like 
maturity, series, interest rate and principal amount and bearing the same number (or such number 
as the Trustee shall permit) as the mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bond, in exchange for the 
mutilated Bond, or in substitution for the Bond so destroyed, lost or stolen.  In every case of 
exchange or substitution, the applicant shall furnish to the Issuer and to the Trustee (i) such 
security or indemnity as may be required by them to hold each of them harmless from all risks, 
however remote, and (ii) evidence to their satisfaction of the mutilation, destruction, loss or theft 
of the applicant’s Bond and of the ownership thereof.  Upon the issuance of any Bond upon such 
exchange or substitution, the Issuer may require the payment of a sum sufficient to cover any tax 
or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation thereto and any other expenses, 
including counsel fees, of the Issuer or the Trustee.  In case any Bond which has matured or is 
about to mature shall become mutilated or be destroyed, lost or stolen, the Issuer may, instead of 
issuing a Bond in exchange or substitution therefor, pay or authorize the payment of the same 
(without surrender thereof except in the case of a mutilated Bond) if the applicant for such 
payment shall furnish to the Issuer and to the Trustee such security or indemnity as they may 
require to hold them harmless and evidence to the satisfaction of the Issuer and the Trustee of the 
mutilation, destruction, loss or theft of such Bond and of the ownership thereof. 
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(b) Every new Bond issued pursuant to the provisions of this summarized section 
shall constitute an additional contractual, special obligation of the Issuer (whether or not the 
destroyed, lost or stolen Bond shall be found at any time after the issuance of such new Bonds, in 
which case the destroyed, lost or stolen Bond shall be void and unenforceable) and shall be 
entitled to all the benefits of the Indenture equally and proportionately with any and all other 
Bonds duly issued under the Indenture. 

(c) All Bonds shall be held and owned upon the express condition that the provisions 
of this summarized section are exclusive, with respect to the replacement or payment of 
mutilated, destroyed, lost or stolen Bonds, and shall preclude all other rights or remedies, 
notwithstanding any law or statute existing or hereinafter enacted to the contrary. 

 
Establishment of Funds  

The following trust funds are established with the Trustee and shall be held, maintained 
and administered by the Trustee on behalf of the Issuer in accordance with the Indenture: 

(a) Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation Bond Fund – The Academy 
Charter School (the “Bond Fund”), and within such Bond Fund, an “Interest Account” and a 
“Principal Account” and within such Interest Account and Principal Accounts, Sub-Accounts for 
the Series 2013A Bonds and the Series 2013B Bonds. 

(b) Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation Project Fund – The 
Academy Charter School (the “Project Fund”), and within such Project Fund, a “Series 2013 
Bonds Capitalized Interest Account”, a “Capitalized Interest Account” for any series of 
Additional Bonds issued under the Indenture, if applicable, and within such Capitalized Interest 
Account, separate Sub-Accounts for the Series 2013A Bonds and the Series 2013B Bonds, and a 
“Construction Account”. 

(c) Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation Rebate Fund – The 
Academy Charter School (the “Rebate Fund”). 

(d) Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation Renewal Fund – The 
Academy Charter School (the “Renewal Fund”). 

(e) Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation Debt Service Reserve 
Fund – The Academy Charter School (the “Debt Service Reserve Fund”). 

(f) Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation Repair and Replacement 
Fund – The Academy Charter School (the “Repair and Replacement Fund”).  

(g)  Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation Key Person Life  Insurance 
Proceeds Fund – The Academy Charter School (the “Key Person Life Insurance Proceeds 
Fund”) 

(h) Upon the issuance of any series of Additional Bonds pursuant to the Indenture, 
the Supplemental Indenture entered into with such series of Additional Bonds shall create such 
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Funds and Accounts and/or subaccounts within any Account with respect to such series of 
Bonds. 

Moneys to Be Held in Trust   
All moneys deposited with, paid to or received by the Trustee for the accounts of the 

Issuer (other than amounts deposited in the Rebate Fund) shall be held by the Trustee in trust, 
and shall be subject to the lien of the Indenture and held for the security of the Owners of the 
particular Series of Bonds until paid in full; provided, however, that moneys which have been 
deposited with, paid to or received by the Trustee (i) for the redemption of a portion of the 
particular Series of Bonds, notice of the redemption of which has been given, or (ii) for the 
payment of the particular Series of Bonds or interest thereon due and payable otherwise than 
upon acceleration by declaration, shall be held in trust for and subject to a Lien in favor of only 
the Owners of such Series of Bonds so called for redemption or so due and payable.  Upon the 
issuance of any series of Additional Bonds pursuant to the Indenture, the Supplemental Indenture 
entered into with such series of Additional Bonds shall create such Funds and Accounts and/or 
subaccounts within any Account with respect to such series of Bonds. 

 
Use of the Moneys in Project Fund 

(a) Moneys in the Project Fund shall be applied and expended by the Trustee in 
accordance with the provisions of this summarized section and of the Loan Agreement.   

(b) On each Debt Service Payment Date during the Construction Period, the Trustee 
is authorized and directed to transfer from the Series 2013 Capitalized Interest Account to the 
Series 2013 Interest Sub-Account of the Interest Account of the Bond Fund an amount necessary 
to pay interest on the Series 2013 Bonds on such Debt Service Payment Date.  The Trustee shall 
maintain adequate records pertaining to the Capitalized Interest Account of Project Fund and all 
disbursements therefrom. 

(c) Except as otherwise provided in paragraphs (a) and (b) above, the Trustee is 
directed to issue its checks for each disbursement from the Construction Account of the Project 
Fund upon being furnished with a written requisition therefor certified by an Authorized 
Representative of the School, the Architect and the Paymaster together as the Project Monitor, 
substantially in the form of Exhibit B annexed to the Indenture to pay the Costs of the Project.  
The Trustee shall maintain adequate records pertaining to the Project Fund and all disbursements 
therefrom. 

(d) The completion of the Project and payment or provision for payment of all Costs 
of the Project shall be evidenced by the filing with the Trustee of the Completion Certificate 
required by the Loan Agreement.  As soon as practicable and in any event not more than sixty 
(60) days after the date of the filing with the Trustee of the Completion Certificate referred to in 
the preceding sentence, any balance remaining in the Construction Account of the Project Fund, 
except amounts the School shall have directed the Trustee, in writing, to retain for any Cost of 
the Project not then due and payable, and after the making of any transfer to the Rebate Fund that 
the School shall have directed the Trustee, in writing, to make as required by the Tax Regulatory 
Agreement and the Indenture, shall without further authorization be transferred to the Bond Fund 
and thereafter applied as provided in subsection (d) under the heading “Use of Moneys in Bond 
Fund”. 
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(e) Within sixty (60) days after transfer of the balance in the Project Fund relating to 
the Series 2013 Bonds to the Bond Fund, the Trustee shall file an accounting thereof with the 
Issuer and the School and the Trustee shall apply such transferred amounts as provided in 
subsection (d) under the heading “Use of Moneys in Bond Fund”. 

(f) All earnings on amounts held in the Project Fund shall be retained in the 
respective account of the Project Fund until the Completion Date.  Any transfers by the Trustee 
of amounts to the Rebate Fund (only at the direction of the School) shall be drawn by the Trustee 
from the Project Fund. 

(g) If an Event of Default under the Indenture shall have occurred and the outstanding 
principal amount of the Series 2013 Bonds shall have been declared due and payable, the entire 
balance remaining in the Project Fund, after making any transfer to the Rebate Fund directed to 
be made by the School pursuant to the Tax Regulatory Agreement and the Indenture, shall be 
transferred to the Bond Fund for the redemption of the Series 2013 Bonds. 

 
Payments into Bond Fund   

In addition to the payment into the Bond Fund of the accrued interest, if any, on the 
Series 2013 Bonds pursuant to the Indenture, there shall be deposited in the Bond Fund, as and 
when received (a) all payments received by the Trustee under the Loan Agreement or any similar 
provision in any Loan Agreement with respect to the payment of debt service on any series of 
Additional Bonds and the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement; (b) amounts transferred 
from the Capitalized Interest Account to the applicable interest subaccount of the Interest 
Account pursuant to the Indenture; (c) the balance in the Project Fund and the Renewal Fund to 
the extent specified in the Indenture; (d) amounts transferred from the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund pursuant to the Indenture with respect to the Series 2013A Bonds or with respect to any 
other Series of Bonds for which a Debt Service Reserve Fund account has been established and 
funded; (e) the amount of net income or gain received from the investments of moneys in the 
Bond Fund and all Funds and Accounts (other than the Rebate Fund) held under the Indenture 
after the Completion Date; (f) amounts transferred pursuant to the Loan Agreement and (g) all 
other moneys received by the Trustee pursuant to any of the provisions of the Loan Agreement 
or the Indenture and designated for deposit in the Bond Fund. 

 
Use of Moneys in Bond Fund 

(a) Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Indenture, moneys in the Bond 
Fund shall be used solely for the purchase or redemption of Series 2013 Bonds and any Series of 
Additional Bonds as provided in the Indenture.  Moneys deposited in the Bond Fund in 
accordance with the provisions of the Indenture, however, may not be used for the payment of 
interest on the Series 2013 Bonds and any Series of Additional Bonds. 

(b) The Trustee shall, on or before each Debt Service Payment Date of the Series 
2013 Bonds, pay out of the monies then held for the credit of the Interest Account the amounts 
required for the payment of interest becoming due on the respective series of the Series 2013 
Bonds and any Series of Additional Bonds on such Debt Service Payment Date, and such 
amounts so withdrawn are irrevocably dedicated for and shall be applied to the payment of 
interest. 
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(c) The Trustee shall, on or before each Debt Service Payment Date, when principal 
of the Series 2013 Bonds and any Series of Additional Bonds or Sinking Fund Payments are due, 
pay out of the monies then held for the credit of the Principal Account the amounts required for 
the payment of principal or Sinking Fund Payments becoming due at maturity, on a Sinking 
Fund Payment Date, or upon redemption of the respective series of the Series 2013 Bonds and 
any Series of Additional Bonds on such Debt Service Payment Date or Sinking Fund Payment 
Date and such amounts so withdrawn are irrevocably dedicated for and shall be applied to the 
payment of principal or Sinking Fund Payments. 

(d) Moneys transferred to the Bond Fund from the Project Fund pursuant to the 
Indenture, from the Renewal Fund pursuant to the Indenture or transferred to the Bond Fund 
pursuant to the Loan Agreement shall be invested, at the written direction of the School with 
yield not in excess of (i) the yield on the Series 2013 Bonds or (ii) yield on tax-exempt 
obligations as described in Section 148(b)(3) of the Code, subject to limitations on earnings as 
set forth in the Tax Regulatory Agreement, and subject to the Indenture upon the occurrence and 
continuation of an Event of Default under the Indenture, and such moneys and earnings thereon 
shall be applied only to pay the principal of the Series 2013 Bonds and any Series of Additional 
Bonds as they become due and payable or the Redemption Price of Bonds subject to redemption 
pursuant to the Indenture. 

(e) In the event there shall be on any Debt Service Payment Date, a deficiency in the 
Bond Fund (a “Payment Deficiency”), with respect to any Bond or Series of Bonds, the Trustee 
shall make up any such deficiency from the Debt Service Reserve Fund to the extent of the 
amounts in the Debt Service Reserve Fund, by the withdrawal of monies from the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund, to the extent available and by the sale or redemption of securities held in the Debt 
Service Reserve Fund sufficient to make up any deficiency.    

(f) The Trustee shall call the Series 2013 Bonds for redemption according to the 
Indenture, upon written direction of the Issuer or the School to the Trustee, on or after the date 
the Series 2013 Bonds are subject to optional redemption pursuant to the Indenture, whenever 
the assets of the Bond Fund shall be sufficient in the aggregate to provide monies to pay, redeem 
or retire all the Series 2013 Bonds then Outstanding or to redeem the Series 2013 Bonds in part 
pursuant to the Indenture, including accrued interest thereon to the Redemption Date.  The 
Trustee shall call any series of Additional Bonds for redemption in accordance with the 
Supplemental Indenture providing for the issuance of such series of Additional Bonds. 

(g) Moneys in the Bond Fund shall be used by the Trustee, upon request of an 
Authorized Representative of the School, to purchase the Series 2013 Bonds and any Series of 
Additional Bonds on the most advantageous terms obtainable with reasonable diligence, 
provided that no such purchase shall be made: 

(i)  if an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement or the Mortgage has 
occurred and is continuing; 

(ii)  within forty-five (45) days prior to any date on which Series 2013 
Bonds or any Series of Additional Bonds are subject to redemption pursuant to 
the Indenture; 

(iii)  if the amount remaining in the Bond Fund, after giving effect to such 
purchase, is less than the amount required for the payment of the principal or 
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Redemption Price of the Series 2013 Bonds or any Series of Additional Bonds 
theretofore matured or called for redemption, plus interest to the date of maturity 
or the Redemption Date, as the case may be, in all cases where such Series 2013 
Bonds or any Series of Additional Bonds have not been presented for payment; or 

(iv)  at a price in excess of that specified by the School in its request to the 
Trustee, plus accrued interest to the date of purchase. 

The Trustee shall promptly notify the Issuer and the School of the principal amount and 
the maturity of each Series of Bond so purchased and the balance held in the Bond Fund after 
such purchase.  The Trustee shall not, however, be subject to any liability to any Owner, the 
Issuer, the School or any other person by reason of its failure to mail the notice required by this 
summarized section.  The Series 2013 Bonds so purchased by the School or any affiliate shall be 
delivered to the Trustee for cancellation within fifteen (15) days of the date of purchase unless 
the School shall deliver to the Trustee and the Issuer an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect 
that the failure to surrender such Series 2013 Bonds by such date will not affect the exclusion of 
the interest on any Bonds then Outstanding from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  

(h) In connection with the purchase of Series 2013 Bonds with moneys on deposit in 
the Bond Fund as provided in the Indenture, the Trustee shall negotiate or arrange for such 
purchases in such manner (through brokers or otherwise and with or without receiving tenders) 
as it shall in its discretion determine. 

(i) If the balance in the Bond Fund, not otherwise required for scheduled payments of 
principal of, Redemption Price or interest on the Series 2013 Bonds or any Series of Additional 
Bonds, forty-five (45) days prior to any date on which Series 2013 Bonds or any Series of 
Additional Bonds are subject to redemption pursuant to the Indenture equals or exceeds $50,000, 
the Trustee shall, upon request of an Authorized Representative of the School, apply as much of 
such balance as can be so applied to the redemption of Series 2013 Bonds or any Series of 
Additional Bonds on such next succeeding Redemption Date in the manner provided in the 
Indenture.  The Trustee shall promptly notify the Issuer and the School of the principal amount 
and maturity of each Series 2013 Bond or any Series of Additional Bonds so redeemed and the 
balance held in the Bond Fund after such redemption. 

(j) Whenever the amount in the Bond Fund is sufficient to redeem all of the 
Outstanding Series 2013 Bonds or any Series of Additional Bonds and to pay accrued interest to 
maturity or the date of redemption, the Trustee shall, upon request of an Authorized 
Representative of the School, take and cause to be taken the necessary steps to redeem all such 
Series 2013 Bonds or any Series of Additional Bonds on the next succeeding Redemption Date 
for which the required redemption notice may be given or on such later Redemption Date as may 
be specified by the School. 

 
Payments into Renewal Fund; Application of Renewal Fund 

(a) The Net Proceeds resulting from any insurance award, condemnation award or 
recovery from any contractor or subcontractor with respect to the Project shall be deposited in 
the Renewal Fund.  The amounts in the Renewal Fund shall be subject to a security interest, lien 
and charge in favor of the Trustee until disbursed as provided in the Indenture. 
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(b) If the School elects to replace, repair, rebuild, restore or relocate the Project 
pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Trustee shall, at the written direction of the School, apply 
the amounts on deposit in the Renewal Fund, after making any transfer to the Rebate Fund, at the 
written direction of the School, as required by the Tax Regulatory Agreement and the Indenture, 
to such replacement, repair, rebuilding, restoration or relocation.  Upon the completion of such 
replacement, repair, rebuilding, restoration or relocation, and after making any transfer to the 
Rebate Fund, at the written direction of the School, as required by the Tax Regulatory 
Agreement and the Indenture, any balance remaining in the Renewal Fund shall without further 
authorization be transferred to the Bond Fund and applied as provided in the Indenture.  If the 
School elects not to replace, repair, restore or relocate the Project pursuant to the Loan 
Agreement, any balance remaining in the Renewal Fund shall without further authorization be 
transferred to the Bond Fund and applied as provided in the Indenture. 

(c) If any Event of Default shall exist at the time of the receipt by the Trustee of the 
Net Proceeds in the Renewal Fund and be continuing, the Trustee, unless it exercises the remedy 
provided by the Loan Agreement, shall, after making any transfer to the Rebate Fund, at the 
written direction of the School, as required by the Tax Regulatory Agreement and the Indenture, 
transfer the amounts deposited in the Renewal Fund to the Bond Fund to be applied in 
accordance with the Indenture. 

(d) If the School elects to replace, repair, rebuild, restore or relocate the Project 
pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Trustee is authorized to apply the amounts in the Renewal 
Fund to the payment (or reimbursement to the extent the same shall have been paid by or on 
behalf of the School or the Issuer) of the costs required for the replacement, repair, rebuilding, 
restoration or relocation of the Project.  The Trustee is further authorized and directed to issue its 
checks for each disbursement from the Renewal Fund upon a requisition submitted to the Trustee 
and signed by an Authorized Representative of the School.  Such requisition shall be in the same 
form and subject to the same conditions as requisitions from the Project Fund. 

 
Investment Earnings on Funds; Application of Investment Earnings on Funds 

(a) All investment income or earnings on amounts held in the Project Fund, the 
Renewal Fund, the Bond Fund or any other special fund held under any of the Bond Documents 
(other than the Rebate Fund) prior to the Completion Date shall be deposited upon receipt by the 
Trustee into the Project Fund and used for the purposes set forth in the Indenture and after the 
Completion Date shall be used to pay any remaining sums due for costs of the Project not 
previously paid, or deposited by the Trustee into the Interest Account of the Bond Fund and used 
to pay the interest component of the next upcoming Debt Service Payment.  The Trustee shall 
keep separate accounts of all investment earnings from each fund and account under the 
Indenture to indicate the source of the income or earnings. 

(b) Within thirty (30) days after the end of each Computation Period, the Trustee, at 
the written direction of an Authorized Representative of the School, shall transfer to the Rebate 
Fund instead of the Project Fund or the Interest Account of the Bond Fund an amount of the 
investment earnings on the funds and accounts under the Indenture, such that the amount 
transferred to the Rebate Fund is equal to that amount as is set forth as the Rebate Amount in a 
written certificate delivered by the School to the Trustee pursuant to the Tax Regulatory 
Agreement and the Indenture. 
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Payments into Rebate Fund; Application of Rebate Fund 

(a) The Rebate Fund and the amounts deposited therein shall not be subject to a 
security interest, pledge, assignment, lien or charge in favor of the Trustee or any Owner of any 
Series of Bond or any other Person. 

(b) The Trustee, upon the receipt of a certification of the Rebate Amount from an 
Authorized Representative of the School, shall transfer, from moneys in the Project Fund or the 
Renewal Fund, or from any other moneys paid by the School under the Tax Regulatory 
Agreement, into the Rebate Fund, within thirty (30) days after the end of each Bond Year, an 
amount such that the amount held in the Rebate Fund after such deposit is equal to the Rebate 
Amount calculated as of the last day of the immediately preceding Bond Year.  If there has been 
delivered to the Trustee a certification of the Rebate Amount in conjunction with the completion 
of the Project pursuant to the Loan Agreement at any time during a Bond Year, the Trustee shall 
deposit in the Rebate Fund within thirty (30) days of the Completion Date an amount received 
from the School such that the amount held in the Rebate Fund after such deposit is equal to the 
Rebate Amount calculated at the completion of the Project.  The amount deposited in the Rebate 
Fund pursuant to this paragraph shall be paid by the School pursuant to the Tax Regulatory 
Agreement. 

(c) In the event that on the first day of any Bond Year the amount on deposit in the 
Rebate Fund exceeds the Rebate Amount, the Trustee, upon the receipt of written instructions 
from an Authorized Representative of the School, shall withdraw such excess amount and 
deposit it in the Project Fund until the completion of the Project, or, after the Completion Date, 
deposit it in the Bond Fund. 

(d) The Trustee, upon the receipt of written instructions from an Authorized 
Representative of the School, shall pay to the United States, out of amounts in the Rebate Fund, 
(i) not later than thirty (30) days after the last day of the fifth Bond Year and after every fifth 
Bond Year thereafter, an amount such that, together with prior amounts paid to the United States, 
the total paid to the United States is equal to ninety percent (90%) of the Rebate Amount with 
respect to the Series 2013 Bonds as of the date of such payment, and (ii) notwithstanding the 
provisions of the Indenture, not later than thirty (30) days after the date on which all Series 2013 
Bonds have been paid in full, one hundred (100%) percent of the Rebate Amount as of the date 
of payment. 

(e) The Trustee shall have no obligation under the Indenture to transfer any amounts 
to the Rebate Fund unless the Trustee shall have received specific written instructions from the 
School to make such transfer. 

 
Payments into Debt Service Reserve Fund; Application of Debt Service Reserve Fund 

(a) Upon the issuance, sale and delivery of the Series 2013A Bonds, the Issuer shall 
transfer to the Trustee for deposit into the applicable account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund 
an amount equal to the Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement with respect to the Series 
2013A Bonds, to the extent such moneys are available for such purpose from the proceeds of the 
sale of the Series 2013A Bonds.  The Trustee shall deposit into the Debt Service Reserve Fund 
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all payments made by the School pursuant to the Loan Agreement and the Amended and 
Restated Custody Agreement.  

(b) Upon the issuance, sale and delivery of the Series 2013B Bonds, the Issuer shall 
transfer to the Trustee for deposit into the applicable account of the Debt Service Reserve Fund 
an amount equal to zero dollars ($0.00), the Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement with 
respect to the Series 2013B Bonds.  The Trustee shall deposit into the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund all payments made by the School pursuant to the Loan Agreement and the Amended and 
Restated Custody Agreement. 

(c) Moneys and securities held for credit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund shall be 
transferred by the Trustee to the Interest Account and the Principal Account of the Bond Fund at 
the times and in the amounts required pursuant to the Indenture. 

(d) Whenever the Trustee shall determine that the moneys and securities in the Debt 
Service Reserve Fund with respect to the Series 2013A Bonds, will be equal to or in excess of 
the Redemption Price of all of the Outstanding Bonds of such Series 2013A Bonds plus accrued 
interest to the Redemption Date, the Trustee shall use and apply the amounts on deposit in the 
Debt Service Reserve Fund to the redemption of all Outstanding Bonds of such Series 2013A 
Bonds on the first date thereafter that such Series 2013A Bonds are subject to optional 
redemption pursuant to the Indenture. 

(e) Any income or interest earned by, or increment to, the Debt Service Reserve Fund 
shall be transferred by the Trustee and deposited (i) prior to the Completion Date, to the Project 
Fund and applied to pay costs of the Project, and (ii) after the Completion Date, to the Interest 
Account of the Bond Fund with respect to such Series of Bonds and applied to the payment of 
the interest component of the next upcoming Debt Service Payments with respect to such Series 
of Bonds, and the School’s obligations under the Loan Agreement shall be adjusted accordingly. 

(f) In order to ensure the maintenance of the Debt Service Reserve Fund 
Requirement with respect to the Series 2013A Bonds, the Trustee, upon the determination of any 
deficiency in the Debt Service Reserve Fund, shall make and deliver to the Issuer and the School 
at the intervals required pursuant to the Indenture, a certificate stating the amount required to 
restore the amount of the Debt Service Reserve Fund to the amount of the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund Requirement, and the Trustee shall collect such deficiency from the School as a special 
rental payment, as provided in the Loan Agreement. 

(g) The money on deposit in the Series 2013A Debt Service Reserve Fund is held 
solely for the benefit of the Series 2013A Bond holders and no portion of the Series 2013A Debt 
Service Reserve Fund may be used to pay Debt Service Payments on the Series 2013B Bonds.   

 
Payments into Repair and Replacement Fund; Application of Repair and Replacement 
Fund 

(a) There shall be deposited into the Repair and Replacement Fund as and when 
received (a) all payments by the School pursuant to the Loan Agreement, (b) all other moneys 
deposited into the Repair and Replacement Fund pursuant to the Loan Agreement or the 
Indenture, and (c) all other moneys received by the Trustee when accompanied by directions not 
inconsistent with the Loan Agreement or the Indenture that such moneys are to be paid into the 
Repair and Replacement Fund.  There shall also be retained in the Repair and Replacement 
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Fund, interest and other income received on investment of moneys in the Repair and 
Replacement Fund to the extent provided in this summarized section.  Any amounts on deposit in 
the Repair and Replacement Fund in excess of the Repair and Replacement Fund Requirement 
shall be transferred by the Trustee to the Interest Account of the Bond Fund and applied to the 
payment of the interest on the Bonds; provided, however, that the amount remaining in the 
Repair and Replacement Fund immediately after such transfer shall not be less than the Repair 
and Replacement Fund Requirement. 

(b) The Repair and Replacement Fund shall be held by and in the custody of the 
Trustee, and, absent an Event of Default under the Indenture, the Trustee is authorized and 
directed to make each disbursement authorized or required by the provisions of this summarized 
section and to issue its checks therefor.  The Trustee shall keep and maintain adequate records 
pertaining to the Repair and Replacement Fund and all disbursements therefrom and shall 
annually file an accounting thereof with the Issuer and the School.   

(c) Payments shall be made from the Repair and Replacement Fund upon receipt by 
the Trustee of a written requisition from an Authorized Representative of the School setting forth 
the amount and the payee for the purpose of paying the cost of extraordinary maintenance and 
replacements, capital improvements and renovations and capital projects which may be required 
to keep the Facility in sound condition, or to improve the Facility, or, to reduce operating costs of 
the Facility or to maintain or protect the value of the Facility including, but not limited to 
replacement or upgrading of equipment, replacement or upgrading of any roof or other structural 
component, exterior painting and the replacement or upgrading of structural or capital 
renovations or improvements and security systems, upgrading of heating, air conditioning, 
plumbing and electrical equipment, solar panels or other energy reduction devices, equipment or 
systems. 

(d) Any interest or other gain realized as a result of any investments or reinvestments 
of moneys in the Repair and Replacement Fund shall be credited to the Repair and Replacement 
Fund if the amount therein is less than the Repair and Replacement Fund Requirement.  If the 
amount in the Repair and Replacement Fund is greater than the Repair and Replacement Fund 
Requirement, such amount in excess of the Repair and Replacement Fund Requirement shall be 
paid monthly into the Interest Account of the Bond Fund. 
 
Amended and Restated Custody Agreement 
 (a)  Except as otherwise provided in the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement, 
the Trustee shall deliver the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement Notice to the Custodian 
no later than five (5) Business Days before such State Education Operating Aid Payment Date.   
 
 (b)  Except as otherwise provided in the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement, 
each Custody Agreement Notice shall be prepared by the Trustee in substantially the form of 
Exhibit A attached to the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement, with respect to each 
period from and including February 2, 2014 and thereafter and from and including each 
succeeding State Education Operating Aid Payment Date, through and including the calendar 
day preceding each subsequent State Education Operating Aid Payment Date (each an 
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“Education Aid Funding Period”), certifying the respective aggregate amounts to be transferred 
by the Custodian to the Trustee during the applicable Education Aid Funding Period.    
 (c) Each Custody Agreement Notice shall describe the amount of Education Aid 
necessary to be paid to the Trustee to satisfy the payment obligations of the School under the 
Loan Agreement.  Accordingly, each Custody Agreement Notice shall contain the following 
information: (1) a statement of the total amount of Education Aid to be paid over to the Trustee 
on the applicable State Education Operating Aid Payment Date, and (2) statements describing the 
portions of such total amount to be deposited into the various funds and accounts held by the 
Trustee under the Indenture pursuant to the Indenture.  The Trustee shall prepare each Custody 
Agreement Notice in consultation with the School.   
 (d) The School shall provide the Trustee, in a timely fashion (but at least ten (10) 
Business Days prior to each State Education Operating Aid Payment Date), the information 
reasonably needed by the Trustee in order to permit the Trustee to prepare each Custody 
Agreement Notice.   
 
Investment of Moneys 

(a) Moneys held in any fund established pursuant to the  Indenture  shall be invested 
and reinvested by the Trustee in Authorized Investments, pursuant to written direction by an 
Authorized Representative of the School, or pursuant to oral direction promptly confirmed in 
writing by such Authorized Representative.  Such investments shall mature in such amounts and 
have maturity dates or be subject to redemption at the option of the owners thereof on or prior to 
the date on which the amounts invested therein will be needed for the purposes of such fund or 
accounts.  The Trustee may at any time sell or otherwise reduce to cash a sufficient amount of 
such investments whenever the cash balance in such fund or accounts is insufficient for the 
purposes thereof.  Any such investments shall be held by or under control of the Trustee and 
shall be deemed at all times a part of the fund or the respective account within a fund or special 
trust account for which such moneys are invested, and the interest accruing thereon and any 
profit realized from such investment shall be credited to and held in and any loss shall be 
charged to the applicable fund. 

(b) The Trustee may make any investment permitted by this summarized section 
through its own bond department.  The Trustee shall not be liable for any depreciation in the 
value of any investment made pursuant to this this summarized section or for any loss arising 
from any such investment. 

(c) Any investment in the Indenture authorized is subject to the condition that no use 
of the proceeds of any Series 2013A Bonds or of any other moneys shall be made which, if such 
use had been reasonably expected on the date of issue of such Series 2013A Bonds, would cause 
such Series 2013A Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” within the meaning of such quoted term in 
Section 148 of the Code.  The Trustee shall not be liable if such use shall cause the Series 2013A 
Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds”, provided only that the Trustee shall have made such investment 
pursuant to the written direction or confirmation by an Authorized Representative of the School 
as provided in this this summarized section. 

(d) The Trustee shall compute the amount in the Debt Service Reserve Fund on the 
third Business Day preceding each Debt Service Payment Date.  In computing the amount in the 
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Debt Service Reserve Fund, obligations purchased as an investment of moneys therein shall be 
valued at the lower of cost or market value, or, if applicable, par.  Notwithstanding anything to 
the contrary contained in the Indenture or any other Bond Document, the weighted average 
maturity of investments in the Debt Service Reserve Fund at any time may not exceed ten (10) 
years as of the date of any purchase of an investment.  Upon the occurrence of a deficiency in the 
Debt Service Reserve Fund, such deficiency shall be restored to the extent required under the 
Loan Agreement, and investments of the moneys in the Debt Service Reserve Fund throughout 
shall be valued monthly until the deficiency has been fully restored as provided in the Loan 
Agreement.  If, as a result of a valuation, moneys and investments on deposit in the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund exceed the Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement, such excess shall be 
transferred by the Trustee to the Principal Account of the Bond Fund and shall be applied to the 
principal component of the next upcoming Debt Service Payment, and the School’s obligations 
under the Loan Agreement shall be adjusted accordingly. 

(e) The Trustee shall, at the written direction of the School, sell at the best price 
obtainable by the Trustee, or present for redemption, any obligation purchased by it as an 
investment whenever it shall be necessary in order to provide monies to meet any payment or 
transfer from the Fund or account for which such investment was made. 

 
Payment to School upon Payment of Bonds  

Except as otherwise specifically provided in the Indenture, after payment in full of the 
principal or Redemption Price of and interest on all the Series 2013 Bonds or any Series of 
Bonds (or after provision for the payment thereof has been made in accordance with the 
Indenture) and after payment in full of the fees, charges and expenses of the Trustee and any 
Paying Agent and all other amounts required to be paid under the Indenture, and the fees, 
charges and expenses of the Issuer and all other amounts required to be paid under the Loan 
Agreement, all amounts remaining in any fund established pursuant to the Indenture with respect 
to such Series of Bonds (except the Rebate Fund) or otherwise held by the Trustee and by any 
additional Paying Agent for the account of the Issuer or the School under the Indenture or under 
the Loan Agreement shall be paid to the School. 

 
Payments into Key Person Life Insurance Proceeds Fund; Application of Key Person Life 
Insurance Proceeds Fund  

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the School is required to obtain, no later than date of 
issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds a $1,000,000 “key person” life insurance policy per person on 
the lives of Reverend Barrington F.H. Goldson, Chairman of the Board of Trustees and Wayne 
Haughton, Executive Director for a 20 year term until December 1, 2033 which names the 
Trustee as the primary beneficiary.   The Key Person Life Insurance Proceeds Fund shall be in 
the custody of the Trustee and will only be created upon the death of either of the above 
referenced individuals when the “key person” life insurance proceeds are paid out to the Trustee.  
The Trustee shall hold the “key person” life insurance policy and make a claim for the proceeds 
of such life insurance policy in the event of the death of either “key person” named in the 
Indenture.  The receipt of insurance proceeds upon the death of one “key person” named in the 
Indenture does not void the requirement to maintain “key person” insurance upon the other 
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surviving “key person” named in the Indenture.  Insurance proceeds received from the “key 
person” insurance policies maintained under the Loan Agreement shall be deposited to the Key 
Person Life Insurance Proceeds Fund.  The Trustee shall hold such moneys in the Key Person 
Life Insurance Proceeds Fund for purposes of an operating reserve to be used by the School only 
upon the consent of the registered owners of at least a majority of the Outstanding Bonds.  So 
long as the School is in annual compliance with all covenants under the Lease Agreement, the 
moneys held in the Key Person Life Insurance Proceeds Fund may be used to redeem Bonds with 
the longest maturity upon the first available call date. To the extent that money will remain in the 
Key Person Life Insurance Proceeds Fund through the final maturity of the Bonds, such moneys 
may be deposited in the Debt Service Reserve Fund, Principal Account of the Bond Fund and 
Interest Account of the Bond Fund, to call the final principal amount of Bonds prior to their final 
maturity. 

 
Failure to Present Bonds   

Subject to the provisions of the Indenture, in the event any Bond shall not be presented 
for payment when the principal or Redemption Price thereof becomes due, either at maturity or 
at the date fixed for prior redemption thereof or otherwise, if moneys sufficient to pay such Bond 
shall be held by the Trustee for the benefit of the Owner thereof, all liability of the Issuer to the 
Owner thereof for the payment of such Bond shall forthwith cease, determine and be completely 
discharged.  Thereupon, the Trustee shall hold such moneys, without liability for interest 
thereon, for the benefit of the Owner of such Bonds, who shall thereafter be restricted 
exclusively to such moneys for any claim under the Indenture or on, or with respect to, said 
Bond.  If any Bond shall not be presented for payment within the period of two (2) years 
following the date when such Bond becomes due, whether by maturity or call for prior 
redemption or otherwise, the Trustee shall return to the Issuer the funds theretofore held by it for 
payment of such Bond, and such Bond shall, subject to the defense of any applicable statute of 
limitations, thereafter be an unsecured obligation of the Issuer.  The Trustee shall, at least sixty 
(60) days prior to the expiration of such two (2) year period, give notice to any Owner who has 
not presented any Bond for payment that any moneys held for the payment of any such Bond 
will be returned as provided in this this summarized section at the expiration of such two (2) year 
period.  The failure of the Trustee to give any such notice shall not affect the validity of any 
return of funds pursuant to this this summarized section. 
 
Cancellation   

All Bonds which have been paid, redeemed, purchased or surrendered shall be canceled 
and delivered by the Trustee to the Issuer.  A copy of the canceled Bond or Bonds or other form 
of notice of such cancellation shall be delivered to the Issuer and to the School upon its written 
request. 
 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement 

Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the School has undertaken responsibility for compliance 
with, and the Issuer shall have no liability to the holders of the Series 2013 Bonds or any other 
person with respect to, any reports, notices or disclosures required by or provided pursuant to the 
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Continuing Disclosure Agreement authorized by the Loan Agreement.  The Trustee covenants 
and agrees with the holders from time to time of the Series 2013 Bonds that it will comply with 
and carry out all of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement applicable to the 
Trustee. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Indenture, failure of the School or the 
Trustee to perform in accordance with the Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall not constitute 
a default or an Event of Default under the Indenture, and the rights and remedies provided by the 
Indenture upon the occurrence of such a default or an Event of Default shall not apply to any 
such failure, but the Continuing Disclosure Agreement may be enforced only as provided 
therein.  The Trustee covenants and agrees to comply with the continuing disclosure 
requirements as may be applicable to the Trustee under any Additional Series of Bonds issued 
under the Indenture; provided, however, such requirements are substantially in accordance with 
the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement and the Loan Agreement. 

 
Discharge of Lien 

(a) If the Issuer shall pay or cause to be paid to the Owners of any series of Bonds or 
of all Outstanding Bonds the principal  thereof, redemption premium, if any, and interest thereon, 
at the times and in the manner stipulated therein and in the Indenture, and if there shall have been 
paid all fees, charges and expenses required to be paid under the Indenture, then the Lien on the 
Trust Estate created for the benefit of the Owners of such Series of Bonds so paid shall be 
released, discharged and satisfied.  In such event, except as otherwise specifically provided in the 
Indenture, the Trustee and any additional Paying Agent shall pay or deliver to the School all 
moneys or securities held by it pursuant to the Indenture which are not required for the payment 
of such Series of Bonds.  The Issuer may pay or cause to be paid any Series of Bonds without at 
the same time paying or causing to be paid all other Series of Outstanding Bonds.  If the Issuer 
does not pay or cause to be paid, at the same time, all Outstanding Bonds, then the Trustee and 
any additional Paying Agent shall not return those moneys and securities held under the 
Indenture as security for the benefit of the Owners of Bonds not so paid or caused to be paid. 

(b) When all of the Outstanding Bonds shall have been paid in full, or provisions for 
such full payment of all Outstanding Bonds shall have been made in accordance with this this 
summarized section and the Indenture, the Trustee and the Issuer shall promptly execute and 
deliver to the School such written certificates, instruments and documents as the School shall 
provide to cause the Lien of the Indenture upon the Trust Estate to be discharged and canceled. 

(c) Notwithstanding the fact that the Lien of the Indenture upon the Trust Estate may 
have been discharged and canceled in accordance with this this summarized section, the 
Indenture and the rights granted and duties imposed by the Indenture, to the extent not 
inconsistent with the fact that the Lien upon the Trust Estate may have been discharged and 
canceled, shall nevertheless continue and subsist until the principal or Redemption Price of and 
interest on all of the Series 2013 Bonds shall have been fully paid or the Trustee shall have 
returned to the Issuer pursuant to the Indenture all funds theretofore held by the Trustee for 
payment of any Bonds not theretofore presented for payment. 
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Discharge of the Indenture 
(a) Any Outstanding Bond or installments of interest with respect thereto shall, prior 

to the maturity or redemption date thereof, be deemed to have been paid within the meaning of, 
and with the effect expressed in, subsection (a) under the heading “Discharge of Lien” if:  
(i) there shall have been deposited with the Trustee sufficient cash and/or Government 
Obligations, in accordance with subsection (b) of this summarized section, which will, without 
further investment, be sufficient, together with the other amounts held for such payment, to pay 
the principal of the Series of Bonds when due or to redeem the Series of Bond on the earliest 
possible redemption date thereof at the Redemption Price specified in the Indenture or in a 
Supplemental Indenture with respect to such Series of Bonds, (ii) in the event such Series of 
Bonds are to be redeemed prior to maturity in accordance with the Indenture or in a 
Supplemental Indenture with respect to such Series of Bonds, all action required by the 
provisions of the Indenture to redeem the Series of Bonds shall have been taken or provided for 
to the satisfaction of the Trustee and notice thereof in accordance with the Indenture or in a 
Supplemental Indenture with respect to such Series of Bonds shall have been duly given or 
provision satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been made for the giving of such notice, 
(iii) provision shall have been made for the payment of all fees and expenses of the Trustee and 
of any additional Paying Agent with respect to the Series of Bonds of which the Bond is a part, 
(iv) the Issuer shall have been reimbursed for all of its expenses under the Loan Agreement with 
respect to the Series of Bonds of which the Bond is a part, and (v) all other payments required to 
be made under the Loan Agreement and the Indenture or any Supplemental Indenture with 
respect to the Series of Bonds of which the Bond is a part shall have been made or provided for. 

(b) For the purpose of this this summarized section, the Trustee shall be deemed to 
hold sufficient moneys to pay the principal of an Outstanding Bond not then due or to redeem an 
Outstanding Bond prior to the maturity thereof only if there shall be on deposit with the Trustee 
and available for such purpose an amount of cash and/or a principal amount of Government 
Obligations, maturing or redeemable at the option of the owner thereof not later than (i) the 
maturity date of such Series of Bonds, or (ii) the first date following the date of computation on 
which such Series of Bonds may be redeemed pursuant to the Indenture (whichever may first 
occur), which, together with income to be earned on such Government Obligations prior to such 
maturity date or Redemption Date, equals the principal and redemption premium, if any, due on 
such Series of Bonds, together with all interest thereon (at the maximum applicable rate) which 
has accrued and which will accrue to such maturity or Redemption Date. 

(c) Upon the defeasance of any series of Bonds or of all Outstanding Bonds in 
accordance with the Indenture and this summarized section, the Trustee shall hold in trust, for 
the benefit of the Owners of such Series of Bonds, all such cash and/or Government Obligations, 
shall make no other or different investment of such cash and/or Government Obligations and 
shall apply the proceeds thereof and the income therefrom only to the payment of such Bonds. 

 
Lien Law Section 73 Covenant   

The School, for itself and as the Agent of the Issuer, covenants to the Issuer and to the 
Trustee, as a third-party beneficiary of the Indenture, that the School will receive advances of 
monies under the Bond Documents and will hold the right to receive such advances as trust funds 
to be first applied to the payment of trust claims as defined in Section 71 of the Lien Law of the 
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State, and that the School will apply the same to such payments only, before using any part of 
such advances for any other purpose. 
 
Events of Default   

The following shall be “Events of Default” under the Indenture with respect to any Bond 
or any Series of Bonds: 

(a) A default in the due and punctual payment of any interest or any principal, 
Sinking Fund Payments, or Redemption Price of any Bond, whether at the stated maturity 
thereof, upon proceedings for redemption thereof or upon the maturity thereof by declaration, or 
any other amounts due under the Indenture or the other Bond Documents or any other bond 
documents entered into in connection with any series of Additional Bonds; or 

(b) A default in the performance or observance of any other of the covenants, 
agreements or conditions on the part of the Issuer contained in the Indenture or in any Series of 
Bonds and the continuance thereof for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice given by 
the Trustee or by the Owners of not less than fifty percent (50%) of the principal amount of the 
applicable Series of Bonds then Outstanding; or if such default cannot be cured within thirty (30) 
days, but the Issuer is proceeding diligently to cure such default, then the Issuer shall be 
permitted an additional ninety (90) days within which to remedy the default; or 

(c) The occurrence of an Event of Default under any Loan Agreement. 
 

Acceleration; Annulment of Acceleration; Default Rate 
(a) Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement or any 

similar provision in any other Loan Agreement with respect to any Additional Bonds, all 
Series of Bonds Outstanding shall become immediately due and payable without action or notice 
of any kind on the part of the Trustee or the Issuer.  Upon the occurrence and continuance of an 
Event of Default, the Trustee shall, by notice in writing delivered to the Issuer and the School, 
declare all Series of Bonds Outstanding immediately due and payable, and such Series of Bonds 
shall become and be immediately due and payable, anything in the Series of Bonds or in the 
Indenture to the contrary notwithstanding.  In such event, there shall be due and payable on the 
Series of Bonds an amount equal to the total principal amount of all such Series of Bonds, plus 
all interest accrued thereon and which will accrue thereon to the date of payment.  If all of the 
Series of Bonds Outstanding shall become so immediately due and payable, the Issuer and the 
Trustee shall as soon as possible declare by written notice to the School all unpaid installments 
payable by the School under of the Loan Agreement or any similar provision in any other Loan 
Agreement with respect to any Additional Bonds to be immediately due and payable.  Upon such 
declaration the same shall become and be immediately due and payable, and the Trustee shall 
immediately first apply any moneys on deposit in the Principal Account and Interest Account, as 
appropriate, of the Bond Fund, and second, apply any moneys on deposit in the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund therein. 

(b) At any time after the principal of the Series 2013 Bonds shall have been so 
declared to be due and payable, and before the entry of final judgment or decree in any suit, 
action or proceeding instituted on account of such default, or before the completion of the 



 

D-37  

enforcement of any other remedy under the Indenture, the Trustee may annul such declaration 
and its consequences with respect to any Series 2013 Bonds not then due by their terms if 
(i) moneys shall have been deposited in the Bond Fund sufficient to pay all matured installments 
of interest and principal, Sinking Fund Payments, or the Redemption Price (other than principal 
then due only because of such declaration) of such Outstanding Series of Bonds; (ii) sufficient 
moneys shall be available to pay the amounts described in the Indenture; (iii) all other amounts 
then payable by the Issuer under the Indenture shall have been paid or a sum sufficient to pay the 
same shall have been deposited with the Trustee; and (iv) every other Event of Default known to 
the Trustee (other than a default in the payment of the principal of such Bonds then due only 
because of such declaration) shall have been remedied to the satisfaction of the Trustee.  No such 
annulment shall extend to or affect any subsequent Event of Default or impair any right 
consequent thereon. 

(c) Upon the occurrence and continuation of an Event of Default, the Series 2013 
Bonds shall bear interest at the Default Rate from the date of the occurrence of such Event of 
Default until the Series 2013 Bonds have been paid pursuant to the Indenture or such Event of 
Default has been cured. 

 
Enforcement of Remedies 

(a) Upon the occurrence and continuance of any Event of Default, and upon being 
provided with security or indemnity reasonably satisfactory to the Trustee against any liability or 
expense which might thereby be incurred, the Trustee shall proceed forthwith to protect and 
enforce its rights and the rights of the Owners under the Act, the applicable Series of Bonds and 
the applicable Loan Agreement  by such suits, actions or proceedings as the Trustee, being 
advised by counsel, shall deem expedient. 

(b) The Trustee acting directly may sue for, enforce payment of and receive any 
amounts due or becoming due from the Issuer or the School for principal, Redemption Price, 
interest or otherwise under any of the provisions of the Series of Bonds, the Bond Documents 
and any bond documents entered into in connection with any Series of Additional Bonds without 
prejudice to any other right or remedy of the Trustee or of the Owners. 

(c) Regardless of the happening of an Event of Default, the Trustee shall have the 
right to institute and maintain such suits and proceedings as it may be advised by such Owners 
shall be necessary or expedient (i) to prevent any impairment of the security under the Indenture 
by any acts which may be unlawful or in violation of the Indenture or of any resolution 
authorizing any Series of Bonds, or (ii) to preserve or protect the interests of the Owners, 
provided that such request is in accordance with law and the provisions of the Indenture and is 
not unduly prejudicial to the interests of the Owners not making such request. 
Appointment of Receivers 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default and upon the filing of a suit or 
commencement of other judicial proceedings to enforce the rights of the Trustee or the Owners 
under the Indenture, the Trustee shall be entitled, as a matter of right, to the appointment of a 
receiver or receivers of the Trust Estate and of the revenues and receipts thereof, pending such 
proceedings, with such powers as the court making such appointment shall confer. 
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Application of Moneys 
(a) The Net Proceeds received by the Trustee pursuant to any right given or action 

taken under the provisions of the Indenture shall be, after paying the fees and expenses of the 
Trustee, deposited in the Bond Fund. 

(b) All moneys held in a sub-account of the Bond Fund for any particular Series of 
Bonds during the continuance of an Event of Default shall be applied as follows: 

(i)  Unless the principal of all the Series 2013 Bonds of a particular series 
shall have become due or shall have been declared due and payable, 

FIRST - To the payment of all installments of the interest then due, in the 
order of the maturity of the installments of such interest and, if the amount 
available shall not be sufficient to pay in full any particular installment of interest, 
then to the payment ratably, according to the amounts due on such installment, to 
the Persons entitled thereto without any discrimination or preference; and 

SECOND - To the payment of the unpaid principal or Redemption Price, 
if any, of any Series of Bonds or principal installments which shall have become 
due (other than any Bonds called for redemption for the payment of which 
moneys are held pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture), in order of their due 
dates, with interest on such Bonds, at the rate or rates expressed thereon, from the 
respective dates upon which such Bonds became due and, if the amount available 
shall not be sufficient to pay in full Bonds due on any particular date, together 
with such interest, then to the payment ratably, according to the amount of 
principal and interest due on such date, to the Persons entitled thereto without any 
discrimination or preference; and 

THIRD - To the payment of the principal or Redemption Price of and 
interest on such Bonds as the same become due and payable; and 

(ii)  If the principal of all such Bonds shall have become due or shall have 
been declared due and payable, to the payment of the principal and interest (at the 
rate or rates expressed thereon) then due and unpaid upon all such Bonds, without 
preference or priority of principal over interest or of interest over principal, or of 
any installment of interest over any other installment of interest, or of any Bond 
over any other Bonds of such series, ratably according to the amounts due 
respectively for principal and interest, to the Persons entitled thereto without any 
discrimination or preference; and 

(iii)  If the principal of all such Bonds shall have been declared due and 
payable and if such declaration shall thereafter have been annulled pursuant to 
provisions of the Indenture, the moneys shall be applied in accordance with the 
provisions of paragraph (i) of subsection (B) of this summarized section. 

(c) Whenever moneys are to be applied by the Trustee pursuant to the provisions of 
this summarized section, such moneys shall be applied at such time or times as the Trustee in its 
sole discretion shall determine, having due regard to the amount of such moneys available for 
application and the likelihood of additional moneys becoming available for such application in 
the future.  On the date fixed by the Trustee for application of such moneys, interest on the 
amounts of principal to be paid on such date shall cease to accrue.  The Trustee shall give such 
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notice as it may deem appropriate of the application of any such moneys and of the fixing of any 
such date. 

 
Remedies Vested in Trustee  

Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, all rights of action (including the right to 
file proof of claim) under the Indenture or under any of the Series of Bonds may be enforced by 
the Trustee without possession of any of the Series of Bonds or the production thereof in any 
trial or other proceedings relating thereto.  Any such suit or proceeding instituted by the Trustee 
shall be brought in its name as Trustee without the necessity of joining as plaintiffs or defendants 
any Owners of any of the Series of Bonds.  Subject to the provisions of the Indenture, any 
recovery of judgment shall be for the equal benefit of the Owners of the Outstanding Bonds. 

 
Remedies Not Exclusive 

No remedy conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee or to the Owners by the Indenture is 
intended to be exclusive of any other remedy.  Each and every such remedy shall be cumulative 
and shall be in addition to any other remedy given to the Trustee or to the Owners under the 
Indenture or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. 

 
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 
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SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS 
OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT 

 
  The obligations of the School to make payments under the Loan Agreement are 
evidenced by a promissory note for the Series 2013A (tax-exempt) and Series 2013B (taxable) 
from the School to the Issuer and assigned by the Issuer to the Trustee.  The payments by the 
School under the Loan Agreement and the Promissory Notes are intended as security for the 
Series 2013 Bonds.   

The following is a brief summary of certain provisions of the Loan Agreement and 
should not be considered a full statement thereof.  Reference is made to the Loan Agreement for 
complete details of the terms thereof.   

 
Loan of Series 2013 Bond Proceeds 
 The Issuer agreed to loan the Series 2013 Bond Proceeds to the School in accordance 
with the provisions of the Loan Agreement.  Such Series 2013 Bond Proceeds shall be disbursed 
to the School in accordance with the provisions of the Loan Agreement and the Indenture.  
 
Acquisition, Renovation, Construction, Equipping and Furnishing of Project 

(a) The School agrees, and covenants and warrants to the Issuer, it has or will 
acquire, renovate, construct, equip and furnish the Project in accordance with the Plans and 
Specifications. 

(b) The School may revise the Plans and Specifications from time to time, provided, 
however, if such revision shall include a material change to the Project, the School shall first 
obtain the written approval of the Issuer, which approval may not be unreasonably withheld or 
delayed but may be subject to such conditions as the Issuer may deem appropriate. 

(c) An interest in all purchased or leased materials, equipment, machinery and other 
items of Property incorporated or installed in the Project shall vest in the School immediately 
upon the School’s obtaining an interest in or title to the materials, equipment, machinery and 
other items of Property.  The School shall execute, deliver and record or file all instruments 
reasonably necessary or appropriate so to vest an interest in the Project and shall take all action 
necessary or appropriate to protect such interest against claims of any third Persons. 

(d) The School shall pay all fees, costs and expenses incurred in the construction and 
renovation of the Improvements and the acquisition and installation of the Equipment from funds 
made available therefor in accordance with the Loan Agreement, and shall ask, demand, sue for, 
levy, recover and receive all such sums or money, debts, dues and other demands whatsoever 
which may be due, owing and payable to the School under the terms of any contract, order, 
receipt, or writing in connection with the construction, renovation and completion of the 
Improvements and the acquisition and installation of the Equipment, and to enforce the 
provisions of any contract, agreement, obligation, bond or other performance security. 

(e) Reserved. 
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(f) The School shall comply with all provisions of the Labor Law, the Executive Law 
and the Civil Rights Law of the State applicable to the construction, renovation, equipping and 
furnishing of the Project and shall include in all construction contracts all provisions that be 
required to be inserted therein by such provisions.  The School shall comply with the relevant 
policies of the Issuer with respect to such laws, which are set forth as Exhibit B attached to the 
Loan Agreement.  Except as provided in the preceding two sentences, the provisions of this 
subsection (f) do not create any obligations or duties not created by applicable law outside of the 
terms of the Loan Agreement. 

 
Issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds; Disbursement of Series 2013 Bond Proceeds 

In order to provide funds for payment of the Costs of the Project, together with other 
payments and incidental expenses in connection therewith, the Issuer agrees that it will 
authorize, issue, sell and cause the Series 2013 Bonds to be delivered on the terms set forth in the 
Indenture.  Series 2013 Bond Proceeds shall be disbursed in accordance with the provisions of 
the Indenture and the Loan Agreement. 

 
Application of Bond Proceeds 

Except as provided in the Loan Agreement, the Series 2013 Bond Proceeds, upon the 
written direction of an Authorized Representative of the School, and upon the conditions 
provided for in the Indenture, shall be applied to pay only the following costs and items of 
expense paid on or after August 28, 2013 except as may otherwise be provided under the Tax 
Regulatory Agreement or included in a resolution of the Board of Trustees of the School 
indicating an intent to reimburse the School for costs of the Project incurred prior to that date: 

(i) the cost of preparing the Plans and Specifications (including any 
preliminary study or planning of the Project or any aspect thereof), 

(ii) all costs of acquiring, renovating, constructing, equipping and 
furnishing the Project (including environmental audits and architectural, 
engineering and supervisory services with respect to the Project), 

(iii)  certain working capital expenses including but not limited to real 
estate taxes on the Project, 

(iv) all fees, taxes, charges and other expenses for recording or filing, 
as the case may be, any documents that the Issuer or the Trustee may deem 
desirable in order to protect or perfect any security interest contemplated by the 
Indenture, 

(v) interest payable on the Series 2013 Bonds during the Construction 
Period of the Project and principal and interest payable during the Construction 
Period on such interim financing as the School may have secured with respect to 
the Project in contemplation of the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds, 

(vi) all legal, accounting and any other fees, costs and expenses 
incurred in connection with the preparation, printing, reproduction, authorization, 
issuance, execution, sale and distribution of the Series 2013 Bonds and the Series 
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2013 Bond Documents and all other documents in connection with the Loan 
Agreement or therewith, and with any other transaction contemplated by the Loan 
Agreement or the Indenture, 
(vii) any administrative fee and fee for services of the Issuer,  
(viii) any funds or reserves required to be maintained by the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund, and 
(ix) reimbursement to the School for any of the above-enumerated costs and 
expenses. 
 

Certificates of Completion   
To establish the Completion Date, the School shall deliver to the Issuer and the Trustee a 

Completion Certificate signed by an Authorized Representative of the School (i) stating that the 
acquisition, renovation, construction, equipping and furnishing of the Project to be paid for with 
Series 2013 Bond Proceeds has been substantially completed in accordance with the Plans and 
Specifications therefor; and (ii) stating that except for amounts retained in the Project Fund for 
the payment of incurred, but unpaid, items of the Costs of the Project or items when the School is 
then contesting the payment thereof, the payment for all labor, services, materials and supplies 
used in such renovation, construction, equipping and furnishing has been made or provided for.  
The School agrees to complete the renovation, construction, equipping and furnishing of the 
Project on or before June 30, 2015 unless such date has been extended by the Issuer.  The Issuer 
shall not extend such Completion Date unless the School has caused to be delivered to the Issuer 
and the Trustee an acceptable opinion of Bond Counsel stating that the extension of the 
Completion Date will not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on the Series 2013 Bonds, 
from gross income for Federal income tax purposes.  Such Completion Certificate shall further 
certify as to the determination of the Rebate Amount as provided in the Tax Regulatory 
Agreement and the Indenture and shall direct the Trustee to make any transfer to, or make 
payments of amounts for deposit in, the Rebate Fund. 

 
Completion by School 

(a) In the event that the Net Proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds are not sufficient to 
pay in full the costs of renovating, constructing, equipping and furnishing the Project in 
accordance with the Plans and Specifications, the School agrees to pay all such sums as may be 
in excess of the Net Proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds. The School shall execute, deliver and 
record or file such instruments as the Issuer or the Trustee may request in order to perfect or 
protect the Issuer’s security interests contemplated by the Indenture, the Mortgage and the Note. 

(b) The School shall not be entitled to any reimbursement for such excess cost or 
expense from the Issuer or the Trustee or the Owners of any of the Series 2013 Bonds, nor shall 
it be entitled to any diminution or abatement of any other amounts payable by the School under 
the Loan Agreement. 
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Loan Payments and Other Amounts Payable 
(a) The School shall pay to the Issuer on the Closing Date the balance of the Issuer’s 

administrative fee in the amount of $69,712.00 (equal to the administrative fee of $67,575.00, 
plus $1,137.00 (total costs related to each of the public hearings), plus $2,500 (the Initial 
Compliance Fee), less $1,500 (application fee previously paid to the Issuer)).  In addition, the 
School shall pay to the Issuer an Annual Compliance Fee of $1,000.00 on or before January 1 of 
each year commencing on January 1, 2014 and continuing through the term of the Loan 
Agreement. The School shall pay or cause to be paid to the Trustee for deposit in the Bond Fund 
loan payments on January 1, 2014 in an amount equal to the interest payment that will be due 
and owing on the Series 2013 Bonds on the February 1, 2014 Debt Service Payment Date and 
thereafter on the first Business Day of each April, July, October and January commencing on 
April 1, 2014 in an amount equal to 1/2 of the next upcoming interest payment on the 
Series 2013 Bonds due and owing on the next Debt Service Payment Date, and 1/4 of the next 
upcoming principal payment or sinking fund installment payment of the Series 2013 Bonds due 
and owing on the next Debt Service Payment Date; provided however, the School shall 
commence making payments with respect to principal beginning January 1, 2015.  The School’s 
obligation to pay such loan payments shall be evidenced by the Note, substantially in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

(b) In addition to the Loan Payments pursuant to summarized subsection (a) above, 
throughout the Loan Term, the School shall pay to the Issuer as additional loan payments, within 
fifteen (15) days of the receipt of demand therefor, an amount equal to the sum of the reasonable 
expenses of the Issuer and the members thereof incurred (i) by reason of the Issuer’s financing of 
the Project, or (ii) in connection with the carrying out of the Issuer’s duties and obligations under 
the Issuer Documents, the payment of which is not otherwise provided for under the Loan 
Agreement.  Other than the Annual Compliance Fee, the foregoing shall not be deemed to 
include any annual or continuing administrative or management fee beyond any initial 
administrative fee or fee for services rendered by the Issuer. 

(c) In addition, the School shall pay as additional loan payments within fifteen (15) 
days after receipt of a written demand therefor the Ordinary Expenses and Extraordinary 
Expenses payable by the Issuer to the Trustee pursuant to and under the Indenture. 

(d) If, after making a valuation of the Debt Service Reserve Fund as set forth in the 
Indenture, the Trustee notifies the School that the amount on deposit in the Debt Service Reserve 
Fund is less than the Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement, the School shall pay to the 
Trustee, in addition to the amounts required under summarized subsection (a) above, as a special 
loan payment, on the first day of each January, April, July and October following such 
notification, an amount equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the total amount necessary to restore the 
balance in the Debt Service Reserve Fund to the Debt Service Reserve Fund Requirement.   

(e) Unless the amount on deposit in the Repair and Replacement Fund on the first 
Business Day of any Fiscal Year equals or exceeds the Repair and Replacement Fund 
Requirement (in which event no additional deposits are required), on the first day of each 
January, April, July, and October, commencing with the first payment due not later than the July 
1 following the Fiscal Year in which the Project is completed, the School shall pay to the Trustee 
amounts, in substantially sixty (60) equal quarterly installments, which, in the aggregate, equal 
(i) $100,000 or (ii) the deficiency in the Repair and Replacement Fund if such deficiency is less 
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than the Repair and Replacement Fund requirement of $100,000.  The School shall not be 
required to pay or cause to be paid to the Trustee any amounts which would result in moneys in 
excess of the Repair and Replacement Fund Requirement being held in the Repair and 
Replacement Fund. 

(f)  The School, under the provisions of this summarized section, agrees to make or 
cause to make the above-mentioned payments in immediately available funds and without any 
further notice in lawful money of the United States of America.  In the event the School shall fail 
timely to make or cause to make any payment required in summarized subsection (a) above, the 
School  shall pay the same together with all late payment penalties specified in the Series 2013 
Bonds.  In the event the School shall fail timely to make or cause to make any payment required 
in summarized subsection (b) above, the School shall pay the same together with interest on such 
payment at the per annum rate of ten percent (10%), but in no event at a rate higher than the 
maximum lawful prevailing rate, from the date on which such payment was due until the date on 
which such payment is made. 

 
Obligations of School Under the Loan Agreement Unconditional 

The obligations of the School to make the payments required in the Loan Agreement, and 
to perform and observe any and all of the other covenants and agreements on its part contained in 
the Loan Agreement, shall be a general obligation of the School, and shall be absolute and 
unconditional irrespective of any defense or any rights of setoff, recoupment or counterclaim it 
may otherwise have against the Issuer.  The School agrees it will not (i) suspend, discontinue or 
abate any payment required under the Loan Agreement, (ii) fail to observe any of its other 
covenants or agreements in the Loan Agreement, or (iii) terminate the Loan Agreement for any 
cause whatsoever unless and until the Series 2013 Bonds, including premium, if any, and interest 
thereon, have been paid or provided for in the Indenture. 

Subject to the foregoing provisions, nothing contained in this summarized section shall 
be construed to release the Issuer from the performance of any of the agreements on its part 
contained in the Loan Agreement or to affect the right of the School to seek reimbursement from, 
or institute any action against any party as the School may deem necessary to compel 
performance or recover damages for non-performance from such party. 

 
Payment of Additional Moneys in Prepayment of Series 2013 Bonds   

In addition to any other moneys required or permitted to be paid pursuant to the Loan 
Agreement, the School may, subject to the terms of the Indenture, pay or cause to be paid 
moneys to the Trustee (i) to be applied as the prepayment of amounts to become due and payable 
by the School pursuant to the Loan Agreement and the Promissory Note, or (ii) to be used for the 
redemption or prepayment of any Series 2013 Bonds at such time or times and on such terms and 
conditions as is provided in such Series 2013 Bonds and in the Indenture.  The School shall 
notify the Issuer and the Trustee in writing as to the purpose of any such payment. 
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Rights and Obligations of the School upon Prepayment of Series 2013 Bonds   
In the event the Series 2013 Bonds shall have been paid in full prior to the termination of 

the Loan Agreement, or provision for such payment shall have been made in accordance with the 
Indenture, the Issuer, at the sole cost of the School, shall obtain and record or file appropriate 
discharges or releases of the Mortgage and the Note or the Loan Agreement  and any 
terminations, discharges or releases of any security interest relating to the Project or under the 
Indenture. 
 
Maintenance and Modifications of Project by School 

(a) The School shall not abandon the Project or cause or intentionally or negligently 
permit any waste to the Improvements.  During the Loan Term, the School shall not remove any 
part of the Project outside of the jurisdiction of the Issuer and shall (i) keep the Project in as 
reasonably safe condition as its operations shall permit; (ii) make all reasonable and necessary 
repairs and replacements to the Project (whether ordinary or extraordinary, structural or 
nonstructural, foreseen or unforeseen); and (iii) operate the Project in a sound and economic 
manner. 

(b) With the written consent of the Issuer, which shall not be unreasonably withheld 
or delayed, the School, from time to time, may make any material structural additions, 
modifications or improvements to the Project or any part thereof, provided (i) such actions do not 
adversely affect the structural integrity of the Project, (ii) such actions do not materially impair 
the use of the Project or materially decrease their value.  All such additions, modifications or 
improvements made by the School shall become a part of the Project.  The School agrees to 
deliver to the Agency all documents which may be necessary or appropriate to protect the lien of 
the Mortgage. 

 
Installation of Additional Equipment   

Subject to the provisions of the Loan Agreement and the Mortgage, the School or any 
permitted sublessee of the School from time to time may install additional machinery, equipment 
or other personal property in the Project (which may be attached or affixed to the Project), and 
such machinery, equipment or other personal property shall not become, or be deemed to 
become, a part of the Project, provided that the acquisition and installation of such property is 
not financed from either the Project Fund or the Renewal Fund.  Subject to  the provisions of the 
Loan Agreement and the Mortgage, the School from time to time may create or permit to be 
created any Lien on such machinery, equipment or other personal property.  Further, the School 
from time to time may remove or permit the removal of such machinery, equipment and other 
personal property from the Project, provided that any such removal of such machinery, 
equipment or other personal property shall not occur (i) if any Event of Default has occurred; or 
(ii) if any such removal shall adversely affect the structural integrity of the Project or impair the 
overall operating efficiency of the Project for the purposes for which it is intended, and provided 
further that, if any damage is occasioned to the Project by such removal, the School agrees 
promptly to repair such damage at its own expense. 
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Insurance Required   

At all times throughout the Loan Term, including, when indicated in the Loan 
Agreement, during the Construction Period, the School shall, at its sole cost and expense, 
maintain or cause to be maintained insurance covering the Project against such risks and for such 
amounts as are customarily insured against by facilities of like size and type and shall pay, as the 
same become due and payable, all premiums with respect thereto, including, but not necessarily 
limited to: 

(a) Insurance against loss or damage by fire, lightning and other casualties 
customarily insured against, with a uniform standard extended coverage endorsement, such 
insurance to be in an amount not less than the full replacement value of the completed 
Improvements, exclusive of footings and foundations, as determined by a recognized appraiser or 
insurer selected by the School, but in no event less than the principal amount of the Series 2013 
Bonds.  During the Construction Period, such policy shall be written in the so-called “Builder’s 
Risk Completed Value Non-Reporting Form” and shall contain a provision granting the insured 
permission to complete and/or occupy. 

(b) Workers’ compensation insurance, disability benefits insurance and each other 
form of insurance which the School is required by law to provide, covering loss resulting from 
injury, sickness, disability or death of employees of the School who are located at or assigned to 
the Project.  This coverage shall be in effect from and after the Completion Date or on such 
earlier date as any employees of the School first occupy the Project. 

(c) Insurance protecting the Issuer, the Trustee and the School against loss or losses 
from liability imposed by law or assumed in any written contract (including the contractual 
liability assumed by the School under the Loan Agreement) and arising from personal injury, 
including bodily injury or death, or damage to the property of others, caused by an accident or 
occurrence with a limit of liability of not less than $1,000,000 (combined single limit for 
personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and property damage) and with a blanket excess 
liability coverage in an amount not less than $5,000,000 protecting the Issuer, the Trustee and the 
School against any loss or liability or damage for personal injury, including bodily injury or 
death, or property damage.  This coverage shall also be in effect during the Construction Period. 

(d) During the Construction Period (and for at least one year thereafter in the case of 
Products and Completed Operations as set forth below), the School shall cause the general 
contractor to carry liability insurance of the type and providing the minimum limits set forth 
below: 

(i) Workers’ compensation and employer’s liability with limits in accordance 
with applicable law. 

(ii) Comprehensive general liability providing coverage for: 
Premises and Operations 
Products and Completed Operations 
Owners Protective 
Contractors Protective 
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Contractual Liability 
Personal Injury Liability 
Broad Form Property Damage 
  (including completed operations) 
Explosion Hazard 
Collapse Hazard 
Underground Property Damage Hazard 

Such insurance shall have a limit of liability of not less than $1,000,000 (combined single limit 
for personal injury, including bodily injury or death, and property damage). 

(iii) Business auto liability, including all owned, non-owned and hired autos, 
with a limit of liability of not less than $1,000,000 (combined single limit for personal injury, 
including bodily injury or death, and property damage). 

(iv) Excess “umbrella” liability providing liability insurance in excess of the 
coverage’s in (ii) and (iii) above with a limit of not less than $5,000,000. 

(e) A policy or policies of flood insurance in an amount not less than the principal 
amount of the Loan or the maximum amount of flood insurance available with respect to the 
Project under the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, as amended, whichever is less.  This 
requirement will be waived upon presentation of evidence satisfactory to the Issuer that no 
portion of the Land is located within an area identified by the U.S. Department of Housing and 
Urban Development as having special flood hazards. 

 
Additional Provisions Respecting Insurance 

(a) All insurance required by the Loan Agreement shall be procured and maintained 
in financially sound and generally recognized responsible insurance companies selected by the 
entity required to procure the same and authorized to write such insurance in the State.  The 
company issuing the policies required by the Loan Agreement shall be rated “A” or better by 
A.M. Best Co., Inc.  Such insurance may be written with deductible amounts comparable to 
those on similar policies carried by other companies engaged in businesses similar in size, 
character and other respects to those in which the procuring entity is engaged.  All policies 
evidencing the insurance required by the Loan Agreement shall contain a standard New York 
non-contributory mortgagee clause showing the interest of the Issuer as first mortgagee and 
provide for payment to the Trustee of the Net Proceeds of insurance resulting from any claim for 
loss or damage thereunder, and all policies of insurance required by the Loan Agreement shall 
provide for at least thirty (30) days’ prior written notice of the restriction, cancellation or 
modification thereof to the Issuer and the Trustee.  The policy evidencing the insurance required 
by subsection (c) under the heading “Insurance Required” shall name the Issuer and the Trustee 
as additional insureds.  All policies evidencing the insurance required by subsections (d)(ii) and 
(iv) under the heading “Insurance Required” shall name the Issuer and the School as additional 
insureds.  Upon request of the Trustee, the School will assign and deliver to the Trustee the 
policies of insurance required under subsection (a) under the heading “Insurance Required”, so 
and in such manner and form that the Trustee shall at all times, upon such request and until the 
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payment in full of the Series 2013 Bonds, have and hold said policies and the Net Proceeds 
thereof as collateral for the payment of the Series 2013 Bonds.  The policies under subsection (a) 
under the heading “Insurance Required” shall contain appropriate waivers of subrogation. 

(b) The policies (or certificates and binders) of insurance required by subsection (a) 
under the heading “Insurance Required” shall be deposited with the Trustee on or before the 
Closing Date.  A copy of the policy (or certificate or binder) of insurance required by subsection 
(c) under the heading “Insurance Required” shall be delivered to the Issuer on or before the 
Closing Date. A copy of the policies (or certificates and binders) of insurance required by 
subsections (d)(ii) and (iv) under the heading “Insurance Required” shall be delivered to the 
Issuer on or before the Closing Date.  The School shall deliver to the Issuer and the Trustee 
before the first Business Day of each twelve (12) month period thereafter a certificate dated not 
earlier than the immediately preceding month reciting that there is in full force and effect, with a 
term covering at least the next succeeding twelve (12) month period, insurance of the types and 
in the amounts required by the Loan Agreement and complying with the additional requirements 
of subsection (a) above.  Prior to the expiration of each such policy or policies, the School shall 
furnish to the Issuer and the Trustee a new policy or policies of insurance or evidence that such 
policy or policies have been renewed or replaced or are no longer required by the Loan 
Agreement.  The School shall provide such further information with respect to the insurance 
coverage required by the Loan Agreement as the Issuer and the Trustee may from time to time 
reasonably require. 

 
Application of Net Proceeds of Insurance   

The Net Proceeds of the insurance carried pursuant to the provisions of the Loan 
Agreement shall be applied as follows: (i) the Net Proceeds of the insurance required by 
subsection (a) under the heading “Insurance Required” shall be applied as provided in the 
summarized section under the heading “Damage or Destruction of the Project”, and (ii) the Net 
Proceeds of the insurance required by subsections (b), (c) and (d) under the heading “Insurance 
Required” shall be applied toward extinguishment or satisfaction of the liability with respect to 
which such insurance proceeds may be paid. 

 
Damage or Destruction of the Project 

(a) If any portion of the Project shall be damaged or destroyed (in whole or in part) at 
any time during the Loan Term: 

(i) the Issuer shall have no obligation to replace, repair, rebuild, 
restore or relocate the Project or any project thereof comprising a portion of the 
Project; and 

(ii) there shall be no abatement or reduction in the Loan Payments or 
other amounts payable by the School under the Loan Agreement (whether or not 
such project comprising a portion of the Project replaced, repaired, rebuilt, 
restored or relocated); and 

(iii) upon the occurrence of such damage or destruction, the Net 
Proceeds derived from the insurance shall be paid to the Trustee and deposited in 
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the Renewal Fund, and, except as otherwise provided in the Loan Agreement, the 
School shall at its option either (A) replace, repair, rebuild, restore or relocate 
such project comprising a portion of the Project, or (B) direct the Trustee to apply 
such Net Proceeds to the payment of the principal of the Series 2013 Bonds or 
any Additional Bonds as they become due and payable or the Redemption Price 
of Bonds subject to Redemption pursuant to the Indenture. 

If the School elects to replace, repair, rebuild, restore or relocate the Project, the Trustee 
shall disburse the Net Proceeds from the Renewal Fund in the manner set forth in the Indenture 
to pay or reimburse the School for the cost of such replacement, repair, rebuilding, restoration or 
relocation. 

(b) Any such replacements, repairs, rebuilding, restorations or relocations shall be 
subject to the following conditions: 

(i) such project comprising a portion of the Project shall be in 
substantially the same condition and value as an operating entity as existed prior 
to the damage or destruction; 

(ii) such project comprising a portion of the Project shall continue to 
constitute a “project” as such term is defined in the Indenture, and the exclusion 
of the interest on the Series 2013 Bonds from gross income for Federal income 
tax purposes shall not, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, be adversely affected; 

(iii) such project comprising a portion of the Project will be subject to 
no Liens, other than Permitted Encumbrances; and 
(iv) any other conditions the Issuer may reasonably impose. 

(c) All such repair, replacement, rebuilding, restoration or relocation of such project 
comprising a portion of the Project shall be effected with due diligence in a good and 
workmanlike manner in compliance with all applicable legal requirements and be promptly and 
fully paid for by the School in accordance with the terms of the applicable contracts. 

(d) If the School elects to replace, repair, rebuild, restore or relocate the Project 
pursuant to the Loan Agreement, then in the event such Net Proceeds are not sufficient to pay in 
full the costs of such replacement, repair, rebuilding, restoration or relocation, the School shall 
nonetheless complete the work and pay from its own moneys that portion of the costs thereof in 
excess of such Net Proceeds.  All such replacements, repairs, rebuilding, restoration or 
relocations made pursuant to this summarized section, whether or not requiring the expenditure 
of the School’s own money, shall automatically become a part of the Project as if the same were 
specifically described in the Loan Agreement. 

(e) Any balance of such Net Proceeds remaining in the Renewal Fund after payment 
of all costs of replacement, repair, rebuilding, restoration or relocation shall, subject to any rebate 
required to be made to the Federal government pursuant to the Indenture or the Tax Regulatory 
Agreement, be applied in accordance with the provisions of  the Indenture. 

(f) If the School shall exercise its option to terminate the Loan Agreement pursuant 
to the Loan Agreement, such Net Proceeds shall be applied to the payment of the amounts 
required to be paid by the Loan Agreement.  If an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement 
shall have occurred and is continuing and the Trustee shall have exercised its remedies under the 
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Loan Agreement, such Net Proceeds shall be applied to the payment of the amounts required to 
be paid by the Loan Agreement. 

(g) If the entire amount of the Series 2013 Bonds and interest thereon has been fully 
paid, or provision therefor has been made in accordance with the Indenture, all such remaining 
Net Proceeds shall be paid to the School. 

(h) Except upon the occurrence and continuation of an Event of Default, the School 
with the consent of the Issuer, not to be withheld unreasonably, shall have the right to settle and 
adjust all claims under any policies of insurance required by subsections (a) and (d) under the 
heading “Insurance Required” on behalf of the Issuer and on its own behalf. 

 
Condemnation 

(a) If title to or use of the Project or any portion thereof comprising a portion of the 
Project shall be taken by Condemnation (in whole or in part) at any time during the Loan Term: 

(i) the Issuer shall have no obligation to replace, repair, rebuild, 
restore or relocate such project comprising a portion of the Project or acquire, by 
construction or otherwise, facilities of substantially the same nature as the Project 
(“Substitute Project”); and 

(ii) there shall be no abatement or reduction in the amounts payable by 
the School under the Loan Agreement (whether or not such project comprising a 
portion of the Project is replaced, repaired, rebuilt, restored or relocated or 
Substitute Facilities acquired); and 

(iii) upon the occurrence of such Condemnation, the Net Proceeds 
derived therefrom shall be paid to the Trustee and deposited in the Renewal Fund, 
and, except as otherwise provided in the Loan Agreement, the School shall either: 

(A) replace, repair, rebuild, restore or relocate such project comprising 
a portion of  the Project or acquire Substitute Project, or 

(B) redeem an amount of the Series 2013 Bonds equal to the Net 
Proceeds in accordance with the Indenture. 

If the School replaces, repairs, rebuilds, restores or relocates such project comprising a 
portion of the Project or acquires a Substitute Project, the Trustee shall disburse the Net Proceeds 
from the Renewal Fund in the manner set forth in the Indenture to pay or reimburse the School 
for the cost of such replacement, repair, rebuilding, restoration, relocation or acquisition of such 
Substitute Project. 

(b) Any such replacements, repairs, rebuilding, restorations, relocations or 
acquisitions of a Substitute Project shall be subject to the following conditions: 

(i) such project comprising a portion of the Project or the Substitute 
Project shall be in substantially the same condition and value as an operating 
entity as existed prior to the condemnation; 

(ii) such project comprising a portion of the Project or the Substitute 
Project shall continue to constitute a “project” as such term is defined in the Act, 
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and the exclusion of the interest on the Series 2013 Bonds from gross income for 
Federal income tax purposes shall not, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, be 
adversely affected; 

(iii) such project comprising a portion of the Project or the Substitute 
Project will be subject to no Liens, other than Permitted Encumbrances; and 
(iv) any other conditions the Issuer may reasonably impose. 

(c) All such repair, replacement, rebuilding, restoration or relocation of such project 
comprising a portion of the Project shall be effected with due diligence in a good and 
workmanlike manner in compliance with all applicable legal requirements and shall be promptly 
and fully paid for by the School in accordance with the terms of the applicable contracts. 

(d) If the School elects to replace, repair, rebuild, restore or relocate pursuant to the 
Loan Agreement, then in the event such Net Proceeds are not sufficient to pay in full the costs of 
such replacement, repair, rebuilding, restoration, relocation or acquisition of a Substitute Project, 
the School shall nonetheless complete the work or the acquisition and pay from its own moneys 
that portion of the costs thereof in excess of such Net Proceeds.  All such replacements, repairs, 
rebuilding, restoration, relocations and such acquisition of a Substitute Project made pursuant to 
this summarized section, whether or not requiring the expenditure of the School’s own money, 
shall automatically become a part of the Project as if the same were specifically described in the 
Loan Agreement. 

(e) Any balance of such Net Proceeds remaining in the Renewal Fund after payment 
of all costs of replacement, repair, rebuilding, restoration, relocation or acquisition of the 
Substitute Project shall, subject to any rebate required to be made to the Federal government 
pursuant to the Indenture or the Tax Regulatory Agreement, be used to redeem the Series 2013 
Bonds as provided in the Indenture. 

(f) If the School shall exercise its option to terminate the Loan Agreement pursuant 
to the Loan Agreement, such Net Proceeds shall be applied to the payment of the amounts 
required to be paid by the Loan Agreement.  If any Event of Default under the Loan Agreement 
shall have occurred and is continuing and the Trustee shall have exercised its remedies under the 
Loan Agreement, such Net Proceeds shall be applied to the payment of the amounts required to 
be paid by the Loan Agreement. 

(g) If the entire amount of the Series 2013 Bonds and interest thereon has been fully 
paid, or provision therefor has been made in accordance with the Indenture, all such remaining 
Net Proceeds shall be paid to the School. 

(h) Except upon the occurrence and continuation of an Event of Default, the School 
with the consent of the Issuer, not to be unreasonably withheld, shall have the right to settle and 
adjust all claims under any Condemnation proceedings on behalf of the Issuer and on its own 
behalf. 

 
Hold Harmless Provisions 

(a) The School agrees that the Issuer, the Trustee and each Paying Agent shall not be 
liable for and agrees to defend, indemnify, release and hold the Issuer, the Trustee and each 
Paying Agent harmless from and against any and all (i) liability for loss or damage to Property or 
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injury to or death of any and all Persons that may be occasioned by, directly or indirectly, any 
cause whatsoever pertaining to the Project or arising by reason of or in connection with the 
occupation or the use thereof or the presence of any Person or Property on, in or about the 
Project or the Land, or (ii) liability arising from or expense incurred in connection with the 
Issuer’s financing, construction, renovation, and equipping of the Project, including without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, all claims arising from the breach by the School of any 
of its covenants contained in the Loan Agreement, and all causes of action and attorneys’ fees 
and any other expenses incurred in defending any suits or actions which may arise as a result of 
any of the foregoing, provided that any such losses, damages, liabilities or expenses of the Issuer, 
the Trustee or any Paying Agent are not incurred or do not result from the gross negligence or 
intentional or willful wrongdoing of the Issuer, the Trustee or any Paying Agent or any of their 
respective members, directors, trustees, officers, agents or employees.  The foregoing 
indemnities shall apply notwithstanding the fault or negligence in part of the Issuer, the Trustee 
or any Paying Agent, or any of their respective members, directors, trustees, officers, agents or 
employees, and irrespective of the breach of a statutory obligation (other than a breach caused by 
any of their respective gross negligence or intentional or willful wrongdoing) or the application 
of any rule of comparative or apportioned liability.  The foregoing indemnities are limited only 
to the extent of any prohibitions imposed by law. 

(b) Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Loan Agreement, the obligations of 
the School pursuant to this summarized section shall remain in full force and effect after the 
termination of the Loan Agreement until the expiration of the period stated in the applicable 
statute of limitations during which a claim, cause of action or prosecution relating to the matters 
in the Loan Agreement described may be brought and payment in full or the satisfaction of such 
claim, cause of action or prosecution relating to the matters in the Loan Agreement described and 
the payment of all expenses and charges incurred by the Issuer, the Trustee or their respective 
members, directors, officers, agents and employees, relating to the enforcement of the provisions 
in the Loan Agreement specified. 

(c) In the event of any claim against the Issuer, the Trustee or any Paying Agent or 
their respective members, directors, officers, agents or employees by any employee or contractor 
of the School or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts 
any of them may be liable, the obligations of the School under the Loan Agreement shall not be 
limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, disability 
benefits or other employee benefit acts. 

(d) The Trustee and each Paying Agent shall be third party beneficiaries of the 
School’s obligations under this summarized section. 

 
Right to Inspect Project   

The Issuer and the Trustee and the duly authorized agents of either of them shall have the 
right at all reasonable times upon prior notice to the School to inspect the Project. 

 
School to Maintain Its Existence  

 The School agrees that during the Loan Term (a) it will maintain its existence as a not-
for-profit educational corporation constituting an Exempt Organization subject to service of 
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process within the State and will not dissolve or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of its 
assets or consolidate with or merge into another entity or permit one or more entities to 
consolidate with or merge into it or acquire all or substantially all of the assets of one or more 
entities without the prior written consent of the Issuer; (b) it will preserve its status as an 
organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code; (c) it will operate as an institution of 
primary learning and will accept Educational Aid and fees for services provided by the School 
which, together with other available funds, will be sufficient in each fiscal year to provide funds 
for the following:  (1) the payment by the School of all of its expenses for the operation, 
maintenance and repair of its facilities or Project in such year; (2) the payment of all amounts 
due under the Loan Agreement in such year; and (3) the payment of all Indebtedness and all 
other obligations of the School due in such year; and (d) it will not perform any act, enter into 
any agreement, or use or permit the Project to be used in any manner or for any unrelated trade 
or business as described in Section 513(a) of the Code, which could adversely affect the 
exemption of interest on the Series 2013 Bonds from Federal income taxes pursuant to 
Section 103 and 145 of the Code except as provided in the Tax Regulatory Agreement.  
Furthermore, except as permitted by the Tax Regulatory Agreement prior to the School 
performing any act, entering into any agreement or using or permitting the Project to be used in 
any manner that would constitute an unrelated trade or business within the meaning of 
Section 513(a) of the Code, the School shall provide written notice to the Issuer and the Trustee 
and the Issuer and the Trustee shall receive an opinion of counsel satisfactory to each of them to 
the effect that such contemplated act, agreement or use will not adversely affect the exemption of 
interest on the Series 2013 Bonds for Federal income tax purposes. 

 
Qualification in State  

The School throughout the Loan Term shall continue to be duly authorized to do business 
in the State as an entity of primary education. 

 
Books of Record and Account; Financial Statements   

The School at all times agrees to maintain proper accounts, records and books in which 
full and correct entries shall be made, in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, of all transactions and events relating to the business and affairs of the School. 

 
Compliance with Orders, Ordinances, Etc. 

(a) The School, throughout the Loan Term, agrees that it will promptly comply, and 
take all reasonable steps to cause any tenant or occupant of the Project to comply, with all 
statutes, codes, laws, acts, ordinances, orders, judgments, decrees, injunctions, rules, regulations, 
permits, licenses, authorizations, directions and requirements, ordinary or extraordinary, which 
now or at any time hereafter may be applicable to the Project or any part thereof or to the 
renovation, construction and equipping thereof, or to any use, manner of use or condition of the 
Project or any part thereof, of all federal, state, county, municipal and other governments, 
departments, commissions, boards, courts, authorities, officials and officers having jurisdiction 
of the Project or any part thereof, or to the renovation, construction, equipping and furnishing 
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thereof, or to any use, manner of use or condition of the Project or any part thereof and of all 
companies or associations insuring the premises. 

(b) The School shall keep or cause the Project to be kept free of Hazardous 
Substances, except in compliance with applicable law.  Without limiting the foregoing, the 
School shall not cause or permit the Project to be used to generate, manufacture, refine, 
transport, treat, store, handle, dispose, transfer, produce or process Hazardous Substances, except 
in compliance with all applicable federal, state and local laws, regulations and permits, nor shall 
the School cause or permit, as a result of any intentional or unintentional act or omission on the 
part of the School or any contractor, subcontractor, tenant or subtenant, a release of Hazardous 
Substances onto the Project or onto any other property.  The School shall comply with and shall 
take all reasonable steps to ensure compliance by all contractors, subcontractors, tenants and 
subtenants with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, 
whenever and by whomever triggered, and shall obtain and comply with, and shall take all 
reasonable steps to ensure that all contractors, subcontractors, tenants and subtenants obtain and 
comply with, any and all approvals, registrations or permits required thereunder.  The School 
shall (a) conduct and complete all investigations, studies, sampling, and testing, and all remedial, 
removal, and other actions necessary to clean up and remove all Hazardous Substances, on, from, 
or affecting the Project (i) in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 
ordinances, rules, regulations, and policies, (ii) to the reasonable satisfaction of the Trustee and 
the Issuer, and (iii) in accordance with the orders and directives of all federal, state, and local 
governmental authorities; and (b) defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the Trustee and the 
Issuer, their employees, agents, officers, and directors, from and against any claims, demands, 
penalties, fines, liabilities, settlements, damages, costs, or expenses of whatever kind or nature, 
known or unknown, contingent or otherwise, arising out of, or in any way related to (i) the 
presence, disposal, release, or threatened release of any Hazardous Substances which are on, 
from or affecting the soil, water, vegetation, buildings, personal property, persons, animals, or 
otherwise, (ii) any bodily injury, personal injury (including wrongful death) or property damage 
(real or personal) arising out of or related to such Hazardous Substances, (iii) any lawsuit 
brought or threatened, settlement reached, or government order relating to such Hazardous 
Substances, and/or (iv) any violation of laws, orders, regulations, requirements, or demands of 
government authorities, or any policies or requirements of the Trustee and the Issuer, which are 
based upon or in any way related to such Hazardous Substances, including, without limitation, 
reasonable attorney and consultant fees, reasonable investigation and laboratory fees, court costs, 
and reasonable litigation expenses. The provisions of this summarized section shall be in 
addition to any and all other obligations and liabilities the School may have to the Trustee at 
common law, and shall survive the transactions contemplated in the Loan Agreement. 

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsections (a) and (b) above, the School may 
in good faith contest the validity or the applicability of any requirement of the nature referred to 
in such subsections (a) and (b) by appropriate legal proceedings conducted in good faith and with 
due diligence.  In such event, the School may fail to comply with the requirement or 
requirements so contested during the period of such contest and any appeal therefrom, unless the 
Issuer or the Trustee shall notify the School that by failure to comply with such requirement or 
requirements, the Project or any part thereof may be subject to loss, penalty or forfeiture, in 
which event the School shall promptly take such action with respect thereto or provide such 
security as shall be satisfactory to the Trustee and to the Issuer.  If at any time the then existing 
use or occupancy of the Project shall, pursuant to any zoning or other law, ordinance or 
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regulation, be permitted only so long as such use or occupancy shall continue, the School shall 
use all reasonable efforts to not cause or permit such use or occupancy to be discontinued 
without the prior written consent of the Issuer and the Trustee. 

(d) Notwithstanding the provisions of this summarized section, if, because of a 
breach or violation of the provisions of subsections (a) or (b) above (without giving effect to 
subsection (c) above), either the Issuer, the Trustee, or any of their respective members, 
directors, officers, agents, or employees, shall be threatened with a fine, liability, expense or 
imprisonment, then, upon notice from the Issuer or the Trustee, the School shall immediately 
provide legal protection and/or pay amounts necessary in the opinion of the Issuer or the Trustee, 
as the case may be, and their respective members, directors, officers, agents and employees deem 
sufficient, to the extent permitted by applicable law, to remove the threat of such fine, liability, 
expense or imprisonment. 

(e) Notwithstanding any provisions of this summarized section, the Trustee and the 
Issuer retain the right to defend themselves in any action or actions which are based upon or in 
any way related to such Hazardous Substances.  In any such defense of themselves, the Trustee 
and the Issuer shall each select their own counsel, and any and all reasonable costs of such 
defense, including, without limitation, reasonable attorney and consultant fees, reasonable 
investigation and laboratory fees, court costs, and reasonable litigation expenses, shall be paid by 
the School. 

 
Discharge of Liens and Encumbrances 

(a) The School, throughout the Loan Term, shall not permit or create or suffer to be 
permitted or created any Lien, except for Permitted Encumbrances, upon the Project, the 
Mortgaged Property or any part thereof by reason of any labor, services or materials rendered or 
supplied or claimed to be rendered or supplied with respect to the Project or any part thereof. 

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (a) above, the School may in good 
faith contest any such Lien.  In such event, the School may permit the items so contested to 
remain undischarged and unsatisfied during the period of such contest and any appeal therefrom, 
unless the Issuer or the Trustee shall notify the School that by nonpayment of any such item or 
items, the lien of the Mortgage may be materially endangered or the Project or any part thereof 
may be subject to loss or forfeiture, in which event the School shall promptly secure payment of 
all such unpaid items by filing a bond, in form and substance satisfactory to the Issuer, thereby 
causing such Lien to be removed or by taking such other actions as may be satisfactory to the 
Issuer to protect its interests.  Mechanics’ Liens shall be discharged or bonded within ninety (90) 
days following the School’s receipt of notice of the filing or perfection thereof. 

 
Financial Covenants    

(a)  The School covenants that, beginning with the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2014, 
and for so long as any Bonds remain Outstanding, it will maintain an unrestricted fund 
balance/net asset balance in its operating fund which equals not less than an amount calculated as 
a percentage of Operating Expenses for the prior Fiscal Year as follows:  
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(i)  Such percentage shall be five percent (5%) for any Fiscal Year if, in the 
Fiscal Year immediately preceding such Fiscal Year, the total of the Maximum 
Annual Debt Service (excluding any Balloon Indebtedness) plus any similar 
lease-purchase or loan payment obligations of the School were equal to or less 
than ten percent (10%) of Gross Revenues.  
(ii)  Such percentage shall be seven and one-half percent (7.5%) for any Fiscal 
Year if, in the Fiscal Year immediately preceding such Fiscal Year, the total of 
the Maximum Annual Debt Service (excluding any Balloon Indebtedness) plus 
any similar lease-purchase or loan payment obligations of the School were greater 
than ten percent (10%) but less than or equal to fifteen percent (15%) of Gross 
Revenues.   
(iii) Such percentage shall be ten percent (10%) for any Fiscal Year if, in the 
Fiscal Year immediately preceding such Fiscal Year, the total of the Maximum 
Annual Debt Service plus any similar lease-purchase or loan payment obligations 
of the School were greater than fifteen percent (15%) of Gross Revenues.   

 For purposes of subsection (a) of this summarized section, any Long-Term Indebtedness 
which is subordinate to the Bonds shall be included in the calculation of fund balance/net asset 
balance.    
 Each of the covenants made in subsection (a) of this summarized section shall be tested 
as of June 30 of each year based on the results of the annual audit of the School for such Fiscal 
Year upon the release of such audit.  If on any testing date the School’s minimum fund balance is 
below that required as described above, the School shall retain on an annual basis fifty percent 
(50%) of the Excess Net Revenues until such time as the School is in compliance with the 
minimum fund balance; provided, however, that the School is not required to retain an amount 
which would cause it to exceed the minimum fund balance as described above.  
 (b)  In the event the School is unable to comply with this covenant within 12 months 
of the initial non-compliance, the Owners of two-thirds (2/3) of the Outstanding Bonds have the 
right to direct the Trustee to require the School to engage, at the School’s expense, a 
Management Consultant, acceptable to the Trustee which shall deliver a written report within 75 
days of engagement to the Trustee and the School containing recommendations concerning the 
School’s:  
  (i)  operations;  
 (ii)  financing practices and activities, including Short-Term Indebtedness, 

lease financing and investment activities;  
 (iii) management practices, including the use of consultants, budgeting 

practices, and ongoing financial systems and monitoring of the School’s financial 
condition;  

 (iv) governance and administration practices; and 
(v) other factors relevant to maintaining such compliance.  

Upon submission of the Management Consultant’s report, the School is required to 
arrange for payment of the amount owed to the Management Consultant and issue a written 
certificate to the Trustee indicating its acceptance or rejection of all or any material portion of the 
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recommendations of the consultant within 30 days of receiving the report of the Management 
Consultant.  The Owners of two-thirds (2/3) of the Outstanding Bonds shall have the right to 
require the School to comply with any reasonable recommendation of the Management 
Consultant with respect to items (i) through (v) above.  

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Loan Agreement, the failure to 
satisfy any of the covenants contained in subsection (a) and (b) of this summarized section shall 
not constitute or be deemed to constitute an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement.   

(c)  The School covenants that, so long as any Bonds remain Outstanding, it will 
maintain a Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio greater than 1.15 to 1.0.  Beginning with the 
Fiscal Year commencing July 1, 2014, the School shall calculate annually the Long-Term Debt 
Service Coverage Ratio for the most recently completed Fiscal Year, and shall provide a copy of 
such calculation verified and certified by certified public accountants who completed the audit of 
the School’s financial statements for the corresponding Fiscal Year to the Trustee at the time of 
delivery of the annual audited financial statements.  If the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage 
Ratio indicates that the Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio of the School for such previous 
Fiscal Year shall be less than 1.15 to 1.0 but equal to or greater than 1.0 to 1.0, the School shall 
within thirty (30) days of the date of such calculation, provide the Trustee with a detailed written 
explanation from an Authorized Representative of the School stating the reasons for the School’s 
failure to achieve the required Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio and its plan for 
achieving such Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio by the end of the next Fiscal Year.  In 
the event that the School is unable to comply with the above Long-Term Debt Service Coverage 
Ratio requirement within 12 months of the initial non-compliance, then the Owners of two-thirds 
(2/3) of the Outstanding Bonds shall have the right to direct the Trustee to require the School to 
engage, at the School’s expense, a Management Consultant acceptable to the Trustee, which 
shall deliver a written report within seventy-five (75) days of engagement to the Trustee and the 
School containing recommendations concerning the School’s:  

 (i) operations;  
 (ii) financing practices and activities, including Short-Term Indebtedness, 

lease financing, and investment activities;  
(iii) management practices, including the use of consultants, budgeting 
practices, and ongoing financial systems and monitoring of the School’s financial 
condition;  

 (iv) governance and administration practices; and  
(v) other factors relevant to maintaining such compliance.  

Upon submission of the Management Consultant’s report, the School shall arrange for 
payment of the amount owed to the Management Consultant and issue a written certificate to the 
Trustee indicating its acceptance or rejection of all or any material portion of the 
recommendations of the Management Consultant within 30 days of receiving the report of the 
Management Consultant.  The Owners of two-thirds (2/3) of the Outstanding Bonds shall have 
the right to require the School to comply with any reasonable recommendation of the 
Management Consultant with respect to items (i) through (v) above.   
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Loan Agreement, the School’s 
failure to maintain a Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio of at least 1.0 to 1.0 shall 
constitute an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement.   

 
Certain Additional Covenants 

(a) The School agrees to furnish to the Issuer and the Trustee, and, upon written 
request to the School, to any registered Bondholder of $1,000,000 in aggregate principal amount 
of the Series 2013 Bonds, as soon as available and in any event within one hundred eighty days 
(180) after the close of each fiscal year of the School, a copy of the annual audited financial 
statements of the School, including statements of financial position as of the end of such year, 
and the related statement of activities for such fiscal year, prepared in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, audited by a firm of independent certified public accountants. 

(b) The School shall deliver to the Issuer and the Trustee with each delivery of annual 
financial statements required by subsection (a) of this summarized section, a certificate of an 
Authorized Representative of the School as to whether or not, as of the close of such preceding 
fiscal year of the School, and at all times during such fiscal year, the School was in compliance 
with all the provisions which related to the School in the Bond Documents, including without 
limitation the provisions of the summarized section under the heading “Financial Covenants”, 
and if such Authorized Representative of the School shall have obtained knowledge of any 
default in such compliance or notice of such default, such Authorized Representation of the 
School shall disclose in such certificate, such default or defaults or notice thereof and the nature 
thereof, whether or not the same shall constitute an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement, 
and any action proposed to be taken by the School with respect thereto. 

(c) The School shall immediately notify the Issuer and the Trustee of the occurrence 
of any default or any event which with notice and/or lapse of time would constitute a default 
under the Loan Agreement or any of the other Bond Documents.  Any notice required to be 
given pursuant to this subsection shall be signed by an Authorized Representative of the School 
and set forth a description of the default and the steps, if any, being taken to cure said default.  If 
no steps have been taken, the School shall state this fact on the notice. 

(d) The School will do, execute, acknowledge and deliver or cause to be done, 
executed, acknowledged and delivered such further acts, instruments, conveyances, transfers and 
assurances, at the sole cost and expense of the School, as the Issuer or the Trustee deems 
necessary or advisable for the implementation, effectuation, correction, confirmation or 
perfection of the Loan Agreement and any rights of the Issuer or the Trustee under the Loan 
Agreement or under the Indenture. 

 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement 

The School has executed and delivered to the Trustee a Continuing Disclosure 
Agreement, dated the date of initial delivery of the Series 2013 Bonds.  The School covenants 
and agrees with the holders from time to time of the Series 2013 Bonds that it will comply with 
and carry out all of the provisions of the Continuing Disclosure Agreement, as amended from 
time to time, applicable to it.  Notwithstanding any other provision of the Loan Agreement, 
failure of the School to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall not be 
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considered a default or an event of default under the Loan Agreement and the rights and 
remedies provided by the Loan Agreement upon the occurrence of such a default or an event of 
default shall not apply to any such failure, but the Continuing Disclosure Agreement may be 
enforced only as provided therein. 

 
Securities Law Status   

The School affirmatively represents, warrants and covenants that, as of the date of the 
Loan Agreement, it is an organization organized and operated:  (i) exclusively for civic or 
charitable purposes; (ii) not for pecuniary profit; and (iii) no part of the net earnings of which 
inure to the benefit of any person, private stockholder or individual, all within the meaning, 
respectively, of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended.  The School agrees that it shall not perform any act nor enter into any 
agreement which shall change such status as set forth in this summarized section. 
 
Rebate Covenant   

The School covenants to make, or cause to be made, any and all payments required to be 
made to the United States Department of the Treasury in connection with the Series 2013 Bonds 
pursuant to Section 148(f) of the Code and to comply with instructions received from Bond 
Counsel pursuant to the certification with respect to the making of any such payments. 

 
Additional Indebtedness    

The School shall be precluded from incurring Additional Indebtedness that is senior to 
the lien of the Mortgage on the Project and the obligations of the School under the Loan 
Agreement.  The School may incur Parity Indebtedness only upon providing to the Trustee a 
certificate of an Authorized Representative of the School, including Additional Bonds issued 
under the Indenture, accompanied by a confirming accountant’s certificate, to the effect that (i) 
the requirements of the Indenture have been met, but this clause applies only if the other 
Indebtedness takes the form of Additional Bonds, and (ii) either:  

(a) the combined Maximum Annual Debt Service for outstanding 
Long-Term Indebtedness related to the Project and the Long-Term Indebtedness 
related to the Project proposed to be incurred is equal to or less than ten percent 
(10%) of the Gross Revenues as determined in the most recent audited financial 
statements of the School; or   

(b)  the Net Income Available for Debt Service as determined in the 
most recent audited financial statements of the School must be sufficient to pay an 
amount representing not less than one-hundred and twenty-five percent (125%) of 
the combined Maximum Annual Debt Service for currently outstanding Long-
Term Indebtedness related to the Project and the Long-Term Indebtedness related 
to the Project proposed to be incurred.   

In addition to the foregoing, prior to the incurrence of Parity Indebtedness, the Issuer, the 
Custodian, the Trustee, the School and any issuer of such Parity Indebtedness shall have entered 
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into an intercreditor agreement, satisfactory to all parties, providing for, among other things, the 
application and disposition of amounts on deposit in the Custody Account under the Custody 
Agreement.   

Additional Indebtedness subordinate to the obligations of the School under this 
agreement and lien on the Project are permitted by the Loan Agreement.  
 
Agreement to Obtain As Built Appraisal.     

 The School covenants to obtain, pay for all expenses of and provide to the Trustee an “as 
built” appraisal of the Project not later than 90 days following the Completion Date.   

 
Negative Pledge; Liens Securing Additional Indebtedness   

The School covenants that it will not create or allow Liens upon any of its Property, 
except that the School may create or allow (i) Liens on the Mortgaged Property provided that the 
Indebtedness secured by such Lien is permitted to be incurred in accordance with the limitations 
on Additional Indebtedness set forth in the Loan Agreement and such Lien is not senior to the 
Mortgage granted by the Loan Agreement and the holder of such Lien has entered into an 
intercreditor agreement with the Trustee pursuant to which such lienholder has agreed that the 
Trustee shall act as Collateral Agent for the benefit of the Holders of all Bonds and any other 
Indebtedness permitted under the Loan Agreement and the Trustee shall control all remedies 
related to the Mortgaged Property, (ii) Liens on real property of the School (and improvements 
and personal property located thereon) other than the Mortgaged Property, and (iii) Permitted 
Liens. 

 
Agreement to Obtain Rating from Rating Agency 

Beginning with the School’s Fiscal Year ending on June 30, 2015, the School agrees to 
retain an independent financial advisor and to pursue and pay for all expenses of a rating on the 
Series 2013 Bonds from a Rating Agency, if at such time the School’s financial advisor 
reasonably believes that an investment grade rating may be obtained based on the School’s 
operating data and financial statements.  

 
Key Person Insurance 

The School shall obtain, no later than the date of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds, a 
$1,000,000 “key person” life insurance policy per person on the lives of Reverend Barrington 
F.H. Goldson, Chairman of the Board of Trustees and Wayne Haughton, Executive Director for a 
20 year term until December 1, 2033 which names the Trustee as the primary beneficiary 
thereunder.  The receipt of “key person” person insurance proceeds upon the death of one “key 
person” named in the Loan Agreement does not void the requirement to maintain “key person” 
insurance upon the other surviving “key person” named in the Loan Agreement through the full 
20-year term.  If the School is unable to obtain the “key person” life insurance required by this 
summarized section or the “key persons” named in the Loan Agreement terminate their 
employment with the School, the School shall notify the Trustee to notify the registered owners 
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of such occurrence, and the registered owners of at least a majority of the Outstanding Bonds 
shall have the right to direct the Charter School on how to proceed with meeting the 
requirements set forth in the Loan Agreement.  The School agrees to notify the Trustee of the 
death of any “key person” named in the Loan Agreement.  Said “key person” insurance policies 
and any proceeds thereof shall be held and applied by the Trustee as provided in the Indenture.   
 
Assignment, Leasing and Subleasing 

(a) In addition to the limitation contained in the subsection under the heading 
“Negative Pledge; Liens Securing Additional Indebtedness”, the Loan Agreement may not be 
assigned by the School, in whole or in part, and except in the ordinary course of the operations of 
the School, the Project may not be leased, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent 
of the Issuer which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or denied.  Any assignment or 
lease shall be on the following conditions: 

(i) no assignment or lease shall relieve the School from primary liability for 
any of its obligations under the Loan Agreement or under any other of the 
School Documents; 

(ii) the assignee or lessee shall assume the obligations of the School under the 
Loan Agreement to the extent of the interest assigned or leased, shall be 
jointly and severally liable with the School for the performance thereof 
and shall be subject to service of process in the State of New York; 

(iii) the School shall, within ten (10) business days after the delivery thereof, 
furnish or cause to be furnished to the Issuer and to the Trustee a true and 
complete copy of such assignment or lease and the instrument of 
assumption; 

(iv) neither the validity nor the enforceability of the Series 2013 Bonds or any 
Bond Document shall be adversely affected thereby; 

(v) the exclusion of the interest on the Series 2013 Bonds from gross income 
for Federal income tax purposes will not be adversely affected; 

(vi) the assignee or lessee shall be an Exempt Organization and shall utilize the 
Project substantially in the same manner as the School as facilities of 
primary education. 

(b) If the Trustee or the Issuer shall so request, as of the purported effective date of 
any assignment or lease pursuant to subsection (a) of this summarized section, the School, at its 
sole cost, shall furnish the Trustee or the Issuer, as appropriate, with an opinion, in form and 
substance satisfactory to the Trustee or the Issuer, as appropriate, (i) of Bond Counsel as to 
items (v) and (vi) above, and (ii) of Independent Counsel as to items (i), (ii) and (iv) above. 

 
Merger of Issuer 

(a) Nothing contained in the Loan Agreement shall prevent the consolidation of the 
Issuer with, or merger of the Issuer into, or transfer of its interest in the entire Project to any 
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other public benefit corporation or political subdivision which has the legal authority to enter 
into the Loan Agreement, provided that: 

(i)  upon any such consolidation, merger or transfer, the due and punctual 
performance and observance of all the agreements and conditions of the Loan 
Agreement to be kept and performed by the Issuer shall be expressly assumed in 
writing by the public benefit corporation or political subdivision resulting from 
such consolidation or surviving such merger or to which the Issuer’s interest in 
the Project shall be transferred; and 

(ii)  the exclusion of the interest on the Series 2013 Bonds from gross 
income for Federal income tax purposes shall not be adversely affected thereby. 

(b) Within thirty (30) days after the consummation of any such consolidation, merger 
or transfer of interest, the Issuer shall give notice thereof in reasonable detail to the School and 
the Trustee and shall furnish to the School and the Trustee (i) a favorable opinion of Independent 
Counsel as to compliance with the provisions of subsection (a)(i) above, and (ii) a favorable 
opinion of Bond Counsel opining as to compliance with the provisions of subsection (a)(ii) 
above.  The Issuer promptly shall furnish such additional information with respect to any such 
transaction as the School or the Trustee may reasonably request. 

 
Events of Default Defined 

(a) The following shall be “Events of Default” under the Loan Agreement: 
(i) the failure by the School to pay or cause to be paid on the date due, 

the amounts specified to be paid pursuant to subsections (a), (b) and (d) under the 
heading “Loan Payments and Other Amounts Payable”; 

(ii) the failure by the School to observe and perform any covenant 
contained in Sections 6.3, 6.4, 6.5, 8.2, 8.4, 8.5, 8.6, 8.8, 8.12, 8.13, 8.14, 8.15, 
8.19, 8.20, 8.21 and 9.3 of the Loan Agreement; 

(iii) any representation or warranty of the School in the Loan 
Agreement or in the Bond Purchase Agreement shall prove to have been false or 
misleading when made in any material respect and the same shall have a 
materially adverse affect upon the School, the Project, or the exclusion of interest 
on the Series 2013 Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes; 

(iv) the failure by the School to observe and perform any covenant, 
condition or agreement under the Loan Agreement on its part to be observed or 
performed (except obligations referred to in subsections (a)(i) or (ii) above) for a 
period of thirty (30) days after receiving written notice, specifying such failure 
and requesting that it be remedied, given to the School by the Issuer or the 
Trustee; provided, however, that if such default cannot be cured within thirty (30) 
days but the School is proceeding diligently and in good faith to cure such default, 
then the School shall be permitted an additional ninety (90) days within which to 
remedy the default; 

(v) the dissolution or liquidation of the School; or the failure by the 
School to release, stay, discharge, lift or bond within sixty (60) days any 



 

D-63  

execution, garnishment, judgment or attachment of such consequence as may 
impair its ability to carry on its operations; or the failure by the School generally 
to pay its debts as they become due; or an assignment by the School for the 
benefit of creditors; the commencement by the School (as the debtor) of a case in 
Bankruptcy or any proceeding under any other insolvency law; or the 
commencement of a case in Bankruptcy or any proceeding under any other 
insolvency law against the School (as the debtor) and a court having jurisdiction 
in the premises enters a decree or order for relief against the School as the debtor 
in such case or proceeding, or such case or proceeding is consented to by the 
School or remains undismissed for sixty (60) days, or the School consents to or 
admits the material allegations against it in any such case or proceeding; or a 
trustee, receiver or agent (however named) is appointed or authorized to take 
charge of substantially all of the property of the School for the purpose of 
enforcing a lien against such Property or for the purpose of general administration 
of such Property for the benefit of creditors (the term “dissolution or liquidation 
of the School or the Guarantors” as used in this subsection shall not be construed 
to include any transaction permitted by the Loan Agreement); 

(vi) an Event of Default under or a default on the part of the School of 
its obligations under the Indenture shall have occurred and be continuing;  
(vii) the invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of any of the Bond 
Documents, provided the same does not permit the Issuer or the Trustee, as the 
case may be, to recognize the material benefits of the respective documents;  
(viii) a breach of any covenant or representation contained in Section 8.8 of the 
Loan Agreement with respect to environmental matters; 
(ix) an Event of Default under the Mortgage shall have occurred and be 
continuing; or 
(x) an event of default by the School under any other Indebtedness of the 
School beyond any applicable cure periods. 

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of summarized subsection (a) above, if by reason 
of force majeure any party to the Loan Agreement shall be unable in whole or in part to carry out 
its obligations under the Loan Agreement (other than its obligations under subsections (a), (b) or 
(d) under the heading “Loan Payments and Other Amounts Payable”) and if such party shall give 
notice and full particulars of such force majeure in writing to the other party and to the Trustee, 
within a reasonable time after the occurrence of the event or cause relied upon, such obligations 
under the Loan Agreement of the party giving such notice (and only such obligations), so far as 
they are affected by such force majeure, shall be suspended during continuance of the inability, 
which shall include a reasonable time for the removal of the effect thereof.  The term “force 
majeure” as used in the Loan Agreement shall include, without limitation, acts of God, strikes, 
lockouts or other industrial disturbances, acts of public enemies, acts, priorities or orders of any 
kind of the government of the United States of America or of the State or any of their 
departments, agencies, governmental subdivisions, or officials, any civil or military authority, 
insurrections, riots, epidemics, landslides, lightning, earthquakes, fire, hurricanes, storms, floods, 
washouts, droughts, arrests, restraint of government and people, civil disturbances, explosions, 
breakage or accident to machinery, transmission pipes or canals, shortages of labor or materials 
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or delays of carriers, partial or entire failure of utilities, shortage of energy or any other cause or 
event not reasonably within the control of the party claiming such inability and not due to its 
fault.  The party claiming such inability shall remove the cause for the same with all reasonable 
promptness.  It is agreed that the settlement of strikes, lockouts and other industrial disturbances 
shall be entirely within the discretion of the party having difficulty, and the party having 
difficulty shall not be required to settle any strike, lockout and other industrial disturbances by 
acceding to the demands of the opposing party or parties. 

 
Remedies on Default 

(a) Whenever any Event of Default shall have occurred, the Issuer or the Trustee may 
take, to the extent permitted by law, any one or more of the following remedial steps: 

(i) declare, by written notice to the School, to be immediately due and 
payable, whereupon the same shall become immediately due and payable:  (A) all 
unpaid Loan Payments payable pursuant to the Loan Agreement and pursuant to 
the Promissory Note in amount equal to the aggregate unpaid principal balance of 
all Series 2013 Bonds together with all interest which has accrued and will accrue 
thereon to the date of payment and all premium, if any, and (B) all other payments 
due under the Loan Agreement; provided, however, that if an Event of Default 
specified in subsection (a)(v) under the heading “Events of Default Defined” shall 
have occurred, such Loan Payments and other payments due under the Loan 
Agreement shall become immediately due and payable without notice to the 
School or the taking of any other action by the Trustee; 

(ii) apply any undisbursed money in the Project Fund and Renewal 
Fund to the payment of the costs and expenses incurred in connection with the 
enforcement of the rights and remedies of the Trustee and the Issuer, and (b) 
apply any undisbursed monies in the Project Fund, the Renewal Fund, and any 
other Fund or Account under the Indenture (other than those sums attributable to 
Unassigned Rights and except for the monies and investments from time to time 
in the Rebate Fund) to the payment of the outstanding principal amount of the 
Series 2013 Bonds and premium, if any, and accrued and unpaid interest on the 
Series 2013 Bonds; 

(iii) direct the Trustee to foreclose on the Mortgage or otherwise realize 
upon or seize any portion of the Trust Estate; 

(iv) take any other action at law or in equity that may appear necessary 
or desirable to collect the payments then due or thereafter to become due under 
the Loan Agreement and to enforce the obligations, agreements or covenants of 
the School under the Loan Agreement; or 

(v) exercise any other rights or remedies under any control agreement 
with respect to any Intercreditor Agreement. 

(b) Reserved. 
(c) Any sums payable to the Issuer as a consequence of any action taken pursuant to 

this summarized section (other than those sums attributable to Unassigned Rights and except for 
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the moneys and investments from time to time in the Rebate Fund) shall be paid to the Trustee 
and applied to the payment of the Series 2013 Bonds. 

(d) No action taken pursuant to this summarized section shall relieve the School from 
its obligation to make all payments required by the Loan Agreement and pursuant to the 
Promissory Note. 

(e) Reserved. 
(f) The Issuer shall have all of the rights, powers and remedies of a secured party 

under the Uniform Commercial Code of New York, including, without limitation, the right to 
seize or otherwise dispose of any or all of the Collateral described in the Loan Agreement, and to 
receive the payment of or take possession of the Collateral or the proceeds thereof.  Upon the 
occurrence of an Event of Default by the School under the Loan Agreement, the School agrees 
that it will not commingle any moneys or other proceeds received by it in connection with any 
Collateral with any other moneys, funds or accounts of the School. 

 
Remedies Cumulative 

No remedy in the Loan Agreement conferred upon or reserved to the Issuer or the Trustee 
is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall 
be cumulative and in addition to every other remedy given under the Loan Agreement or now or 
hereafter existing at law or in equity.  No delay or omission to exercise any right or power 
accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a 
waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as 
may be deemed expedient.  In order to entitle the Issuer or the Trustee, as appropriate, to exercise 
any remedy reserved to it in the Loan Agreement, it shall not be necessary to give any notice, 
other than such notice as may be expressly required in the Loan Agreement. 
 
Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses 

(a) In the event the School should default under any of the provisions of the Loan 
Agreement and the Issuer should employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of 
amounts payable under the Loan Agreement or the enforcement of performance or observance of 
any obligations or agreements on the part of the School contained in the Loan Agreement, the 
School shall, on demand therefor, pay to the Issuer the reasonable fees of such attorneys and 
such other reasonable expenses so incurred. 

(b) In the event the School should default under any of the provisions of the Loan 
Agreement and the Trustee should employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of 
amounts payable under the Loan Agreement or the enforcement of performance or observance of 
any obligations or agreements on the part of the School contained in the Loan Agreement, the 
School shall, on demand therefor, pay to the Trustee the reasonable fees of such attorneys and 
such other reasonable expenses so incurred. 

(c)  In the event the School should default under any of the provisions of the Loan 
Agreement and the Custodian should employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection 
of amounts payable under the Loan Agreement or the enforcement of performance or observance 
of any obligations or agreements on the part of the School contained in the Loan Agreement, the 
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School shall, on demand therefor, pay to the Custodian the reasonable fees of such attorneys and 
such other reasonable expenses so incurred. 

 
No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver   

In the event any agreement contained in the Loan Agreement should be breached by any 
party and thereafter waived by any other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular 
breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other breach under the Loan Agreement. 
 
Early Termination of Loan Agreement  

The School shall have the option to terminate the Loan Agreement at any time that the 
Series 2013 Bonds are subject to redemption in whole under the Indenture and upon filing with 
the Issuer and the Trustee a certificate signed by an Authorized Representative of the School 
stating the School’s intention to do so pursuant to this summarized section and the date upon 
which such payment shall be made (which date shall not be less than forty-five (45) nor more 
than ninety (90) days from the date such certificate is filed) and upon compliance with the 
requirements set forth in the Loan Agreement. 
 
Conditions to Early Termination of Loan Agreement  

In the event the School exercises its option to terminate the Loan Agreement in 
accordance with the provisions of the Loan Agreement, the School shall make the following 
payments: 

(a) To the Trustee for the account of the Issuer:  an amount certified by the Trustee 
which, when added to the total amount on deposit with the Trustee for the account of the Issuer 
and the School and available for such purpose, will be sufficient to pay the principal of, 
Redemption Price of, and interest to maturity or the earliest practicable redemption date, as the 
case may be, on the Series 2013 Bonds, all expenses of redemption and the Trustee’s fees and 
expenses. 

(b) To the Issuer:  an amount certified by the Issuer sufficient to pay all unpaid fees 
and expenses of the Issuer incurred under the Bond Documents. 

(c) To the appropriate Person:  an amount sufficient to pay all other fees, expenses or 
charges, if any, due and payable or to become due and payable under the Bond Documents. 

 
[Reminder of the Page Intentionally Left Blank] 
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SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS 
OF THE AMENDED AND RESTATES CUSTODY AGREEMENT 

 
The following is a brief summary of certain provisions of the Amended and Restated 

Custody Agreement and should not be considered a full statement thereof.  Reference is made 
to the Custody Agreement for complete details of the terms thereof.  

 
Representations and Warranties of the School 

The School makes the following representations and warranties as the basis for the 
undertakings on its part contained in the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement: 

1. The School is an education corporation duly organized and validly existing under 
the laws of the State, is qualified to do business in the State and all other jurisdictions in which 
its operations or ownership of Properties so require, and has the power to enter into the Amended 
and Restated Custody Agreement and carry out its obligations under the Amended and Restated 
Custody Agreement and has been duly authorized to execute the Amended and Restated Custody 
Agreement.  The School has been qualified as a 501(c)(3) corporation.  The Amended and 
Restated Custody Agreement and the transactions contemplated by the Amended and Restated 
Custody Agreement have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the board of 
trustees. 

2. Neither the execution and delivery of the Amended and Restated Custody 
Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Amended and Restated 
Custody Agreement nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the provisions of the Amended and 
Restated Custody Agreement will (1) conflict with or result in a breach of any of the terms, 
conditions or provisions of the certificate of incorporation or by-laws of the School or any order, 
judgment, agreement or instrument to which the School is a party or by which the School is 
bound, or constitute a default under any of the foregoing, or (2) result in the creation or 
imposition of any Lien of any nature upon any Property of the School other than pursuant to the 
Security Documents, or (3) require consent (which has not been heretofore received) under any 
corporate restriction, agreement or instrument to which the School is a party or by which the 
School or any of its Property may be bound or affected, or (4) require consent (which has not 
been heretofore received) under, conflict with or violate any existing law, rule, regulation, 
judgment, order, writ, injunction or decree of any government, governmental instrumentality or 
court (domestic or foreign) having jurisdiction over the School or any of the Property of the 
School. 

 

Representations and Warranties of the Custodian 
The Custodian makes the following representations and warranties as the basis for the 

undertakings on its part contained in the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement: 
1. The Custodian is a banking corporation duly organized and validly existing under 

the laws of the State of New York, is qualified to do business in the State and all other 
jurisdictions in which its operations or ownership of Properties so require, and has the power to 
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enter into the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement and carry out its obligations under the 
Amended and Restated Custody Agreement and has been duly authorized to execute the 
Amended and Restated Custody Agreement.  The Amended and Restated Custody Agreement 
and the transactions contemplated by the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement have been 
duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Custodian. 

2. Neither the execution and delivery of the Amended and Restated Custody 
Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Amended and Restated 
Custody Agreement nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the provisions of the Amended and 
Restated Custody Agreement will (1) conflict with or result in a breach of any of the terms, 
conditions or provisions of the articles of association or by-laws of the Custodian or any order, 
judgment, agreement or instrument to which the Custodian is a party or by which the Custodian 
is bound, or constitute a default under any of the foregoing, or (2) result in the creation or 
imposition of any Lien of any nature upon any Property of the Custodian other than pursuant to 
the Security Documents, or (3) require consent (which has not been heretofore received) under 
any corporate restriction, agreement or instrument to which the Custodian is a party or by which 
the Custodian or any of its Property may be bound or affected, or (4) require consent (which has 
not been heretofore received) under, conflict with or violate any existing law, rule, regulation, 
judgment, order, writ, injunction or decree of any government, governmental instrumentality or 
court (domestic or foreign) having jurisdiction over the Custodian or any of the Property of the 
Custodian. 

 

Representations and Warranties of the Series 2011 Trustee 
The Series 2011 Trustee makes the following representations and warranties as the basis 

for the undertakings on its part contained in the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement: 
1. The Series 2011 Trustee is a banking corporation duly organized and validly 

existing under the laws of the State of New York, is qualified to do business in the State and all 
other jurisdictions in which its operations or ownership of Properties so require, and has the 
power to enter into the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement and carry out its obligations 
under the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement and has been duly authorized to execute 
the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement.  The Amended and Restated Custody 
Agreement and the transactions contemplated by the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement 
have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Series 2011 Trustee. 

2. Neither the execution and delivery of the Amended and Restated Custody 
Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Amended and Restated 
Custody Agreement nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the provisions of the Amended and 
Restated Custody Agreement will (1) conflict with or result in a breach of any of the terms, 
conditions or provisions of the articles of association or by-laws of the Series 2011 Trustee or 
any order, judgment, agreement or instrument to which the Series 2011 Trustee is a party or by 
which the Series 2011 Trustee is bound, or constitute a default under any of the foregoing, or (2) 
result in the creation or imposition of any Lien of any nature upon any Property of the Series 
2011 Trustee other than pursuant to the Security Documents, or (3) require consent (which has 
not been heretofore received) under any corporate restriction, agreement or instrument to which 
the Series 2011 Trustee is a party or by which the Series 2011 Trustee or any of its Property may 
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be bound or affected, or (4) require consent (which has not been heretofore received) under, 
conflict with or violate any existing law, rule, regulation, judgment, order, writ, injunction or 
decree of any government, governmental instrumentality or court (domestic or foreign) having 
jurisdiction over the Series 2011 Trustee or any of the Property of the Series 2011 Trustee. 

 
Representations and Warranties of the Series 2013 Trustee 

The Series 2013 Trustee makes the following representations and warranties as the basis 
for the undertakings on its part contained in the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement: 

1. The Series 2013 Trustee is a banking corporation duly organized and validly 
existing under the laws of the State of New York, is qualified to do business in the State and all 
other jurisdictions in which its operations or ownership of Properties so require, and has the 
power to enter into the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement and carry out its obligations 
under the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement and has been duly authorized to execute 
the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement.  The Amended and Restated Custody 
Agreement and the transactions contemplated by the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement 
have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Series 2013 Trustee. 

2. Neither the execution and delivery of the Amended and Restated Custody 
Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Amended and Restated 
Custody Agreement nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the provisions of the Amended and 
Restated Custody Agreement will (1) conflict with or result in a breach of any of the terms, 
conditions or provisions of the articles of association or by-laws of the Series 2013 Trustee or 
any order, judgment, agreement or instrument to which the Series 2013 Trustee is a party or by 
which the Series 2011 Trustee is bound, or constitute a default under any of the foregoing, or (2) 
result in the creation or imposition of any Lien of any nature upon any Property of the Series 
2013 Trustee other than pursuant to the Security Documents, or (3) require consent (which has 
not been heretofore received) under any corporate restriction, agreement or instrument to which 
the Series 2013 Trustee is a party or by which the Series 2013 Trustee or any of its Property may 
be bound or affected, or (4) require consent (which has not been heretofore received) under, 
conflict with or violate any existing law, rule, regulation, judgment, order, writ, injunction or 
decree of any government, governmental instrumentality or court (domestic or foreign) having 
jurisdiction over the Series 2013 Trustee or any of the Property of the Series 2013 Trustee. 
 
Covenants of the School 

The School covenants and agrees with the Custodian and the Series 2011 Trustee and the 
Series 2013 Trustee that from and after the date of the Amended and Restated Custody 
Agreement until the Series 2011 Bonds and the Series 2013 Bonds are paid in full: 

1. The School shall pay over to the Custodian any and all amounts of Education Aid 
paid by the School Districts within two (2) Business Days of receipt thereof by the School. 

2. The School shall take all such customary actions as may be necessary to deliver in 
a timely fashion to each School District and to any State or federal education agency, as 
applicable, all such information as may be necessary in accordance with the Federal Education 
Act to permit each such School District or agency to make each payment of federally funded 
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Other Education Aid to the School permitted by the Federal Education Act.  The School shall 
provide copies of all materials provided to any such School District or agency with respect to 
such Education Aid to the Custodian and the Series 2011 Trustee and the Series 2013 Trustee to 
the extent permitted by law. 

3. The School irrevocably directs the Custodian pursuant to the Custody Agreement 
to deposit with the Series 2011 Trustee and the Series 2013 Trustee, immediately upon receipt by 
the Custodian of a payment of Education Aid, the amounts necessary, along with any other 
amounts previously so deposited in the applicable period to cause the aggregate amount so 
deposited to equal the aggregate amount specified in the Custody Agreement Notice delivered by 
the Series 2011 Trustee and the Series 2013 Trustee with respect to such period. 

4. The School agrees to provide the Series 2011 Trustee and the Series 2013 Trustee, 
in a timely fashion (but at least ten (10) Business Days prior to each State Education Operating 
Aid Payment Date), such information as may be reasonably required by the Series 2011 Trustee 
and the Series 2013 Trustee in order to permit the Series 2011 Trustee and the Series 2013 
Trustee to prepare each Custody Agreement Notice. 

5. The School agrees to give the Issuer, the Series 2011 Trustee and the Series 2013 
Trustee and the Custodian notice of its intention to incur Parity Indebtedness at least sixty (60) 
days prior to the incurrence thereof.  The School agrees to provide the Custodian with all 
information necessary to enable the Custodian to make the payments described in the amended 
and Restated Custody Agreement in a timely manner with respect to such Parity Indebtedness. 

 
Covenants of the Custodian 

The Custodian covenants and agrees with the School and the Series 2011 Trustee and the 
Series 2013 Trustee that from and after the date of the Amended and Restated Custody 
Agreement until the Series 2011 Bonds and the Series 2013 Bonds are paid in full: 

1. The Custodian, at the direction of the School, shall establish an account (which 
account shall be owned by the School) called The Academy Charter School Custody Account 
(the “Custody Account”) for the deposit of moneys received pursuant to the Amended and 
Restated Custody Agreement. 

2. The Custodian shall immediately deposit all moneys received pursuant to the 
Amended and Restated Custody Agreement into the Custody Account. 

3. Upon receipt and deposit of any moneys pursuant to the Amended and Restated 
Custody Agreement, the Custodian shall immediately transfer to the Series 2011 Trustee and the 
Series 2013 Trustee the total amount of money described in the then applicable Custody 
Agreement Notice, along with any deficiency in amounts described in prior Custody Agreement 
Notices, which shall include any amounts necessary to fund deficiencies in the Bond Fund and 
the Debt Service Reserve Fund, to the extent necessary, along with all other amounts previously 
transferred with respect thereto to fully fund the requirements described therein (the “Current 
Funding Amount”). 

4. In the event that the School has incurred Parity Indebtedness satisfying the 
requirements of the Loan Agreement, the Custodian shall, in addition to the payments required to 
be made to the Series 2011 Trustee and the Series 2013 Trustee pursuant to the Amended and 
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Restate Custody Agreement, transfer to the issuer of, or the Series 2011 Trustee and the Series 
2013 Trustee for, any such Parity Indebtedness, as the case may be, any amounts due and 
payable with respect to such Parity Indebtedness.  In the event that the Custodian shall at any 
time be required to transfer moneys held by it to two or more recipients (excluding the School) 
and the aggregate amount then on deposit in the Custody Account shall not be sufficient to pay 
such recipients in full, the Custodian shall transfer the available amount to such recipients on a 
pro rata basis. 

5. The Custodian shall transfer moneys, if any, remaining credited to the Custody 
Account after the completion of all transfers described in the Amended and Restate Custody 
Agreement to the School automatically unless the Custodian receives the written instructions 
from the School to the contrary. 

6. The Custodian shall immediately notify the Series 2011 Trustee and the Series 
2013 Trustee and the School of any failure to receive payment of Education Aid within one (1) 
Business Day of a State Education Operating Aid Payment Date or, with respect to any payment 
of federally funded Other Education Aid, within one (1) Business Day of the date such payment 
is due. 

7. The School shall timely notify the State Commissioner of Education of any failure 
of the School District to make required Education Aid Payments.  The School shall cause the 
State Comptroller to pay any Education Aid Payments payable by the State Comptroller to the 
Custodian.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that such Education Aid Payments are 
paid by the State Comptroller to the School, as opposed to the Custodian, the School shall 
immediately transfer such amounts to the Custodian to be applied in accordance with the 
provisions of the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement. 

 
Covenants of the Series 2011 Trustee 

The Series 2011 Trustee covenants and agrees with the School and the Custodian that 
from and after the date of the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement until the Series 2011 
Bonds are paid in full: 

1. The Series 2011 Trustee shall prepare a Custody Agreement Notice, in 
substantially the form of Exhibit A attached to the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement, 
with respect to each period from and including February 2, 2012 and thereafter from and 
including each succeeding State Education Operating Aid Payment Date, through and including 
the calendar day preceding each subsequent State Education Operating Aid Payment Date (each 
an “Education Aid Funding Period”), certifying the respective aggregate amounts to be 
transferred by the Custodian to the Series 2011 Trustee during the applicable Education Aid 
Funding Period with respect to each of the following: 

a. for deposit to the Bond Fund, as of the first Business Day of each January, 
April, July and October, commencing February 1, 2013, an amount equal to one-half 
(1/2) of the next upcoming interest payment on the Series 2011 Bonds due and owing on 
the next succeeding Debt Service Payment Date and one-fourth (1/4) of the next 
upcoming principal or sinking fund installment payment on the Series 2011 Bonds due 
and owing on the next succeeding Debt Service Payment Date and thereafter; provided 
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however, the School shall commence making payments with respect to principal 
beginning February 1, 2013.  

b. on each redemption date, with respect to the Redemption Price (other than 
by Sinking Fund Installments) due and payable on the Series 2011 Bonds, whether as an 
optional or a mandatory redemption, an amount equal to the Redemption Price together 
with accrued interest on the Series 2011 Bonds being redeemed on such redemption date; 

c. in the event that a withdrawal has been made from the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund which results in a deficiency in the amount required to be on deposit to the 
credit of the Debt Service Reserve Fund, the Series 2011 Trustee shall include in the 
Custody Agreement Notice such amount as shall be necessary to replenish such 
withdrawal from the Debt Service Reserve Fund over a twelve month period in quarterly 
payments payable as of the first Business Day of each January, April, July and October, 
each such payment to be in an amount equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the amount of the 
deficiency commencing immediately succeeding the date of receipt by the School from 
the Series 2011 Trustee of notice of such deficiency in the Debt Service Reserve Fund; 
and 

(4) for delivery to the School, the balance of any Education Aid received by the 
Custodian.  
2. Notwithstanding the provisions of  the Amended and Restate Custody Agreement, 

it shall not be necessary for the Series 2011 Trustee to prepare a Custody Agreement Notice with 
respect to any period described therein if the respective aggregate amounts to be transferred by 
the Custodian to the Series 2011 Trustee are the same as such amounts as certified in the most 
recent Custody Agreement Notice delivered by the Series 2011 Trustee. 

3. Subject to receipt of information as provided in the Amended and Restate 
Custody Agreement, the Series 2011 Trustee agrees to deliver the applicable Custody Agreement 
Notice to the Custodian and the School at least five (5) Business Days before each applicable 
State Education Operating Aid Payment Date. 

4. Upon receipt of any moneys pursuant to the Custody Agreement or from the 
School, the Series 2011 Trustee shall immediately deposit the moneys in the funds and accounts 
held by the Series 2011 Trustee in accordance with the Indenture. 

5. The Series 2011 Trustee shall immediately notify the Custodian and the School of 
any failure by the Custodian to transfer to the Series 2011 Trustee the amount of moneys 
described in the Custody Agreement Notice by seven (7) Business Days subsequent to a State 
Education Operating Aid Payment Date or, with respect to any payment of federally funded 
Other Education Aid, within seven (7) Business Days of the date such payment is due. 

6. The Custodian shall take all such action as may be reasonably requested by the 
Series 2011 Trustee or the School, not resulting in material cost or liability on the part of the 
Series 2011 Trustee or the Custodian, to permit or facilitate the timely and full receipt by the 
Custodian of any federally funded Other Education Aid which may be receivable by the 
Custodian on behalf of the School. 
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Covenants of the Series 2013 Trustee 
The Series 2013 Trustee covenants and agrees with the School and the Custodian that 

from and after the date of the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement until the Series 2013 
Bonds are paid in full: 

1. The Series 2013 Trustee shall prepare a Custody Agreement Notice, in 
substantially the form of Exhibit A attached to the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement, 
with respect to each period from and including January 1, 2014 and thereafter from and including 
each succeeding State Education Operating Aid Payment Date, through and including the 
calendar day preceding each subsequent State Education Operating Aid Payment Date (each an 
“Education Aid Funding Period”), certifying the respective aggregate amounts to be transferred 
by the Custodian to the Series 2013 Trustee during the applicable Education Aid Funding Period 
with respect to each of the following: 

a. for deposit to the Bond Fund, as of January 1, 2014 an amount equal to the 
interest payment that will be due and owing on the Series 2013 Bonds on February 1, 
2014 Debt Service Payment Date and thereafter on the first Business Day of each 
January, April, July and October, commencing April 1, 2014, an amount equal to one-
half (1/2) of the next upcoming interest payment on the Series 2013 Bonds due and 
owing on the next succeeding Debt Service Payment Date and one-fourth (1/4) of the 
next upcoming principal or sinking fund installment payment on the Series 2013 Bonds 
due and owing on the next succeeding Debt Service Payment Date and thereafter; 
provided however, the School shall commence making payments with respect to principal 
beginning January 1, 2015.  

b. on each redemption date, with respect to the Redemption Price (other than 
by Sinking Fund Installments) due and payable on the Series 2013 Bonds, whether as an 
optional or a mandatory redemption, an amount equal to the Redemption Price together 
with accrued interest on the Series 2013 Bonds being redeemed on such redemption date; 

c. in the event that a withdrawal has been made from the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund which results in a deficiency in the amount required to be on deposit to the 
credit of the Debt Service Reserve Fund, the Series 2013 Trustee shall include in the 
Custody Agreement Notice such amount as shall be necessary to replenish such 
withdrawal from the Debt Service Reserve Fund over a twelve month period in quarterly 
payments payable as of the first Business Day of each January, April, July and October, 
each such payment to be in an amount equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the amount of the 
deficiency commencing immediately succeeding the date of receipt by the School from 
the Series 2013 Trustee of notice of such deficiency in the Debt Service Reserve Fund; 
and 

(4) for delivery to the School, the balance of any Education Aid received by the 
Custodian.  
2. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Amended and Restate Custody Agreement, 

it shall not be necessary for the Series 2013 Trustee to prepare a Custody Agreement Notice with 
respect to any period described therein if the respective aggregate amounts to be transferred by 
the Custodian to the Series 2013 Trustee are the same as such amounts as certified in the most 
recent Custody Agreement Notice delivered by the Series 2013 Trustee. 
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3. Subject to receipt of information as provided in the Amended and Restate 
Custody Agreement, the Series 2013 Trustee agrees to deliver the applicable Custody Agreement 
Notice to the Custodian and the School at least five (5) Business Days before each applicable 
State Education Operating Aid Payment Date. 

4. Upon receipt of any moneys pursuant to the Custody Agreement or from the 
School, the Series 2013 Trustee shall immediately deposit the moneys in the funds and accounts 
held by the Series 2013 Trustee in accordance with the Indenture. 

5. The Series 2013 Trustee shall immediately notify the Custodian and the School of 
any failure by the Custodian to transfer to the Series 2013 Trustee the amount of moneys 
described in the Custody Agreement Notice by seven (7) Business Days subsequent to a State 
Education Operating Aid Payment Date or, with respect to any payment of federally funded 
Other Education Aid, within seven (7) Business Days of the date such payment is due. 

6. The Custodian shall take all such action as may be reasonably requested by the 
Series 2013 Trustee or the School, not resulting in material cost or liability on the part of the 
Series 2013 Trustee or the Custodian, to permit or facilitate the timely and full receipt by the 
Custodian of any federally funded Other Education Aid which may be receivable by the 
Custodian on behalf of the School. 

Default 
 Any one or more of the following events shall constitute an “Event of Default” under the 
Amended and Restated Custody Agreement: 

a. The failure of the Custodian, the School, the Series 2011 Trustee or the 
Series 2013 Trustee to make or cause to be made, as the case may be, any payment 
required under the Amended and Restate Custody Agreement within two (2) Business 
Days after receipt of written notice specifying the nature of such default; 

b. The failure of the Custodian, the School, the Series 2011 Trustee or the 
Series 2013 Trustee to take such other actions as are required under (a) the Amended and 
Restate Custody Agreement (other than as described in Amended and Restate Custody 
Agreement), or (b) any other provision of the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement 
on their part, respectively, within fifteen (15) days after written notice specifying the 
nature of such default; or 

c. Any direction by the School to the Custodian to apply Education Aid in 
any manner which is inconsistent with the express requirements of the Custody 
Agreement. 

Remedies On Default 
Whenever any Event of Default under the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement by 

one party to the Amended and Restated Custody Agreement shall have occurred and be 
continuing, the other party may enforce the provisions of the Amended and Restated Custody 
Agreement and may enforce and protect its rights by a suit or suits in equity or at law for (1) the 
specific performance of any covenant or agreement contained in the Amended and Restated 
Custody Agreement or (2) any other appropriate legal or equitable remedy. 
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SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE MORTGAGE 
 

 The following is a brief summary of certain provisions of the Building Loan Mortgage 
and Security Agreement, the Project Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement, the Acquisition 
Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement and the Assignment of Building Loan Mortgage and 
Security Agreement, the Assignment of Project Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement and the 
Assignment of Acquisition Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement and should not be considered 
a full statement thereof.  Reference is made to each of the Mortgages for complete details of the 
terms thereof. 
 
Grant of Mortgage Lien 
 
 Pursuant to the Building Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement, the Project Loan 
Mortgage and Security Agreement and the Acquisition Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement 
(collectively, the “Mortgage”) the School has granted to the Issuer a mortgage Lien on and 
security interest in the School located in the Town of Hempstead, New York including without 
limitation the Land and Improvements consisting of all buildings, structures and other 
improvements now or hereinafter erected on the Land and all appurtenances located on the Land 
and all building materials and fixtures incorporated into any Improvements or appurtenances 
located on the Land and all other machinery, apparatus, equipment, fittings, fixtures and articles 
of personal property, now owned or hereafter owned by the School constituting the Equipment, 
all condemnation awards and casualty insurance proceeds with respect to the foregoing 
(collectively, the “Mortgage Property”). 
 
Events of Default 

The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute an “Event of 
Default” under the Mortgage: 

(a) the School shall fail to pay on behalf of the Issuer (or cause to be paid) the 
principal of, redemption premium, if any, interest on or any other debt charges in respect of the 
Series 2013 Bonds when the same shall become due, whether on a Debt Service Payment Date, 
upon redemption, at maturity, upon acceleration, or otherwise; or 

(b) the School shall fail to pay any amounts due and owing under the Loan 
Agreement, or under the Promissory Note; or 

(c) the School shall fail to observe or perform any covenant, condition or agreement 
on its part to be performed under the Mortgage; or 

(d) the occurrence and continuation of an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement 
or the Indenture; or 

(e) any “Event of Default” occurs under any of the other Bond Documents; or 
(f) a breach by the School of its obligations under the Loan Agreement or if the 

School shall release or sell any Mortgaged Property without Mortgagee’s prior written consent 
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under the Loan Agreement, which consent may be given or withheld for no reason or given 
conditionally in Mortgagee’s sole discretion. 
Rights and Remedies Upon Default 

Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default under the Mortgage, the Mortgagee may 
exercise any one or more of the following rights and remedies: 

(a) Right to Cure Default.  The Mortgagee shall have the right, but not the obligation, 
to comply with, perform or observe any covenant or obligation which Mortgagor has failed to 
comply with, perform or observe under any of the Bond Documents and shall have the right to 
enter the Mortgaged Property at any time and from time to time for the purpose of curing such 
default, and any amounts so paid by the Mortgagee or the costs of such performance, together 
with all costs and expenses incurred by the Mortgagee in connection with such payment or 
performance, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and disbursements and 
interest on all such amounts, costs and expenses at the per annum rate of ten percent (10%), but 
in no event in excess of the maximum interest rate permitted by law, shall be paid by the 
Mortgagor to the Mortgagee on demand.  Until so paid, all such amounts, costs and expenses, 
together with interest thereon, shall be secured by the Mortgage and, if not paid, may be added to 
the judgment in any foreclosure action. 

(b) Right to Accelerate Bonds.  The Mortgagee may declare the entire unpaid 
principal amount, accrued interest and any other fees and expenses evidenced by the Loan 
Agreement, the Promissory Note, the Building Loan Agreement and the Bonds and secured by 
the Mortgage to be due and payable, in which event said amount shall immediately become due 
and payable.  Upon the occurrence and continuation of an Event of Default described in clause 
(f) above, at the sole option of Mortgagee, Mortgagee may accelerate the indebtedness evidenced 
by the Loan Agreement and the Note and declare the entire unpaid principal amount, accrued 
interest and any other fees and expenses evidenced by the Series 2013 Bonds and the Bond 
Documents immediately due and payable. 

(c) Right to Foreclose Mortgage.  The Mortgagee may foreclose the Mortgage and 
sell, if permitted by law, or petition to be sold, the Mortgaged Property in one or more parcels or 
in several interests or portions in such manner as a court of competent jurisdiction may direct.  If 
permitted by law, the Mortgagee or the Trustee may foreclose the Mortgage for any portion of 
the indebtedness or any other sums secured by the Mortgage which are then due and payable, 
subject to the continuing Lien of the Mortgage for the balance of the indebtedness not then due.  
If any real property transfer tax shall be due and payable upon the conveyance of the Mortgaged 
Property or any portion thereof pursuant to a judicial sale in any foreclosure action or by deed in 
lieu of foreclosure, the Mortgagor shall pay the same.  In the event that the Mortgagor fails to 
pay any such tax within ten (10) days after notice and demand for payment is given by the 
Mortgagee, the Mortgagee may pay the same, and any amount thereof so paid by the Mortgagee, 
together with all costs and expenses incurred by the Mortgagee in connection with such payment, 
including, but not limited to, reasonable legal fees and disbursements, and interest on all such 
amounts, costs and expenses at the per annum rate of ten percent (10%), but in no event in excess 
of the maximum interest rate permitted by law, shall be paid by the Mortgagor to the Mortgagee 
on demand.  The Mortgagee shall apply all proceeds of a foreclosure first, to all reasonable costs 
and expenses, including legal fees and expenses and costs incurred in connection with the 
foreclosure of the Mortgage, second, to the payment of all outstanding taxes and special 
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assessments, and third, to the payment of the indebtedness secured under the Mortgage.  Until so 
paid, all such amounts, costs and expenses, together with interest thereon, shall be secured by the 
Mortgage and, if not paid, may be added to the judgment in any foreclosure action. 

(d) Right to Appointment of Receiver.  The Mortgagee shall be entitled, without 
notice, without regard to the adequacy of any security for the indebtedness secured by the 
Mortgage and without regard to the solvency of the Mortgagor, to have a receiver, trustee, 
liquidator or conservator appointed with all the rights and powers permitted under the laws of the 
State.  Such receiver shall have and may enforce all of the rights and remedies of the Mortgagee 
under clause (c) above to the maximum extent permitted by law. 

(e) Right to Sell Mortgaged Property.  The Mortgagee shall have the right to sell for 
cash or upon credit the Mortgaged Property or any part thereof and all estate, claim, demand, 
right, title and interest of Mortgagor therein and rights of redemption thereof, pursuant to power 
of sale or otherwise, at one or more sales, as an entirety or in parcels, at such time and place, 
upon such terms and after such notice thereof as may be required or permitted by law. 

(f) Right to Institute an Action, Suit or Proceeding.  The Mortgagee shall have the 
right to institute an action, suit or proceeding in equity for the specific performance of any 
covenant, condition or agreement contained in the Mortgage, in the Note, the Loan Agreement, 
the Building Loan Agreement or in the other Bond Documents. 

(g) Right to Recover on Note.  The Mortgagee shall have the right to recover 
judgment on the Note either before, during or after any proceedings for the enforcement of the 
Mortgage or the other Bond Documents. 

(h) Rights under the Uniform Commercial Code.  The Mortgagee shall have the right 
to exercise any and all rights and remedies granted to a secured party upon default under the 
Uniform Commercial Code, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing:  (i) the 
right to take possession of the Building Materials and the Equipment, or any part thereof, and to 
take such other measures as Mortgagee may deem necessary for the care, protection and 
preservation of the Building Materials and Equipment, and (ii) request Mortgagor at its expense 
to assemble the Building Materials and Equipment and make it available to Mortgagee at a 
convenient place acceptable to Mortgagee.  Any notice of sale, disposition or other intended 
action by Mortgagee with respect to the Building Materials and Equipment sent to Mortgagor in 
accordance with the provisions of the Mortgage at least five (5) days prior to such action, shall 
constitute commercially reasonable notice to Mortgagor. 

(i) Right to Apply Sums in Accordance with Bond Documents.  The Mortgagee shall 
have the right to apply any sums then deposited or held in escrow or otherwise by or on behalf of 
Mortgagee in accordance with the terms of the Loan Agreement, the Note, the Building Loan 
Agreement, the Mortgage or any other Bond Document to the payment of the following items in 
any order in its uncontrolled discretion: real estate taxes; insurance premiums; interest on the 
unpaid principal balance of the Note; unpaid principal balance of the Note; and all other sums 
payable pursuant to the Note, the Loan Agreement, the Building Loan Agreement, the Mortgage 
and the other Bond Documents, including without limitation advances made by Mortgagee 
pursuant to the terms of the Mortgage. 
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In the event of a sale, by foreclosure, power of sale or otherwise, of less than all of 
Mortgaged Property, the Mortgage shall continue as a lien and security interest on the remaining 
portion of the Mortgaged Property unimpaired and without loss of priority. 
Rights and Remedies Under Mortgage Not Exclusive 

The rights and remedies of the Mortgagee under the Mortgage shall be in addition to its 
rights and remedies under the laws of the State, including, but not limited to, its rights and 
remedies under Section 254 of the Real Property Law of the State.  Nothing contained in the 
Mortgage shall be construed as requiring the Mortgagee to pursue any particular right or remedy 
for the purpose of procuring the satisfaction of the obligations and indebtedness secured by the 
Mortgage, and the Mortgagee may exercise any or all of its rights and remedies under the Bond 
Documents or otherwise provided by law in its sole discretion.  No failure of the Mortgagee to 
insist upon the strict performance by the Mortgagor of any of its covenants or obligations under 
the Bond Documents, and no delay by the Mortgagee in exercising any of its rights or remedies 
thereunder or otherwise provided by law, shall be deemed to be a waiver of such covenants or 
obligations or to preclude the exercise of such rights or remedies, and the Mortgagee, 
notwithstanding any such failure or delay, shall have the right thereafter to insist upon the strict 
performance by the Mortgagor of any and all of its covenants and obligations under the Bond 
Documents and to exercise any and all of its rights and remedies thereunder or otherwise 
provided by law. 

The Assignment 
 
Assignment of Mortgages 
 
 Pursuant to the Assignment of Building Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement, the 
Assignment of Project Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement and the Assignment of 
Acquisition Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement (collectively, the “Assignment”), the Issuer 
has assigned to the Trustee, all of the Issuer’s rights, title and interests under the Mortgage to the 
Trustee to secure the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, sinking fund installments of 
and interest on the Series 2013 Bonds.    
 

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank] 
 



APPENDIX E

FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION

Upon delivery of the Bonds, Nixon Peabody LLP, Bond Counsel to the Issuer, proposes to issue its final
approving opinion in substantially the following form:
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December 23, 2013 
 
Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation 
Hempstead, New York 

Robert W. Baird & Co., Incorporated 
Denver, Colorado 

Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, as Trustee 
Buffalo, New York 

Re: Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation 
$12,970,000 Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A  
(The Academy Charter School Project) 
and 
Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation 
$545,000 Taxable Education Revenue Bonds, Series 2013B 
(The Academy Charter School Project) 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have acted as bond counsel to the Town of Hempstead Local Development 
Corporation (Town of Hempstead, New York) (the “Issuer”), in connection with the issuance on 
the date hereof by the Issuer of its $12,970,000 Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds, Series 
2013A (The Academy Charter School Project) (the “Series 2013A Bonds”) and its $545,000 
Taxable Education Revenue Bonds, Series 2013B (The Academy Charter School Project) (The 
“Series 2013B Bonds”; and, together with the Series 2013A Bonds, the “Series 2013 Bonds”).  
The Series 2013 Bonds are authorized to be issued pursuant to (i) the New York Membership 
Corporation Law as in effect in 1966, as superseded by Section 1411 of the New York Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law (collectively called the “Act”), (ii) a Bond Resolution duly adopted by 
the Issuer on December 18, 2013 (the “Resolution”), and (iii) an Indenture of Trust, dated as of 
December 1, 2013 (the “Indenture”), by and between the Issuer and Manufacturers and Traders 
Trust Company, as trustee for the benefit of the Owners of the Series 2013 Bonds (the 
“Trustee”).  The Series 2013 Bonds were issued on behalf of The Academy Charter School, an 
education corporation (the “School”) to finance or refinance the costs of acquisition, 
construction, renovating and equipping of a facility consisting of (A) (i) the acquisition of an 
existing approximately 1.13 acre parcel of land at 159 North Franklin Street, Village of 
Hempstead, Town of Hempstead, New York (further identified as Section 34, Block 291, Lot 86) 
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(the “Land”), (ii) the expansion of an existing approximately 39,004 square foot four-story 
building on the Land including the construction, renovation and selective demolition to non-
structural building components including, but not limited to, walls, ceilings, miscellaneous 
piping, duct work, removal and replacement of the HVAC systems, metal framing and drywall 
work to create elevator lobby areas, corridors and classroom at each floor level, façade 
modifications to existing east elevation of existing building, upgrading and alteration of the 
plumbing, sprinkler and fire alarm systems, modifications of the 2nd – 4th floor ceiling 
assemblies into a one hour fire rated assembly, reinforcing of existing floor slabs on floors 2 - 4 
to increase structural capacity in the new corridor and lobby areas, and removal of all interior 
walls and construction of new classrooms and associated offices and support areas (collectively, 
the “Middle School Improvements”), (iii) the construction and equipping of a new 
approximately 17,000 square foot building on the Land to include an approximately 9,000 square 
foot gymnasium at ground level and an approximately 8,000 square foot full basement area with 
locker rooms, cafeteria, warming kitchen and associated storage uses (collectively, the 
“Gymnasium Building”; and, together with the Land and the Middle School Improvements, (the 
“Facility”) (the resulting square footage of the Middle School Improvements together with the 
Gymnasium Building total approximately 56,000 square feet), all for the purpose of providing 
educational opportunities to middle school children in the Town of Hempstead and surrounding 
areas; (B) paying capitalized interest on the Series 2013 Bonds during the construction period; 
(C) funding a debt service reserve, if required, for the Series 2013 Bonds, and (D) paying certain 
costs of issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds (collectively, the “Project”). 

The Issuer will loan the proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds to the School pursuant to the 
terms of a Loan Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “Loan Agreement”), between 
the Issuer and the School.  The School has evidenced its obligations to make loan payments to 
the Issuer by the issuance and delivery of (i) a certain Promissory Note, dated December 23, 
2013 (the “Tax Exempt Note”), in the principal amount of the Series 2013A Bonds; and (ii) a 
certain Promissory Note, dated December 23, 2013 (the “Taxable Note”; and, together with the 
Tax Exempt Note, the “Notes”), in the principal amount of the Series 2013B Bonds, each from 
the School to the Issuer.  The School has granted mortgage liens on and security interests in the 
Project to the Issuer pursuant to an Acquisition Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement (the 
“Acquisition Loan Mortgage”), a Project Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement (the 
“Project Loan Mortgage”), and a Building Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement (the 
“Building Loan Mortgage”; and, together with the Acquisition Loan Mortgage and the Project 
Loan Mortgage, collectively, the “Mortgages”), each dated as of December 1, 2013 and each 
from the School to the Issuer.  As additional collateral to secure its obligations under the Loan 
Agreement and the Notes, the School has granted to the Issuer a collateral mortgage lien on a 
certain Series 2011 Project (as defined in the Indenture) to the Issuer pursuant to a Series 2013 
Collateral Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “Series 2013 
Collateral Mortgage”) from the School to the Issuer.  The School, the Issuer and the Trustee 
have entered into a Building Loan Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “Building 
Loan Agreement”), by and among the Issuer, the School and the Trustee.  The Issuer has 
assigned to the Trustee as security for the Series 2013 Bonds, for the benefit of the Owners of the 
Series 2013 Bonds, substantially all of its rights under (i) the Loan Agreement pursuant to the 
Indenture, (ii) the Mortgages pursuant to an Assignment of Acquisition Loan Mortgage and 
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Security Agreement (the “Assignment of Acquisition Loan Mortgage”), an Assignment of 
Project Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement (the “Assignment of Project Loan 
Mortgage”), and an Assignment of Building Loan Mortgage and Security Agreement (the 
“Assignment of Building Loan Mortgage”; and, together with the Assignment of Acquisition 
Loan Mortgage and the Assignment of Project Loan Mortgage, collectively, the “Assignments”), 
each dated December 23, 2013 and each from the Issuer to the Trustee.  The Issuer further 
assigned to the Trustee for the benefit of the Owners of the Series 2013 Bonds, substantially all 
of its rights under the Series 2013 Collateral Mortgage pursuant to a Series 2013 Assignment of 
Collateral Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated as of December 23, 2013 (the “Series 2013 
Assignment of Collateral Mortgage”), from the Issuer to the Trustee.  ˙The School, the Issuer 
and the Trustee have entered into an Environmental Compliance and Indemnification 
Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “Environmental Compliance and 
Indemnification Agreement”), whereby the School agrees to comply with all Environmental 
Laws (as defined therein) applicable to the Project and will indemnify and hold harmless the 
Issuer for all liability under all such Environmental Laws.  The Issuer and the School have 
entered into a Tax Compliance Agreement, dated the date hereof (the “Tax Compliance 
Agreement”), in which the Issuer and the School have made certain representations and 
covenants, established certain conditions and limitations and created certain expectations, 
relating to compliance with the requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended (the “Code”).  Robert W. Baird & Co., Incorporated (the “Underwriter”) has agreed to 
purchase and resell the Series 2013 Bonds to one or more purchasers pursuant to the terms of a 
Bond Purchase Agreement, dated December 19, 2013 (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), 
among the Issuer, the Underwriter and the School. 

The Series 2013 Bonds are each dated December 23, 2013, and bear interest from the 
date thereof at the rate and pursuant to the respective terms of the Series 2013 Bonds.  The Series 
2013 Bonds are subject to prepayment or redemption prior to maturity, as a whole or in part, at 
such time or times, under such circumstances and in such manner as is set forth in the Series 
2013 Bonds and the Indenture. 

As bond counsel, we have examined originals or copies, certified or otherwise identified 
to our satisfaction, of such instruments, certificates and documents (including all documents 
constituting the Transcript of Proceedings with respect to the issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds) 
as we have deemed necessary or appropriate for the purposes of the opinions rendered below.  In 
such examination, we have assumed the genuineness of all signatures, the authenticity and due 
execution of all documents submitted to us as originals and the conformity to the original 
documents of all documents submitted to us as copies.  As to any facts material to our opinion, 
without having conducted any independent investigation, we have relied upon, and assumed the 
accuracy and truthfulness of, the aforesaid instruments, certificates and documents. 

Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings 
assigned in the Schedule of Definitions attached as Schedule A to the Indenture. 

In rendering the opinions set forth below, we have relied upon, among other things, 
certain representations and covenants made by the parties in this transaction including: (i) the 
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School in (a) the Bond Purchase Agreement, (b) the Tax Compliance Agreement, (c) the Loan 
Agreement, (d) the Mortgages, (e) the Collateral Mortgages, (f) the Closing Certificate of the 
School, dated the date hereof and (g) the Bond Counsel Questionnaire submitted to us by the 
School, and (ii) the Issuer in (a) the Bond Purchase Agreement, (b) the Indenture, (c) the Tax 
Compliance Agreement, (d) the Loan Agreement, and (e) the Closing Certificate of the Issuer, 
dated the date hereof.  We call your attention to the fact that there are certain requirements with 
which the Issuer and the School must comply after the date of issuance of the Series 2013A 
Bonds in order for the interest on the Series 2013A Bonds to remain excluded from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes.  Copies of the aforementioned documents are included in the 
Transcript of Proceedings. 

In addition, in rendering the opinions set forth below, we have relied upon the opinions of 
counsel to the Issuer, Ryan, Brennan & Donnelly, LLP, Floral Park, New York; Co-Counsel to 
the School, Ruskin Moscou Faltischek, P.C., Uniondale, New York and Tanya Hobson-
Williams, P.C., Jamaica, New York; counsel to the Trustee, Bond, Schoeneck & King PLLC, 
Syracuse, New York, all of even date herewith.  Copies of the aforementioned opinions are 
contained in the Transcript of Proceedings. 

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, we are of the opinion that: 

1. The Issuer is a duly organized and existing corporate governmental agency 
constituting a local development corporation of the State of New York. 

2. The Issuer is duly authorized to issue, execute, sell and deliver the Series 2013 
Bonds, for the purpose of paying the costs described above. 

3. The Resolution has been duly adopted by the Issuer and is in full force and effect. 

4. The Bond Purchase Agreement, the Indenture, the Tax Compliance Agreement, 
the Loan Agreement, the Assignments, the Series 2013 Collateral Mortgage Assignment and the 
Building Loan Agreement, have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Issuer and 
are legal, valid and binding obligations of the Issuer, enforceable against the Issuer in accordance 
with their respective terms. 

5. The Series 2013 Bonds have been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the 
Issuer and are legal, valid and binding special obligations of the Issuer payable solely from the 
revenues derived from the Loan Agreement, enforceable against the Issuer in accordance with 
their respective terms. 

6. The Series 2013 Bonds do not constitute a debt of the State of New York or of the 
Town of Hempstead, New York, and neither the State of New York nor the Town of Hempstead, 
New York, will be liable thereon. 

7. The Code sets forth certain requirements which must be met subsequent to the 
issuance and delivery of the Series 2013A Bonds for interest thereon to be and remain excluded 
from gross income for Federal income tax purposes.  Noncompliance with such requirements 
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could cause the interest on the Series 2013A Bonds to be included in gross income for Federal 
income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issue of the Series 2013A Bonds.  Pursuant to the 
Indenture, the Loan Agreement and the Tax Compliance Agreement, the Issuer and the School 
have covenanted to maintain the exclusion from gross income of the interest on the Series 2013A 
Bonds pursuant to Section 103 of the Code.  In addition, the Issuer and the School have made 
certain representations and certifications in the Indenture, the Loan Agreement and the Tax 
Compliance Agreement.  We have not independently verified the accuracy of those certifications 
and representations or that opinion.  We are also relying on the opinion of Counsel to the School, 
as to all matters concerning the status of the School as an organization described in Section 
501(c)(3) of the Code and exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the Code and 
regarding our understanding that no portion of the Facility will be used in an unrelated trade or 
business within the meaning of Section 513(a) of the Code. 

Under existing law, assuming compliance with the tax covenants described herein and the 
accuracy of the aforementioned representations and certifications, interest on the Series 2013A 
Bonds is excluded from gross income for Federal income tax purposes under Section 103 of the 
Code.  We are also of the opinion that such interest is not treated as a preference item in 
calculating the alternative minimum tax imposed under the Code with respect to individuals and 
corporations.  Interest on the Series 2013A Bonds is, however, included in the adjusted current 
earnings of certain corporations for purposes of computing the alternative minimum tax imposed 
on such corporations. 

8. Interest on the Series 2013A Bonds is exempt from income taxes imposed by the 
State of New York or any political subdivision of the State of New York. 

9. Interest on the Series 2013B Bonds is not excluded from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code and so will be fully subject to federal income 
taxation. 

10. Interest on the Series 2013B Bonds is not exempt from personal income taxes 
imposed by the State of New York or any political subdivision of the State of New York. 

Except as stated in the paragraphs 7 through 10 above, we express no opinion as to any 
other Federal or state tax consequences of the ownership or disposition of the Series 2013 Bonds.  
Furthermore, we express no opinion as to any Federal, state or local tax law consequences with 
respect to the Series 2013 Bonds, or the interest thereon, if any action is taken with respect to the 
Series 2013 Bonds or the proceeds thereof upon the advice or approval of other counsel. 

The opinions expressed in paragraphs 9 and 10 are not intended or provided to be used by 
an owner of the Series 2013B Bonds for the purpose of avoiding penalties that may be imposed 
on the owner of such Series 2013B Bonds.  Such opinions are provided to support the promotion 
or marketing of the Series 2013B Bonds.  Each owner of the Series 2013B Bonds should seek 
advice based on its particular circumstances from an independent tax advisor.  
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The foregoing opinions are qualified to the extent that the enforceability of the Series 
2013 Bonds, the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Indenture, the Loan Agreement and the Tax 
Compliance Agreement may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws or enactments 
now or hereafter enacted by the State of New York or the United States affecting the 
enforcement of creditors’ rights and by restrictions on the availability of equitable remedies and 
to the extent, if any, that enforceability of the indemnification provisions of such documents may 
be limited under law.  We express no opinion with respect to the availability of any specific 
remedy provided for in any of the bond documents. 

In rendering the foregoing opinions, we are not passing upon and do not assume any 
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, sufficiency or fairness of any documents, 
information or financial data supplied by the Issuer, the School or the Trustee in connection with 
the Series 2013 Bonds, the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Indenture, the Loan Agreement, the 
Tax Compliance Agreement, the Mortgages, the Assignments, the Building Loan Agreement, the 
Environmental Compliance and Indemnification Agreement, the Official Statement, the 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement or the Project and make no representation that we have 
independently verified the accuracy, completeness, sufficiency or fairness of any such 
documents, information or financial data.  In addition, we express no opinion herein with respect 
to the accuracy, completeness, sufficiency or fairness of the Official Statement, dated December 
19, 2013, with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds. 

We express no opinion herein with respect to the registration requirements under the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, the registration or qualification requirements under the Trust 
Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, the registration, qualification or other requirements of State 
Securities laws, or the availability of exemptions therefrom. 

We express no opinion as to the sufficiency of the description of the Equipment 
contained in the Loan Agreement or as to the adequacy, perfection or priority of any security 
interest in any collateral securing the Series 2013 Bonds. 

Furthermore, we express no opinion as to the Continuing Disclosure Agreement.  We 
express no opinion with respect to whether the Issuer and the School (i) have complied with the 
State Environmental Quality Review Act, (ii) have obtained any or all necessary governmental 
approvals, consents or permits, or (iii) have complied with the New York Labor Law or other 
applicable laws, rules, regulations, orders and zoning and building codes, all in connection with 
the renovation, construction, equipping, furnishing and operation of the Project. 

 
The opinions expressed herein may be relied upon by the addressees and may not be 

relied upon by any other person without our prior written consent.   
 

Very truly yours, 
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APPENDIX F

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “Continuing Disclosure
Agreement”), is executed and delivered by and among The Academy Charter School, a New York nonprofit
corporation (the “Borrower”) and Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, Buffalo, New York, as trustee and
dissemination agent (the “Trustee” or “Dissemination Agent”), in connection with the issuance by the Town of
Hempstead Local Development Corporation (the “Issuer”) of its $12,970,000 Tax-Exempt Education Revenue
Bonds (The Academy Charter School Project), Series 2013A (the “Series 2013A Bonds”) and $545,000 Taxable
Education Revenue Bonds (The Academy Charter School Project), Series 2013B (the “Series 2013B Bonds” and,
together with the Series 2013A Bonds, the “Series 2013 Bonds”). The Series 2013 Bonds are being issued pursuant
to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “Indenture”), between the Issuer and the Trustee. The
proceeds of the Series 2013 Bonds are being loaned to the Borrower pursuant to a Loan Agreement, dated as of
December 1, 2013 (the “Loan Agreement”), by and between the Issuer and the Borrower. Capitalized terms used
but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned thereto in the Indenture.

Section 1. Purpose of Agreement

Inasmuch as the Series 2013 Bonds are limited obligations of the Issuer, no financial or operating data
concerning it is material to any decision to purchase, hold or sell the Series 2013 Bonds, and the Issuer has not
covenanted to provide such information. The Borrower has undertaken all responsibilities for any continuing
disclosure to holders of the Series 2013 Bonds as described herein.

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement is being executed and delivered by the Borrower for the benefit of
the registered owners of the Series 2013 Bonds (for such purpose beneficial owners of the Series 2013 Bonds shall
also be considered registered owners of the Series 2013 Bonds) and to assist Robert W. Baird & Co., Incorporated
(the “Underwriter”) in complying with paragraph (b)(5) of Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Rule
15c2-12 (17 C.F.R. § 240.15c2-12) (the “Rule”). This Continuing Disclosure Agreement constitutes the written
Undertaking required by the Rule. Each and every filing made hereunder shall be disseminated by transmission to
the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (defined below) through the Electronic Municipal Market Access
(“EMMA”) System at www.emma.msrb.org or any successor system that the MSRB may prescribe. Such filings
will be in the format and will be accompanied by the identifying information prescribed by the MSRB.

Section 2. Defined Terms

“Annual Report” means the reports required to be provided pursuant to Section 3 hereof.

“Borrower” means The Academy Charter School, a New York nonprofit corporation.

“Dissemination Agent” means, initially, the Trustee, and thereafter, any successor appointed by the
Borrower pursuant to the provisions hereof.

“Indenture” means the Indenture of Trust, dated as of December 1, 2013, between the Issuer and the
Trustee.

“Interim Report” means the reports required to be provided pursuant to Section 4 hereof.

“Listed Event” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Agreement of this Agreement.

“Loan Agreement” means the Loan Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013, between the Issuer and the
Borrower.

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.
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“Official Statement” means the Official Statement dated December __, 2013 pertaining to the Series 2013
Bonds.

“Trustee” means Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company, Buffalo, New York, or any successor thereto
under the Indenture.

Section 3. Annual Reports

Each year, the Borrower shall cause the Dissemination Agent to provide, on or prior to the 120th day after
the end of each fiscal year, commencing with the fiscal year that ended June 30, 2013, to the MSRB through
EMMA, an Annual Report for the preceding fiscal year which includes all annual information pertinent to such
fiscal year as provided below:

(a) Contents

(i) Audited Financials - Accountant: A copy of the Borrower's annual audited financial
statements prepared by an Accountant in accordance with State law, together with a copy
of any accompanying management letter and a copy of the accompanying audit report;
provided, however, that such annual audited financial statements may be submitted
separately from the balance of the Annual Report and that, if such audited financial
statements are not available within 120 days of the end of the fiscal year of the Borrower,
unaudited financial statements will be provided, and audited financial statements will
subsequently be submitted when they become available.

(ii) Enrollment and Waiting List Data: Actual enrollment and waiting list data for the current
year, of the sort and in the format (but excluding projected information) initially provided
in by the Borrower within Appendix B to the Official Statement, in TABLE B-3:
HISTORICAL AND FUTURE PROJECTED ENROLLMENT BY GRADE LEVEL and
TABLE B-4: WAITING LIST DATA.

(iii) Financial Covenants Certification: An executed certificate signed by an officer of the
Borrower calculating compliance with the covenants as described in Section 8.13 of the
Loan Agreement.

(b) Method and Notice Upon Failure to Provide

Each Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a
package, and may include by specific reference other information provided pursuant to this Agreement. If the
Borrower fails to provide any Annual Report within the time periods required hereby, then the Borrower shall
promptly send a notice of such failure in the manner required under this Agreement.

Section 4. Quarterly Interim Reports

The Borrower will provide or cause the Dissemination Agent to provide to the MSRB through EMMA in
the manner required under this Agreement, all documents and information as set forth below.

(i) unaudited financial statements of the Borrower for the previous calendar quarter reflecting
revenues and expenses in comparative form with the Borrower's operating budget as submitted by
the Borrower to its governing board, within 45 days of the close of each respective calendar
quarter; and

(ii) copies of each report on enrollment, headcount, membership, attendance and similar statistics
with respect to the Borrower submitted by the Borrower to the New York State Education
Department during the previous calendar quarter, within 45 days of the close of each respective
calendar quarter.
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Each Interim Report may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents comprising a
package, and may include by specific reference other information provided pursuant to this Agreement.

No notice is required if the Borrower fails to provide the information required by this Section.

Section 5. Monthly Construction Progress Reports

The Borrower will provide or cause the Dissemination Agent to provide to the MSRB through EMMA in
the manner required under this Agreement, all documents and information as set forth below.

Construction Progress Reports. Within 15 days from the end of each calendar month, the Borrower shall
provide a report detailing progress with construction of the Facility.

No notice is required if the Borrower fails to provide the information required by this Section.

Section 6. Reporting of Listed Events

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this section, the Borrower shall give, or cause the
Dissemination Agent to give, notice of the occurrence of any of the following Listed Event with respect to
the Series 2013 Bonds in a timely manner not more than ten (10) business days after the occurrence of such
event to MSRB:

(1) Principal and interest payment delinquencies;

(2) Non-payment related defaults, if material;

(3) Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;

(4) Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

(5) Substitution of credit or liquidity providers or their failure to perform;

(6) Adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final
determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other
material notices of determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other
material events affecting the tax status of the Bonds;

(7) Modifications to the rights of the Bondowners, if material;

(8) Bond calls, if material, and tender offers;

(9) Defeasances;

(10) Release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if material;

(11) Rating changes;

(12) Bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the Borrower (or any other
obligated person, as defined in the Rule);

Note to clause (12): For the purposes of the event identified in clause (12) above, the
event is considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a
receiver, fiscal agent or similar officer for the Borrower (or any other obligated person, as
defined in the Rule) in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other
proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or government authority has
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assumed jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the Borrower (or
any other obligated person, as defined in the Rule), or if such jurisdiction has been
assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers in possession
but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the
entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a
court or governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all
of the assets or business of the Borrower (or any other obligated person, as defined in the
Rule);

(13) The consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the Borrower (or
any other obligated person, as defined in the Rule) or the sale of all or substantially all of
the assets of the Borrower (or any other obligated person, as defined in the Rule), other
than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake
such an action or the termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions,
other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and

(14) Appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of the name of the trustee,
if material.

(b) The Dissemination Agent shall, promptly after obtaining actual knowledge of the occurrence or
possible occurrence of any of the Listed Events set forth in subsection (a) above, contact the Disclosure
Representative and inform such person of the event. “Actual knowledge” for purposes of this subsection (b) shall
mean actual knowledge of an officer of the Corporate Trust Administration of the Dissemination Agent.

(c) Whenever the Borrower obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event set forth in clauses
(2), (7), (8) (relating to Bond calls only), (10), (13) or (14) of subsection (a) above, whether because of a notice from
the Dissemination Agent pursuant to subsection (b) or otherwise, the Borrower shall as soon as possible determine if
such event would constitute material information for Bondholders, and if such event is determined by the Borrower
to be material, the Borrower shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, give notice of such event to the MSRB
not later than ten (10) Business Days after the occurrence of such event.

(d) If the Borrower elects to have the Dissemination Agent file notice of any Listed Event, the
Borrower will provide the notice to the Dissemination Agent within 5 Business Days after the occurrence of the
Listed Event, along with an instruction to file the notice with the MSRB.

Each Event Notice shall be so captioned and shall prominently state the date, title and (to the extent less
than all of the Series 2013 Bonds are affected by the related material event) CUSIP numbers of the Series 2013
Bonds.

The Borrower may from time to time choose to provide notice of the occurrence of certain other events, in
addition to those listed above, but the Borrower does not undertake any commitment to provide such notice of any
event except those events listed above.

Section 7. Dissemination Agent; Initial Dissemination Agent

The Borrower has engaged the Dissemination Agent to assist it in disseminating information hereunder.
The Borrower shall send all annual financial information, operating data, interim reports and event notices required
by this Agreement to the Dissemination Agent. Unless otherwise agreed to, the Dissemination Agent shall, as soon
as practicable but not later than 15 days of receipt of such information forward the same to (i) the MSRB, as
described herein and (ii) any Registered or Beneficial Owner of the Series 2013 Bonds who requests such
information in writing to the Dissemination Agent or the Borrower. The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty to
review the materials described in this paragraph prior to disseminating such materials.

The initial Dissemination Agent shall be the Trustee. The Borrower may discharge the Dissemination
Agent or any successor Dissemination Agent, but in such event shall take steps necessary to appoint a successor
Dissemination Agent who shall be responsible for undertaking all responsibilities of Dissemination hereunder.
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Section 8. Termination of Obligations

Pursuant to paragraph (b)(5)(iii) of the Rule, the obligation of the Borrower to provide financial and
operating information of the Borrower and notices of material events, as set forth herein, shall terminate if and when
the Borrower no longer remains an obligated person with respect to the Series 2013 Bonds, which shall occur upon
either payment of the Series 2013 Bonds in full or the legal defeasance of the Series 2013 Bonds in accordance with
the Indenture.

Section 9. Enforceability and Remedies

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement is intended to be for the sole benefit of the Trustee, the Underwriter
and the registered owners of the Series 2013 Bonds (for such purpose beneficial owners of the Series 2013 Bonds
shall also be considered registered owners of the Series 2013 Bonds) and shall create no rights in any other person or
entity.

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall be enforceable by or on behalf of any registered owner of the
Series 2013 Bonds, provided that the right of any registered owner to challenge the timely filing, failure to file or the
adequacy of the information furnished pursuant to this Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall be limited to an
action by or on behalf of registered owners representing at least 25% of the aggregate outstanding principal amount
of the Series 2013 Bonds. This Continuing Disclosure Agreement is also enforceable on behalf of the registered
owners of the Series 2013 Bonds by the Trustee, and the Trustee may, and upon the written direction of the
registered owners of not less than 25% of the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Series 2013 Bonds or
the Underwriter shall, proceed to protect and enforce the rights of the registered owners of the Series 2013 Bonds
pursuant to this Continuing Disclosure Agreement; provided that in all cases the Trustee shall be entitled to the
indemnification and other provisions of the Indenture with regard to any actions, and prior to proceeding at the
request or direction of the Underwriter the Trustee may require the same types of indemnification and related
protections from the Underwriter to which the Trustee would otherwise be entitled under the Indenture if so
requested or directed by the registered owners.

Any failure by the Borrower to comply with the provisions of this Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall
not be an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement or the Indenture. The registered owners' and the Trustee's
rights to enforce the provisions of this Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall be limited solely to a right, by action
in mandamus or for specific performance, to compel the Borrower to perform under this Continuing Disclosure
Agreement, and their directors, officers and employees shall incur no liability under this Continuing Disclosure
Agreement by reason of any act or failure to act hereunder. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, neither
the commencement nor the successful completion of an action to compel performance under this Section shall
entitle the Trustee or any other person to attorneys' fees, financial damages of any sort or any other relief other than
an order or injunction compelling performance; provided that the Trustee shall nevertheless be entitled to attorneys'
fees and such other rights and amounts as provided in the Indenture.

Section 10. Amendment

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Continuing Disclosure Agreement, the Borrower and the
Trustee may amend this Continuing Disclosure Agreement, and any provision of this Continuing Disclosure
Agreement may be waived, without the consent of the registered owners but with the consent of the Trustee, under
the following conditions:

(a) The amendment or waiver may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that
arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law or change in the identity, nature or status
of the Borrower, or type of business conducted;

(b) This Continuing Disclosure Agreement, as amended or with the provision so waived, would have
complied with the requirements of the Rule at the time of the primary offering, after taking into
account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances;
and
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(c) The amendment or waiver does not materially impair the interest of registered owners of the
Series 2013 Bonds, as determined either by parties unaffiliated with the Borrower (which shall
include the Trustee or nationally recognized bond counsel, or any other party determined by any of
them to be unaffiliated), or by approving vote of registered owners of the Series 2013 Bonds
pursuant to the terms of the Indenture at the time of the amendment or waiver.

The Borrower shall provide notice of each amendment or waiver for dissemination in the manner specified
herein. The initial annual financial or operating information provided by the Borrower after the amendment or
waiver shall explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the amendment or waiver and the effect of the change in the
type of operating data or financial information being provided.

Section 10. Counterparts

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an
original and all of which shall constitute one instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have set our hands as of the date set forth above.

THE ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL

By ________________________
Title:

MANUFACTURERS AND TRADERS TRUST COMPANY
as Dissemination Agent

By ________________________
Title:
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INTERCREDITOR AGREEMENT 

INTERCREDITOR AGREEMENT dated as of December 1, 2013, by and among the 
TOWN OF HEMPSTEAD LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, (the “Issuer”) 
ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL, INC., (the “School”), MANUFACTURERS AND 
TRADERS TRUST COMPANY, as trustee under the 2011 Indenture (hereinafter defined) (the 
“2011 Trustee”), MANUFACTURERS AND TRADERS TRUST COMPANY, as trustee under 
the 2013 Indenture (hereinafter defined) (the “2013 Trustee”), MANUFACTURERS AND 
TRADERS TRUST COMPANY, as custodian under the Custodian Agreement (hereinafter 
defined) (the “Custodian”), and MANUFACTURERS AND TRADERS TRUST COMPANY, 
as collateral agent hereunder (the “Collateral Agent”). 

Background: 

A.  The Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation (the “Issuer”) has 
previously issued its $10,505,000 Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds, Series 2011A (The 
Academy Charter School Project) (the “Series 2011A Bonds”) and its $235,000 Taxable 
Education Revenue Bonds, Series 2011B (The Academy Charter School Project) (the “Series 
2011B Bonds”; and, together with the Series 2011A Bonds, the “Series 2011 Bonds”) under and 
pursuant to a Indenture of Trust dated as of March 1, 2011 (the “2011 Indenture”) between the 
Issuer and the 2011 Trustee.  The proceeds of the 2011 Bonds were loaned to the School 
pursuant to a Loan Agreement dated as of March 1, 2011 (the “2011 Loan Agreement”) 
between the Issuer and the School, pursuant to which the School, among other things, granted in 
favor of the Issuer a lien on and security interest in the Pledged Revenues (defined herein) as 
security for its payment obligations under the 2011 Loan Agreement.  Pursuant to the 2011 
Indenture, the Issuer assigned substantially all its rights under the 2011 Loan Agreement to the 
2011 Trustee, as trustee for the holders of the 2011 Bonds.  The School’s payment obligations 
under the 2011 Loan Agreement are further secured by (i) a certain Acquisition Loan Mortgage, 
dated as March 1, 2011 (the “2011 Acquisition Loan Mortgage”); (ii) a certain Building Loan 
Mortgage, dated as March 1, 2011 (the “2011 Building Loan Mortgage”); (iii) a certain Project 
Loan Mortgage, dated as March 1, 2011 (the “2011 Project Loan Mortgage”); (iv) a certain 
Series 2013 Collateral Mortgage, dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “Series 2013 Collateral 
Mortgage”; and, together with the 2011 Acquisition Loan Mortgage, the 2011 Project Loan 
Mortgage and the 2011 Building Loan Mortgage, the “2011 Mortgages”), each, granted by the 
School, as mortgagor, to the Issuer, as mortgagee, on certain property owned by the School at 
117 North Franklin Street, Hempstead, New York 11550 (the “2011 Property”), which such 
2011 Mortgages were each assigned by the Issuer to the 2011 Trustee pursuant to (i) a certain 
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Assignment of Acquisition Loan Mortgage, dated as March 1, 2011 (the “2011 Assignment of 
Acquisition Loan Mortgage”); (ii) a certain Assignment of Project Loan Mortgage, dated as 
March 1, 2011 (the “2011 Assignment of Project Loan Mortgage”); (iii) a certain Assignment 
of Building Loan Mortgage, dated as March 1, 2011 (the “2011 Assignment of Building Loan 
Mortgage”) and (iv) a certain Assignment of Series 2013 Collateral Mortgage, dated as of 
December 1, 2013 (the “Assignment of 2013 Collateral Mortgage”; and, together with the 
2011 Assignment of Acquisition Loan Mortgage, the 2011 Assignment of Building Loan 
Mortgage and the 2011 Assignment of Project Loan Mortgage, the “2011 Assignment of 
Mortgages”). 

B.  Concurrently with the execution and delivery of this Intercreditor Agreement, the 
Issuer is issuing its $12,970,000 Tax-Exempt Education Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A (The 
Academy Charter School Project) (the “Series 2013A Bonds”) and its $545,000 Taxable 
Education Revenue Bonds, Series 2013B (The Academy Charter School Project) (the “Series 
2013B Bonds”; and together with the Series 2013A Bonds, the “Series 2013 Bonds”) under and 
pursuant to an Indenture of Trust dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “2013 Indenture”) between 
the Issuer and the 2013 Trustee.  The proceeds of the 2013 Bonds will be loaned to the School 
pursuant to a Loan and Agreement dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “2013 Loan Agreement”) 
between the Issuer and the School, pursuant to which the School, among other things, will grant 
in favor of the Issuer a lien on and security interest in the Pledged Revenues as security for its 
payment obligations under the 2013 Loan Agreement.  Pursuant to the 2013 Indenture, the Issuer 
will assign substantially all its rights under the 2013 Loan Agreement to the 2013 Trustee, as 
trustee for the holders of the 2013 Bonds.  The School’s payment obligations under the 2013 
Loan Agreement will be further secured by (i) a certain Acquisition Loan Mortgage, dated as of 
December 1, 2013 (the “2013 Acquisition Loan Mortgage”); (ii) a certain Building Loan 
Mortgage, dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “2013 Building Loan Mortgage”); (iii) a certain 
Project Loan Mortgage, dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “2013 Project Loan Mortgage”); 
and (iv) a certain Series 2011 Collateral Mortgage, dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “Series 
2011 Collateral Mortgage”) and, together with the 2013 Acquisition Loan Mortgage, the 2013 
Project Loan Mortgage, and the 2013 Building Loan Mortgage, the “2013 Mortgages”; and, 
together with the 2011 Mortgages, the “Mortgages”), each, granted by the School, as mortgagor, 
to the Issuer, as mortgagee, on certain property owned by the School at 159 North Franklin 
Street, Hempstead, New York 11550 (the “2013 Property”), which such 2013 Mortgages were 
each assigned by the Issuer to the 2013 Trustee pursuant to (i) a certain Assignment of 
Acquisition Loan Mortgage, dated as December 1, 2013 (the “2013 Assignment of Acquisition 
Loan Mortgage”); (ii) a certain Assignment of Project Loan Mortgage, dated as December 1, 
2013 (the “2013 Assignment of Project Loan Mortgage”); and (iii) a certain Assignment of 
Building Loan Mortgage, dated as December 1, 2013 and (iv) a certain Assignment of Series 
2011 Collateral Mortgage, dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “Assignment of 2011 Collateral 
Mortgage”; and, together with the 2013 Assignment of Acquisition Loan Mortgage, the 2013 
Assignment of Building Loan Mortgage and the 2013 Assignment of Project Loan Mortgage, the 
“2013 Assignment of Mortgages”). 

C.  In connection with the issuance of the 2011 Bonds, the School, the 2011 Trustee and 
the Custodian entered into a certain Custody Agreement, dated as of March 1, 2011 (the 
“Original Custody Agreement”). In connection with the issuance  of the 2013 Bonds, the 
School, the 2011 Trustee, the Custodian and the 2013 Trustee entered into a certain Amended 
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and Restated Custody Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2013 (the “Amended and Restated 
Custody Agreement”; and, together with the Original Custody Agreement, the “Custody 
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Custody Agreement the School will cause payments of Education 
Aid due to the School from the School Districts named in the Custody Agreement to be delivered 
to the Custodian, and the Custodian will in turn make transfers of certain moneys to the 2011 
Trustee and the 2013 Trustee for deposit under the 2011 Indenture and the 2013 Indenture, all as 
set forth therein.  

D.  In accordance with the provisions of each of the 2011 Loan Agreement and the 2013 
Loan Agreement, the grant by the School of a lien on and security interest in its Pledged 
Revenues in favor of the 2011 Trustee (as assignee of the Issuer), with respect to the 2011 
Bonds, and in favor of the 2013 Trustee (as assignee of the Issuer), with respect to the 2013 
Bonds, is intended to secure, equally and ratably, the School’s obligations under the 2011 Loan 
Agreement and the 2013 Loan Agreement. 

E.  In accordance with the provisions of each of the Mortgages, the grant by the School of 
the 2011 Mortgages in favor of the 2011 Trustee, and the grant by the School of the 2013 
Mortgages in favor of the 2013 Trustee, is intended to secure, equally and ratably, the School’s 
obligations under the 2011 Loan Agreement and the 2013 Loan Agreement. 

F.  In light of the foregoing, the parties are entering into this Intercreditor Agreement to 
provide for (i) the collection and distribution of the Pledged Revenues by the Collateral Agent 
and (ii) the exercise of any remedies and rights under the 2011 Mortgages by the 2011 Trustee 
and the 2013 Mortgages by the 2013 Trustee, for the equal and ratable benefit of the owners 
from time to time of the 2011 Bonds and the 2013 Bonds and of each other future holder of 
Parity Indebtedness, as hereinafter defined (if any), all as provided herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises and 
agreements of the parties herein, and intending to be legally bound, the parties hereby agree as 
follows: 

Section 1. Definitions. 

Capitalized terms used herein that are defined in the recitals hereto shall have the 
meanings set forth therein.  Capitalized terms used herein that are defined in the Indentures shall 
have the meanings set forth therein unless the context clearly requires otherwise.  In addition, the 
following additional terms used herein shall be defined as follows. 

“Event of Default” means any “Event of Default” or similar event described in 
any Parity Debt Agreement (after the passage of any applicable grace period) or the 
Mortgages. 

“Parity Debt Agreement” means each of the 2011 Loan Agreement and the 2013 
Loan Agreement, together with each other instrument or agreement evidencing 
indebtedness of the School identified as an additional Parity Debt Agreement in any 
Supplement entered into for the purpose of identifying the indebtedness evidenced 
thereby as additional Parity Indebtedness of the School. 
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“Parity Indebtedness” shall have the meanings assigned thereto in the 2011 
Indenture and the 2013 Indenture.    

“Parity Secured Party” means each of:  (i) the 2011 Trustee (as assignee of the 
Issuer), in respect of the obligations of the School under the 2011 Loan Agreement; 
(ii) the 2013 Trustee (as assignee of the Issuer), in respect of the obligations of the School 
under the 2013 Loan Agreement and (iii) each holder of additional Parity Indebtedness 
identified as an additional Parity Secured Party in any Supplement entered into for the 
purpose of identifying the indebtedness evidenced thereby as additional Parity 
Indebtedness of the School.  

“Supplement” means any Supplement to this Intercreditor Agreement delivered 
pursuant to Section 5 hereof.  

“Pledged Revenues” means the (i) “Gross Revenues” as defined in the 2011 
Indenture and in the 2013 Indenture and any similar term used to define the pledged 
revenues of the School in any additional Parity Debt Agreement; (ii) any Net Proceeds of 
casualty insurance or condemnation awards pursuant to Article VII of the 2011 Loan 
Agreement or the 2013 Loan Agreement; (iii) Net Proceeds from any foreclosure of any 
Mortgage or other security agreement by the Trustee; (iv) amounts under the Amended 
and Restated Custody Agreement; (v) any other amounts required by the School to be 
paid to the 2011 Trustee under the 2011 Loan Agreement or to the 2013 Trustee under 
the 2013 Loan Agreement; and (vi) proceeds of the Key Person Life Insurance Policy 
required pursuant to Section 8.23 of the 2013 Loan Agreement.   

Section 2. Parity Indebtedness. 

By their execution of this Intercreditor Agreement, the parties hereto acknowledge and 
agree that the grant by the School of (i) a lien on and security interest in the Pledged Revenues 
and (ii) a mortgage on each of the 2011 Property and the 2013 Property to each Parity Secured 
Party shall secure the indebtedness of the School under each Parity Debt Agreement and the 
Mortgages equally and ratably in accordance with this Intercreditor Agreement without regard to 
the time any such lien, security agreement or mortgage was created or the order of attachment or 
perfection of any such lien, security agreement or mortgage or the filing of any financing 
statement in respect thereof or any other circumstance whatsoever.  

Section 3. Mortgage Foreclosure Proceeds.  The exercise of rights and remedies 
under the 2011 Mortgages shall be exercised by the 2011 Trustee and any and all proceeds shall 
be applied as further defined under this Section 3.  The exercise of rights and remedies under the 
2013 Mortgages shall be exercised by the 2013 Trustee and any and all proceeds shall be applied 
as further directed under this Section 3.  The proceeds from the sale under the Mortgages of all 
or any part of the 2011 Property and/or the 2013 Property shall promptly be remitted to the 
Collateral Agent upon receipt and in the form received.  The Collateral Agent shall allocate the 
proceeds for the equal and ratable benefit of each Parity Secured Party.   
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Section 4. Application of Pledged Revenues. 

(a) In order to secure the interests of each Parity Secured Party in the Pledged 
Revenues, the Collateral Agent shall act for the benefit of each Parity Secured Party.  Upon the 
occurrence or continuation of any Event of Default, which occurrence or continuation of any 
Event of Default under any Parity Debt Agreement shall cause the School to deliver or cause to 
be delivered no less frequently than weekly its Pledged Revenues to the Collateral Agent to be 
applied for the equal and ratable benefit of each Parity Secured Party.   

(b) The Collateral Agent shall apply the available Pledged Revenues received in 
accordance with subsection (a) above to the payment of the School’s obligations under each 
Parity Debt Agreement, respectively, on a pro rata basis in proportion to the aggregate amount 
due under each Parity Debt Agreement (less, in each case, the amount of any available funds 
pledged exclusively for the benefit of the Parity Secured Party, including, without limitation, any 
debt service fund or debt service reserve fund securing any applicable Parity Indebtedness), 
divided by the total amount of Parity Indebtedness at the time outstanding pursuant to the Parity 
Debt Agreements.  For purposes of this paragraph, in the event one or more Parity Debt 
Agreements require the payment of interest on a monthly basis and one or more Parity Debt 
Agreements require the payment of interest on a semi-annual basis, the Collateral Agent shall 
treat one-sixth of the amount of any semi-annual interest payment as being due in each month 
and in the event one or more Parity Debt Agreements require the payment of principal on a 
monthly basis and one or more Parity Debt Agreements require the payment of principal on an 
annual basis, the Collateral Agent shall treat one-twelfth of the amount of any annual principal 
payment as being due in each month.  The Collateral Agent shall promptly make available to 
each Parity Secured Party any portion of the Pledged Revenues to which each Parity Secured 
Party is entitled under this Section. 

(c) Each Parity Secured Party shall promptly give written notice to each other Parity 
Secured Party and to the Collateral Agent of the occurrence of (i) any Event of Default or (ii) any 
other event which with the giving of notice, the passage of time or both would be an Event of 
Default of which it has knowledge or (iii) fifteen (15) days prior written notice of the exercise, 
cure, waiver of any rights or remedies relating to any Event of Default, or (iv) any notice 
received from the Borrower, Issuer, or any third party referencing an Event of Default, in 
accordance with the terms of any Parity Debt Agreement, as applicable.   

(d) At the written request of the Collateral Agent, each other Parity Secured Party 
shall provide the Collateral Agent information needed to determine the amount, if any, to be 
distributed to such other Parity Secured Party pursuant to subsection (b) above. 

(e) Collateral Agent shall provide notice to the 2011 Trustee and the 2013 Trustee of 
any exercise of its rights under this Intercreditor Agreement.   

Section 5. Property Held by Parity Secured Party. 

If and to the extent that, at any time an Event of Default shall have occurred and be 
continuing and any Parity Secured Party (other than the 2011 Trustee acting as trustee under the 
2011 Indenture and the 2013 Trustee acting as trustee under the 2013 Indenture) shall be then be 
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in possession of or thereafter have, acquire or be entitled to receive, by exercise of any right of 
set-off, bankers lien or other right, lien or security interest, whether created by any law or 
contract, any portion of the Pledged Revenues or any proceeds thereof, including any cash, 
investments or other property held in any deposit or investment account maintained by the 
School with such Parity Secured Party, such Parity Secured Party shall promptly deliver the 
same to the Collateral Agent for application as provided in Section 3 above and prior to such 
delivery, shall hold and maintain such property for the benefit and security of all of the Parity 
Secured Parties and. 

Section 6. Additional Parity Indebtedness. 

(a) The School will cause each holder of additional Parity Indebtedness of the School 
hereafter incurred to enter into a Supplement, pursuant to which such holder shall agree to the 
collection and distribution of the Pledged Revenues for the equal and ratable benefit and security 
of all holders of Parity Indebtedness in the manner provided herein. 

(b) In connection with each Supplement, the School shall prepare a schedule, 
substantially in the form of Schedule 1 to this Intercreditor Agreement, identifying as of the date 
of such Supplement, the following:  (i) each prior Supplement (if any); (ii) each Parity Debt 
Agreement then outstanding; and (iii) each Parity Secured Party (including the current address 
and facsimile number or other address or direction for electronic delivery of notices under the 
Intercreditor Agreement). The School shall deliver a copy of any such Supplement to each Parity 
Secured Party. 

Section 7. Accountings.  The Collateral Agent shall keep and maintain adequate 
records pertaining to all disbursements hereunder and shall annually file an accounting thereof 
with the 2011 Trustee, the 2013 Trustee and the School.   

Section 8. Payment of Expenses.  The School shall pay when billed all reasonable 
fees, compensation and expenses of the Collateral Agent under this Intercreditor Agreement, 
including reasonable fees for legal counsel.  The School agrees to indemnify the Collateral Agent 
for, and to hold it harmless against, any loss, liability or expense incurred without negligence or 
bad faith on the part of the Collateral Agent arising out of or in connection with this Intercreditor 
Agreement or any action taken under or contemplated by this Intercreditor Agreement.  In case 
any such claim should be made or action brought against the Collateral Agent in respect of which 
indemnity may be sought against the School, the Collateral Agent shall, as a condition of its right 
to indemnification hereunder, promptly notice the School in writing setting forth the particulars 
of such claim or action.  The Collateral Agent shall be entitled to participate at its own expense 
in the defense of any such action, or if it so elects to assume such defense, in which case such 
defense shall be conducted at the Collateral Agent’s expense by counsel chosen by the Collateral 
Agent and reasonably satisfactory to the School.  This Section 8 shall survive the termination of 
this Intercreditor Agreement.  The 2011 Trustee or the 2013 Trustee, may (but shall not be 
obligated to) advance such cost or expense of the Collateral Agent.  Any amount so paid under 
this Section 8 shall be given a preference in payment over any Bonds and interest thereon, and 
shall be paid out of the proceeds of revenues collected from the Trust Estate, if not otherwise 
caused to be paid. 
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Section 9. Appointment of Successor Collateral Agent. 

(a) In case the Collateral Agent hereunder shall resign, or be removed, or be 
dissolved, or shall be in the course of dissolution or liquidation, or otherwise become incapable 
of acting hereunder, or in case it shall be taken under the control of any public officer or officers, 
or of a receiver appointed by a court, a successor Collateral Agent may be appointed by the 
Parity Secured Parties by an instrument signed by each Parity Secured Party and delivered to 
such successor Collateral Agent, the predecessor Collateral Agent, the 2011 Trustee, the 2013 
Trustee, the Issuer and the School.   

(b) No Collateral Agent shall resign hereunder until a successor Collateral Agent 
shall be appointed hereunder. If the position of Collateral Agent shall become vacant for any 
reason the School shall cooperate with the 2011 Trustee and the 2013 Trustee to appoint a 
successor Collateral Agent and shall use their best efforts to obtain acceptance of such 
appointment of successor Collateral Agent within sixty (60) days from such vacancy or notice of 
resignation.  Within twenty (20) days after such appointment and acceptance, the 2011 Trustee 
and 2013 Trustee shall notify in writing the School and the Holders of all Bonds. 

(c) The Collateral Agent may be removed for any reason at any time by written 
notice prepared by the 2011 Trustee and the 2013 Trustee.   

Section 10. Notices. 

Any notice hereunder shall be given to the applicable party in writing by first class mail 
postage prepaid, by facsimile or by recognized overnight courier service, and shall be delivered 
to the School as follows:   

To the School: 

The Academy Charter School 
94 Fulton Avenue 
Hempstead, New York 11550 
Attention: Board Chair 

To the Issuer: 

Town of Hempstead Local Development Corporation 
350 Front Street, 2nd Floor 
Hempstead, New York  11550-4037 
Attention: Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer 

To the 2011 Trustee: 

Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company 
1 M&T Plaza, 7th Floor 
Buffalo,  New York 14203 
Attention: Corporate Trust Department  
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To the 2013 Trustee: 

Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company 
1 M&T Plaza, 7th Floor 
Buffalo,  New York 14203 
Attention: Corporate Trust Department  

To the Custody Agent: 

Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company 
1 M&T Plaza, 7th Floor 
Buffalo,  New York 14203 
Attention: Corporate Trust Department  

Any notice given to any Parity Secured Party shall be delivered to the address of such 
Parity Secured Party as provided on Schedule 1 hereto (including any amended Schedule 1 
provided in any Supplement hereto). 

Section 11. Governing Law. 

This Intercreditor Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of New York. 

Section 12. Agreement Controlling.   

To the extent there is a conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement, the 
Mortgages, the Indenture, or any amendment or modification of either thereof, this Agreement 
shall control as among the parties hereto. 

Section 13. Individual Bondholder Action Restricted. 

The Bondholders shall have the rights under Section 8.08 of the 2011 Indenture or 
the 2013 Indenture.   

Section 14. Integration. 

This Intercreditor Agreement sets forth the entire agreement among the parties hereto 
relating to the transactions contemplated hereby and supersedes any prior oral or written 
statements or agreements with respect to such transactions. 

Section 15. Amendments. 

Except as provided in Section 5 hereof in connection with the issuance of additional 
Parity Indebtedness, this Intercreditor Agreement may not be amended, modified or 
supplemented except in writing signed by each of the parties hereto. 
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Section 16. Counterparts. 

This Intercreditor Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which 
shall be regarded for all purposes as an original, and such counterparts shall constitute but one 
and the same instrument. 

Section 17. Rights of the Collateral Agent; Successor Collateral Agent. 

The parties hereto acknowledge and agree that, in exercising its rights and performing its 
duties as Collateral Agent, the Collateral Agent shall be entitled to the rights, protections, 
immunities and indemnities provided to it as trustee by the 2011 Indenture, the 2013 Indenture, 
the 2011 Loan Agreement and the 2013 Loan Agreement as if such rights, protections, 
immunities and indemnities were set forth in full herein.  If the Collateral Agent is replaced with 
a successor trustee under both 2011 Indenture and the 2013 Indenture, then such successor 
trustee shall automatically become the Collateral Agent under this Intercreditor Agreement. 

 



 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto have caused this Intercreditor 
Agreement to be duly executed on its behalf by its duly authorized officer or representative as of 
date set forth above. 

MANUFACTURERS AND TRADERS TRUST 
COMPANY, as the 2011 Trustee 
 
 
By:    
Name: Maureen A. Auld 
Title:  Assistant Vice President 
 
 
MANUFACTURERS AND TRADERS TRUST 
COMPANY, as the 2013 Trustee  
 
 
By:    
Name: Maureen A. Auld 
Title:  Assistant Vice President 
 
 
MANUFACTURERS AND TRADERS TRUST 
COMPANY, as the Custodian  
 
 
By:    
Name: Maureen A. Auld 
Title:  Assistant Vice President 
 
 
MANUFACTURERS AND TRADERS TRUST 
COMPANY, as the Collateral Agent 
 
 
By:    
Name: Maureen A. Auld 
Title:  Assistant Vice President 
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ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL, 
a New York not-for-profit corporation 
 
 
By:    
Name:  Barrington Goldson 
Title:  Board Chair 
 
 
 
TOWN OF HEMPSTEAD LOCAL 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 
 
By:    
Name:  Frederick E. Parola 

 Title:  Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
 ) ss.: 

COUNTY OF ERIE ) 
 

On the ___ day of December in the year 2013, before me, the undersigned, personally 
appeared Maureen A. Auld, personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument, and 
acknowledged to me that she executed the same in her capacity, and that by her signature on the 
within instrument, the individual, or the person or entity on behalf of which the individual acted, 
executed the instrument. 

   
 Notary Public 
 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

 ) ss.: 
COUNTY OF ERIE ) 
 

On the ___ day of December in the year 2013, before me, the undersigned, personally 
appeared Maureen A. Auld, personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument, and 
acknowledged to me that she executed the same in her capacity, and that by her signature on the 
within instrument, the individual, or the person or entity on behalf of which the individual acted, 
executed the instrument. 

   
 Notary Public 
 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

 ) ss.: 
COUNTY OF ERIE ) 
 

On the ___ day of December in the year 2013, before me, the undersigned, personally 
appeared Maureen A. Auld, personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument, and 
acknowledged to me that she executed the same in her capacity, and that by her signature on the 
within instrument, the individual, or the person or entity on behalf of which the individual acted, 
executed the instrument. 

   
 Notary Public 
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STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
 ) ss.: 

COUNTY OF ERIE ) 
 

On the ___ day of December in the year 2013, before me, the undersigned, personally 
appeared Maureen A. Auld, personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory 
evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument, and 
acknowledged to me that she executed the same in her capacity, and that by her signature on the 
within instrument, the individual, or the person or entity on behalf of which the individual acted, 
executed the instrument. 

   
 Notary Public 
 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

 : ss.: 
COUNTY OF NASSAU ) 
 

On the 19th day of December in the year 2013, before me, the undersigned, personally 
appeared Frederick E. Parola, personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of 
satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument, and 
acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his capacity, and that by his signature on the 
within instrument, the individual, or the person or entity on behalf of which the individual acted, 
executed the instrument. 

   
  Notary Public 

 
STATE OF NEW YORK ) 

 : ss.: 
COUNTY OF NASSAU ) 
 

On the 19th day of December in the year 2013, before me, the undersigned, personally 
appeared Barrigton Goldson, personally known to me or proved to me on the basis of 
satisfactory evidence to be the individual whose name is subscribed to the within instrument, and 
acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his capacity, and that by his signature on the 
within instrument, the individual, or the person or entity on behalf of which the individual acted, 
executed the instrument. 

   
  Notary Public 
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SCHEDULE 1 
 

Schedule of Parity Indebtedness 

 

1. Prior Supplements to Intercreditor Agreement. 

 NONE. 

2. Parity Debt Agreements: 

(a) Loan and Security Agreement dated as of March 1, 2011 between the Issuer and 
the School (as amended and supplemented from time to time, the “2011 Loan 
Agreement”) 

(b) Loan and Security Agreement dated as of December 1, 2013 between the Issuer 
and the School (as amended and supplemented from time to time, the “2013 Loan 
Agreement”) 

3. Parity Secured Parties: 

(a) 2011 Trustee: 

Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company 
1 M&T Plaza, 7th Floor 
Buffalo,  New York 14203 
Attention: Corporate Trust Department  

(b) 2013 Trustee: 

Manufacturers and Traders Trust Company 
1 M&T Plaza, 7th Floor 
Buffalo,  New York 14203 
Attention: Corporate Trust Department  
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